PIMCO

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

Classes

- Administrative
- E
- Institutional
- Investor
- M Retail
- H Institutional
- W

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company") is an umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between Funds incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928.

* Trademark of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC in the United States.

Prospectus

Singapore Supplement 8 August 2022



Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund

Commodity Real Return Fund

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund

Diversified Income Fund

Dynamic Bond Fund

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund

Emerging Local Bond Fund

Emerging Markets Bond Fund

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund

Euro Bond Fund

Global Advantage Fund

Global Bond Ex-US Fund

Global Bond Fund

Global High Yield Bond Fund

Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund

Global Real Return Fund

Income Fund

Income Fund II

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund

Low Average Duration Fund

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

Low Duration Income Fund

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund

PIMCO ESG Income Fund

StocksPLUS™ Fund*

Strategic Income Fund

Total Return Bond Fund

US High Yield Bond Fund

US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"),

an umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between Funds incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland (i.e. outside Singapore) with registered number 276928.

SINGAPORE PROSPECTUS

This Singapore Prospectus dated **8 August 2022** is a replacement prospectus lodged with the Monetary Authority of Singapore (the "**Authority**") pursuant to section 298 of the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore (the "**SFA**") and replaces the fourth replacement prospectus lodged with the Authority on 29 July 2022 (the "**Fourth Replacement Prospectus**"), which replaced the third replacement prospectus lodged with the Authority on 1 July 2022 (the "**Third Replacement Prospectus**"), which replaced the second replacement prospectus lodged with the Authority on 13 June 2022 (the "**Second Replacement Prospectus**"), which replaced the first replacement Singapore Prospectus lodged with the Authority on 13 April 2022 (the "**First Replacement Singapore Prospectus**"), which in turn replaced the Singapore Prospectus registered by the Authority on 1 March 2022 (the "**Registered Singapore Prospectus**").

This Singapore Prospectus incorporates and should be read in conjunction with: (a) the Irish prospectus for the Company dated 8 August 2022 as may be amended from time to time (the "Irish Prospectus"); (b) the supplement to the Irish Prospectus relating to the existing funds of the Company dated 8 August 2022; (c) the supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics" dated 8 August 2022; and (d) the 33 supplements to the Irish Prospectus dated 8 August 2022 relating to each of the Funds (collectively, the "Supplements"), and relates to the offer of Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares, Class M Retail Shares, Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares in:

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund Income Fund Commodity Real Return Fund Income Fund II

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund Inflation Multi-Asset Fund
Diversified Income Fund Low Average Duration Fund

Dynamic Bond Fund Low Duration Global Investment Grade

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund Credit Fund
Low Duration Income Fund

Emerging Local Bond Fund PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund Emerging Markets Bond Fund PIMCO Capital Securities Fund

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund
Emerging Markets Short-Term Local
PIMCO Climate Bond Fund
PIMCO ESG Income Fund

Currency Fund

Euro Bond Fund

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation

Euro Bond Fund PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund Global Advantage Fund StocksPLUSTM Fund*

Global Bond Ex-US Fund
Global Bond Fund
Global High Yield Bond Fund
US High Yield Bond Fund
US High Yield Bond Fund

Global Real Return Fund

* Trademark of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC in the United States.

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund, Commodity Real Return Fund, Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund, Diversified Income Fund, Dynamic Bond Fund, Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund, Emerging Local Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund, Euro Bond Fund, Global Advantage Fund, Global Bond Ex-US Fund, Global Bond Fund, Global High Yield Bond Fund, Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Global Real Return Fund, Income Fund, Income Fund II, Inflation Multi-Asset Fund, Low Average Duration Fund, Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Low Duration Income Fund, PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund, PIMCO Capital Securities Fund, PIMCO Climate Bond Fund, PIMCO ESG Income Fund, PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund, StocksPLUSTM Fund, Strategic Income Fund, Total Return Bond Fund, US High Yield Bond Fund and US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund (the "Funds") have been recognised for retail distribution in Singapore under the SFA.

The Company, which is constituted outside Singapore, has appointed PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd as its agent for service of process and as its Singapore Representative, whose details appear in paragraph 12 of this Singapore Prospectus.

This Singapore Prospectus is authorised for distribution only when accompanied by the Irish Prospectus and the Supplements. Please read this Singapore Prospectus, the Irish Prospectus, and the Supplements together for full information on the Funds.

The shares in each of the Funds are classified as "capital markets products other than prescribed capital markets products" (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets Products) Regulations 2018) and Specified Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA 04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on Investment Products).

Prospective investors (which may include investors subscribing in their capacity as nominees, intermediaries, authorised participants or in other such capacities) should note that, by virtue of making an investment in the Company and the associated interactions with the Company and its affiliates and delegates (including completing the relevant application form, and including the recording of electronic communications or phone calls where applicable), or by virtue of providing the Company with personal information on individuals connected with the investor (for example directors, trustees, employees, representatives, shareholders, investors, clients, beneficial owners or agents) such investors will be providing the Company and its affiliates and delegates with certain personal information related to individuals which constitutes personal data.

The Company has prepared a privacy notice ("Privacy Notice") outlining the Company's data protection obligations and the data protection rights of individuals, and contains information on the following matters in relation to data protection:

- that investors will provide the Company with certain personal information which constitutes personal data within the meaning of EU data protection regime introduced by the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation 2016/679) ("GDPR");
- that the Company shall act as a data controller in respect of this personal data and the fact that affiliates and delegates (the "Data Processors") may act as data processors;
- a description of the lawful purposes for which the personal data may be used (the "Purposes"), namely (i) where this is necessary for the performance of the contract to purchase Shares in the Company; (ii) where this is necessary for compliance

with a legal obligation to which the Company is subject; and/or (iii) where this is necessary for the purposes of the legitimate interests of the Company or a third party and such legitimate interests are not overridden by the individual's interests, fundamental rights or freedoms;

- details on the transmission of personal data, including (if applicable) to entities located outside the European Economic Area (the European Union plus Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein);
- details of data protection measures taken by the Company;
- an outline of the various data protection rights of individuals as data subjects under the GDPR;
- information on the Company's policy for retention of personal data;
- contact details for further information on data protection matters.

You consent and acknowledge that all personal data provided by you to the Company or to any of the Data Processors may be collected, used, disclosed, retained, transferred or otherwise processed for the Purposes in the manner set out in the Privacy Notice, and further acknowledge that where personal data you have disclosed relates to any third party individual, you have obtained consent from such third party individuals for their relevant personal data to be collected, used, disclosed, retained, transferred or otherwise processed for the Purposes in the manner set out in the Privacy Notice.

You should note that: (a) The Funds may invest in derivative instruments for hedging, efficient portfolio management and/or optimising returns, details of which are set out in paragraph 15 of this Singapore Prospectus, and (b) the Directors expect that the use of derivatives may result in a medium impact on the performance of a Fund in relation to its investment objectives and the investment techniques as described in the Irish Prospectus.

30066989189-v1 - ii - 17-40705220

CONTENTS

	Paragraph	Page
1.	Singapore Prospectus, Irish Prospectus, and Supplements	1
2.	Recognition of Funds	1
3.	Classes of Shares Offered	2
4.	Date of Registration of Singapore Prospectus	2
5.	Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company	3
6.	Disclaimers	3
7.	The Manager, Investment Advisors and Delegated Functions	4
8.	Depositary	7
9.	Auditors	9
10.	Singapore Representative	9
11.	Register of Singapore Shareholders	9
12.	Singapore Directory	10
13.	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach and Suitability	10
14.	Fees and Charges	67
15.	Risk Factors and Use of Derivatives	81
16.	Securities Financing Transactions	119
17.	Subscription for Shares	121
18.	Redemption of Shares	124
19.	Exchange of Shares	127
20.	Obtaining Price Information	127
21.	Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value	127
22.	Performance of the Funds	132
23.	Soft Dollars Commissions/Arrangements	291
24.	Conflicts of Interest	291
25.	Reports	291
26.	Singapore Tax Considerations	291
27.	Structured Products	291
28.	Material Contracts	292
29.	Queries and Complaints	292
30.	Documents Available for Inspection in Singapore	292
31.	Documents Available Online	292

Important Additional Information

For Singapore Investors

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ AND RETAIN THIS SINGAPORE PROSPECTUS, THE IRISH PROSPECTUS AND THE SUPPLEMENTS FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

Please refer to pages 2 to 3 of the Irish Prospectus for important information relating to the Company and the Funds.

1. SINGAPORE PROSPECTUS, IRISH PROSPECTUS, AND SUPPLEMENTS

This Singapore Prospectus relating to the Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares, Class M Retail Shares, Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares of the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund, Commodity Real Return Fund, Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund, Diversified Income Fund, Dynamic Bond Fund, Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund, Emerging Local Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund, Euro Bond Fund, Global Advantage Fund, Global Bond Ex-US Fund, Global Bond Fund, Global High Yield Bond Fund, Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Global Real Return Fund, Income Fund, Income Fund II, Inflation Multi-Asset Fund, Low Average Duration Fund, Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Low Duration Income Fund, PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund, PIMCO Capital Securities Fund, PIMCO Climate Bond Fund, PIMCO ESG Income Fund, PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund, StocksPLUSTM Fund, Strategic Income Fund, Total Return Bond Fund, US High Yield Bond Fund and US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund (the "Funds" and each a "Fund") incorporates and shall be read in conjunction with the Irish Prospectus and the Supplements.

You should read this Singapore Prospectus together with the Irish Prospectus and the Supplements for material information on the Funds.

Unless the context otherwise requires, terms defined in the Irish Prospectus shall have the same meanings when used in this Singapore Prospectus except where specifically provided for in this Singapore Prospectus.

2. RECOGNITION OF FUNDS

The Company was incorporated and registered in Ireland under the Companies Act 2014 and the Regulations as an investment company with variable capital on 10th December, 1997 with registered number 276928. Its registered address is 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin, D02 HD32, Ireland. The Funds (which are sub-funds of the Company) offered in this Singapore Prospectus are recognised schemes under Section 287 of the SFA. A copy of this Singapore Prospectus has been lodged with and registered by the Authority. The Authority assumes no responsibility for the

30066989189-v1 - 1 - 17-40705220

contents of this Singapore Prospectus. Registration of this Singapore Prospectus by the Authority does not imply that the SFA or any other legal or regulatory requirements have been complied with. The Authority has not, in any way, considered the investment merits of the Funds.

3. CLASSES OF SHARES OFFERED

The Classes of the Funds offered in this Singapore Prospectus are Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares, Class M Retail Shares, Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares.

Within each Class of each Fund, the Company may issue any or all of (a) Income Shares (Shares which distribute the net investment income of the Fund (which consists of interest and dividends, less expenses) ("Net Income") and/or capital (where applicable)), (b) Income II Shares (Shares which distribute the net investment income and/or the capital of the Fund and seek to provide an enhanced yield; the explanation on how the Directors may provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders of Income II Shares is set out under the heading "Income II Shares" in the section of the Irish Prospectus headed "HOW TO PURCHASE SHARES"), and (c) Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate Net Income i.e. the Net Income will neither be declared nor distributed but will be reinvested). Within the Investor Class Shares of each Fund, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares which distribute Net Income on an annual basis. Within the E Class Shares of the Income Fund, the Income Fund may also issue Income Q Shares and Income II Q Shares (which distribute income on a quarterly basis). Please note that where Shares distribute capital, this may reduce the NAV of the Fund.

Certain Classes of Shares in certain Funds have been listed on the Irish Stock Exchange trading as Euronext Dublin ("Euronext Dublin"). However, please note that the Classes of Shares in the Funds offered in Singapore are not listed on Euronext Dublin. No application has been made for the Shares of the Company to be listed on any other stock exchange. The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that an active secondary market will develop in the Shares.

Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares, Class M Retail Shares, Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares have different fees, minimum subscription amounts and holding requirements, details of which are set out in paragraphs 14, 17.2, and 18 below.

The other funds referred to in the Irish Prospectus and the Supplements, but which are not included in the list of Funds appearing on the cover of this Singapore Prospectus, are currently not available for retail offer in Singapore.

4. DATE OF REGISTRATION OF SINGAPORE PROSPECTUS

This Singapore Prospectus was lodged with the Authority on 8 August 2022. It replaces the Fourth Replacement Singapore Prospectus lodged with the Authority on 29 July 2022, which in turn replaced the Third Replacement Singapore Prospectus lodged with the Authority on 1 July 2022, which in turn replaced the Second Replacement Singapore Prospectus lodged with the Authority on 13 June 2022, which in turn replaced the First Replacement Singapore Prospectus lodged with the

30066989189-v1 - 2 - 17-40705220

Authority on 13 April 2022, which in turn replaced the Registered Singapore Prospectus that was registered by the Authority on 1 March 2022. This Singapore Prospectus shall be valid for a period of 12 months after the date of registration of the Registered Singapore Prospectus (i.e., up to and including 28 February 2023) and shall expire on 1 March 2023.

5. MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Ireland on 10 December 1997. The constitutive documents of the Company are the Memorandum and Articles of Association, details of which are set out under the heading "Memorandum and Articles of Association" in the "GENERAL INFORMATION" section of the Irish Prospectus.

All Shareholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is available for inspection in Singapore, please refer to paragraph 30 below for details.

6. DISCLAIMERS

The Directors of the Company accept responsibility for the information contained in this Singapore Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this Singapore Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

You should review this Singapore Prospectus carefully and in its entirety and consult with your legal, tax and financial advisors in relation to (a) the possible tax consequences, (b) the legal requirements, (c) any foreign currency exchange restrictions or exchange control requirements, and (d) any other requisite governmental or other consents or formalities which you might encounter under the laws of the countries of your incorporation, citizenship, residence or domicile, which might be relevant to the subscription, purchase, holding or disposal of the Shares in the Funds.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Singapore Prospectus, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, accountant, solicitor or other independent financial advisor.

Any information given, or representations made, by any dealer, salesman or other person not contained in this Singapore Prospectus or in any reports and accounts of the Funds must be regarded as unauthorised and accordingly must not be relied upon. Neither the delivery of this Singapore Prospectus nor the offer, issue or sale of Shares of the Funds shall under any circumstances constitute a representation that the information contained in this Singapore Prospectus is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Singapore Prospectus. This Singapore Prospectus may from time to time be updated and you should enquire as to the issue of any later Singapore Prospectus or as to the issue of any reports and accounts of the Funds.

30066989189-v1 - 3 - 17-40705220

Before investing, you are advised to carefully consider the risk factors set out under paragraph 15 below and the sections of the Irish Prospectus headed "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" and "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES".

The distribution of this Singapore Prospectus and the offering or purchase of the Shares may be restricted in certain jurisdictions. This Singapore Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by or to anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not lawful or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

7. THE MANAGER, INVESTMENT ADVISORS AND DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

The Manager of the Company, PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited, has been managing the Company since 28 January 1998. The Manager's registered office is at Third floor, Harcourt Building, Harcourt Street, Dublin 2, D02 F721, Ireland. The Manager is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the "Central Bank") to act as a UCITS management company for the Company along with other Irish authorised investment funds. The Company is an Irish authorised UCITS umbrella investment company subject to the regulatory requirements of the Central Bank.

The Manager is responsible for the investment management of each Fund and the general administration of the Company and may delegate such functions subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors. The Manager has delegated the investment management of the Funds to Pacific Investment Management Company LLC ("PIMCO") and PIMCO Europe Ltd (the "Investment Advisors" and each an "Investment Advisor") under Investment Advisory Agreements (summarised under the "GENERAL INFORMATION" section of the Irish Prospectus) and has power to delegate such functions.

The Investment Advisor of each Fund may delegate the discretionary investment management of the Fund to one or more sub-investment advisors, subject to all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Accordingly, one or more sub-investment advisors may be appointed in respect of a particular Fund or Funds. Details of any such appointment will be provided to Shareholders on request and shall be further disclosed in the Company's periodic reports.

PIMCO and PIMCO Europe Ltd, the Investment Advisors to the Manager, have also adopted a pooled investment delegation arrangement under which the discretionary investment management of all or a portion of the assets of each of the Funds may be delegated to one or more PIMCO sub-investment advisors, namely PIMCO, PIMCO Europe Ltd., PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd, PIMCO Europe GmbH and PIMCO Asia Limited, from time to time. Under these arrangements, the Fund or Funds delegated to a particular PIMCO sub-investment advisor may be changed from time to time by the Investment Advisor to provide greater flexibility and to utilise expertise globally across the group.

30066989189-v1 - 4 - 17-40705220

The Manager has delegated responsibility for the administration of the Company, including providing fund accounting services and acting as registration agent and company secretary, to State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited pursuant to an administration agreement (summarised under "GENERAL INFORMATION" in the Irish Prospectus). The responsibilities of the Administrator include share registration and transfer agency services, valuation of the Company's assets and calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share and the preparation of the Company's semi-annual and annual reports.

The Manager has delegated responsibility for distribution of Shares of the Company to PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd, PIMCO Asia Limited, PIMCO Europe GmbH and PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. (each, a "Distributor") under separate distribution agreements (summarised under "GENERAL INFORMATION" in the Irish Prospectus).

PIMCO Europe Ltd, which serves as Investment Advisor to Euro Bond Fund and PIMCO Capital Securities Fund, is an investment advisory firm incorporated on 24 April 1991 as a limited liability company organised under the laws of England and Wales and is regulated by the UK Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA"). PIMCO Europe Ltd has been managing funds since 2001.

PIMCO, which serves as Investment Advisor to all the other Funds, is a limited liability company incorporated in Delaware, U.S.A, and is regulated by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. PIMCO has been managing funds since 1971.

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd is a private limited company incorporated under the laws of Singapore and licensed by the Authority under the SFA as a holder of a capital markets services licence for fund management and exempted from holding a financial adviser's licence under the Financial Advisers Act 2001 of Singapore. PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd has been carrying on business in fund management since 1998.

PIMCO Europe GmbH is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Germany whose principal place of business is at Seidlstraße 24-24a, 80335 Munich, Deutschland. PIMCO Europe GmbH holds a licence for portfolio management from Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht (BaFin) in Germany. PIMCO Europe GmbH has been managing funds since 2011.

PIMCO Asia Limited is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Hong Kong and is regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in the course of its investment business. PIMCO Asia Limited has been managing funds since 2006.

PIMCO has appointed PIMCO Europe Ltd., PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd, PIMCO Europe GmbH and PIMCO Asia Limited as the Sub-Investment Advisors of Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund, Commodity Real Return Fund, Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund, Diversified Income Fund, Dynamic Bond Fund, Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund, Emerging Local Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund, Global Advantage Fund, Global Bond Ex-US Fund, Global Bond Fund, Global High Yield Bond Fund, Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Global Real Return Fund, Income Fund, Income Fund II, Inflation Multi-Asset Fund, Low Average Duration Fund, Low

30066989189-v1 - 5 - 17-40705220

Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Low Duration Income Fund, PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund, PIMCO Climate Bond Fund, PIMCO ESG Income Fund, PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund, StocksPLUS™ Fund, Strategic Income Fund, Total Return Bond Fund, US High Yield Bond and US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund.

PIMCO Europe Ltd has appointed PIMCO Europe GmbH, PIMCO, PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd and PIMCO Asia Limited as the Sub-Investment Advisors of Euro Bond Fund and PIMCO Capital Securities Fund.

The Directors and key executives of the Manager and the Company are as follows:

- a) V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan. Ms. Ananthanarayanan is a managing director and head of business management for the Europe, Middle East and Africa regions ("EMEA") and the Asia Pacific region ("APAC") for PIMCO. Previously, she was head of enterprise risk for PIMCO Europe Ltd. and prior to joining PIMCO in 2006, she was in the assurance and business advisory services group at PricewaterhouseCoopers. She has 13 years of investment experience and holds a master's degree from the London Business School. Ms. Ananthanarayanan is also a chartered accountant and director of the Manager, PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A., PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Taiwan Limited, PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Foundation Europe, PIMCO Australia Management Limited, PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited, PIMCO Europe Treuhanstiftung and NOMI Network.
- b) Ryan Blute. Mr. Blute is a managing director and head of PIMCO's global wealth management business in EMEA. Previously, he served as both the head of PIMCO's Munich office and as the head of the firm's product strategy group in EMEA. Mr. Blute joined PIMCO in 2000 as an institutional account manager at the firm's headquarters in Newport Beach. He holds an MBA from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business and an undergraduate degree from the University of Arizona. He also holds the certified public accountant designation. Mr. Blute is a director of the Manager, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Europe Ltd and PIMCO Foundation Europe.
- c) John Bruton. Mr. Bruton (Irish) is a former TD (a member of the Irish parliament) who served as Taoiseach (Irish prime minister) from 1994 to 1997. He was first elected to Dáil Éireann (Irish parliament) in 1969 at the age of 22. He became Leader of Fine Gael (a political party in Ireland) in 1990 and lead it into government in 1994 in a three party coalition. He resigned his Dáil seat in 2004. He served as Minister for Finance from 1981 to 1982 and from 1986 to 1987; Minister for Industry & Energy from 1982 to 1983; Minister for Trade, Commerce & Tourism from 1983 to 1986; and was Parliamentary Secretary (Junior Minister) from 1973 to 1977. From 2002 to 2003, he served on the Presidium of the Convention that drafted the European Constitution, which is the basis of the Lisbon Treaty of the EU. He was Ambassador of the European Union to the United States from 2004 to 2009. He was President of IFSC Ireland, a body set up to promote Ireland as a location for international financial services from 2010 to 2015. Currently he serves on the board of the IDLF (Irish Diaspora Loan Fund), PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc,

30066989189-v1 - 6 - 17-40705220

PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager, PIMCO ETFs plc, Eli Lily International Corporation, Centre of European Policy Studies, Co-Operation Ireland, Trane Technologies plc, the Institute of International and European Affairs and Terebellum Limited. He was born in 1947 and graduated from University College Dublin with a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics and politics in 1968. He was called to the Bar of Ireland in 1972.

- d) Craig A. Dawson. Mr. Dawson is a managing director and head of PIMCO Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA). Previously, he was head of strategic business management at PIMCO. Prior to this, he was head of PIMCO's business in Germany, Austria, Switzerland and Italy, and head of product management for Europe. Prior to joining PIMCO in 1999, Mr. Dawson worked with Wilshire Associates, an investment consulting firm. He has 20 years of investment experience and holds an MBA from the University of Chicago Graduate School of Business. He received his undergraduate degree from the University of California, San Diego. Mr. Dawson is a director of the Manager, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Foundation Europe and Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.
- e) David M. Kennedy. Mr. Kennedy (Irish) has worked as an independent consultant in aviation and in strategic management and as a non-executive director of a number of public and private companies since 1988. His current directorships include AGF International Advisors (Ireland) Limited, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager and PIMCO ETFs plc. From 1974 to 1988 he served as chief executive of Aer Lingus and from 1996 to 1997 as chief operating officer of Trans World Airlines. He was a director of the Bank of Ireland from 1984 to 1995, Deputy Governor from 1989 to 1991, from 1994 to 1998 Chairman of the Trustees of the Bank of Ireland pension fund and from 2000 to 2004 Chairman of Bank of Ireland Life. He was educated at University College Dublin where he graduated in 1961 with an MSc degree in experimental physics.
- f) Frances Ruane. Dr. Ruane (Irish) was Director of the Economic and Social Research Institute in Dublin from 2006 to 2015. Prior to that she was Professor of Economics at Trinity College Dublin ("TCD"), specialising in international economics and economic development policy. At TCD she held various organisational roles, including Bursar from 1991 to 1995, and she was a member of the College's Investment and Pension Fund Committees. She has served on several public-sector boards in Ireland, including the National Treasury Management Agency and IDA Ireland and on several EU oversight committees. Her current directorships include PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager, PIMCO ETFs plc, and Abbey Theatre Amharclann na Mainistreach. She is also a member of the Public Interest Committee of KPMG. She completed her undergraduate studies at University College Dublin and was awarded and MPhil and DPhil in Economics from University of Oxford.

Further information on the Manager and Investment Advisors is set out in the "MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION" section of the Irish Prospectus.

8. DEPOSITARY

About the Depositary

30066989189-v1 - 7 - 17-40705220

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited has been appointed to act as Depositary of the Company pursuant to the Depositary Agreement. The Depositary is a limited liability company incorporated in Ireland on 22 May 1991 and is, like the Administrator, ultimately owned by the State Street Corporation. Its authorised shared capital is £5,000,000 and its issued and paid up capital is £200,000. As at 30 June 2021, the Depositary held funds under custody of US\$1,504,873,220,791.52. The Depositary's principal business is the provision of custodial and trustee services for collective investment schemes and other portfolios. The Depositary is regulated by the Central Bank.

Duties of the Depositary

The duty of the Depositary is to provide safekeeping, oversight and asset verification services in respect of the assets of the Company and each Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations. The Depositary will also provide cash monitoring services in respect of each Fund's cash flows and subscriptions.

The Depositary will be obliged, *inter alia*, to ensure that the sale, issue, repurchase, and cancellation of Shares in the Company is carried out in accordance with the Regulations and the Articles. The Depositary will carry out the instructions of the Company, unless they conflict with the Regulations or the Articles. The Depositary is also obliged to enquire into the conduct of the Company in each financial year and report thereon to the Shareholders.

Depositary Liability

Pursuant to the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary will be liable for loss of financial instruments held in custody (i.e. those assets which are required to be held in custody pursuant to the Regulations) or in the custody of any sub-depositary, unless it can prove that loss has arisen as a result of an external event beyond its control, the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to the contrary.

The Depositary shall also be liable for all other losses suffered as a result of the Depositary's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations under the Regulations.

Delegation

Under the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary has power to delegate the whole or any part of its depositary functions, however, its liability will not be affected by the fact that it has entrusted to a third party some or all of the assets in its safekeeping. The Depositary's appointment of sub-depositaries involves a comprehensive review of potential service providers within a market. The evaluation of potential sub-depositaries includes an assessment of the following:

- the licensing and regulatory status of the sub-depositary;
- the potential sub-depositary's compliance with relevant regulations;

30066989189-v1 - 8 - 17-40705220

- the potential sub-depositary's general reputation and standing in the market, including commitment to the custody business;
- the potential sub-depositary's creditworthiness;
- the potential sub-depositary's service capabilities; and
- the potential sub-depositary's asset protection policies and related contractual arrangements.

The Depositary has delegated its safe-keeping duties in respect of financial instruments in custody to the third parties set out in Appendix 5 of the Irish Prospectus. No conflicts arise as a result of such delegation.

Up-to-date information regarding the duties of the Depositary, any conflicts of interest that may arise and the Depositary's delegation arrangements will be made available to you on request.

9. AUDITORS

The auditors of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers, whose office is at One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland.

10. SINGAPORE REPRESENTATIVE

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd (the "Singapore Representative") has been appointed by the Company with effect from 1 April 2012 as the Company's Singapore representative for the Funds for the purpose of performing administrative and other related functions in respect of the Funds under Section 287(13) of the SFA. The Singapore Representative has also been appointed by the Company to accept service of process on behalf of the Company.

11. REGISTER OF SINGAPORE SHAREHOLDERS

The Administrator, State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited, acts as the registrar of the Company and is responsible for keeping the register of all Shareholders.

The Singapore Representative acts as the Administrator's agent in Singapore in relation to the maintenance of the register of Singapore Shareholders, and such register is available for inspection at the Singapore Representative's office during its normal business hours.

30066989189-v1 - 9 - 17-40705220

12. SINGAPORE DIRECTORY

Singapore Representative

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd 8 Marina View #30-01 Asia Square Tower 1 Singapore 018960

Legal Advisers as to Singapore Law

Clifford Chance Pte. Ltd. 12 Marina Boulevard 25th Floor, Tower 3 Marina Bay Financial Centre Singapore 018982

13. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, FOCUS AND APPROACH AND SUITABILITY

Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach

The table below sets outs a summary of the investment objectives, focus and approach for each Fund.

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund	• The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek to generate attractive and stable income. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.
	• The Fund will seek to meet its objectives by investing in a broad array of Fixed Income Instruments and will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments issued by corporations, governments, their agencies and instrumentalities located in the Asia ex-Japan countries; (ii) bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments issued by corporations, governments and issuers other than set out in (i); (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities (which are unleveraged); and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time.
	• The Fund may invest up to 50% of its total assets in high yield Fixed Income Securities. The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 2 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

30066989189-v1 - 10 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The Fund will concentrate its investments, by investing at least two thirds of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments in Asia ex-Japan but may invest up to one third of its total assets in other Fixed Income Instruments including those of government and corporate issuers outside Asia ex-Japan.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. The Fund may invest up to 30% of total assets in securities denominated in local currency within the Asia-non Japan region. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Commodity Real Return Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum total return consistent with prudent investment management.
	• The Fund may invest in derivative instruments including swap agreements, futures, options on futures and structured notes and commodity index-linked notes, which enable it to gain exposures to any of the indices and sub-indices referencing commodities (including any index within the Bloomberg Commodity family of indices) which meet with the requirements of and have, where necessary, been cleared by the Central Bank. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio

30066989189-v1 - 11 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	management. The Fund may also invest in common and preferred stocks as well as convertible securities of issuers in commodity-related industries. The Fund does not make direct investments in physical commodities and will typically seek to gain exposure to an index by entering into swap agreements.
	• The Fund will utilize an enhanced indexing commodity strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's expertise in gaining efficient exposure to diversified commodity indexes together with active collateral portfolio management. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification active views across commodities and fixed income sectors. With respect to fixed income sectors, top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process both for commodity and fixed income security exposures.
	 Assets not invested in commodity index-linked derivative instruments may be invested primarily in investment grade global Fixed Income Instruments.
	• The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index by virtue of the fact that the index is used for duration measurement and in reference to the Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return by virtue of the fact that the index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes (together the "Indices"). Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Indices. However, the Indices are not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Indices.

30066989189-v1 - 12 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The NAV of the Fund could potentially experience high levels of volatility as a result of the asset classes that the Fund invests in.
Diversified Income Duration	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise current yield, consistent with prudent investment management.
Hedged Fund	• The Fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in a diversified portfolio of variable and floating-rate Fixed Income Instruments, Fixed Income Instruments with a duration of less than or equal to one year and fixed rate Fixed Income Instruments.
	• The Fund invests in bonds, debt securities and other similar instruments issued by various public or private sector entities on a global basis such as bank loans and hybrid or contingent capital.
	• The strategy will employ the Investment Advisor's expertise in evaluating global relative value across the fixed income market and credit spectrum. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income sectors. The strategy focuses on securities demonstrating solid or improving fundamentals with the potential for capital appreciation through improvements in credit quality. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.
	• The Fund may invest (i) without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to emerging market countries; (ii) all of its assets in derivative instruments, such as options, futures contracts or swap agreements; (iii) in mortgage or asset-backed securities (which are unleveraged); (iv) all of its assets in high yield securities ("junk bonds") rated Ba and below subject to a maximum of 10% of its net assets in securities rated below B by Moody's or equivalently by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	 No more than 25% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities such as convertible bonds (including contingent convertible bonds) which may or may not embed leverage. No more

30066989189-v1 - 13 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	than 20% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in equity securities.
	The Fund may hold both non-US Dollar denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-US Dollar currency positions.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (including credit default swaps) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to an equally weighted blend of the following three indices at constant 0.25 year duration: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex Emerging Markets Index, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan Emerging Market Bond Index Global; All USD Hedged (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.
Diversified Income Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.
	• The Fund will utilise a global fixed income orientated strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income sectors. The strategy focuses on securities demonstrating solid or improving fundamentals with the potential for capital appreciation through improvements in credit quality. Topdown and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund may invest all of its assets in

30066989189-v1 - 14 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 10% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). In addition, the Fund may invest, without limit, in Fixed Income Instruments of issuers that are economically tied to emerging markets securities.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to an equally weighted blend of the following three indices: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global; All USD Hedged (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.
Dynamic Bond Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum long-term return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities.
	• The Fund may invest in both investment-grade and high- yield Fixed Income Securities, subject to a maximum of 40% of assets in securities rated lower than Baa by Moody's or BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. The Fund may invest a maximum of 50% of its assets in Fixed Income

30066989189-v1 - 15 - 17-40705220

Fund		Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
		Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.
	•	No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	•	The Fund will pursue a fixed income orientated investment strategy in accordance with its investment policies. The Fund's investment strategy will not be constrained by fixed income market index or benchmark-related investment restrictions or tracking error targets and will not be tethered to significant sector constraints. In addition, the Fund does not track or replicate the constituents of a particular index or use a traditional benchmark as a representative investment universe. As part of its investment strategy, the Investment Advisor will use a global secular forecast and an integrated investment process across multiple asset sectors as set out herein when selecting and allocating assets.
	•	The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 35% of assets.
	•	Currency hedging activities and currency positions will primarily be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps.
	•	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	•	The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target.
Dynamic Multi- Asset Fund	•	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise
Asset Fullu		total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	•	The Fund aims to achieve its investment objective by taking exposure to a wide range of asset classes, such as Equity Securities and equity-related securities, Fixed Income

30066989189-v1 - 16 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Instruments and currencies as well as commodity-related instruments and property related instruments (though not direct commodity and property investments), using the Investment Advisor's asset allocation expertise. The Investment Advisor uses a three-factor approach to evaluating asset classes and their risks in seeking to achieve the Fund's investment objective which consists of 1) fundamental analysis relating to global economics and projected growth of various industrial sectors, 2) valuation analysis, and 3) assessment of market demand of and supply for asset classes. PIMCO evaluates these factors on an ongoing basis and uses a combination of direct investment and derivative exposure to implement a resulting mix of asset classes within the Fund that reflects the Fund's investment objective.
	• In order to maintain flexibility and to have the ability to invest in opportunities as they arise, it is not an objective of the Fund to focus its investment in any specific geographic or industry sector.
	• The Fund will typically invest up to 60% of its net assets in Equity Securities or equity-related securities and which may include investments in other collective investment schemes (in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank) that primarily invest in equity or equity-related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, warrants, equity-related exchange-traded funds and securities (such as bonds, structured notes, which may or may not embed leverage, (including equity linked securities, equity-linked notes and participatory notes) or debentures) which are or may be convertible into common or preferred stock.
	• The Fund may invest fully in Fixed Income Instruments. The Fixed Income Instruments of the Fund may include high yield and investment grade corporate bonds, Fixed Income Securities issued by governments, their agencies and instrumentalities, mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities (which may or may not embed leverage) and derivatives based on such securities. There are no restrictions on the minimum credit rating of Fixed Income Securities held by the Fund and the Fund may without limit invest in below investment grade securities.
	• The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in commodity-related instruments. Such instruments are derivative instruments based on commodity indices and commodity index-linked notes, which may or may not embed leverage, and which enable the Fund to gain exposures to any of the indices and sub-indices referencing

30066989189-v1 - 17 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	commodities in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.
	• The Fund may gain exposure to property through property related securities including REITs, equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives based on REIT indices or other property related indices which meet with the Central Bank's requirements.
	• The Fund may invest up to 25% of net assets in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target. The Benchmark tracks the performance of a synthetic asset paying ESTR (Euro Short-Term Rate) to a stated maturity. Further information on the Benchmark is publicly available or available from the Investment Advisor upon request.
	• This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics". The Investment Advisor will apply internal processes with binding criteria to incorporate exclusions of certain sectors as set out in the Supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics" and will evaluate and weigh various non-financial factors including ESG criteria based on third party evaluation or proprietary analysis and may exclude investments on this basis.
Emerging Local Bond Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.

30066989189-v1 - 18 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The Fund will normally invest at least 80% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments denominated in currencies of countries with emerging securities markets which may be represented by forwards or derivatives such as options, futures contracts, or swap agreements.
	• The Fund may invest without limit in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The Fund likely will concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe.
	• The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities subject to a maximum of 15% of its total assets in securities rated below B by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or, if unrated, determined by PIMCO to be of comparable quality.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, and swap agreements, invest in mortgage or asset-backed securities and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. The Fund may seek to obtain market exposure to the securities in which it primarily invests by entering into a series of purchase and sale contracts or by using dollar rolls (which are similar to reverse repurchase agreements).
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index-Emerging Markets Global Diversified (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
	• The NAV of the Fund could potentially experience high levels of volatility as a result of the asset classes that the Fund invests in.
Emerging Markets Bond Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.
	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 80% of its assets in Fixed Income

30066989189-v1 - 19 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Instruments of issuers that economically are tied to countries with emerging securities markets. Such securities may be denominated in non-U.S. currencies and the USD.
	• The Fund is likely to concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe.
	• The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Emerging Markets Corporate Bond	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
Fund	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing under normal circumstances at least 80% of its assets in an actively managed diversified portfolio consisting of Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries including Fixed Income Instruments that are issued by corporate issuers that are economically tied to emerging market countries.
	• The Fund may invest in both investment-grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds") subject to a

30066989189-v1 - 20 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	maximum of 15% of its total assets in securities rated below B by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch.
	• No more than 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	• The Fund's investments may be denominated in USD and non-US currencies.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the J.P. Morgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Emerging Markets Short- Term Local	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum total return, consistent with the preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
Currency Fund	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 80% of its assets in currencies of, or in Fixed Income Instruments denominated in the currencies of, developing markets. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or emerging market economies.
	• The Investment Advisor has broad discretion to determine what constitutes a "developing market" but generally considers it to be any non-U.S. country, excluding those countries that have been classified by the World Bank as high-income OECD economies for the past five consecutive years.
	 The Fund may invest directly in Fixed Income Securities denominated in the local currencies of developing markets. In situations where this is impractical, the Fund will seek to replicate the investment returns of a bond denominated in

30066989189-v1 - 21 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	the local currency of a developing market by using derivative instruments, including currency forwards (both deliverable and non-deliverable), interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, Total Return Swaps, options and credit-linked notes.
	• The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities, subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to J.P. Morgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (ELMI+) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Euro Bond Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Euro-denominated Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the FTSE Euro Broad Investment-Grade Index (EuroBIG) (the "Index"). The Index is an index of the Euro-based investment-grade fixed-income markets across government, government-related, corporate and asset-backed sectors.
	• The Fund invests primarily in investment grade securities, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of

30066989189-v1 - 22 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgaged-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. As certain countries in the OECD may constitute emerging markets, the Fund may at certain times be invested, directly or indirectly, more than 20% in emerging markets.
	• The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.
	• The Fund may hold both non-EUR denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-EUR denominated currency positions. Non-EUR denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
	• The Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics".

30066989189-v1 - 23 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
Global Advantage Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum long-term return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing 80% of its assets in a diversified portfolio consisting of Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to at least three countries (one of which may be the U.S.).
	• As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's long term return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection, with additional attention on emerging countries. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market, across both advanced and emerging countries.
	• The Fund may invest up to 30% of its assets in high yield securities subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. The Fund may invest, without limitation, in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.
	 No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	 The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and USD denominated currency positions.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	 The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the

30066989189-v1 - 24 - 17-40705220

E 1	Instruction of Ohio diese Especial A
Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Global Bond Ex-US Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of issuers, having their registered office or predominant operations outside the U.S., representing at least three non-U.S. countries.
	• The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities.
	• As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market.
	The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.

30066989189-v1 - 25 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	• The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or overthe-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Global Bond Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments denominated in major world currencies.
	• The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade

30066989189-v1 - 26 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	securities. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or emerging market economies.
	• As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Global High Yield Bond Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its total net assets in a diversified portfolio of high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are denominated in major world currencies and are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total net assets in high yield Fixed Income

30066989189-v1 - 27 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Instruments that are rated Caa or lower by Moody's or CCC or lower by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch.
	• The Fund will utilise a global high yield credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Global Investment Grade Credit	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
Fund	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments of issuers, having their registered office or predominant operations in at least three countries, one of which may be the U.S.
	The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 15% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries, of which some securities may be below investment grade subject to the limits described above.
	• The Fund will utilise a global investment grade credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg Global Aggregate-Credit Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a

30066989189-v1 - 29 - 17-40705220

Fund		Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
		performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Global Real Return Fund	•	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise real return, consistent with preservation of real capital and prudent investment management.
	•	The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of inflation-indexed Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities issued by governments, their agencies or instrumentalities and corporations. Inflation-indexed bonds are Fixed Income Instruments that are structured to provide protection against inflation. The value of the bond's principal or the interest income paid on the bond is adjusted to track changes in an official inflation measure. The U.S. Treasury uses the Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers as the inflation measure. Inflation-indexed bonds issued by a non-U.S. government are generally adjusted to reflect a comparable inflation index calculated by that government.
	•	The Fund will utilize a global inflation-linked bond strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global inflation-linked markets and other fixed income sectors. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of overvalued or undervalued inflation-linked bond securities.
	•	The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	•	The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	•	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments

30066989189-v1 - 30 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
	• This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics".
Income Fund	• The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.
	• The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through a varied set of sources of value and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities.
	• The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other assetbacked securities which may or may not be leveraged; and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries.
	• The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities subject to a maximum of 50% of

30066989189-v1 - 31 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch.
	• The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The Fund may also invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.
	• No more than 25% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements or currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Income Fund II	• The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.
	• The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income securities.

30066989189-v1 - 32 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through a varied set of sources of value and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain a high level of dividend income for Shareholders by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income.
	• The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other assetbacked securities which may or may not be leveraged; and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries.
	• The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch.
	• The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The Fund may also invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.
	• No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock).
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements or currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used

30066989189-v1 - 33 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	(i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Inflation Multi- Asset Fund	• The Fund's investment objective is to preserve the real value of capital through prudent investment management. The Fund will be managed actively and will predominantly invest in a diversified portfolio of inflation-related assets.
	• The Fund seeks to achieve its objective by investing in a combination of global inflation-related Fixed Income Instruments, emerging market bonds and currencies, equities and equity related securities, and commodity and property related instruments. Exposure to such assets may be achieved through direct investment or through the use of financial derivative instruments. The Fund will pursue a multi-asset oriented investment strategy in accordance with its investment policies. The objective of the strategy is to achieve real capital preservation over time by allocating to a range of inflation related asset classes. As part of its investment strategy, the Investment Advisor will use a global secular forecast of interest and inflation rates across economies and an integrated investment process.
	• The Fund will invest in an actively managed, diversified portfolio of global inflation-related Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities issued by governments, their agents or instrumentalities and corporations. Inflation-related Fixed Income Securities are structured to provide protection against inflation. The value of the bond's principal or the interest income paid on the bond is adjusted to track changes in an official inflation measure. The assets in which the Fund will invest will be rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with emerging market economies.

30066989189-v1 - 34 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	The Investment Advisor will select assets which it considers to be inflation-related. Commodity related instruments are considered inflation-related as commodities, such as food and energy costs, are included in the Consumer Price Index. Property related instruments can be inflation-related as the value of property tends to be positively correlated with inflation over a certain period of time. In addition, as changes in currency rates can impact over time upon an inflation measurement (such as the Consumer Price Index), taking tactical views on emerging market currencies forms part of the Fund's investment policy. Equities of companies which produce assets which are included in the common inflation measurements will also be invested in.
	The Fund may also invest in commodity-related instruments, up to a maximum of 50% of total assets. Commodity-related instruments include, but are not limited to, derivative instruments based on commodity indices, commodity index-linked notes and eligible exchange-traded securities which may include shares in closed-ended exchanged traded funds, open-ended exchange traded funds and other commodity-related equities.
	The Fund may gain exposure to property through property-related securities including REITs, equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives based on REIT indices or other property-related indices. The Fund will typically invest 0% to 20% of its total assets in equity or equity-related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, securities convertible into equity securities or equity exchange-traded funds.
	Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to emerging market currencies may be actively managed on an opportunistic basis where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as options, futures contracts, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii)

30066989189-v1 - 35 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against a blend of the Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1-30yrs Index (USD hedged), the JP Morgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged), the Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, the FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged) and the Bloomberg Gold Subindex Total Return Index weighted 45%/15%/20%/10%/10% respectively (together the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.
	• The NAV of the Fund could potentially experience high levels of volatility as a result of the asset classes that the Fund invests in.
Low Average Duration Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities.
	• The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally (as defined) vary within a one- to three-year time frame based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates. Fixed Income Instruments purchased by the Fund will have a maximum duration of twelve years.
	• The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated Fixed Income Instruments of non-U.S.
	• The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy.

30066989189-v1 - 36 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value, with an emphasis on securities with a shorter maturity. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit	• The investment objective of the Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
Fund	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments.
	• The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within 0 – 4 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.
	• The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa3 by Moody's or lower than BBB- by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B3 by Moody's or B- by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch with the exception of

30066989189-v1 - 37 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement.
	• The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries.
	 The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	 While the Fund intends to invest primarily in bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments, the Investment Advisor may invest in convertible securities or Equity Securities, equity-related securities and related financial derivative instruments.
	 No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into Equity Securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in Equity Securities.
	• The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complementary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.
	 The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or overthe-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 Years Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
Low Duration Income Fund	• The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek attractive income, consistent with prudent investment

30066989189-v1 - 38 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.
	The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain an attractive level of income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries subject to the limitation outlined further below; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other assetbacked securities which may or may not be leveraged; and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries.
	The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income securities. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.
•	The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 3 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.
	The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 30% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities).
•	The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limitation does not

30066989189-v1 - 39 - 17-40705220

Fund		Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
		apply to investment grade sovereign debt (securities or instruments) denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity.
	•	No more than 25% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities, (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances.
	•	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	•	The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate 1-3 Years Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund	•	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum total return consistent with prudent investment management.
	•	The Fund invests in a combination of Fixed Income Instruments of issuers that are economically tied to Asia ex-Japan countries and related derivatives on such securities. Fixed Income Securities purchased by the Fund will be rated at least C by Moody's or equivalently by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement.
	•	The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the duration of the JPMorgan JACI Non-Investment Grade Index (the "JACI Non-IG"). The JACI Non-IG comprises fixed rate US

30066989189-v1 - 40 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Dollar-denominated high yield bonds issued by Asia sovereigns, quasi-sovereigns, banks and corporates.
	• The Fund will concentrate its investments in the developing countries of Asia (emerging Asia) but may invest up to 20% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments from any other countries. The Investment Advisor may invest up to 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.
	• The Fund will utilise a credit (i.e. fixed income) strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment approach. This total return investment approach includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets (such as interest rates and the rate of inflation) and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process by analysing individual securities and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select what the Investment Advisor considers to be undervalued securities in the fixed income market.
	• No more than 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in Fixed Income Securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.
	• The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. The Fund's exposure to currencies may be actively managed where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures, contracts for difference and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts and participatory notes. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.

30066989189-v1 - 41 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the JACI Non-IG by virtue of the fact that the JACI Non-IG is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the JACI Non-IG. However, the JACI Non-IG is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the JACI Non-IG.
PIMCO Capital Securities Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide focused exposure to attractively priced Capital Securities (defined below) together with maximum total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing in an actively managed portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments and other securities of which at least 80% will be invested in Capital Securities in accordance with the policies set out in the Supplement. Capital Securities are Fixed Income Securities, contingent convertible bonds and/or equities issued by financial institutions such as banks and insurance companies.
	• The Fund uses a combination of bottom-up and top-down processes to identify appropriate Capital Securities with each Capital Security being passed through three screens. The first screen is the Investment Advisor's top down view of the economy and global financial markets. The second screen is the Investment Advisor's bottom-up research which incorporates an evaluation of the relative strength of balance sheets and company earnings power together with maintaining strong access to senior management teams of financial institutions and on-going dialogue with them about the sources of future credit strength or weakness. The third screen is valuation. The strength of how well a Capital Security passes each screen will assist the Investment Advisor in any investment decision.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target.

30066989189-v1 - 42 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	The Fund's assets will not be allocated according to a predetermined blend or weighting across a geographical area. There are no restrictions on the minimum credit rating of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund and the Fund may invest without limit in securities that are rated lower than investment grade.
	Value in Fixed Income Instruments, Capital Securities or other securities issued by the same body (excluding bonds issued by governments, their agencies or instrumentalities). The average portfolio duration of the Fund varies based on the strategy currently being used by the Investment Advisor in managing the assets of the Fund but will normally vary between three and seven years.
	The Fund may hold active positions in currencies up to a maximum of 10% of its Net Asset Value. The Fund may hold both USD and Non-USD denominated currency positions. Active currency positions and currency hedging may be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.
	The Fund may invest up to 10% of net assets in common stock. In the event a convertible security converts into common stock causing the Fund to exceed the limit of 10% of net assets in common stock, the Investment Advisor will use its best efforts to reduce the Fund's investment in common stock to below 10% of net assets within a reasonable timeframe and taking into account the best interests of the Fund.
	The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in unsecuritised loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	The Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further

30066989189-v1 - 43 - 17-40705220

Fund		Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
		information, please refer to the Supplement to the Irish Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics".
PIMCO Climate Bond Fund	•	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek optimal risk adjusted returns, consistent with prudent investment management, while giving consideration to long term climate related risks and opportunities.
	•	The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing under normal circumstances at least 80% of its total assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments, of varying maturities.
		The Fund will reference its performance against the Bloomberg MSCI Green Bond Index USD Hedged (the "Index"). The Index offers investors a measure of the global market for fixed income securities issued to fund projects with direct environmental benefits. The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
	•	The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 25% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities and therefore the Fund can invest without limitation in such securities). The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary between 2 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.
	•	The Fund may invest up to 25% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limitation does not apply to investment grade sovereign debt (securities or instruments) denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity. This means that the Fund may be fully exposed to emerging market countries subject to any applicable legal or regulatory limitation.
	•	The Fund will invest opportunistically in a broad spectrum of climate focused Fixed Income Instruments and debt. In making investment decisions the Investment Advisor

30066989189-v1 - 44 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	considers various quantitative and qualitative data relating to (i) global economies, (ii) projected growth of various industrial sectors and asset classes and (iii) issuers demonstrating leadership with respect to addressing climate related factors. Given the long term nature of the risks and opportunities presented by climate change and resource depletion, the Investment Advisor may emphasize a more strategic, or long-term in nature investment strategy, with less emphasis on a short-term, tactical trading strategy.
	• The Fund will ordinarily be comprised of labeled and unlabeled green Fixed Income Securities as well as the debt of issuers demonstrating leadership in addressing risk and opportunities around climate related change. The Fund may also invest in any of the other types of ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities" in paragraph 15 of this Singapore Prospectus). Labeled green Fixed Income Securities are those issues with proceeds specifically earmarked to be used for climate and environmental projects. Green labeled bonds are often verified by a third party (such as an audit firm), which certifies that the bond will fund projects that include environmental benefits. Unlabeled green Fixed Income Securities are securities with proceeds used for climate-aligned projects and initiatives (such as renewable energy and municipal owned water systems) but are issued without formal certifications. The Investment Advisor may engage proactively with issuers to encourage them to improve their environmental practices or preparations for a low carbon economy.
	• The Investment Advisor's activities in this respect may include, but are not limited to, direct dialogue with company management, such as through in-person meetings, phone calls, electronic communications and letters. Through these engagement activities, the Investment Advisor will seek to identify opportunities for a company to improve its climate focused practices and will endeavor to work collaboratively with company management to establish concrete objectives and to develop a plan for meetings these objectives. The Fund may invest in securities of issuers whose climate-related practices are currently suboptimal, with the expectations that these practices may improve over time either as a result of the Investment Advisor's engagement efforts or through the company's own initiatives. The Fund may exclude those issuers that are not receptive to the Investment Advisor's engagement efforts, as determined in the Investment Advisor's sole discretion.

30066989189-v1 - 45 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	The Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the fossil fuel industry. However, ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities" in paragraph 15 of this Singapore Prospectus) from issuers involved in fossil fuel-related sectors may be permitted.
	Income Instruments and non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock). The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in convertible securities (including contingent convertible securities). The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in aggregate in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. Investments by the Fund in Fixed Income Instruments will not include collateralised mortgage obligations.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	Regulation") seeks to create a common framework in order to classify certain activities as environmentally sustainable. The detailed conditions to be satisfied under the Taxonomy Regulation for such classification called the Technical Screening Criteria ("TSC") require the availability of multiple, specific data points for each investment. As at the date hereof, there is insufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data available to be able to assess investments using the TSC and while there may be investments in the Fund that are in economic activities that contribute to an environmental objective and be eligible to be assessed against the TSC, the Manager is not currently in a position to provide this information. Therefore, the minimum share of investments in environmentally sustainable economic activities aligned with the Taxonomy Regulation including in transitional and enabling activities shall be 0%.

30066989189-v1 - 46 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
PIMCO ESG Income Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management and sustainable investing (by explicitly integrating environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors into the investment process). Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.
	• The Fund utilizes a multi-sector approach to produce a consistent and attractive income while incorporating ESG factors (discussed below). The Fund will seek to allocate to high quality ESG issuers and will seek to optimize sector exposures within an ESG framework. The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through multiple sources of value.
	• The Fund seeks to promote environmental and social characteristics under normal market conditions in various ways set out below and in the Supplement. While the Fund does not have sustainable investment as its objective, it seeks to invest a portion of its assets in sustainable investments.
	• Firstly, the Fund will make meaningful allocations to ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities" in paragraph 15 of this Singapore Prospectus) and unlabelled Fixed Income Securities. All securities will be selected according to the Investment Advisor's internal responsibility screening process designed to incorporate Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors. In addition, the Fund will seek to reduce the carbon footprint, including intensity and emissions of the portfolio's corporate holdings.
	• Secondly, the Fund will promote environmental and social characteristics through the use of an exclusion screening process. The Investment Advisor will seek to invest in companies or issuers that it believes have strong ESG practices and the screen applied by the Investment Advisor may exclude companies or issuers on the basis of the industry in which they participate. For example, the Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the oil industry, including extraction, production, refining, transportation, or the production, sale of coal and coal-fired generation. However, ESG Fixed Income Securities from issuers involved in oil and coal related sectors, as described above, may be permitted. In addition, the Investment Advisor may invest in securities of issuers determined by the Investment Advisor to be primarily focused on biofuel production as well as natural gas generation, transportation,

30066989189-v1 - 47 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	distribution and sales and trading activities. Moreover, additional exclusions may include but are not limited to the following: the Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the manufacture of alcoholic beverages, tobacco products or military weapons, the operation of gambling casinos, or in the production or trade of pornographic materials. The Investment Advisor may also exclude an issuer based on other criteria such as involvement in environmental damage, corruption, human rights issues, or labour practices.
	• Thirdly, the Fund will promote environmental and social characteristics through active engagement. The Investment Advisor may actively engage with companies and issuers in order to seek to improve their ESG practices and the Fund may retain securities from such companies and issuers if the Investment Advisor deems this engagement is in the best interests of the Fund and its Shareholders.
	• The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index (the "Index").† The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain a high level of dividend income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income.
	• The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular investment sector (e.g. improved economic growth) or security (e.g.

[†] The PIMCO ESG Income Fund employs an investment strategy that is sustainability themed. However, its performance is not measured against a sustainability-related benchmark. Instead, a more commonly used benchmark, the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index, is used as this is a benchmark that investors are more familiar with, and are better able to use to assess the performance of the Fund. In the long term, this would also be a way to assess the performance of sustainable investments against commonly used benchmarks.

30066989189-v1 - 48 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	improved credit rating or stronger balance sheet fundamentals).
	• The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.
	• The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities and therefore the Fund can invest without limitation in such securities).
	• Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.
	• The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.
	• No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in Equity Securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock).
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments which include futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Taxonomy Regulation seeks to create a common framework in order to classify certain activities as environmentally sustainable. The detailed conditions to be satisfied under the Taxonomy Regulation for such classification called the TSC require the availability of multiple, specific data points for each investment. As at the date hereof, there is insufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data available to be able to assess investments using the TSC and while there may be investments in the

30066989189-v1 - 49 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Fund that are in economic activities that contribute to an environmental objective and be eligible to be assessed against the TSC, the Manager is not currently in a position to provide this information. Therefore, the minimum share of investments in environmentally sustainable economic activities aligned with the Taxonomy Regulation including in transitional and enabling activities shall be 0%.
PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund aims to achieve its investment objective by taking exposure to a wide range of asset classes, including equities, fixed income, commodities and property. The Fund shall not invest directly in commodities or property.
	 The Fund's assets will not be allocated according to a predetermined blend or weighting across asset classes or geographical area. Instead, in making investment decisions the Investment Advisor considers various quantitative and qualitative data relating to global economies and projected growth of various industrial sectors and asset classes. The Investment Advisor uses a three-factor approach to evaluating asset classes and their risks in seeking to achieve the Fund's investment objective which consists of 1) fundamental analysis relating to global economics and projected growth of various industrial sectors, 2) valuation analysis, and 3) assessment of market demand of and supply for asset classes. PIMCO evaluates these factors on an ongoing basis and uses a combination of direct investment, collective investment schemes and derivative exposure to implement a resulting mix of asset classes within the Fund that reflects the Fund's investment objective. In order to maintain flexibility and to have the ability to invest in opportunities as they arise, it is not an objective of the Fund to focus its investment in any specific geographic or industry sector (although it may, but is not obliged to, in practice). Similarly, although the Fund has the capability to use the types of investment outlined in this policy, it is possible that certain instrument types are not used all of the time. While analysis is performed daily, material shifts in investment exposures typically take place over medium to longer periods of time. The Fund will typically invest 20% - 80% of its net assets
	in equity or equity-related securities, and which may include investments in other Funds of the Company (Class Z shares only which are currently not offered to Singapore investors) or collective investment schemes (as outlined in the Supplement and in accordance with the requirements of

30066989189-v1 - 50 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	the Central Bank) that primarily invest in equity or equity- related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, securities convertible into equity securities or equity exchange-traded funds.
	• No more than 25% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in commodity-related instruments, including derivate instruments based on commodity indices, commodity index-linked notes and eligible exchange-traded funds.
	• The Fund may gain exposure to property through property- related securities including REITs, equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives based on REIT indices or other property-related indices which meet with the Central Bank's requirements.
	• The Fund may invest up to 25% of net assets in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange. The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures contracts, options contracts, options on futures contracts, swap agreements and options on swaps agreements. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to a blend of the following two indices: the MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI) and the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index weighted 60%/40% respectively (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.
	• The NAV of the Fund could potentially experience high levels of volatility as a result of the asset classes that the Fund invests in.
StocksPLUS TM Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to achieve a total return which exceeds the total return performance

30066989189-v1 - 51 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	of the Standard & Poor's 500 Composite Stock Price Index ("S&P 500").
	• The Fund seeks to exceed the total return of the S&P 500, which is composed of 500 selected common stocks, most of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, by investing in S&P 500 derivatives, backed by a portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments.
	• The Fund will utilise equity derivative instruments for efficient portfolio management purposes (to include S&P 500 futures contracts as well as options and swaps on the S&P 500), which instruments seek to replicate the performance of the S&P 500. The Fund may use derivative instruments as options, futures, options on futures and swaps (which may be listed or over-the-counter).
	• Though the Fund does not normally invest directly in S&P 500 securities, when S&P 500 derivatives appear to be overvalued relative to the S&P 500, the Fund may invest up to 100% of its assets in a "basket" of S&P 500 stocks.
	• The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the S&P 500 by virtue of the fact that the S&P 500 is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and by virtue of the fact that it seeks to outperform the S&P 500. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the S&P 500. However, the Investment Advisor will use its discretion to invest in securities not included in the S&P 500 in order to take advantage of investment opportunities. The investment strategy does not restrict the extent to which the Fund's holdings may deviate from the S&P 500.

30066989189-v1 - 52 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	• The NAV of the Fund could potentially experience high levels of volatility as a result of the asset classes that the Fund invests in.
Strategic Income Fund	• The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide an attractive level of current income, consistent with prudent investment management. The Fund also seeks to provide long-term capital appreciation as a secondary objective.
	• The Fund will utilize a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income and equity securities.
	• In relation to the global fixed income selection process, top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.
	• Equity Securities and equity-related securities will be selected using the PIMCO Equity Income Strategy (the "Equity Strategy"). The Equity Strategy is a proprietary global equity strategy that seeks to deliver high income coupled with capital appreciation potential. The investment process for the Equity Strategy has two components; a systematic component and the Investment Advisor discretionary component. The systematic component computes a series of quality, value, growth, and momentum scores for stocks within the MSCI ACWI universe to construct a proprietary composite signal, which helps facilitate a balanced approach to stock selection. Based on this proprietary composite signal and input from the Investment Advisor, an optimized portfolio is generated that further incorporates limits on regional, sector, and company concentration relative to the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index, issues with low trailing trading volume and overall portfolio turnover, in seeking to achieve a higher average income level and greater capital appreciation potential than the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index. Subject to the discretion of the Investment Advisor, including any adjustments, the proposed portfolio is implemented. The Investment Advisor may also adjust the components of the investment process over time in

30066989189-v1 - 53 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	seeking to optimally achieve the income and capital appreciation goals of the Equity Strategy.
	As part of the global multi-sector strategy described above, the Investment Advisor may tactically allocate up to 10% of its assets in other income-producing investments, such as Fixed Income Instruments, Equity Securities and equity-related securities, collective investment schemes, REITs and publicly traded partnerships, which are also known as master limited partnerships ("MLPs").
	The Fund typically invests at least 50% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities including bonds (fixed or floating) and debt securities issued by various U.S. and non-U.S. public- or private-sector entities, issued by agencies and instrumentalities, corporate debt securities, corporate commercial paper, mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities.
	The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities).
•	The Fund may invest in securities issued by REITs, depository receipts (both American and Global), rights issues and structured notes such as equity-linked notes, equity-linked securities and participatory notes.
	The Fund may also invest in Equity Securities and equity-related securities, and related financial derivative instruments on such securities. The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets up to a maximum of 10% of the Net Asset value of the Fund. Any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.
	The Fund may invest up to 40% of its total assets in securities and instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limit does not apply to investment grade sovereign Fixed Income Instruments denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments

30066989189-v1 - 54 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid).
	 The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated equity, equity related and Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure will be unlimited.
	• The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers. The Fund may also engage in hedging strategies involving equity options subject to the conditions and limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to a blend of the following two indices: the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index and the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index weighted 75%/25% respectively (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.
Total Return Bond Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	 The Fund is a diverse portfolio of intermediate-term, investment grade securities and invests primarily in US government, mortgage and corporate bonds and may have tactical allocations to municipal, high-yield and non-US markets.
	 The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of the

30066989189-v1 - 55 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index").
	Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities.
	The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.
•	• The Fund may invest in USD-denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

30066989189-v1 - 56 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
US High Yield Bond Fund	The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. In normal market conditions the Fund may invest up to 30% of its total net assets in high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are rated Caa or lower by Moody's or CCC or lower by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).
	The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers. The Fund may also engage in hedging strategies involving equity options subject to the conditions and limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time.
	The Fund will utilise a high yield credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.
	The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments positions are limited to 20% of total portfolio exposure and non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the ICE BofAML US High Yield Constrained (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for

30066989189-v1 - 57 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.
US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund	• The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.
	• The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of USD-denominated investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities, which may be represented by holdings in credit-related Fixed Income Securities or derivative instruments such as options, futures contracts or credit default swaps.
	 The Fund invests primarily in investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities (which may or may not embed leverage) for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 15% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries, of which some securities may be below investment grade, subject to the foregoing limits. The Fund will utilise an investment grade credit strategy
	 The Fund will utilise an investment grade credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities. The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed
	Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency

30066989189-v1 - 58 - 17-40705220

Fund	Investment Objectives, Focus and Approach
	positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.
	No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities such as convertible bonds (including contingent convertible bonds) which may or may not embed leverage. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.
	• The Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management.
	• The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg US Credit Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

Please refer to the "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES" section of the Irish Prospectus as well as the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the relevant Supplement of each Fund for more details on the investment objectives, focus and approach of the Funds. Your attention is also drawn to the section of the Irish Prospectus entitled "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" and "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" which describes certain generic investment features of the Funds.

Suitability

The Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

• are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;

30066989189-v1 - 59 - 17-40705220

- are looking for a diversified exposure to emerging Asia fixed income markets, including non investment grade securities, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such market; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Commodity Real Return Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to the commodities and global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise current yield through a combination of both income and capital growth and seek protection against interest rate risk;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Diversified Income Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise current yield through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Dynamic Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise long term return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a flexible, benchmark agnostic approach and diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global fixed income markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and

30066989189-v1 - 60 - 17-40705220

• have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a diversified multi-asset fund;
- are seeking an attractive total return over the medium to long term; and
- are willing to accept the risk and volatility of a portfolio investing predominantly in and allocating dynamically across global equity and fixed income markets.

The Emerging Local Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries; and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Emerging Markets Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund is only suitable for you if you:

• are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;

30066989189-v1 - 61 - 17-40705220

- are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Euro Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily European fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Global Advantage Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are seeking to maximise long-term return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Global Bond Ex-US Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets, predominantly outside the U.S. and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Global Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

30066989189-v1 - 62 - 17-40705220

The Global High Yield Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to high yield global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Global Investment Grade Credit Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to investment grade global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Global Real Return Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise real return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are seeking a protection against inflation rates;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Income Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Income Fund II is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in

30066989189-v1 - 63 - 17-40705220

such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and

• have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Inflation Multi-Asset Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a higher long-term after inflation return from your investment, and are also willing to accept the increased risk of investing in inflation related assets;
- are seeking to mitigate the negative effects of higher inflation; and
- want to diversify your portfolios away from nominal fixed income securities (non-inflation related) and stocks.

The Low Average Duration Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return and focus on capital preservation;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets, focusing on securities with a shorter duration and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have a shorter investment horizon.

The Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a basic fixed income investment who are interested in the diversification offered by this approach to bond investing;
- want to balance stock market holdings with a more stable investment option; and
- have an investment horizon over the short to medium term.

The Low Duration Income Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have a medium-term investment horizon.

30066989189-v1 - 64 - 17-40705220

The PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to emerging Asia fixed income markets, including non investment grade securities, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The PIMCO Capital Securities Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for focused exposure to Capital Securities;
- are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global fixed income markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The PIMCO Climate Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to investment grade global fixed income markets, subject to the climate related risks and opportunities outlined in the Supplement, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The PIMCO ESG Income Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are conscious of incorporating ESG factors within their investing decisions;
- are seeking an income-oriented, globally diversified fixed income offering; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified multi-asset fund;
- are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global equity and fixed income markets; and

30066989189-v1 - 65 - 17-40705220

have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The StocksPLUSTM Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for capital appreciation;
- are willing to accept the risk of stock market volatility; and
- have a long term investment horizon.

The Strategic Income Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income and equity markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The Total Return Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily U.S. investment grade fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The US High Yield Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for an unconstrained and diversified exposure to high yield fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and
- have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

The US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund is only suitable for you if you:

- are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth;
- are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily USD denominated investment grade fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets; and

30066989189-v1 - 66 - 17-40705220

• have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

14. FEES AND CHARGES

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Fees payable by Singapore investors of all Funds		
Preliminary Charge	Currently 5%; Maximum of 5%	
Redemption Charge	None	
Exchange Charge	Maximum of 1% for Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares and Class M Retail Shares.	
	(none for Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares)	

No Preliminary Charge is payable if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary, at the discretion of the Manager, a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be deducted from the amount payable in respect of the subscription. The Preliminary Charge is payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. If you wish to avail yourself of nominee services, please note that a separate fee may be payable to the provider of such nominee services. Approved distributors may charge other fees depending on the services they provide to you. You should check with the approved distributors whether any taxes and/or additional commissions or other fees are charged by them.

Fees Payable to the Manager

The fees payable to the Manager as set out below shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of each Fund.

Management Fee

The Manager, in respect of each Fund and as detailed below, provides or procures investment advisory, administration, custody and other services in return for which each Fund pays a single Management Fee to the Manager. The Management Fee for each Fund is accrued on each Dealing Day and is payable monthly in arrears.

The Manager may pay the Management Fee in full or in part to the Investment Advisors in order to pay for the investment advisory and other services provided by the Investment Advisors and in order for the Investment Advisors to pay for administration, custody and other services procured for the Funds by the Manager.

30066989189-v1 - 67 - 17-40705220

(a) Investment Advisory Services

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures investment advisory services. Such services include the investment and reinvestment of the assets of each Fund. The fees of the Investment Advisors (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager from the Management Fee.

(b) Administration and Depositary Services

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures administration and depositary services. Such services include administration, transfer agency, fund accounting, depositary and sub-depositary in respect of each Fund. The fees and expenses of the Administrator and Depositary (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager from the Management Fee, or by the Investment Advisors.

(c) Other Services and Expenses

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures certain other services. These may include listing broker services, paying agent and other local representative services, accounting, audit, legal and other professional adviser services, company secretarial services, printing, publishing and translation services, and the provision and co-ordination of certain supervisorial, administrative and shareholder services necessary for operation of the Funds.

Fees and any ordinary expenses in relation to these services (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager, or by the Investment Advisors on behalf of the Manager, from the Management Fee. Such fees and expenses will include country registration costs, paying agent and local representative costs, costs incurred in relation to preparing, translating, printing, publishing and distributing the Irish Prospectus, annual and semi-annual reports and other notices and documents to Shareholders, expenses of the publication and distribution of the Net Asset Value, costs of maintaining a listing of Shares on Euronext Dublin, costs in connection with obtaining and maintaining a credit rating for any Funds or Classes or Shares, expenses of Shareholders meetings, insurance premia (such as Directors and Officers and Errors and Omissions policy premia), ordinary professional fees and expenses, annual audit fees, Companies Registration Office filing fees and other routine statutory and regulatory fees, and ordinary expenses incurred by PIMCO and PIMCO Europe Ltd. in the provision of additional supervisorial services to the Company, which services may include assistance and advice given in the preparation of annual and semi-annual reports, Prospectus updates, oversight of third party service providers' share transfer operations and assisting with arranging shareholder and board meetings.

The Company shall bear the cost of any value added tax applicable to any fees payable to the Manager or any value added tax applicable to any other amounts payable to the Manager in the performance of its duties.

The Funds will bear other expenses related to their operation that are not covered by the Management Fee which may vary and affect the total level of expenses within the Funds including, but not limited to, taxes and governmental fees, brokerage fees, commissions and other transaction expenses (including, but not limited to, fees and

30066989189-v1 - 68 - 17-40705220

expenses related to due diligence on investments and potential investments and/or related to negotiations of such transactions), costs of borrowing money including interest expenses, establishment costs, extraordinary expenses (such as litigation and indemnification expenses) and fees and expenses of the Company's independent Directors and their counsel.

The Management Fee attributable to certain Share Classes is generally higher than the Management Fee attributable to the Institutional Classes. From this higher fee, the Manager may pay for the expense of distribution, intermediary and other services rendered to Shareholders in these Share Classes of the Funds directly or indirectly by distributors or broker-dealers, banks, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries.

Given the fixed nature of the Management Fee, the Manager, and not Shareholders, takes the risk of any price increases in the cost of the services covered by the Management Fee and takes the risk of expense levels relating to such services increasing above the Management Fee as a result of a decrease in net assets. Conversely, the Manager, and not Shareholders, would benefit from any price decrease in the cost of services covered by the Management Fee, including decreased expense levels resulting from an increase in net assets.

The Investor Classes and the Administrative Classes are subject to a Service Fee (Service Fee Payable to the Manager to reimburse intermediaries) and a Trail Fee (Trail Fee Payable to the relevant Distributor to reimburse intermediaries) respectively (expressed as a per annum percentage of a Fund's Net Asset Value).

The Service Fee which applies to the Investor Classes only is paid to the Manager and may be used to reimburse broker-dealers, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries that provide services in connection with the distribution and marketing of Shares and/or the provision of certain shareholder services or the administration of plans or programmes that use Fund Shares as their funding medium, and to reimburse other related expenses.

Between 0% and 60% of the Management Fee in respect of Share Classes for which no separate Trail Fee or Service Fee is charged (i.e. the Institutional Classes, H Institutional Classes, E Classes, Investor Classes, M Retail Classes and W Classes) may be paid to financial advisers or distributors in Singapore. No portion of the Management Fee in respect of the Investor Classes and Administrative Classes is paid to any financial advisers or distributors in Singapore. Correspondingly, the Manager will retain 40% to 100% of the Management Fee in respect of the Institutional Classes, H Institutional Classes, Investor Classes, M Retail Classes and W Classes, and 100% of the Management Fee in respect of the Investor Classes and the Administrative Classes. The fee range applicable to each relevant Share Class may change from time to time without prior notice. Your financial adviser is required to disclose to you the amount of any applicable fees (including a trailer fee or the above noted Service Fee or Trail Fee) that it receives from the Manager.

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. The fees and (if applicable) waivers for each class of each Fund (expressed as a per annum percentage of its Net Asset Value) is as follows:

30066989189-v1 - 69 - 17-40705220

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.65	-	-	0.65
H Institutional	0.82	-	-	0.82
Investor	0.65	0.35	-	1.00
Administrative	0.65	-	0.50	1.15
E Class	1.50	-	-	1.50
M Retail	1.50	-	-	1.50

Commodity Real Return Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.74	-	-	0.74
H Institutional	0.91	-	-	0.91
Investor	0.74	0.35	-	1.09
Administrative	0.74	-	0.50	1.24
E Class	1.64	-	-	1.64
M Retail	1.64	_	_	1.64

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.69	-	-	0.69
H Institutional	0.86	-	-	0.86
Investor	0.69	0.35	-	1.04
Administrative	0.69	-	0.50	1.19
E Class	1.59	-	-	1.59
M Retail	1.59	-	-	1.59

Diversified Income Fund

30066989189-v1 - 70 - 17-40705220

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.69	-	-	0.69
H Institutional	0.86	-	-	0.86
Investor	0.69	0.35	-	1.04
Administrative	0.69	-	0.50	1.19
E Class	1.59	-	-	1.59
M Retail	1.59	-	-	1.59
W Class	0.55	-	-	0.55

Dynamic Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.90	-	-	0.90
H Institutional	1.07	-	-	1.07
Investor	0.90	0.35	-	1.25
Administrative	0.90	-	0.50	1.40
E Class	1.80	-	-	1.80
M Retail	1.80	-	_	1.80

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund

Class	Management Fee	Service Fee	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee
Institutional	0.85	-	-	0.85
H Institutional	1.02	-	-	1.02
Investor	0.85	0.35	-	1.20
Administrative	0.85	-	0.50	1.35
E Class	1.85	-	-	1.85
M Retail	1.85	_	_	1.85

30066989189-v1 - 71 - 17-40705220

Emerging Local Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.89	-	-	0.89
H Institutional	1.06	-	-	1.06
Investor	0.89	0.35	-	1.24
Administrative	0.89	-	0.50	1.39
E Class	1.89	-	-	1.89
M Retail	1.89	-	-	1.89

Emerging Markets Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	0.79
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	0.96
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-	1.69
M Retail	1.69	-	-	1.69

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.95	-	-	0.95
H Institutional	1.12	-	-	1.12
Investor	0.95	0.35	-	1.30
Administrative	0.95	-	0.50	1.45
E Class	1.85	-	-	1.85
M Retail	1.85	-	-	1.85

30066989189-v1 - 72 - 17-40705220

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.85	-	-	0.85
H Institutional	1.02	-	-	1.02
Investor	0.85	0.35	-	1.20
Administrative	0.85	-	0.50	1.35
E Class	1.75	-	-	1.75
M Retail	1.75	-	-	1.75

Euro Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.46	-	-	0.46
H Institutional	0.63	-	-	0.63
Investor	0.46	0.35	-	0.81
Administrative	0.46	-	0.50	0.96
E Class	1.36	-	-	1.36
M Retail	1.36	-	-	1.36

Global Advantage Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.70	-	-	0.70
H Institutional	0.87	-	-	0.87
Investor	0.70	0.35	-	1.05
Administrative	0.70	-	0.50	1.20
E Class	1.70	-	-	1.70
M Retail	1.70	-	-	1.70

30066989189-v1 - 73 - 17-40705220

Global Bond Ex-US Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39

Global Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39
W Class	0.39	-	-	0.39

Global High Yield Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	0.72
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	1.05
E Class	1.45	-	-	1.45
M Retail	1.45	-	-	1.45

30066989189-v1 - 74 - 17-40705220

Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39
W Class	0.39	-	-	0.39

Global Real Return Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39

Income Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	0.72
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	1.05
E Class	1.45	-	-	1.45
M Retail	1.45	-	-	1.45

30066989189-v1 - 75 - 17-40705220

Income Fund II

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee Inclusive of Waiver [‡] (%)	Unified Fee not Inclusive of Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.59	-	-	0.55	0.59
H Institutional	0.76	-	-	0.72	0.76
Investor	0.59	0.35	-	0.90	0.94
Administrative	0.59	-	0.50	1.05	1.09
E Class	1.49	-	-	1.45	1.49
M Retail	1.49	-	-	1.45	1.49

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	0.79
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	0.96
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-	1.69
M Retail	1.69	-	-	1.69

Low Average Duration Fund

Class	Management Fee	Service Fee	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.46	-	-	0.46
H Institutional	0.63	-	-	0.63
Investor	0.46	0.35	-	0.81
Administrative	0.46	-	0.50	0.96
E Class	1.36	-	-	1.36
M Retail	1.36	-	-	1.36

The management fee waiver of 0.04% (for Institutional Class Shares, Class H Institutional Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares, Class E Shares and M Retail Class Shares) by the Manager until 31 December 2022 will expire from 1 January 2023. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 January 2023 and the Supplement shall be updated accordingly.

30066989189-v1 - 76 - 17-40705220

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39

Low Duration Income Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee Inclusive of Waiver [§] (%)	Unified Fee not Inclusive of Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.60	-	-	0.55	0.60
H Institutional	0.77	-	-	0.72	0.77
Investor	0.60	0.35	-	0.90	0.95
Administrative	0.60	-	0.50	1.05	1.10
E Class	1.50	-	_	1.45	1.50

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.65	-	-	0.65
H Institutional	0.82	-	-	0.82
Investor	0.65	0.35	-	1.00
Administrative	0.65	-	0.50	1.15
E Class	1.55	-	-	1.55
M Retail	1.55	-	-	1.55

The management fee waiver of 0.05% (for Institutional Class Shares, Class H Institutional Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and Class E Shares) by the Manager until 31 December 2022 will expire from 1 January 2023. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 January 2023.

30066989189-v1 - 77 - 17-40705220

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	0.79
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	0.96
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-	1.69
M Retail	1.69	-	-	1.69

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee Inclusive of Waiver (%)	Unified Fee not Inclusive of Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.52	-	-	0.52	0.52
H Institutional	0.69	-	-	0.69	0.69
Investor	0.52	0.35	-	0.82	0.87
Administrative	0.52	-	0.50	1.02	1.02
E Class	1.42	-	-	1.42	1.42
M Retail	1.42	-	-	1.42	1.42

PIMCO ESG Income Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.59	-	-	0.59
H Institutional	0.76	-	-	0.76
Investor	0.59	0.35	-	0.94
Administrative	0.59	-	0.50	1.09
E Class	1.49	-	-	1.49
M Retail	1.49	-	-	1.49

^{**} The management fee waiver of 0.05% (for Investor Class Shares) by the Manager until 31 May 2023 will expire from 1 June 2023. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 June 2023.

30066989189-v1 - 78 - 17-40705220

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.95	-	-	0.95
H Institutional	1.12	-	-	1.12
Investor	0.95	0.35	-	1.30
Administrative	0.95	-	0.50	1.45
E Class	2.15	-	-	2.15
M Retail	2.15	_	_	2.15

StocksPLUSTM Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee
Institutional	0.55	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	0.72
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.75	1.30
E Class	1.45	-	-	1.45
M Retail	1.45	_	-	1.45

Strategic Income Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	0.79
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	0.96
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-	1.69
M Retail	1.69	-	-	1.69

30066989189-v1 - 79 - 17-40705220

Total Return Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)	
Institutional	0.50	-	-	0.50	_
H Institutional	0.67	-	-	0.67	
Investor	0.50	0.35	-	0.85	
Administrative	0.50	-	0.50	1.00	
E Class	1.40	-	-	1.40	
M Retail	1.40	-	-	1.40	

US High Yield Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	0.72
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	1.05
E Class	1.45	-	-	1.45
M Retail	1.45	-	-	1.45

US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	0.66
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	1.39
M Retail	1.39	-	-	1.39

Please refer to the "FEES AND EXPENSES" section in the Irish Prospectus for further details on the fees payable by the Funds.

30066989189-v1 - 80 - 17-40705220

15. RISK FACTORS AND USE OF DERIVATIVES

Risk Factors

The value of and income from Shares in the Funds may go up or down and you may not get back the amount you invested in a Fund. Before investing in a Fund, you should consider the risks involved in such investment. The difference at any one time between the sale and repurchase price of Shares means that investment in a Fund should be viewed as medium to long-term. Please see the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" and "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" sections in the Irish Prospectus for details on the risks of investing in the Funds.

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees are payable out of the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends are payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Commodity Real Return Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Commodity Risk" in that section. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

30066989189-v1 - 81 - 17-40705220

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Diversified Income Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. This Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 10% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Dynamic Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "**High Yield Risk**", "**Currency Risk**", "**Derivatives Risk**", "**Emerging**

30066989189-v1 - 82 - 17-40705220

Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Equity Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Commodity Risk" in that section. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. Management Fees and other fees may also be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Emerging Local Bond Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also

30066989189-v1 - 83 - 17-40705220

directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Emerging Markets Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. This Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund — The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market",

30066989189-v1 - 84 - 17-40705220

"Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Euro Bond Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

30066989189-v1 - 85 - 17-40705220

Global Advantage Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, **DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS** INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Global Bond Ex-US Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Global Bond Fund — The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT

30066989189-v1 - 86 - 17-40705220

TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Global High Yield Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. This Fund may invest in securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Global Investment Grade Credit Fund — The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access"

30066989189-v1 - 87 - 17-40705220

and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Global Real Return Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIOUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Income Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and

30066989189-v1 - 88 - 17-40705220

distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Income Fund II – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Equity Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Commodity Risk" in that section. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be paid out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by

30066989189-v1 - 89 - 17-40705220

foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Low Average Duration Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to the Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Low Duration Income Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is

30066989189-v1 - 90 - 17-40705220

drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Credit Risk", "High Yield Risk", "Market Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Contingent Convertible Instruments", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies"

30066989189-v1 - 91 - 17-40705220

section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

PIMCO ESG Income Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes.

30066989189-v1 - 92 - 17-40705220

Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Equity Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Commodity Risk" in that section. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that dividends are payable out of the capital of the Fund and that dividends, Management Fees and other fees may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

StocksPLUSTM Fund — The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Equity Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Strategic Income Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Equity Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS

30066989189-v1 - 93 - 17-40705220

AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund or certain share classes. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be paid out of the capital of the Fund or of certain share classes. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Total Return Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

US High Yield Bond Fund – The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by

30066989189-v1 - 94 - 17-40705220

foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund - The general risks described in the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus are relevant to this Fund and attention is drawn to "High Yield Risk", "Currency Risk", "Derivatives Risk", "Emerging Markets Risk", "Interest Rate Risk" and "Liquidity Risk" in that section. The risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section of the Supplement and described in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus are also relevant to this Fund. The Fund may also directly invest in Fixed Income Instruments traded on CIBM, and attention is drawn to the sections in the Irish Prospectus entitled "Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities", "Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market", "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access" and "Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect" in the "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Shareholders should note that Management Fees, other fees and dividends may be payable out of the capital of certain share classes. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

In addition to the risk factors referred to above, the "Taxation Risk", the "Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act" risk and the "Common Reporting Standard" risk in the "General Risk Factors" section of the Irish Prospectus is relevant to all Funds, and you should also take note of the following:

The Funds are subject to currency risk as changes in exchange rates between currencies or the conversion from one currency to another may cause the value of the Funds' investments to diminish or increase. Please refer to the "GENERAL RISK FACTORS" section of the Irish Prospectus for information on the currency risks of the Funds.

The Company may employ techniques and instruments intended to provide protection against exchange risks in the context of the management of the assets and liabilities of each Fund and under the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Central Bank from time to time. Furthermore, new techniques and instruments may be developed which may be suitable for use by a Fund in the future and a Fund may employ such techniques and instruments in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Such techniques and instruments are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" in the Irish Prospectus. There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will only be used in line with the best interests of the Funds. Efficient portfolio management techniques may be used with the aim of reducing certain risks associated with the Funds' investments, reducing costs and to generate additional income for the Funds having regard to the risk profile of the Funds. The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will

30066989189-v1 - 95 - 17-40705220

not result in a change to the investment objective as outlined in the relevant Fund Supplement. The Funds shall not enter into stock lending agreements until such time as an updated Supplement is filed with the Central Bank. Transaction costs may be incurred in respect of other efficient portfolio management techniques in respect of the Funds. All revenues from efficient portfolio management techniques, net of direct and indirect operational costs, will be returned to the Funds. Any direct and indirect operational costs/fees arising from efficient portfolio management techniques do not include hidden revenue and will be paid to such entities as outlined in the annual report of the Company.

Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Each of the Funds may use repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements. If a repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement counterparty should default, as a result of bankruptcy or otherwise, the Fund will seek to sell the securities which it holds as collateral which could involve procedural costs or delays in addition to a loss on the securities if the value should fall below their repurchase price.

Mortgage Dollar Rolls

Each of the Funds may use mortgage dollar rolls for efficient portfolio management purposes, including as a cost-efficient substitute for a direct exposure or for performance enhancement purposes. A "mortgage dollar roll" is similar to a reverse repurchase agreement in certain respects. In a "dollar roll" transaction, a Fund sells a mortgage-related security to a dealer and simultaneously agrees to repurchase a similar security (but not the same security) in the future at a pre-determined price. A "dollar roll" can be viewed like a reverse repurchase agreement. Unlike in the case of reverse repurchase agreements, the counterparty (which is a regulated broker/dealer) is not obliged to post collateral at least equal in value to the underlying securities. In addition, the dealer with which a Fund enters into a dollar roll transaction is not obligated to return the same securities as those originally sold by the Fund, but only securities which are "substantially identical". To be considered "substantially identical", the securities returned to a Fund generally must: (1) be collateralised by the same types of underlying mortgages; (2) be issued by the same agency and be part of the same programme; (3) have a similar original stated maturity; (4) have identical net coupon rates; (5) have similar market yields (and therefore price); and (6) satisfy "good delivery" requirements, meaning that the aggregate principal amounts of the securities delivered and received back must be within 2.5% of the initial amount delivered. Because a dollar roll involves an agreement to purchase or sell a security in the future at a pre-determined price, the Company will be unable to exploit market movements in the price of a particular security in respect of which a mortgage dollar roll transaction has been agreed. If a mortgage dollar roll counterparty should default the Fund will be exposed to the market price (which may move upwards or downwards) at which the Fund must purchase replacement securities to honour a future sale obligation less the sale proceeds to be received by the Fund in respect of that future sale obligation.

Loans of Portfolio Securities

Each Fund's performance will continue to reflect changes in the value of securities loaned and will also reflect the receipt of either interest through investment of cash

30066989189-v1 - 96 - 17-40705220

collateral by the Fund in permissible investments, or a fee, if the collateral is U.S. Government securities. Securities lending involves the risk of loss of rights in the collateral or delay in recovery of the collateral should the borrower fail to return the securities loaned or become insolvent. The Funds may pay lending fees to the party arranging the loan.

Credit Ratings

Rating agencies are private services that provide ratings of the credit quality of fixed income securities, including convertible securities. Appendix 2 to the Irish Prospectus describes the various ratings assigned to fixed income securities by Moody's, S&P and Fitch. Ratings assigned by a rating agency are not absolute standards of credit quality and do not evaluate market risks. Rating agencies may fail to make timely changes in credit ratings and an issuer's current financial condition may be better or worse than a rating indicates. A Fund will not necessarily sell a security when its rating is reduced below its rating at the time of purchase and the Fund may retain such securities if the Investment Advisor deems it in the best interests of Shareholders. The Investment Advisors do not rely solely on credit ratings, and develop their own analysis of issuer credit quality. Information on the Investment Advisor's credit assessment process would be made available to investors upon request, on the condition that such investor undertakes to keep any information so disclosed in the strictest confidence. In the event that the rating services assign different ratings to the same security, the Investment Advisor will determine which rating it believes best reflects the security's quality and risk at that time, which may be the higher of the several assigned ratings.

Commodities exposure

The list of Funds below may invest in derivative instruments based on commodity indices, commodity index-linked notes, eligible exchange-traded funds, where the underlying may be a commodity or a commodity index, or in equity or equity-related securities of issuers in commodity-related industries. Commodity sectors that the list of Funds below may be exposed to include but are not limited to agriculture, softs/livestock, energy, base metals and precious metals. Individual commodities within a specific commodity sector may be highly correlated with each other and

30066989189-v1 - 97 - 17-40705220

correlation may be determined based on the price trends and historical returns of these individual commodities.

- Commodity Real Return Fund
- Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund
- Inflation Multi-Asset Fund
- PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund
- Strategic Income Fund

Integration of Sustainability Risks

Under the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR"), "sustainability risk" means an environmental, social or governance ("ESG") event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of an investment ("Sustainability Risks"). The management of Sustainability Risks therefore forms an important part of the due diligence process implemented by the Manager and the Investment Advisor. When assessing the Sustainability Risks associated with underlying investments, the Manager and the Investment Advisor are assessing the risk that the value of such underlying investments could be materially negatively impacted by an ESG event. Sustainability Risks are identified, monitored and managed by the Manager and the Investment Advisor. This information applies to each of the Funds unless otherwise specified in the relevant Fund Supplement.

The Manager and the Investment Advisor define ESG integration as the consistent consideration of material Sustainability Risks into the investment research and due diligence process to enhance the Funds' risk-adjusted returns. Material Sustainability Risks may include but are not limited to: climate change risks, social inequality, shifting consumer preferences, regulatory risks, talent management or misconduct at an issuer, among others. The Manager and the Investment Advisor believe incorporating relevant Sustainability Risks should be part of a robust investment process. Further information on how the Manager and the Investment Advisor manage Sustainability Risks is set out under the heading "Integration of Sustainability Risks" in the section of the Irish Prospectus headed "INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY".

UCITS Regime and Use of Derivatives

The Funds may use derivatives for hedging, efficient portfolio management and/or optimising returns.

Under the UCITS regulatory regime, the asset classes in which the Company may invest are expanded.

The use of derivatives (whether for hedging or investment purposes) will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The expected level of leverage for each Fund is set out in the table under the heading "Leverage and VaR Disclosures" below. A Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it

30066989189-v1 - 98 - 17-40705220

most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter a Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that a Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, a Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. A Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. The proportion of long to short exposure in a Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that a Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of a Fund.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that a Fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Funds could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

A Fund may use the Relative VaR model or Absolute VaR model. The table under the heading "Leverage and VaR Disclosures" below sets out the method used to calculate the global exposure relating to derivative instruments for each Fund. Where the Relative VaR model is used, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. Where the Absolute VaR model is used, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio may not exceed 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. In both cases, the holding period shall be 20 days and the historical observation period shall not be less than one year.

It should be noted that the abovementioned limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. If the Central Bank changes these limits, each Fund will have the ability to avail of such new limits. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis. The VaR system used for a Fund will also comply with the Central Bank's requirements in relation to confidence levels and stress testing. The Directors expect that the use of derivatives may result in a medium impact on the performance of a Fund in relation to its investment objectives and the investment techniques described in the Irish Prospectus.

30066989189-v1 - 99 - 17-40705220

These models and procedures are further outlined in the Risk Management Policies that have been filed with the Central Bank and are available through the Singapore Representative upon your request.

For the Funds using the absolute VaR approach, the VaR limits were selected as they were appropriate taking into consideration the investment objective, investment strategy and key risk factors of the relevant Fund. For the Funds using the relative VaR approach, the reference portfolios were selected as they were reflective of the relevant Fund's investment objective and strategy.

A risk management procedure document setting out the risk management procedures applicable to the use of derivatives has been reviewed and approved by the Central Bank of Ireland. Only financial derivative instruments listed in the risk management procedure and cleared by the Central Bank may be used. The Manager confirms that the risk management and compliance procedures which have been implemented are adequate and that it has the necessary expertise to manage risks associated with the use of derivatives.

Additional Risk Disclosures under UCITS Regime

GENERAL RISK FACTORS

Currency Risk

Certain of the Funds may be exposed to currency exchange risk. Changes in exchange rates between currencies or the conversion from one currency to another may cause the value of a Fund's investments to diminish or increase. Currency exchange rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. They generally are determined by supply and demand in the currency exchange markets and the relative merits of investments in different countries, actual or perceived changes in interest rates and other complex factors. Currency exchange rates also can be affected unpredictably by intervention (or the failure to intervene) by governments or central banks, or by currency controls or political developments. In addition, in the event that a Fund invests in a currency (i) which ceases to exist or (ii) in which a participant in such currency ceases to be a participant in such currency, it is likely that this would have an adverse impact on a Fund's liquidity.

The Net Asset Value per Share of the unhedged Share Classes will be calculated in the particular Fund's Base Currency and will then be translated into the currency of the Share Class respectively at the market rate. It is expected that, because the Investment Advisor of the Funds will not hedge this currency exposure, the Net Asset Value per Share and performance of the unhedged Share Classes will be impacted by changes in the rate of exchange between the currency exposures of the relevant Fund's and the currency of the unhedged Share Class. Investors in unhedged Share Classes will bear this currency risk.

Currency Hedging

A Fund may enter into currency exchange transactions and/or use derivatives (at a Fund level or, in certain circumstances as described in the Irish Prospectus, at a Class level) to seek to protect against fluctuation as a result of changes in currency exchange

30066989189-v1 - 100 - 17-40705220

rates. Although these transactions are intended to minimise the risk of loss due to a decline in the value of the hedged currency, they also limit any potential gain that might be realised should the value of the hedged currency increase. The precise matching of the relevant contract amounts and the value of the securities involved will not generally be possible because the future value of such securities will change as a consequence of market movements in the value of such securities between the date when the relevant contract is entered into and the date when it matures. The successful execution of a hedging strategy cannot be assured. It may not be possible to hedge against generally anticipated exchange fluctuations at a price sufficient to protect the assets from the anticipated decline in value as a result of such fluctuations.

Segregated Liability

The Company is an umbrella investment company with segregated liability between Funds. As a result, as a matter of Irish law, any liability attributable to a particular Fund may only be discharged out of the assets of that Fund and the assets of other Funds may not be used to satisfy the liability of that Fund. In addition, any contract entered into by the Company will by operation of law include an implied term to the effect that the counterparty to the contract may not have any recourse to assets of any of the Funds other than the Fund in respect of which the contract was entered into. These provisions are binding both on creditors and in any insolvency but do not prevent the application of any enactment or rule of law which would require the application of the assets of one Fund to discharge some, or all liabilities of another Fund on the grounds of fraud or misrepresentation. In addition, these provisions have not been tested in other jurisdictions, and there remains a possibility that a creditor might seek to attach or seize assets of one Fund in satisfaction of an obligation owed in relation to another Fund in a jurisdiction which would not recognise the principle of segregation of liability between Funds.

Due to the lack of asset segregation between Share Classes, the derivatives used in the currency hedging of a given Share Class become part of the common pool of assets which introduces potential counterparty and operational risk for all investors in the Fund. This could lead to a risk of contagion (also known as spill-over) to other Share Classes, some of which might not have any currency hedging in place. Whilst all measures will be taken to mitigate this contagion risk, it cannot be fully eliminated i.e. through the default of a derivative counterparty or through the losses relating to Share Class specific assets exceeding the value of the respective Share Class.

Currency Hedging at Share Class Level Risk

Hedging activity at Share Class level may expose the Fund to cross contamination risk as it may not be possible to ensure (contractually or otherwise) that a counterparty's recourse in any such arrangements is limited to the assets of the relevant Share Class. Although the costs, gains and losses of the currency hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Share Class, investors are nonetheless exposed to the risk that currency hedging transactions undertaken in one Share Class may impact negatively on another Share Class, particularly where such currency hedging transactions require the Fund to post collateral (i.e. initial or variation margin). Any such collateral is posted by a Fund and at the Fund's risk (rather than by the Share Class and at the risk of the Share Class only because the Share Class

30066989189-v1 - 101 - 17-40705220

does not represent a segregated portion of the Fund's assets) thus exposing investors in other Share Classes to a proportion of this risk.

Derivatives Risk

Each Fund may be subject to risks associated with derivative instruments.

Derivatives are financial contracts whose value depends on, or is derived from, the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index. The various derivative instruments that the Funds may use are set out in the section headed "CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES" in the Irish Prospectus. Derivatives will typically be used as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset and/or as part of strategies designed to gain exposure to, for example, issuers, specific positions on the yield curve, indices, sectors, currencies, and/or geographic regions, and/or to reduce exposure to other risks, such as interest rate or currency risk. The Funds may also use derivatives for gaining exposure within the limits set out by the Central Bank, in which case their use would involve exposure risk, and in some cases, may subject a Fund to the potential for unlimited loss. The use of derivatives may cause the Fund's investment returns to be impacted by the performance of securities the Fund does not own and result in the Fund's total investment exposure exceeding the value of its portfolio. A Fund's use of derivative instruments involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments. Derivatives are subject to a number of risks described elsewhere in this section, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, market risk, credit risk and management risk, as well as risks arising from changes in margin requirements. They also involve the risk of mispricing or improper valuation and the risk that changes in the value of the derivative may not correlate perfectly with the underlying asset, rate or index. A Fund investing in a derivative instrument could lose more than the principal amount invested and derivatives may increase the volatility of the Fund, especially in unusual or extreme market conditions. Also, suitable derivative transactions may not be available in all circumstances and there can be no assurance that a Fund will engage in these transactions to reduce exposure to other risks when that would be beneficial or that, if used, such strategies will be successful. In addition, a Fund's use of derivatives may increase or accelerate the amount of taxes payable by Shareholders.

Participation in the markets for derivative instruments involves investment risks and transaction costs to which a Fund may not be subject absent the use of these strategies. The skills needed to successfully execute derivative strategies may be different from those needed for other types of transactions. If the Fund incorrectly forecasts the value and/or creditworthiness of securities, currencies, interest rates, counterparties or other economic factors involved in a derivative transaction, the Fund might have been in a better position if the Fund had not entered into such derivative transaction. In evaluating the risks and contractual obligations associated with particular derivative instruments, it is important to consider that certain derivative transactions may be modified or terminated only by mutual consent of the Fund and its counterparty. Therefore, it may not be possible for a Fund to modify, terminate, or offset the Fund's obligations or the Fund's exposure to the risks associated with a derivative transaction prior to its scheduled termination or maturity date, which may create a possibility of

30066989189-v1 - 102 - 17-40705220

increased volatility and/or decreased liquidity to the Fund. In such case, the Fund may lose money.

Because the markets for certain derivative instruments (including markets located in foreign countries) are relatively new and still developing, appropriate derivative transactions may not be available in all circumstances for risk management or other purposes. Upon the expiration of a particular contract, a Fund may wish to retain a Fund's position in the derivative instrument by entering into a similar contract, but may be unable to do so if the counterparty to the original contract is unwilling to enter into the new contract and no other appropriate counterparty can be found. When such markets are unavailable, a Fund will be subject to increased liquidity and investment risk.

When a derivative is used as a hedge against a position that a Fund holds, any loss generated by the derivative generally should be substantially offset by gains on the hedged investment, and vice versa. Although hedging can reduce or eliminate losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains. Hedges are sometimes subject to imperfect matching between the derivative and the underlying security, and there can be no assurance that a Fund's hedging transactions will be effective.

Additional future regulation of the derivatives markets may make derivatives more costly, may limit the availability of derivatives, or may otherwise adversely affect the value or performance of derivatives. Any such adverse future developments could limit a Fund's ability to employ certain strategies that use derivatives, impair the effectiveness of a Fund's derivative transactions and cause the Fund to lose value.

Capital Erosion Risk – Income Shares

Certain Funds and Share Classes may have as the priority objective the generation of income rather than capital. You should note that the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees and any other fees and expenses to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth. In this regard, distributions made during the life of the Fund or an applicable Share Class should be understood as a type of capital reimbursement.

In particular, Shareholders should note that, at the Directors' discretion, dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Income II Class. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Emerging Markets Risk

Certain of the Funds may invest in securities of issuers based in countries with developing, or "emerging market" economies.

Foreign investment risk may be particularly high to the extent a Fund invests in emerging market securities. Emerging market securities may present market, credit,

30066989189-v1 - 103 - 17-40705220

currency, liquidity, legal, political and other risks different from, and potentially greater than, the risks of investing in securities and instruments economically tied to developed foreign countries. To the extent a Fund invests in emerging market securities that are economically tied to a particular region, country or group of countries, the Fund may be more sensitive to adverse political or social events affecting that region, country or group of countries. Economic, business, political, or social instability may affect emerging market securities differently, and often more severely, than developed market securities. A Fund that focuses its investments in multiple asset classes of emerging market securities may have a limited ability to mitigate losses in an environment that is adverse to emerging market securities in general. Emerging market securities may also be more volatile, less liquid and more difficult to value than securities economically tied to developed foreign countries. The systems and procedures for trading and settlement of securities in emerging markets are less developed and less transparent and transactions may take longer to settle. Rising interest rates, combined with widening credit spreads, could negatively impact the value of emerging market debt and increase funding costs for foreign issuers. In such a scenario, foreign issuers might not be able to service their debt obligations, the market for emerging market debt could suffer from reduced liquidity, and any investing Funds could lose money.

High Yield Risk

Funds that invest in high yield below investment grade securities and unrated securities of similar credit quality (commonly known as "junk bonds") may be subject to greater levels of interest rate risk, credit risk, call risk and liquidity risk than Funds that do not invest in such securities. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments, and may be more volatile than higher-rated securities of similar maturity. An economic downturn or period of rising interest rates or individual corporate developments could adversely affect the market for high yield securities and reduce a Fund's ability to sell these securities at an advantageous time or price. In particular, junk bonds are often issued by smaller, less creditworthy companies or by highly levered (indebted) companies, which are generally less able than more financially stable companies to make scheduled payments of interest and principal. High yield securities structured as zero-coupon bonds or pay-in-kind securities tend to be especially volatile as they are particularly sensitive to downward pricing pressures from rising interest rates or widening spreads and may require a Fund make taxable distributions of imputed income without receiving the actual cash currency. If the issuer of a security is in default with respect to interest or principal payments, a Fund may lose its entire investment. Issuers of high yield securities may have the right to "call" or redeem the issue prior to maturity, which may result in the Fund having to reinvest its proceeds in securities paying a lower interest rate. Also, junk bonds tend to be less marketable (i.e., less liquid) than higher-rated securities because the market for them is not as broad or active, high yield issuances may be smaller than investment grade issuances and less public information is typically available about high yield securities. Because of the risks involved in investing in high yield securities, an investment in a Fund that invests in such securities may be considered speculative.

Interest Rate Risk

30066989189-v1 - 104 - 17-40705220

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities, dividend-paying equity securities and other instruments in a Fund's portfolio will decline in value because of an increase in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of Fixed Income Securities, dividend-paying equity securities and other instruments held by a Fund is likely to decrease. Securities with longer durations tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter durations. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest rate and an expected inflation rate. Interest rate changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and the Fund may lose money as a result of movements in interest rates. A Fund may not be able to hedge against changes in interest rates or may choose not to do so for cost or other reasons. In addition, any hedges may not work as intended. Inflation-indexed securities decline in value when real interest rates rise. In certain interest rate environments, such as when real interest rates are rising faster than nominal interest rates, inflation-indexed securities may experience greater losses than other fixed income securities with similar durations.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. Also, illiquid securities may become harder to value especially in changing markets. A Fund's investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Fund because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price which could prevent the Fund from taking advantage of other investment opportunities. Funds with principal investment strategies that involve foreign securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk.

The Directors seek to manage liquidity risks through the risk management procedures that have been established in respect of each Fund and as further outlined in the Risk Management Policies that have been filed with the Central Bank and are available through the Singapore Representative. The Directors may use the following liquidity management tools in order to protect the interests of Shareholders:

Suspension of redemption – the Directors may at any time declare a temporary suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value of any Fund as further described in paragraph 21 below. Shares may not be redeemed during any period when the calculation of the NAV of the relevant Fund is suspended.

Swing Pricing – Swing pricing is implemented by moving the NAV per Share up or down by a Swing Factor depending on the direction of net cash flows for a particular Fund. Significant net inflows will cause an upward swing in the NAV per Share, significant net outflows a downward swing. This adjusted NAV will then be applied to any subscriptions or redemptions which are received on the relevant Dealing Day. Swing pricing is implemented by the Company when net cash flows exceed a pre-determined Threshold set by the Directors, beyond which the Directors believe the amount of dilution caused by transaction related costs could be material to a Fund. Please refer to paragraph 21 below for more details on swing pricing.

Limitation of redemptions – the Company is entitled to limit the number of Shares of any Fund redeemed on any Dealing Day to 10% of the total number of Shares of that Fund in issue. In this event, the Company shall reduce *pro rata* any requests for

30066989189-v1 - 105 - 17-40705220

redemption on that Dealing Day and shall treat the redemption requests as if they were received on each subsequent Dealing Day until all the Shares to which the original request related have been redeemed.

Transfer in specie – the Company may in certain circumstances satisfy redemption requests by the transfer in specie (in kind) to the Shareholder of assets of the relevant Fund having a value equal to the redemption price for the Shares redeemed as if the redemption proceeds were paid in cash less any redemption charge and other expenses of the transfer. Where a redemption is satisfied by a transfer in specie, the Shareholder would receive the relevant redemption proceeds in assets rather than in cash. Please refer to the section headed "HOW TO REDEEM SHARES" in the Irish Prospectus for further information on the circumstances in which redemption requests may be satisfied by transfers in specie.

Minimum Holding – Shareholders may be unable to redeem Shares in the event that the relevant redemption request would have the effect of reducing the value of such Shareholder's shareholding relating to any Fund below the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund, as such requests may be declined.

CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES

Commodity Risk

A Fund's investments in commodity index-linked derivative instruments may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. The value of commodity index-linked derivative instruments may be affected by changes in overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in interest rates, or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity, such as drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs and international economic, political and regulatory developments.

Unrated Securities

A Fund may purchase unrated securities (which are not rated by a rating agency) if its portfolio manager determines that the security is of comparable quality to a rated security that the Fund may purchase. Unrated securities may be less liquid than comparable rated securities and involve the risk that the portfolio manager may not accurately evaluate the security's comparative credit rating. Analysis of the creditworthiness of issuers of high yield securities may be more complex than for issuers of higher-quality fixed income securities. To the extent that a Fund invests in high yield and/or unrated securities, the Fund's success in achieving its investment objective may depend more heavily on the portfolio manager's creditworthiness analysis than if the Fund invested exclusively in higher-quality and rated securities.

Contingent Convertible Instruments

Contingent convertible securities ("CoCos") are a form of hybrid debt security that are intended to either convert into equity or have their principal written down upon the occurrence of certain 'triggers' linked to regulatory capital thresholds or where the issuing banking institution's regulatory authorities question the continued

30066989189-v1 - 106 - 17-40705220

viability of the entity as a going concern. CoCos will have unique equity conversion or principal write-down features which are tailored to the issuing banking institution and its regulatory requirements. Some additional risks associated with CoCos are set forth below:

- Loss absorption risk: CoCo features have been designed to meet specific regulatory requirements imposed on banking institutions. In particular, CoCos can be converted into equity of the issuing banking institution or have their principal written down if their regulatory capital ratio falls below a pre-determined level or when the relevant regulatory authority deems the banking institution being non-viable. In addition those hybrid debt instruments have no stated maturity and fully discretionary coupons. This means coupons can potentially be cancelled at the banking institution's discretion or at the request of the relevant regulatory authority in order to help the bank absorb losses.
- <u>Subordinated Instruments</u>. CoCos will, in the majority of circumstances, be issued in the form of subordinated debt instruments in order to provide the appropriate regulatory capital treatment prior to a conversion. Accordingly, in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of an issuer prior to a conversion having occurred, the rights and claims of the holders of the CoCos, such as the Funds, against the issuer in respect of or arising under the terms of the CoCos shall generally rank junior to the claims of all holders of unsubordinated obligations of the issuer. In addition, if the CoCos are converted into the issuer's underlying equity securities following a conversion event, each holder will be subordinated due to their conversion from being the holder of a debt instrument to being the holder of an equity instrument.
- Market Value will fluctuate based on unpredictable factors. The value of CoCos is unpredictable and will be influenced by many factors including, without limitation (i) the creditworthiness of the issuer and/or fluctuations in such issuer's applicable capital ratios; (ii) supply and demand for the CoCos; (iii) general market conditions and available liquidity and (iv) economic, financial and political events that affect the issuer, its particular market or the financial markets in general.

ESG Fixed Income Securities

Certain Funds may invest in various types of ESG Fixed Income Securities which notably enable issuers to raise capital to fund projects with positive environmental and/or social benefits as provided for in the relevant Supplement. ESG Fixed Income Securities shall include but are not limited to green labeled bonds and other debt instruments geared toward sustainability. Labeled bonds are often verified by a third party (such as an audit firm), which certifies that the bond will fund projects (e.g. green labeled bonds are those issues with proceeds specifically earmarked to be used for environmental projects).

Green Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or re-finance new and existing projects or activities with positive environmental impact. Eligible project categories include: renewable energy, energy efficiency, clean transportation, green buildings, wastewater management and climate change adaptation.

30066989189-v1 - 107 - 17-40705220

Social Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or re-finance social projects or activities that aim to address or mitigate a specific social issue or seek to achieve positive social outcomes. Social Project categories include providing and/or promoting: affordable basic infrastructure, access to essential services, affordable housing, employment generation, food security, or socioeconomic advancement and empowerment.

Sustainability Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or refinance a combination of green and social projects or activities. Sustainability bonds with strict accountability of the use of proceeds towards activities that advance the UN Sustainable Development Goals or SDGs may be labeled as SDG Bonds.

Sustainability-linked Bonds: are bonds which are structurally linked to the issuer's achievement of certain sustainability goals, such as through a covenant linking the coupon of a bond to specific environmental and/or social goals. Progress, or lack thereof, toward the aforementioned goals or selected key performance indicators results in a decrease or increase in the instrument's coupon.

In contrast to the green, social and sustainability bonds described above, sustainability-linked bonds do not finance particular projects but rather finance the general functioning of an issuer that has explicit sustainability targets that are linked to the financing conditions of the bond.

Event-Linked Bonds

Event-linked bonds are debt obligations generally issued by special purpose vehicles organised by insurance companies, with interest payments tied to the insurance losses of casualty insurance contracts. Large insurance losses, such as those caused by a storm, will reduce the interest payments. Small losses will lead to above-market interest payments.

Generally, event-linked bonds are issued as Rule 144A securities (i.e. securities which are not registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act") but which can be sold to certain institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act). The Funds will only invest in bonds which meet the credit quality criteria set out in the investment policies relevant to each Fund. If they are not issued with an undertaking to register with the US Securities and Exchanges Commission within one year of issue, investment in such instruments will be subject to the 10% aggregate restriction on investment in unlisted securities.

If a trigger event causes losses exceeding a specific amount in the geographic region and time period specified in a bond, liability under the terms of the bond is limited to the principal and accrued interest of the bond. If no trigger event occurs, the Fund will recover its principal plus interest. Often, event-linked bonds provide for extensions of maturity that are mandatory, or optional at the discretion of the issuer, in order to process and audit loss claims in those cases where a trigger event has, or possibly has, occurred. An extension of maturity may increase volatility. In addition to the specified trigger events, event-linked bonds may also expose the Fund to certain unanticipated risks including but not limited to issuer risk, credit risk, counterparty risk, adverse regulatory or jurisdictional interpretations, and adverse tax

30066989189-v1 - 108 - 17-40705220

consequences. Event-linked bonds may become illiquid upon the occurrence of a trigger event.

Derivatives

Each Fund may, but is not required to, use derivative instruments for risk management purposes or as part of their investment strategies in accordance with the limits and guidelines issued by the Central Bank from time to time. Generally, derivatives are financial contracts whose value depends upon, or is derived from, the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index, and may relate to stocks, bonds, interest rates, currencies or currency exchange rates and related indexes. Examples of derivative instruments which a Fund may use include options contracts, futures contracts, options on futures contracts, swap agreements (including credit swaps, credit default swaps, forward swap spreadlocks, options on swap agreements, straddles, forward currency exchange contracts and structured notes), provided that in each case the use of such instruments (i) will not result in an exposure to instruments other than transferable securities, financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, (ii) will not result in an exposure to underlying assets other than to assets in which a Fund may invest directly and (iii) the use of such instruments will not cause a Fund to diverge from its investment objective. A portfolio manager may decide not to employ any of these strategies and there is no assurance that any derivatives strategy used by a Fund will succeed.

The Funds may purchase and sell structured notes and hybrid securities, purchase and write call and put options on securities (including straddles), securities indexes and currencies, and enter into futures contracts and use options on futures contracts (including straddles). Each Fund may also enter into swap agreements including, but not limited to, swap agreements on interest rates, security indexes, specific securities, and credit swaps. To the extent a Fund may invest in foreign currency-denominated securities, it may also invest in currency exchange rate swap agreements. The Funds may also enter into swap agreements including options on swap agreements with respect to currencies, interest rates, and securities indexes and may also enter into currency forward contracts and credit default swaps. The Funds may use these techniques as part of their overall investment strategies.

Certain Funds may invest in derivatives that could be classified as "exotic". Specifically, in the case of these Funds, these will be barrier options and variance and volatility swaps. Variance and volatility swaps are over-the-counter financial derivatives that enable one to hedge risk and/or efficiently manage exposure associated with the magnitude of a movement as measured by the volatility or variance of some underlying product like an exchange rate, interest rate or stock rate and may be used in circumstances where, for example, the investment advisor is of the view that realized volatility on a specific asset is likely to be different from what the market is currently pricing. A barrier option is a type of financial option where the option to exercise rights under the relevant contract depends on whether or not the underlying asset has reached or exceeded a predetermined price. The additional component of a barrier option is the trigger - or barrier - which, in the case of a "knock-in" option, if reached, results in a payment being made to the purchaser of the barrier option. Conversely, a "knock-out" option will only result in payment being made to the purchaser of that option if the trigger is never reached during the life of the contract. Barrier options may be used in circumstances where, for example, the

30066989189-v1 - 109 - 17-40705220

investment advisor is of the view that the probability of the price a specific asset moving through a threshold is likely to be different from what the market is currently pricing.

If the Investment Advisor incorrectly forecasts interest rates, market values or other economic factors in using a derivatives strategy for a Fund, the Fund might have been in a better position if it had not entered into the transaction at all. The use of these strategies involves certain special risks, including a possible imperfect correlation, or even no correlation, between price movements of derivative instruments and price movements of related investments. While some strategies involving derivative instruments can reduce the risk of loss, they can also reduce the opportunity for gain or even result in losses by offsetting favourable price movements in related investments, or due to the possible inability of a Fund to purchase or sell a portfolio security at a time that otherwise would be favourable for it to do so, or the possible need for a Fund to sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time, and the possible inability of a Fund to close out or to liquidate its derivatives positions.

Whether a Fund's use of swap agreements and options on swap agreements will be successful will depend on the Investment Advisor's ability to correctly predict whether certain types of investments are likely to produce greater returns than other investments. Because they are two-party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven days, swap agreements may be considered to be illiquid investments. Moreover, a Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement if a swap agreement counterparty defaults or becomes bankrupt. The swaps market is a relatively new market and is largely unregulated. It is possible that developments in the swaps market, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect a Fund's ability to terminate existing swap agreements or to realise amounts to be received under such agreements. Swaps used by the Funds will be consistent with the investment policy of the relevant Fund as set out in the Supplement.

Swap agreements are two-party contracts for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than one year. In a standard swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular predetermined investments or instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are generally calculated with respect to a "notional amount", i.e., the return on or increase in value of a particular currency amount invested at a particular interest rate, in particular, foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index. A "quanto" or "differential" swap combines both an interest rate and a currency transaction. Other forms of swap agreements include interest rate caps, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates exceed a specified rate or "cap"; interest rate floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a specified rate or "floor"; and interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and purchases a floor or vice versa in an attempt to protect itself against interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels.

A Fund may enter into credit default swap agreements. The "buyer" in a credit default contract is obligated to pay the "seller" a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract provided that no event of default on an underlying reference obligation

30066989189-v1 - 110 - 17-40705220

has occurred. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value, or "par value", of the reference obligation in exchange for the reference obligation. A Fund may be either the buyer or seller in a credit default swap transaction. If a Fund is a buyer and no event of default occurs, the Fund will lose its investment and recover nothing. However, if an event of default occurs, the Fund (if the buyer) will receive the full notional value of the reference obligation that may have little or no value. As a seller, a Fund receives a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the contract, which typically is between six months and three years, provided that there is no default event. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value of the reference obligation.

A structured note is a derivative debt security combining a fixed income instrument with a series of derivative components. As a result, the bond's coupon, average life, and/or redemption values can become exposed to the forward movement in various indices, equity prices, foreign exchange rates, mortgage backed security prepayment speeds, etc.

A hybrid security is a security which combines two or more financial instruments. Hybrid securities generally combine a traditional stock or bond with an option or forward contract. Generally, the principal amount payable upon maturity or redemption, or interest rate of a hybrid security, is tied (positively or negatively) to the price of some currency or securities index or another interest rate or some other economic factor (each a "benchmark"). The interest rate or (unlike most fixed income securities) the principal amount payable at maturity of a hybrid security may be increased or decreased, depending on the changes in the value of the benchmark.

A Fund's use of derivative instruments involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other more traditional investments. The following provides a general discussion of important risk factors relating to all derivative instruments that may be used by the Funds.

Management Risk. Derivative products are highly specialized instruments that require investment techniques and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The use of a derivative requires an understanding not only of the underlying instrument but also of the derivative itself, without the benefit of observing the performance of the derivative under all possible market conditions.

Credit Risk. The use of a derivative instrument involves the risk that a loss may be sustained as a result of the failure of another party to the contract (usually referred to as a "counterparty") to make required payments or otherwise comply with the contract's terms. Additionally, credit default swaps could result in losses if a Fund does not correctly evaluate the creditworthiness of the company on which the credit default swap is based. Over-the-counter derivatives are also subject to the risk that the other party in the transaction will not fulfil its contractual obligations. For derivatives traded on exchanges, the primary credit risk is the creditworthiness of the exchange itself or the related clearing broker.

Liquidity Risk. Liquidity risk exists when a particular derivative instrument is difficult to purchase or sell. If a derivative transaction is particularly large or if the relevant market is illiquid (as is the case with many privately negotiated derivatives),

30066989189-v1 - 111 - 17-40705220

it may not be possible to initiate a transaction or liquidate a position at an advantageous time or price.

Exposure Risk. Certain transactions may give rise to a form of exposure. Such transactions may include, among others, reverse repurchase agreements, and the use of when-issued, delayed delivery or forward commitment transactions. Although the use of derivatives may create an exposure risk, any exposure arising as a result of the use of derivatives will be risk managed using an advanced risk measurement methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements.

Lack of Availability. Because the markets for certain derivative instruments are relatively new and still developing, suitable derivatives transactions may not be available in all circumstances for risk management or other purposes. Upon the expiration of a particular contract, the portfolio manager may wish to retain the Fund's position in the derivative instrument by entering into a similar contract, but may be unable to do so if the counterparty to the original contract is unwilling to enter into the new contract and no other suitable counterparty can be found. There is no assurance that a Fund will engage in derivatives transactions at any time or from time to time. A Fund's ability to use derivatives may also be limited by certain regulatory and tax considerations.

Market and Other Risks. Like most other investments, derivative instruments are subject to the risk that the market value of the instrument will change in a way detrimental to a Fund's interest. If a portfolio manager incorrectly forecasts the values of securities, currencies or interest rates or other economic factors in using derivatives for a Fund, the Fund might have been in a better position if it had not entered into the transaction at all. While some strategies involving derivative instruments can reduce the risk of loss, they can also reduce the opportunity for gain or even result in losses by offsetting favourable price movements in other Fund investments. A Fund may also have to buy or sell a security at a disadvantageous time or price because the Fund is legally required to maintain offsetting positions or asset coverage in connection with certain derivatives transactions.

Commodity Risk. A Fund's investment in commodity index-linked derivative instruments may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. The value of the commodity index-linked derivative instruments may be affected by changes in overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in interest rates, or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity, such as drought, floods, weather, livestock, disease, embargoes, tariffs and international economic, political and regulatory developments.

Other risks in using derivatives include the risk of mis-pricing or improper valuation of derivatives and the inability of derivatives to correlate perfectly with underlying assets, rates and indexes. Many derivatives, in particular privately negotiated derivatives, are complex and often valued subjectively. Improper valuations can result in increased cash payment requirements to counterparties or a loss of value to a Fund. Also, the value of derivatives may not correlate perfectly, or at all, with the value of the assets, reference rates or indexes they are designed to closely track. In addition, a Fund's use of derivatives may cause the Fund to realise higher amounts of short-term capital gains (generally taxed at ordinary income tax rates) than if the Fund had not used such instruments.

30066989189-v1 - 112 - 17-40705220

Underlying Fund Risk

Where a Fund invests in other collective investment schemes (in accordance with the Central Bank requirements) the Fund may be subject to valuation risk due to the manner and timing of valuations of its investments in such other collective investment schemes. The other collective investment schemes may be valued by fund administrators affiliated to fund managers, or by the fund managers themselves, resulting in valuations which are not verified by an independent third party on a regular or timely basis. Accordingly, there is a risk that (i) the valuations of the Fund may not reflect the true value of the other collective investment schemes holdings at a specific time which could result in significant losses or inaccurate pricing for the Fund and/or (ii) valuation may not be available as at the relevant Valuation Point for the Fund so that some or all of the assets of the Fund may be valued on an estimated basis.

While the Investment Advisor or its delegate will comply with the investment restrictions applicable to the Funds, the manager of and/or service providers to the other collective investment schemes are not obliged to comply with such investment restrictions in the management/administration of the other collective investment schemes. No assurance is given that the investment restrictions of the Funds with respect to individual issuers or other exposures will be adhered to by the other collective investment schemes or that, when aggregated, exposure by the other collective investment schemes to individual issuers or counterparties will not exceed the investment restrictions applicable to the Funds.

The cost of investing in the Funds will generally be higher than the cost of investing in an investment fund that invests directly in individual stocks and bonds. By investing in the Funds, an investor will indirectly bear fees and expenses charged by the other collective investment schemes in addition to the Fund's direct fees and expenses. In addition, the use of a fund of funds structure could affect the timing, amount and character of distributions to Shareholders.

Where a Fund invests in other collective investment schemes, the risks associated with its investments are closely related to the risks associated with the securities and other investments held by the other collective investment schemes. The ability of such a Fund to achieve its investment objectives will depend upon the ability of the other collective investment schemes to achieve their investment objectives. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of any other collective investment schemes will be achieved.

Subject to the requirements of the Central Bank, each of the Funds may invest in the other Funds of the Company and/or other collective investment schemes managed by the Investment Advisor or entities affiliated with the Investment Advisor ("Affiliated Funds"). In some cases, the Funds may be a large or predominant shareholder of a particular Affiliated Fund. Investment decisions made with respect to the Affiliated Funds could, under certain circumstances, negatively impact the Funds with respect to the expenses and investment performance of the Affiliated Funds. For instance, large redemptions of shares from an Affiliated Fund may result in the Affiliated Fund having to sell securities when it otherwise would not do so. Such transactions may impact on the return the Affiliated Fund provides a Fund.

30066989189-v1 - 113 - 17-40705220

RISK PROFILES

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging markets securities, high yield securities and substantially in financial derivative instruments, an investment in the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund, Dynamic Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund and Global Advantage Fund because of their ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund, Dynamic Bond Fund, Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund or Global Advantage Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund's ability to invest in emerging markets, an investment in the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and is suitable for investors who are prepared to accept a higher level of volatility.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Diversified Income Fund, Emerging Markets Bond Fund, Global Bond Ex-US Fund, Global Bond Fund, Inflation Multi-Asset Fund and Strategic Income Fund because of their ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Diversified Income Fund, Emerging Markets Bond Fund, Global Bond Ex-US Fund, Global Bond Fund, Inflation Multi-Asset Fund or Strategic Income Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Local Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in emerging markets securities, an investment in the Emerging Local Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global High Yield Bond Fund and US High Yield Bond Fund because of their ability to invest in high yield securities, an investment in the Global High Yield Bond Fund or US High Yield Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Euro Bond Fund, Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, PIMCO Climate Bond Fund and US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund because of their ability to invest in emerging market securities, an investment

30066989189-v1 - 114 - 17-40705220

in the Euro Bond Fund, Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund, PIMCO Climate Bond Fund or US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund because of its ability to invest below investment grade instruments and emerging markets, an investment in the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund because of its ability to invest substantially in financial derivative instruments and to invest in below investment grade instruments and emerging markets, an investment in the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund has the ability to invest principally in financial derivative instruments. An investment in the PIMCO Capital Securities Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

An investment in the Income Fund, Income Fund II, Low Duration Income Fund, PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund or the PIMCO ESG Income Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

The above is a summary ONLY and is not a complete list of all risks related to an investment in the Funds. Please refer to the Irish Prospectus for the full disclosure on risks.

Leverage and VaR Disclosures

The table below sets out the following information: (a) the average level of gross notional exposure for the Funds for the year ended 31 December $2020^{\dagger\dagger}$; (b) whether a Fund is using the Absolute VaR model; (c) if a Fund is using the Relative VaR model, the reference benchmark or portfolio being used; and (d) the expected level of leverage:

30066989189-v1 - 115 - 17-40705220

The Central Bank requires that all UCITS funds disclose a measure of leverage calculated on a gross notional exposure basis in the annual report.

Fund	(a) Average level of gross notional exposure##	(b) Absolute VaR	(c) Relative VaR – Reference Benchmark/ Portfolio	(d) Expected level of leverage
Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund	47%		JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI)	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
Commodity Real Return Fund	408%		Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund	142%	X	N/A	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Diversified Income Fund	107%		1/3 each Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global (All USD Hedged)	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Dynamic Bond Fund	116%	X	N/A	0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value
Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund	135%	X	N/A	0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value
Emerging Local Bond Fund	436%		JPMorgan Government Bond Index-Emerging Markets Global Diversified	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value

30066989189-v1 - 116 - 17-40705220

There is a possibility of higher levels given that the data in column (a) is average data and also given that the funds manage risk in accordance with the VaR rather than a gross notional methodology which, because it does not take into account any netting or hedging arrangements, may fluctuate from time to time and reach higher levels.

Emerging Markets Bond Fund	56%		JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund	29%		JPMorgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Emerging Markets Short- Term Local Currency Fund	297%		JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Euro Bond Fund	233%		FTSE Euro Broad Investment-Grade Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global Advantage Fund	387%		PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close)	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global Bond Ex-US Fund	373%		Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex USD Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global Bond Fund	332%		Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global High Yield Bond Fund	24%		ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global Investment Grade Credit Fund	94%		Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Global Real Return Fund	243%		Bloomberg World Government Inflation- Linked Bond Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Income Fund	147%	X	N/A	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value

30066989189-v1 - 117 - 17-40705220

Income Fund II	N/A**	X	N/A	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
Inflation Multi- Asset Fund	298%	X	N/A	0% to 400% of Net Asset Value
Low Average Duration Fund	114%	X	N/A	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund	73%		Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 years Index	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
Low Duration Income Fund	133%	X	N/A	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund	45%		JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
PIMCO Capital Securities Fund	80%	X	N/A	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
PIMCO Climate Bond Fund	59%*	X	N/A	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
PIMCO ESG Income Fund	N/A**	X	N/A	0% to 500% of Net Asset Value
PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund	394%		60% MSCI All Country World Index/40% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index	0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value
StocksPLUS TM Fund	232%		S&P 500 Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value

30066989189-v1 - 118 - 17-40705220

Strategic Income Fund	125%	75% Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index/25% MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index ^{§§}	
Total Return Bond Fund	133%	Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
US High Yield Bond Fund	6%	ICE BofAML U.S. High Yield Constrained Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value
US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund	63%	Bloomberg U.S. Credit Index	0% to 600% of Net Asset Value

^{*} The Fund launched during the financial year ended 31 December 2020

You may refer to the Company's annual report (commencing from the annual report for the accounting period ending 31 December 2020) for further information on the level of gross notional exposure for the Funds which use the VaR methodology – see paragraph 30 of this Singapore Prospectus for details on how to obtain a copy of the annual report.

16. SECURITIES FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Company may employ techniques and instruments intended to provide protection against exchange risks in the context of the management of the assets and liabilities of each Fund and under the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Central Bank from time to time.

The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will only be used in line with the best interests of the Funds. Efficient portfolio management techniques may be used with the aim of reducing certain risks associated with the Funds' investments, reducing costs and to generate additional income for the Funds having regard to the risk profile of the Funds. The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will not result in a change to the investment objective as outlined in the relevant Fund Supplement. Where specified in the relevant Supplement, a Fund may use repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions. Such repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions may be entered into for any purpose that is consistent with the investment objective of the relevant Fund, including to generate income or profits in order to increase portfolio returns or to reduce portfolio expenses or risks. Any type of assets

30066989189-v1 - 119 - 17-40705220

^{**} The Fund launched after the financial year ended 31 December 2020

The benchmark for Strategic Income Fund changed from 75% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD/25% MSCI World Index Net USD to 75% Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index/25% MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index with effect from 29 July 2022.

that may be held by each Fund in accordance with its investment objective and policies may be subject to such repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions. Subject to each Fund's investment objective and polices, there is no limit on the proportion of assets that may be subject to repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions and therefore the maximum and expected proportion of the Fund's assets that can be subject to repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions will be 100%, i.e. all of the assets of the Fund. In any case, the most recent semi-annual and annual accounts of the Company will express the amount of the Fund's assets subject to repurchase and/or reverse repurchase transactions.

The Funds are not currently carrying out securities lending transactions.

Conflicts of interest

The Investment Advisor manages any conflicts of interest that may arise in relation to Securities Financing Transactions (as defined in the Irish Prospectus, which include repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements) and other efficient portfolio management techniques, in accordance with what the Investment Advisor considers to be best practice, including in situations where securities are lent to related corporations.

Risks

If a Fund engages in securities lending, it will have a credit risk exposure to the counterparties to any securities lending contract. Securities lending involves the risk of loss of rights in the collateral or delay in recovery of the collateral should the borrower fail to return the securities loaned or become insolvent. The Funds may pay lending fees to the party arranging the loan.

Repurchase/reverse repurchase create risks for the Company and its investors, including counterparty risk if the counterparty to a repurchase/reverse repurchase agreement defaults on its obligation and liquidity risk if the relevant Fund is unable to liquidate collateral provided to it to cover a counterparty default.

In the event of the failure of the counterparty to a repurchase agreement with which cash has been placed, the relevant Fund may suffer loss as there may be delay in recovering cash placed out or difficulty in realising collateral or proceeds from the sale of the collateral may be less than the cash placed with the counterparty due to market movements. In the event of the failure of the counterparty to a reverse repurchase agreement with which collateral has been placed, the relevant Fund may suffer loss as there may be delays in recovering collateral placed out or the cash originally received may be less than the collateral placed with the counterparty due to market movements.

Collateral risks may also arise in relation to Securities Financing Transactions (as defined in the Irish Prospectus, which include repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements). Collateral or margin may be passed by the Fund to a counterparty or broker in such transactions. Assets deposited as collateral or margin with brokers may not be held in segregated accounts by the brokers and may therefore become available to the creditors of such brokers in the event of their insolvency or bankruptcy. Where collateral is posted to a counterparty or broker by way of title

30066989189-v1 - 120 - 17-40705220

transfer, the collateral may be re-used by such counterparty or broker for their own purpose, thus exposing the Fund to additional risk. Risks related to a counterparty's right of re-use of any collateral include that, upon the exercise of such right of re-use, such assets will no longer belong to the relevant Fund and the Fund will only have a contractual claim for the return of equivalent assets. In the event of the insolvency of a counterparty the Fund shall rank as an unsecured creditor and may not recover its assets from the counterparty. More broadly, assets subject to a right of re-use by a counterparty may form part of a complex chain of transactions over which the Fund or its delegates will not have any visibility or control.

Revenue

All revenues from Securities Financing Transactions (as defined in the Irish Prospectus, which include repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements) and other efficient portfolio management techniques, net of direct and indirect operational costs, and any remuneration to which a securities lending agent may be granted, will be returned to the Funds.

17. SUBSCRIPTION FOR SHARES

17.1 Subscription Procedure

Details of the issue and redemption of Shares in respect of the Funds are set out in the Irish Prospectus. In particular, please refer to the section headed "KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS" in the Irish Prospectus. An application for Shares may be made on the relevant application form available from the Company's approved distributors ("Singapore Application Form").

You must apply to subscribe for Shares in a Fund by submitting the Singapore Application Form to an approved distributor, together with such other documents as may be required by the approved distributor.

17.2 Cash subscriptions

Cash subscriptions made directly through the Administrator must be paid by bank transfer to the appropriate bank account(s) specified in the investment account opening and application form and/or subscription form. If you are subscribing through approved distributors, you should contact the relevant approved distributor for information on its payment procedures.

17.3 Subscriptions through use of SRS monies

You may also subscribe for Shares by paying with your SRS monies. If you are paying with your SRS monies, you must provide a written authorisation to the relevant SRS Bank for monies to be withdrawn from your SRS Accounts for payment by the SRS Bank to the Administrator (in accordance with the payment methods set out in paragraph 17.1 above) for the subscription of Shares.

"SRS" means the scheme referred to by the Ministry of Finance as the Supplementary Retirement Scheme or such other scheme as shall replace or supersede it from time to time.

30066989189-v1 - 121 - 17-40705220

"SRS Account" means an account opened by an investor pursuant to the SRS with an SRS Bank.

"SRS Bank" means the bank with which an investor has opened an SRS Account.

17.4 Conversion of Currency

The Base Currency is U.S. Dollars for all Funds offered in Singapore, except the Euro Bond Fund and the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund, which are denominated in Euro. You may make your subscription payments in Singapore dollars or such other currencies as shall be determined by the approved distributors from time to time, in accordance with the payment methods set out in paragraph 17.1 above. Where payment is made in any currency other than the Base Currency of the relevant Fund or the relevant currency denomination of the Share Class, the Depositary will arrange for foreign exchange conversion from such currency to the Base Currency at the prevailing rates as shall be determined by the Depositary and at your risk and expense.

17.5 Rejection of Applications

If your application is rejected, the Company will return the application monies or the balance of the application monies (without interest) normally within seven (7) Singapore Business Days of the rejection to the applicant by telegraphic transfer at the cost and risk of the applicant. (A "Singapore Business Day" shall refer to a day (excluding Saturday) on which commercial banks in Singapore are open for business.)

17.6 Minimum Initial Subscription

Minimum subscription for Class H Institutional Shares

Your minimum initial investment for Class H Institutional Shares in a Fund is US\$1,000,000 or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

Minimum subscription for E Class Shares

Your minimum initial investment for E Class Shares in a Fund is US\$1,000 or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency as appropriate if invested through an intermediary omnibus account***.

Minimum subscription for Class M Retail Shares

Your minimum initial investment for Class M Retail Shares in a Fund is US\$1,000 or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency^{†††}.

Minimum subscription for Institutional Class Shares

30066989189-v1 - 122 - 17-40705220

^{***} The minimum is US\$10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe or US\$1,000,000 if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.

The minimum is US\$10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe or US\$1,000,000 if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.

Your minimum initial investment for Institutional Class Shares in a Fund is US\$5,000,000, or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

Minimum subscription for Investor Class Shares

Your minimum initial investment for Investor Class Shares in a Fund is US\$1,000,000, or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

Minimum subscription for Administrative Class Shares

Your minimum initial investment for Administrative Class Shares in a Fund is US\$1,000,000, or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

Minimum subscription for W Class Shares

Your minimum initial investment for W Class Shares in a Fund is US\$5,000,000, or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

The minimum initial investment amount can be reduced or waived on a case-bycase basis by the Company.

There is no minimum subsequent investment amount requirement for any of the Classes.

The Directors or their delegate may waive the minimum initial investment amounts.

17.7 Dealing Deadline and Pricing Basis

The price at which Shares will be issued shall be the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class or Fund, determined on each Dealing Day. The value of the assets shall be calculated in accordance with the principles set down under the heading "Calculation" under the section headed "CALCULATION AND SUSPENSION OF CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE" in the Irish Prospectus.

As Shares are issued on a forward pricing basis, the Net Asset Value per Share will not be ascertainable at the time of application. Please refer to the "KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS" section in the Irish Prospectus for information on the Dealing Deadline of the Funds.

For your application to be effected on a Dealing Day, the application must be received by the approved distributors with sufficient lead time prior to the Dealing Deadline for order processing and placing. Except for Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund and PIMCO Asia High Yield Fund, the Dealing Deadline is generally before 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on a Dealing Day, provided such Dealing Day is also a business day in Singapore. The Dealing Deadline for Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund and PIMCO Asia High Yield Fund is before 4:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on a Dealing Day for each respective Fund, provided such Dealing Day is also a business day in Singapore.

A "**Dealing Day**" means in relation to a Fund such day or days as shall be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund provided that in any event there will be one Dealing Day per fortnight. For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout

30066989189-v1 - 123 - 17-40705220

the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the approved distributor or Singapore Representative or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the approved distributor or Singapore Representative).

17.8 Numerical Example of how Shares are Allotted

The following is an illustration of the number of Shares that you will receive based on an investment amount of US\$1,000 and a notional Net Asset Value per Share of US\$1.00 (the actual Net Asset Value of the Shares will fluctuate according to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund):

e.g.	Investment amount	5% Preliminary charge	Net investment amount	Issue price	Number of Shares allotted
	US\$1,000.00	US\$50.00	US\$950.00	US\$1.00	950

Notes:

- 1. The above illustration assumes that the Base Currency is US\$ and the Preliminary Charge is 5%.
- 2. The actual issue price of Shares will fluctuate according to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund.

17.9 Confirmation of Purchase

A confirmation note issued by the Administrator detailing the investment amount and number of Shares allotted to you will be sent within seven Singapore Business Days from the date of purchase.

17.10 No Cancellation

You will not have any right of cancellation in respect of a subscription application for Shares which you have submitted to an approved distributor.

18. REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Redemption Procedure

You may redeem your Shares by submitting a written redemption request (in such form and together with such other documents as may be required by the approved distributors) to the approved distributors. In particular, please refer to the section headed "KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS" in the Irish Prospectus.

The Company may refuse any redemption requests if all relevant documentation has not been submitted, if such redemption would result in non-compliance with the Minimum Holding requirement relating to the relevant Fund, or in any other

30066989189-v1 - 124 - 17-40705220

circumstances set out in the Irish Prospectus and Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Minimum Holding Requirements

The minimum holding for Class H Institutional Shares, Institutional Class Shares, Investor Class Shares, Administrative Class Shares and W Class Shares is US\$500,000 or its equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency, and the minimum holding for E Class Shares and Class M Retail Shares is US\$1,000 or its equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency.

If a redemption request would result in the residual holding in the relevant Fund falling below the minimum holding amount, the Company reserves the right to procure the redemption of the residual Shares.

The minimum holding amount can be reduced or waived on a case-by-case basis by the Company, the Directors or their delegate.

Dealing Deadline and Pricing Basis

The price at which Shares will be redeemed shall be the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Class and Fund, determined on each Dealing Day.

As Shares are priced on a forward pricing basis, the Net Asset Value per Share will not be available at the time of submission of the redemption request.

For your redemption request to be effected on a Dealing Day, your redemption request must be received by the approved distributors with sufficient lead time prior to the Dealing Deadline for order processing and placing. Except for Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund and PIMCO Asia High Yield Fund, the Dealing Deadline is generally before 5:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on a Dealing Day, provided such Dealing Day is also a business day in Singapore. The Dealing Deadline for Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund and PIMCO Asia High Yield Fund is before 4:00 p.m. (Singapore time) on a Dealing Day for each respective Fund, provided such Dealing Day is also a business day in Singapore.

If you are redeeming through approved distributors, you should enquire with the respective approved distributors with regards to the relevant lead-time required by them for order processing and placing.

Numerical Example of Calculation of Redemption Proceeds

The following is an illustration of the redemption proceeds that you will receive based on a redemption of 1,000 Shares and a notional redemption price of US\$1.10,

30066989189-v1 - 125 - 17-40705220

with no redemption charge (the actual redemption price will fluctuate according to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund):

e.g.	Number of Shares to be redeemed	Shares to be		Redemption price	
	1,000 Shares	X	US\$1.10	=	US\$1,100

Notes:

- 1. The above illustration assumes that (i) the Base Currency is US\$ and (ii) the Shareholder has made a redemption of all his Shares in a Fund, or that the Net Asset value of the remaining Shares in a Fund held by the Shareholder after redemption does not fall below the applicable minimum holding.
- 2. The actual redemption price of Shares will fluctuate according to the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund.
- 3. There is currently no redemption charge.

Payment of Redemption Proceeds

Redemption proceeds will be paid to approved distributors or you (as the case may be) as follows:

- Institutional, Investor, Administrative and W Classes: normally on the Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for all Funds, except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated Classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day; and
- H Institutional, M Retail, and E Classes: normally be sent via bank transfer on the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.

<u>unless:</u> (1) any of such Business Days is not a Singapore Business Day; or (2) the redemption of Shares has been suspended, in which case the period within which the redemption proceeds will be paid will be accordingly extended.

Payment will be by telegraphic transfer to the bank account nominated by you or the approved distributor (as the case may be).

Unless you have or the approved distributor has instructed payment of the redemption proceeds in the Base Currency of the Funds or relevant currency denomination of the Share Class, the Depositary will arrange for redemption proceeds to be paid in Singapore dollars at such prevailing exchange rates as shall be determined by the Depositary. The costs and risks of any currency conversion and other related administrative expenses including bank charges will be borne by you.

30066989189-v1 - 126 - 17-40705220

If you have purchased Shares with SRS monies, the redemption proceeds will be paid by transferring the monies to the relevant SRS bank for credit of your SRS Account or otherwise in accordance with the provisions of any applicable laws, regulations or guidelines. Where your SRS Account has been closed, the monies will be paid to you in accordance with this section or otherwise in accordance with any applicable laws, regulations or guidelines.

19. EXCHANGE OF SHARES

You may exchange the Shares of any Class of any Fund for Shares of the same class of another Fund (the "New Shares") provided that no exchange of Shares may be made which would result in you holding less than the Minimum Holding for the relevant Share Class of the Funds.

The exchange will be effected and the New Shares will be issued based on the formula provided in the "HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES" section of the Irish Prospectus. Please refer to this section for more details.

Where you make an exchange of your Class H Institutional Shares, E Class Shares or Class M Retail Shares, the amount of the Preliminary Charge for the New Shares will not be deducted, instead an Exchange Charge of up to 1% of the subscription price for the total number of New Shares may be charged. The Exchange Charge will be added to the Net Asset Value per Share in computing the subscription price of the New Shares.

Applications for exchange of Shares should be submitted to the approved distributors in such form as the Company may prescribe.

20. OBTAINING PRICE INFORMATION

The prices of Shares will be published two Singapore Business Days after the relevant Dealing Day in Reuters and Bloomberg (subject to the respective publisher's discretion) and are also posted on the Singapore Representative's Internet website at www.pimco.com.

You should note that the frequency of the publication of the Share prices is dependent on the publication policies of the publisher concerned. The Company and the Singapore Representative do not accept any responsibility for any errors on the part of the publisher concerned relating to the Share prices published or for any non-publication or late publication of prices and shall incur no liability in respect of any action taken or loss suffered by you in reliance upon such erroneous publication.

21. CALCULATION AND SUSPENSION OF CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value of each Fund and/or each Class will be calculated by the Administrator as at the Valuation Point on, or with respect to, each Dealing Day in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Net Asset Value of a Fund shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by valuing the assets of the relevant Fund (including income accrued but not collected) and

30066989189-v1 - 127 - 17-40705220

deducting the liabilities of the relevant Fund (including a provision for duties and charges, accrued expenses and fees and other liabilities).

The Net Asset Value attributable to a Class shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by calculating that portion of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund attributable to the relevant Class, subject to adjustment to take account of assets and/or liabilities attributable to the Class.

The Net Asset Value of a Fund will be expressed in the Base Currency of the Fund, or in such other currency as the Directors may determine either generally or in relation to a particular Class or in a specific case.

The Net Asset Value per Share shall be calculated as at the Valuation Point on, or with respect to, each Dealing Day by dividing the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund or attributable to a Class by the total number of Shares in issue or deemed to be in issue in the Fund or Class as at the relevant Valuation Point and rounding the resulting total to two decimal places or such other number of decimal places as may be determined by the Directors. Such rounding may result in a benefit to the relevant Fund or Shareholder.

Notwithstanding that subscription monies, redemption monies and dividend amounts will be held in cash accounts in the name of the Company (herein defined as an Umbrella Cash Account) and treated as assets of and attributable to a Fund:-

- (a) any subscription monies received from you prior to the Dealing Day of a Fund in respect of which an application for Shares has been, or is expected to be, received will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund until subsequent to the Valuation Point in respect of the Dealing Day as of which Shares of the Fund are agreed to be issued to that investor;
- (b) any redemption monies payable to you subsequent to the Dealing Day of a Fund as of which Shares of that investor were redeemed will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund; and
- (c) any dividend amount payable to a Shareholder will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund.

Calculation

The Articles provide for the method of valuation of the assets and liabilities of each Fund. The Articles provide that the value of any investment listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be calculated by reference to the closing price or, if bid and offer prices are quoted, at the average of the two prices so quoted at the relevant Valuation Point. Where an investment is listed or dealt in on more than one Regulated Market the relevant exchange or market shall be the principal stock exchange or market on which the investment is listed or dealt on or the exchange or market which the Directors determine provides the fairest criteria in determining a value for the relevant investment. Investments listed or traded on a Regulated Market, but acquired

30066989189-v1 - 128 - 17-40705220

or traded at a premium or at a discount outside or off the relevant exchange or market may be valued taking into account the level of premium or discount at the Valuation Point provided that the Depositary must ensure that the adoption of such a procedure is justifiable in the context of establishing the probable realisation value of the investment.

The Directors may, with the approval of the Depositary, adjust the value of any investment if having regard to its currency, marketability, applicable interest rates, anticipated rates of dividend, maturity, liquidity or any other relevant considerations, they consider that such adjustment is required to reflect the fair value thereof.

Any value expressed otherwise than in the Base Currency of the relevant Fund shall be converted into the Base Currency of the relevant Fund at the exchange rate (whether official or otherwise) which the Directors shall determine to be appropriate.

Where on any Dealing Day (i) the value of all redemption requests received by the Company exceeds the value of all applications for Shares received for that Dealing Day, the Directors may value investments at bid prices or (ii) the value of all applications for Shares received by the Company exceeds the value of all redemption requests received for that Dealing Day, the Directors may value investments at offer prices; provided that the valuation policy selected by the Directors is applied consistently throughout the duration of the Company.

If it is impossible or would be incorrect to carry out a valuation of a specific investment in accordance with the above rules owing to particular circumstances the Directors or their delegate shall use another generally recognised method of valuation which is approved by the Depositary, in order to reach a proper valuation of the total assets of the Company.

Swing Pricing

The underlying securities of a Fund that are listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market are typically valued and priced at the mid or last traded price at the close, but these securities are traded using bid and offer prices. The wider the spreads between these bid and offer prices, the higher the impact on the valuation of a Fund (i.e. the value of the underlying securities of a Fund may be reduced as a result of any spread between the buying and selling and any charges incurred in dealings in the Fund's investments). In the appropriate circumstances and in order to prevent this effect, called "dilution", and the potential adverse effect on the existing or remaining Shareholders, the Directors may implement swing pricing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, swing pricing is implemented by moving the Net Asset Value per Share up or down by a Swing Factor*** depending on

30066989189-v1 - 129 - 17-40705220

-

[&]quot;Swing Factor" is defined in the Irish Prospectus as such amount, as determined by the Directors, by which the Net Asset Value per Share may be adjusted upwards or downwards in order to take account of dealing, transaction related costs (such as fiscal and other costs and charges) which would be payable on the effective acquisition or disposal of assets in the relevant Fund, provided that, for the purpose of calculating the expenses of a Fund which are based on the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Fund, the Administrator will continue to use the un-swung Net Asset Value per Share. Under normal market conditions, the Swing Factor will not exceed 2% of the original Net Asset Value per Share in

the direction of net cash flows for a particular Fund. This adjusted Net Asset Value will then be applied to any subscriptions or redemptions which are received on the relevant Dealing Day. Significant net inflows will cause an upward swing in the Net Asset Value per Share, significant net outflows a downward swing. Swing pricing is implemented by the Company when net cash flows exceed a pre-determined Threshold§§§ set by the Directors, beyond which the Directors believe the amount of dilution caused by transaction related costs could be material to a Fund.

Swing pricing will be at a Fund level rather than Share Class level as transaction related costs are incurred at Fund level. Swing pricing shall be applicable to all Funds unless otherwise stated in the Supplement for the relevant Fund.

Suspension of Dealings

The Directors may at any time declare a temporary suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value and the issue, redemption or exchange of Shares of any Fund during:

- (i) any period when any of the principal markets or stock exchanges on which a substantial portion of the investments of the relevant Fund are quoted or dealt is closed, otherwise than for ordinary holidays, or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended;
- (ii) any period when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Directors, disposal or valuation of investments of the relevant Fund is not reasonably practicable without this being seriously detrimental to the interests of Shareholders of the relevant class or if, in the opinion of the Directors, redemption prices cannot fairly be calculated;
- (iii) any breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of any of the investments of the Funds or other assets or when for any other reason the current prices on any market or stock exchange of any assets of the relevant Fund cannot be promptly and accurately ascertained; or
- (iv) any period during which the Company is unable to repatriate funds required for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of Shares of any Fund from Shareholders or during which the transfer of funds involved in the realisation or acquisition of investments or payments due on redemption of Shares cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be effected at normal prices or normal rates of exchange.

Please refer to the "CALCULATION AND SUSPENSION OF CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE" section above and in the Irish Prospectus for details on

30066989189-v1 - 130 - 17-40705220

any Fund. In exceptional market circumstances, however, this maximum level may be increased up to 5% to protect the interests of Shareholders.

Threshold" is defined in the Irish Prospectus as the threshold amount applicable to "Net Capital Activity" as determined by the Directors from time to time, beyond which threshold amount the Swing Factor shall apply. "Net Capital Activity" means the net cash movement of subscriptions and redemptions into and out of a particular Fund across all Share Classes on a given Dealing Day.

when the calculation of the Net Asset Value of any Fund and the issue, redemption and exchange of Shares may be suspended.

30066989189-v1 - 131 - 17-40705220

22. PERFORMANCE OF THE FUNDS

Past performance of the Funds and their respective benchmarks (as of 30 November 2021)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Asia Strategic Interest	Bond Fund – Accumu	ılation			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (04/09/2020)	-3.96%	-	-	-	-2.43%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Asia	-1.59%	-	-	-	(Class E: -1.02%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Credit Index (JACI)****					
Asia Strategic Interest	Bond Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (01/06/2010)	-3.92%	5.16%	3.53%	2.58%	3.58%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (04/09/2020)	-3.13%	-	-	-	-1.59%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

^{****} The benchmark of the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund changed from the [90% JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI) + 10% 1 month USD Libor] * [JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index (ELMI+)] /[3 month USD Libor] to the JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI), with effect from 31 May 2016, because it was determined (upon the advice of the Investment Advisor) that the JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI) was a more appropriate benchmark in view of the Fund's investment policy and strategy and was consistent with the benchmark used by the Fund to measure relative duration at that time. Although the investment policy of the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund was changed on 28 August 2020, the Investment Advisor has retained JACI as the benchmark for the purposes of illustrating the relative past performance of this Fund.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: JPMorgan Asia Credit Index	-1.59%	5.47%	3.94%	3.67%	(E Class: 4.35%)
(JACI)****	-1.59%	-	-	-	(Institutional: -1.02%)
Asia Strategic Interest	Bond Fund – Income	II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI)****	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Asia Strategic Interest	Bond Fund – Income	A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI)****	-	-	-	-	-
Commodity Real Retur	rn Fund – Accumulat	ion			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (21/09/2007)	33.60%	9.00%	4.44%	-2.83%	-2.56%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (31/08/2006)	34.62%	9.95%	5.36%	-1.97%	-1.17%
Investor (11/08/2011)	34.07%	9.60%	5.01%	-2.31%	-3.09%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
	28.89%	6.05%	3.31%	-3.56%	(E Class: -3.64%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark:	28.89%	6.05%	3.31%	-3.56%	(Institutional:
Bloomberg Commodity Index					-2.83%)
Total Return	28.89%	6.05%	3.31%	-3.56%	(Investor: -4.13%)
Commodity Real Retu	rn Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)	
Commodity Real Retu	rn Fund – Income II					
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-	
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-	
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-	
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-	
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-	
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-	
Benchmark: Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return	-	-	-	-	-	
Commodity Real Return Fund – Income A						
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-	
Benchmark: Bloomberg	-	-	-	-	-	

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)				
Commodity Index Total Return									
Diversified Income Du	Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund – Accumulation								
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-				
E Class (16/08/2013)	1.76%	2.66%	3.16%	-	2.37%				
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-				
Institutional (31/05/2011)	2.71%	3.61%	4.10%	4.21%	3.78%				
Investor (18/02/2014)	2.40%	3.25%	3.75%	-	2.76%				
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-				
Benchmark: 1/3	3.31%	3.53%	3.81%	-	(E Class: 3.22%)				
Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging	3.31%	3.53%	3.81%	4.10%	(Institutional: 3.34%)				
Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed	3.31%	3.53%	3.81%	-	(Investor: 3.20%)				

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged ^{††††}								
Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund – Income								
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class (31/05/2011)	1.79%	2.66%	3.17%	3.31%	2.89%			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional (30/10/2015)	2.71%	3.60%	4.11%	-	4.45%			
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-			

^{††††} The benchmark of the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund changed from the 1/3 each-Barclays Global Aggregate Credit, BofA Merrill Lynch BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global; All USD Hedged to the 1/3 Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, BofA Merrill Lynch BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged, with effect from 10 November 2015, due to the increased inclusion over time of emerging market issuers within the existing Barclays Global Aggregate Credit and BofA Merrill Lynch Global High Yield BB-B Rated Constrained indices which had the effect of increasing the total emerging markets exposure.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	_	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1/3	3.31%	3.53%	3.81%	4.10%	(E Class: 3.34%)
Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged††††	3.31%	3.53%	3.81%	-	(Institutional: 4.13%)
Diversified Income Du	ration Hedged Fund –	Income II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged††††	-	-	-	<u>-</u>	
Diversified Income Du	ration Hedged Fund -	- Income A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged ^{††††}					
Diversified Income Fu	nd – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional (08/06/2011)	0.14%	6.87%	5.60%	5.71%	5.27%
E Class (11/09/2006)	-0.57%	6.08%	4.83%	4.94%	5.52%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (30/06/2005)	0.32%	7.03%	5.77%	5.88%	6.43%
Investor (30/04/2013)	-0.07%	6.66%	5.41%	-	4.13%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
W Class (12/08/2020)	0.39%	-	-	-	2.30%
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(Class H Institutional: 5.32%)
Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(E Class: 6.05%)
Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(Institutional: 6.00%)
Markets High Yield Constrained Index,	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	-	(Investor: 4.29%)
JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged ^{‡‡‡‡}	0.88%	-	-	-	(W Class: 2.18%)
Diversified Income Fur	nd – Income				
Class H Institutional (14/05/2020)	0.23%	-	-	-	7.04%

The benchmark of the Diversified Income Fund changed from the 1/3 each-Barclays Global Aggregate Credit, BofA Merrill Lynch BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global; All USD Hedged to the 1/3 Each-Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, BofA Merrill Lynch BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged, with effect from 10 November 2015, due to the increased inclusion over time of emerging market issuers within the existing Barclays Global Aggregate Credit and BofA Merrill Lynch Global High Yield BB-B Rated Constrained indices which had the effect of increasing the total emerging markets exposure.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (31/07/2006)	-0.59%	6.07%	4.83%	4.94%	5.59%
Class M Retail (30/11/2010)	-0.53%	6.08%	4.84%	4.94%	4.74%
Institutional (08/09/2008)	0.35%	7.04%	5.78%	5.89%	6.75%
Investor (30/04/2013)	-0.07%	6.64%	5.40%	-	4.12%
Administrative (21/07/2011)	-0.16%	6.51%	5.25%	5.36%	4.96%
W Class (12/08/2020)	0.45%	-	-	-	2.30%
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg	0.88%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 7.88%)
Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(E Class: 6.13%)
Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(Class M Retail: 5.48%)
Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(Institutional: 6.36%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Global, All USD Hedged ^{‡‡‡‡}	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	-	(Investor: 4.29%)
Treaged	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	5.61%	(Administrative: 5.33%)
	0.88%	-	-	-	(W Class: 2.18%)
Diversified Income Fur	nd – Income II	·	J		
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (23/12/2013)	-0.62%	6.05%	4.80%	-	4.37%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
W Class*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged ^{‡‡‡‡}	0.88%	6.63%	5.11%	-	(Class M Retail: 4.96%)
Diversified Income Fu	ind – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1/3 Each- Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global, All USD Hedged ^{‡‡‡‡}					
Dynamic Bond Fund -	Accumulation				
Class H Institutional (12/12/2018)	0.64%	-	-	-	3.36%
E Class (11/05/2010)	-0.08%	2.53%	2.54%	1.81%	1.62%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (15/12/2008)	0.82%	3.45%	3.48%	2.73%	3.01%
Investor (24/09/2010)	0.48%	3.10%	3.11%	2.38%	1.99%
Administrative (21/01/2010)	0.29%	2.93%	2.95%	2.22%	2.15%
	0.11%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 1.05%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: 1 Month USD LIBOR Index SSSS	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(E Class: 0.67%)
	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(Institutional: 0.64%)
	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(Investor: 0.68%)
	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(Administrative: 0.66%)
Dynamic Bond Fund –	Income				
Class H Institutional (14/02/2020)	0.56%	-	-	-	2.59%
E Class (11/05/2010)	-0.13%	2.52%	2.54%	1.81%	1.63%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (22/02/2010)	0.78%	3.44%	3.47%	2.73%	2.68%

The benchmark of the Dynamic Bond Fund changed from 1 Month USD LIBOR Index to ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index with effect from 1 July 2022 as a result of the phasing out of the use of the LIBOR by the FCA, which regulates LIBOR. The benchmark performance figures currently disclosed for the various Classes of the Dynamic Bond Fund continue to be based on the prior benchmark and will be updated at the next appropriate opportunity.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor (24/09/2010)	0.39%	3.07%	3.10%	2.37%	1.98%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1 Month USD LIBOR Index ^{§§§§}	0.11%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 0.28%)
maex	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(E Class: 0.67%)
	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(Institutional: 0.66%)
	0.11%	1.07%	1.22%	0.73%	(Investor: 0.68%)
Dynamic Bond Fund –	Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1 Month USD LIBOR Index ^{§§§§}	-	-	-	-	-
Dynamic Bond Fund -	- Income A		,		
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 1 Month USD LIBOR Index ^{§§§§}	-	-	-	-	-
Dynamic Multi-Asset	Fund – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (25/02/2016)	4.04%	6.60%	4.65%	-	4.84%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (25/02/2016)	5.13%	7.66%	5.73%	-	5.93%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor (14/08/2020)	4.70%	-	-	-	7.03%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofA ESTR	-0.56%	-0.48%	-0.43%	-	(E Class: -0.42%)
Overnight Rate Index*****	-0.56%	-0.48%	-0.43%	-	(Institutional: -0.42%)
	-0.56%	-	-	-	(Investor: -0.55%)
Dynamic Multi-Asset l	Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (10/09/2020)	4.10%	-	-	-	7.47%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-

^{*****} The benchmark of the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund was changed from the 1 Month Euribor Rate to the ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index, with effect from 1 July 2021, because it was determined (upon the advice of the Investment Advisor) that the ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index was a more appropriate benchmark as it is expected to become the main reference rate for Euro cash markets over time.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index*****	-0.56%	-	-	-	(E Class: -0.56%)
Dynamic Multi-Asset I	Fund – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (25/02/2016)	5.09%	7.66%	5.72%	-	5.93%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofA ESTR	-0.56%	-0.48%	-0.43%	-	(Institutional:

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Overnight Rate Index*****					-0.42%)
Dynamic Multi-Asset	Fund – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index******	-	-	-	-	-
Emerging Local Bond	Fund – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional (26/02/2021)	-	-	-	-	-6.40%
E Class (19/11/2008)	-7.31%	2.02%	2.21%	-0.94%	2.99%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (11/12/2007)	-6.35%	3.04%	3.25%	0.06%	2.05%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor (18/08/2010)	-6.69%	2.73%	2.90%	-0.27%	0.04%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Government Bond	-	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: -6.67%)
Index – Emerging Markets Global	-7.02%	1.98%	2.88%	0.44%	(E Class: 4.10%)
Diversified Index (Unhedged)	-7.02%	1.98%	2.88%	0.44%	(Institutional: 2.31%)
	-7.02%	1.98%	2.88%	0.44%	(Investor: 0.73%)
Emerging Local Bond	Fund – Income		I		
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (08/07/2010)	-7.19%	2.07%	2.22%	-0.93%	-0.20%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (18/04/2008)	-6.34%	3.04%	3.26%	0.06%	1.82%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark:	-7.02%	1.98%	2.88%	0.44%	(E Class: 1.14%)
JPMorgan Government Bond Index – Emerging Markets Global Diversified Index (Unhedged)	-7.02%	1.98%	2.88%	0.44%	(Institutional: 2.14%)
Emerging Local Bond	Fund – Income II		l		
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: JPMorgan Government Bond Index – Emerging Markets Global Diversified Index (Unhedged)	-	-	-	-	-
Emerging Local Bond Investor*	Fund – Income A	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Government Bond Index – Emerging Markets Global Diversified Index (Unhedged)	-	-	-	-	-
Emerging Markets Bo	nd Fund – Accumulati	on	L		
Class H Institutional (17/10/2002)	-1.91%	6.40%	4.99%	4.64%	8.19%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (31/03/2006)	-2.63%	5.62%	4.23%	3.89%	4.95%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (31/07/2001)	-1.74%	6.58%	5.17%	4.82%	8.61%
Investor (25/04/2002)	-2.09%	6.21%	4.80%	4.46%	7.21%
Administrative (29/05/2003)	-2.25%	6.05%	4.65%	4.30%	6.14%
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Class H Institutional: 8.12%)
(EMBI) Global	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(E Class: 6.16%)
	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Institutional: 7.79%)
	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Investor: 7.64%)
	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Administrative: 6.88%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Emerging Markets Bor	nd Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional (03/09/2020)	-1.91%	-	-	-	-0.44%
E Class (28/10/2005)	-2.59%	5.64%	4.21%	3.88%	5.09%
Class M Retail (30/11/2010)	-2.59%	5.61%	4.23%	3.89%	3.96%
Institutional (13/12/2001)	-1.76%	6.58%	5.17%	4.82%	7.96%
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index	-1.15%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: -0.41%)
(EMBI) Global	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(E Class: 6.34%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Class M Retail: 5.10%)
	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	4.93%	(Institutional: 7.87%)
Emerging Markets Bor	nd Fund – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (23/12/2013)	-2.80%	5.59%	4.23%	-	3.65%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging	-1.15%	6.08%	4.47%	-	(Class M Retail: 4.71%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global					
Emerging Markets Bo	nd Fund – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index (EMBI) Global	-	-	-	-	-
Emerging Markets Con	rporate Bond Fund –	Accumulation			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (27/02/2012)	-0.37%	4.59%	4.08%	-	3.19%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (12/11/2009)	0.57%	5.55%	5.03%	4.57%	4.90%
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Corporate	1.35%	7.13%	5.45%	-	(E Class: 5.39%)
Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified	1.35%	7.13%	5.45%	5.90%	(Institutional: 6.21%)
Emerging Markets Con	rporate Bond Fund –	Income			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Corporate Emerging Markets	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Bond Index Diversified					
Emerging Markets Co	rporate Bond Fund –	Income II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Emerging Markets Co	rporate Bond Fund –	Income A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified	-	-	-	-	-
Emerging Markets Sho	ort-Term Local Curre	ncy Fund – Accumulat	tion		
Class H Institutional	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (19/11/2008)	-2.92%	0.74%	1.60%	-0.26%	1.42%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged)	-2.44%	0.98%	2.08%	0.16%	(E Class: 1.51%)
Emerging Markets Sho	ort-Term Local Curre	ncy Fund – Income			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged)	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Emerging Markets Sho	ort-Term Local Curre	ncy Fund – Income II						
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged)	-	-	-	-	-			
Emerging Markets Sho	Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund – Income A							
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: JPMorgan Emerging	-	-	-	-	-			

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged)					
Euro Bond Fund – Acc	umulation				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (31/03/2006)	-3.34%	1.88%	1.42%	3.74%	2.97%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (31/12/1998)	-2.45%	2.81%	2.34%	4.68%	4.32%
Investor (08/05/2002)	-2.81%	2.45%	1.98%	4.31%	4.07%
Administrative (07/06/2001)	-2.95%	2.28%	1.84%	4.16%	3.92%
Benchmark: FTSE	-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(E Class: 3.81%)
Euro Broad Investment-Grade Index	-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(Institutional: 4.11%)
	-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(Investor: 4.25%)

1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(Administrative: 4.30%)
ome				
-	-	-	-	-
-3.37%	1.88%	1.42%	3.75%	2.70%
-	-	-	-	-
-2.40%	2.81%	2.36%	4.69%	4.14%
-	-	-	-	-
-	-	-	-	-
-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(E Class: 3.56%)
-1.53%	2.99%	1.95%	4.01%	(Institutional: 3.95%)
	-1.53% ome -3.37%2.40% -1.53%	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%) -1.53% 2.99% ome	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%) (average annual compounded return) (%) -1.53% 2.99% 1.95% ome - - -3.37% 1.88% 1.42% - - - -2.40% 2.81% 2.36% - - - -	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%) (average annual compounded return) (%) (average annual compounded return) (%) -1.53% 2.99% 1.95% 4.01%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Euro Bond Fund – Inc	ome II							
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: FTSE Euro Broad Investment-Grade Index	-	-	-	-	-			
Euro Bond Fund – Inc	Euro Bond Fund – Income A							
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: FTSE Euro Broad	-	-	-	-	-			

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investment-Grade					
Index					
Global Advantage Fun	d – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (09/06/2009)	-1.68%	4.71%	4.12%	2.17%	3.42%
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close)	-1.99%	4.33%	3.70%	1.80%	(Institutional: 2.96%)
Global Advantage Fun	d – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close)	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Global Advantage Fun	d – Income II							
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close)	-	-	-	-	-			
Global Advantage Fun	Global Advantage Fund – Income A							
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: PIMCO Global Advantage	-	-	-	-	-			

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close)					
Global Bond Ex-US Fu	ınd - Accumulation				ı
Class H Institutional (12/12/2018)	-0.36%	-	-	-	3.96%
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (31/03/2003)	-0.20%	4.18%	3.77%	5.23%	5.01%
Investor (28/02/2006)	-0.55%	3.81%	3.40%	4.86%	4.78%
Administrative (14/09/2004)	-0.70%	3.67%	3.26%	4.71%	4.71%
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global	-0.46%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 3.74%)
Aggregate ex-USD	-0.46%	3.89%	3.30%	4.13%	(Institutional: 4.03%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
(USD Hedged) Index ^{†††††}	-0.46%	3.89%	3.30%	4.13%	(Investor: 4.06%)
	-0.46%	3.89%	3.30%	4.13%	(Administrative: 4.20%)
Global Bond Ex-US Fu	ınd - Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (30/04/2008)	-1.05%	3.24%	2.84%	4.29%	4.44%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (09/11/2005)	-0.15%	4.19%	3.77%	5.23%	5.18%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

titit The benchmark of the Global Bond Ex-US Fund changed from Citigroup World Government Bond Ex U.S. Index to Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD Index, with effect from 20 January 2016, because it has been determined that the Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD Index is a more appropriate benchmark in view of the Fund's investment policy and strategy.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark:	-0.46%	3.89%	3.30%	4.13%	(E Class: 4.04%)
Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD (USD Hedged) Index ^{†††††}	-0.46%	3.89%	3.30%	4.13%	(Institutional: 4.10%)
Global Bond Ex-US Fu	ınd – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD (USD Hedged) Index†††††	-	-	-	-	-
Global Bond Ex-US Fo	und – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD (USD Hedged) Index ^{†††††}	-	-	-	-	-
Global Bond Fund - A	ccumulation				
Class H Institutional (15/10/2002)	-0.86%	4.92%	3.94%	4.65%	4.97%
E Class (31/03/2006)	-1.59%	4.16%	3.19%	3.89%	4.24%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (12/03/1998)	-0.69%	5.10%	4.12%	4.83%	5.52%
Investor (01/03/1999)	-1.02%	4.74%	3.76%	4.47%	5.02%
Administrative (14/06/2004)	-1.20%	4.58%	3.60%	4.30%	4.68%
W Class (12/08/2020)	-0.59%	-	-	-	0.84%
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate (USD	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Class H Institutional: 4.17%)
Hedged) Index	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(E Class: 4.18%)
	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Institutional: 4.76%)
	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Investor: 4.59%)
	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Administrative: 4.28%)
	-0.69%	-	-	-	(W Class: -0.08%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Global Bond Fund - In	come		1		
Class H Institutional (14/02/2020)	-0.89%	-	-	-	2.17%
E Class (28/10/2005)	-1.59%	4.14%	3.18%	3.88%	4.18%
Class M Retail	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (18/04/2001)	-0.69%	5.11%	4.12%	4.83%	5.26%
Investor (23/01/2001)	-1.07%	4.72%	3.74%	4.46%	4.89%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
W Class (12/08/2020)	-0.58%	-	-	-	0.81%
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global	-0.69%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 1.50%)
Aggregate (USD Hedged) Index	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(E Class: 4.12%)
	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Institutional: 4.37%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
	-0.69%	4.70%	3.53%	3.69%	(Investor: 4.41%)
	-0.69%	-	-	-	(W Class: -0.08%)
Global Bond Fund – In	come II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (26/04/2017)	-1.53%	4.16%	-	-	3.07%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
W Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate (USD Hedged) Index	-0.69%	4.70%	-	-	(Class M Retail: 3.57%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Global Bond Fund – In	icome A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate (USD Hedged) Index	-	-	_	-	-
Global High Yield Bond	d Fund - Accumulati	on			
Class H Institutional (29/08/2008)	2.86%	6.22%	5.35%	6.39%	6.74%
E Class (11/09/2006)	2.10%	5.45%	4.58%	5.61%	5.57%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (30/06/2005)	3.01%	6.39%	5.52%	6.56%	6.55%
Investor (22/06/2016)	2.68%	6.04%	5.16%	-	5.51%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative (27/06/2008)	2.51%	5.86%	5.00%	6.03%	6.25%
Benchmark: ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(Class H Institutional: 7.69%)
Markets High Yield Constrained Index	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(E Class: 7.00%)
Hedged into USD	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(Institutional: 6.92%)
	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	-	(Investor: 6.37%)
	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(Administrative: 7.51%)
Global High Yield Bon	d Fund - Income				
Class H Institutional (22/03/2013)	2.78%	6.20%	5.33%	-	4.92%
E Class (31/07/2006)	2.06%	5.44%	4.57%	5.61%	5.64%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail (30/11/2010)	2.08%	5.43%	4.57%	5.61%	5.22%
Institutional (30/12/2005)	3.09%	6.40%	5.52%	6.57%	6.59%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative (11/12/2015) ^{‡‡‡‡‡}	2.55%	5.87%	5.01%	-	5.94%
Benchmark: ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	-	(Class H Institutional: 5.52%)
Markets High Yield	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(E Class: 7.08%)
Constrained Index Hedged into USD	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(Class M Retail: 6.67%)
	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	7.04%	(Institutional: 7.00%)

^{******} This share class closed on 26 May 2015 and reopened on 11 December 2015.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	-	(Administrative: 6.99%)
Global High Yield Bon	d Fund – Income II				<u> </u>
Class H Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (23/12/2013)	2.10%	5.43%	4.55%	-	4.14%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index Hedged into USD	4.13%	7.14%	6.04%	-	(Class M Retail: 5.54%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Global High Yield Bon	d Fund – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index Hedged into USD	-	-	-	-	-
Global Investment Gra	de Credit Fund - Acc	umulation			
Class H Institutional (29/08/2008)	-0.82%	5.60%	4.45%	4.98%	5.66%
E Class (10/12/2008)	-1.56%	4.84%	3.69%	4.21%	5.68%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (18/04/2008)	-0.68%	5.79%	4.64%	5.15%	5.64%
Investor (15/02/2005)	-1.03%	5.41%	4.27%	4.79%	4.94%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative (21/01/2009)	-1.15%	5.28%	4.12%	4.63%	5.89%
W Class (12/08/2020)	-0.59%	-	-	-	1.30%
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Class H Institutional: 5.14%)
Index (USD Hedged)	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(E Class: 5.69%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Institutional: 5.03%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Investor: 4.63%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Administrative: 5.52%)
	-0.36%	-	-	-	(W Class: 0.83%)
Global Investment Gra	de Credit Fund – In	come			I
Class H Institutional (25/05/2018)	-0.88%	5.61%	-	-	4.65%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (30/04/2008)	-1.56%	4.84%	3.69%	4.21%	4.64%
Class M Retail (28/09/2012)	-1.53%	4.84%	3.70%	-	3.30%
Institutional (23/07/2003)	-0.65%	5.80%	4.63%	5.16%	5.49%
Investor (22/01/2009)	-1.01%	5.42%	4.26%	4.79%	6.06%
Administrative (21/01/2009)	-1.20%	5.25%	4.10%	4.63%	5.89%
W Class (12/08/2020)	-0.59%	-	-	-	1.29%
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit	-0.36%	6.55%	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 5.56%)
Index (USD Hedged)	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(E Class: 4.98%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	-	(Class M Retail: 4.05%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Institutional: 4.68%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Investor: 5.54%)
	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	4.76%	(Administrative: 5.52%)
	-0.36%	-	-	-	(W Class: 0.83%)
Global Investment Gra	nde Credit Fund – Inc	ome II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (23/12/2013)	-1.58%	4.86%	3.71%	-	3.75%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
W Class*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit Index (USD Hedged)	-0.36%	6.55%	4.75%	-	(Class M Retail: 4.51%)
Global Investment Gra	ade Credit Fund – Inc	ome A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit Index (USD Hedged)	-	-	-	-	-
Global Real Return Fu	nd - Accumulation		-		
Class H Institutional (21/05/2004)	7.10%	8.91%	5.94%	4.81%	5.26%
E Class (31/03/2006)	6.31%	8.11%	5.15%	4.05%	4.45%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (30/09/2003)	7.33%	9.09%	6.11%	4.99%	5.42%
Investor (04/03/2004)	6.91%	8.71%	5.73%	4.62%	4.90%
Administrative (17/12/2004)	6.77%	8.54%	5.58%	4.47%	4.69%
Benchmark: Bloomberg World Government	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Class H Institutional: 5.28%)
Inflation-Linked	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(E Class: 5.24%)
Bond Index	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Institutional: 5.24%)
	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Investor: 5.17%)
	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Administrative: 5.06%)
Global Real Return Fu	nd - Income				1
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (28/10/2005)	6.32%	8.09%	5.15%	4.05%	4.30%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (30/12/2005)	7.28%	9.08%	6.10%	4.99%	5.20%
Investor (24/02/2009)	6.95%	8.69%	5.74%	4.62%	5.92%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark:	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(E Class: 5.11%)
Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Institutional: 5.04%)
Bond Index	7.86%	8.80%	5.95%	4.77%	(Investor: 5.61%)
Global Real Return Fu	nd – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond Index	-	-	-	-	-
Global Real Return Fu	und – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond Index	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Income Fund – Accum	ulation				
Class H Institutional (25/05/2018)	2.87%	5.79%	-	-	4.92%
E Class (30/11/2012)	2.16%	5.00%	4.12%	-	5.05%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (30/11/2012)	3.05%	5.96%	5.06%	-	5.99%
Investor (20/01/2015)	2.68%	5.58%	4.69%	-	4.77%
Administrative (13/02/2017)	2.52%	5.42%	-	-	4.27%
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S.	-1.15%	5.52%	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 4.75%)
Aggregate Index	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(E Class: 2.76%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(Institutional: 2.76%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(Investor: 2.89%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	-	-	(Administrative: 3.70%)
Income Fund – Income	;				I
Class H Institutional (25/05/2018)	2.78%	5.76%	-	-	4.89%
E Class (30/11/2012)	2.06%	4.97%	4.11%	-	5.04%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (30/11/2012)	3.02%	5.94%	5.05%	-	5.99%
Investor (18/04/2013)	2.67%	5.56%	4.68%	-	4.69%
Administrative (30/11/2012)	2.44%	5.41%	4.52%	-	5.46%
	-1.15%	5.52%	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 4.75%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S.	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(E Class: 2.76%)
Aggregate Index	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(Institutional: 2.76%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(Investor: 2.81%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	-	(Administrative: 2.76%)
Income Fund – Income	e II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	-
Income Fund – Incom	e A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	-
Income Fund – Incom	e Q				
E Class (30/09/2019)	2.10%	-	-	-	3.77%
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-1.15%	-	-	-	(E Class: 2.86%)
Income Fund II – Acc	umulation				L
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (29/01/2021)	-	-	-	-	0.80%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	(Institutional: -0.58%)
Income Fund II – Inco	ome				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (29/01/2021)	-	-	-	-	0.02%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (29/01/2021)	-	-	-	-	0.77%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S.	-	-	-	-	(E Class: -0.58%)
Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	(Institutional: -0.58%)
Income Fund II – Inco	ome II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Income Fund II – Inco	me A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	_	-	-	-
Inflation Multi-Asset F	Fund – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (14/02/2013)	11.34%	6.44%	3.74%	-	0.35%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (14/02/2013)	12.57%	7.75%	5.00%	-	1.56%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
	13.66%	6.83%	4.82%	-	(E Class: 1.57%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: 45% Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1- 30yrs Index (USD hedged), 15% Bloomberg Emerging Market Government ILB Index (USD unhedged), 10% Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, 10% FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged), 15% Alerian MLP Total Return Index and 5% Bloomberg Gold	13.66%	6.83%	4.82%	-	(Institutional: 1.57%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Subindex Total					
Return Index§§§§§					
Inflation Multi-Asset I	Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

The benchmark of the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund changed from [45% Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1-30yrs Index (USD hedged), 15% Bloomberg Emerging Market Government ILB Index (USD unhedged), 10% Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, 10% FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged), 15% Alerian MLP Total Return Index and 5% Bloomberg Gold Subindex Total Return Index] to [45% Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1-30yrs Index (USD hedged), 15% JP Morgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged), 20% Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, 10% FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged) and 10% Bloomberg Gold Subindex Total Return Index] with effect from 13 April 2022 to align the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund more suitably with PIMCO's U.S. flagship strategy, the PIMCO Inflation Response Multi-Asset Fund. The benchmark performance figures currently disclosed for the various Classes of the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund continue to be based on the prior benchmark and will be updated at the next appropriate opportunity.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	(% change)	(average annual compounded return) (%)	(average annual compounded return) (%)	(average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: 45%	-	-	-	-	-
Bloomberg Global					
Inflation Linked 1-					
30yrs Index (USD					
hedged), 15%					
Bloomberg Emerging					
Market Government					
ILB Index (USD					
unhedged), 10%					
Bloomberg					
Commodity Total					
Return Index, 10%					
FTSE NAREIT					
Global Real Estate					
Developed Total					
Return Index (USD					
unhedged), 15% Alerian MLP Total					
Return Index and 5%					
Bloomberg Gold					
Subindex Total					
Return Index SSSSSS					

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 45% Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1- 30yrs Index (USD hedged), 15% Bloomberg Emerging Market Government ILB Index (USD unhedged), 10% Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, 10% FTSE NAREIT	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged), 15%					
Alerian MLP Total Return Index and 5% Bloomberg Gold					
Subindex Total Return Index **STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PR					
Inflation Multi-Asset l	Fund – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 45% Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1- 30yrs Index (USD hedged), 15% Bloomberg Emerging Market Government ILB Index (USD unhedged), 10% Bloomberg Commodity Total	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Return Index, 10% FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged), 15% Alerian MLP Total Return Index and 5% Bloomberg Gold Subindex Total Return Index§55555					
Low Average Duration	n Fund - Accumulation	1			
Class H Institutional (04/11/2009)	-0.72%	2.17%	1.56%	1.65%	1.76%
E Class (21/09/2007)	-1.46%	1.42%	0.85%	0.93%	1.60%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (05/12/2002)	-0.55%	2.34%	1.76%	1.84%	2.64%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor (13/05/2004)	-0.90%	1.98%	1.41%	1.47%	2.36%
Administrative (08/09/2004)	-1.05%	1.84%	1.26%	1.33%	2.16%
Benchmark: ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Class H Institutional: 1.23%)
U.S. Heasury muck	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(E Class: 1.76%)
	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Institutional: 2.03%)
	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Investor: 2.07%)
	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Administrative: 2.03%)
Low Average Duration	Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional (12/12/2018)	-0.74%	-	-	-	2.19%
E Class (28/10/2005)	-1.52%	1.41%	0.84%	0.91%	1.86%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (05/12/2002)	-0.62%	2.33%	1.74%	1.83%	2.63%
Investor (03/07/2003)	-0.88%	1.98%	1.41%	1.48%	2.21%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofAML 1-3 Year	-0.26%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 2.34%)
U.S. Treasury Index	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(E Class: 2.12%)
	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Institutional: 2.03%)
	-0.26%	2.37%	1.67%	1.12%	(Investor: 1.98%)
Low Average Duration	Fund – Income II	1		<u> </u>	1
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index Low Average Duration	- n Fund – Income A	-	-	-	-			
	I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	T	Γ					
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index	-	-	-	-	-			
Low Duration Global	Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund - Accumulation							
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class ⁺	-	-	-	-	-			

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (28/02/2014)	-0.17%	3.07%	2.68%	-	2.49%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 years Index (USD Hedged)	0.18%	3.69%	2.95%	-	(Institutional: 2.61%)
Low Duration Global I	investment Grade Cre	edit Fund - Income			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (22/06/2021)	-	-	-	-	-1.27%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 years Index (USD Hedged)	-	-	-	-	(Institutional: -0.32%)
Low Duration Global 1	Investment Grade Cre	dit Fund – Income II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional *	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 years Index (USD Hedged)	-	-	-	-	-
Low Duration Global	Investment Grade Cro	edit Fund – Income A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 years Index (USD Hedged)	-	-	-	-	-
Low Duration Income	Fund – Accumulation				
Class H Institutional (03/09/2020)	2.15%	-	-	-	3.45%
E Class (31/05/2018)	1.40%	2.78%	-	-	2.44%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (31/05/2018)	2.37%	3.67%	-	-	3.32%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate 1-3 Years Index	-0.21%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: -0.12%)
muex	-0.21%	2.50%	-	-	(E Class: 2.36%)
	-0.21%	2.50%	-	-	(Institutional: 2.36%)
Low Duration Income	Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (14/09/2018)	1.39%	2.77%	-	-	2.51%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (31/05/2018)	2.37%	3.71%	-	-	3.33%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark:	-0.21%	2.50%	-	-	(E Class: 2.49%)
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate 1-3 Years Index	-0.21%	2.50%	-	-	(Institutional: 2.36%)
Low Duration Income	Fund – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate 1-3 Years Index	-	-	-	-	-
Low Duration Income	Fund – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate 1-3 Years Index	-	-	-	-	-
PIMCO Asia High Yie	eld Bond Fund – Accu	mulation			L
Class H Institutional (12/3/2021)	-	-	-	-	-10.00%
E Class (01/07/2020)	-9.06%	-	-	-	-2.56%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (14/02/2019)	-8.21%	-	-	-	1.41%
Investor (25/05/2021)	-	-	-	-	-12.00%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: -10.42%)
Index	-8.44%	-	-	-	(E Class: -3.01%)
	-8.44%	-	-	-	(Institutional: 0.69%)
	-	-	-	-	(Investor: -12.48%)
PIMCO Asia High Yio	eld Bond Fund – Incon	ne			1
Class H Institutional (12/3/2021)	-	-	-	-	-9.96%
E Class (14/02/2019)	-8.99%	-	-	-	0.52%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (14/02/2019)	-8.16%	-	-	-	1.43%
Investor (20/08/2020)	-8.55%	-	-	-	-5.31%
Administrative (14/02/2019)	-8.63%	-	-	-	0.92%
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: -10.42%)
muex	-8.44%	-	-	-	(E Class: 0.69%)
	-8.44%	-	-	-	(Institutional: 0.69%)
	-8.44%	-	-	-	(Investor: -6.05%)
	-8.44%	-	-	-	(Administrative: 0.69%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
PIMCO Asia High Yie	eld Bond Fund – Incon	ne II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (14/02/2019)	-9.00%	-	-	-	0.51%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-8.44%	-	-	-	(Class M Retail: 0.69%)
PIMCO Asia High Yie	eld Bond Fund – Incon	ne A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-	-	-	-	-
PIMCO Capital Secur	ities Fund - Accumula	ntion			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (18/10/2013)	3.85%	8.12%	6.13%	-	5.47%
Institutional (31/07/2013)	4.71%	9.08%	7.08%	-	6.72%
Investor (19/05/2014)	4.35%	8.69%	6.70%	-	5.41%
Administrative (09/08/2013)	4.20%	8.54%	6.54%	-	6.11%
Benchmark:	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(E Class: 1.02%)
	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Institutional: 1.00%)
	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Investor: 1.08%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
3 Month USD LIBOR*****	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Administrative: 1.00%)
PIMCO Capital Secur	ities Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (19/05/2014)	3.83%	8.10%	6.12%	-	4.86%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (23/09/2014)	4.75%	9.09%	7.06%	-	5.94%
Investor (19/05/2014)	4.40%	8.70%	6.71%	-	5.42%
Administrative (09/08/2013)	4.20%	8.54%	6.54%	-	6.10%
Benchmark:	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(E Class: 1.08%)

^{******} The benchmark of the PIMCO Capital Securities Fund changed from 3 Month USD LIBOR to ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index with effect from 1 July 2022 to as a result of the phasing out of the use of the LIBOR by the FCA, which regulates LIBOR. The benchmark performance figures currently disclosed for the various Classes of the PIMCO Capital Securities Fund continue to be based on the prior benchmark and will be updated at the next appropriate opportunity.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
3 Month USD LIBOR*****	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Institutional: 1.12%)
	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Investor: 1.08%)
	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	-	(Administrative: 1.00%)
PIMCO Capital Secur	ities Fund – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail (23/12/2013)	3.83%	8.10%	6.13%	-	5.23%
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Benchmark: 3 Month USD LIBOR*****	0.19%	1.28%	1.42%	_	(Class M Retail: 1.04%)
PIMCO Capital Secur	rities Fund – Income A				L
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 3 Month USD LIBOR******	-	_	-	-	-
PIMCO Climate Bond	 Fund – Accumulation	1			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (23/09/2020)	-0.59%	-	-	-	0.67%
Investor (01/06/2021)	-	-	-	-	-0.30%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg MSCI Green Bond Index	-1.09%	-	-	-	(Institutional: 0.09%)
USD Hedged	-	-	-	-	(Investor: 1.38%)
PIMCO Climate Bond	Fund – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg MSCI	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Green Bond Index USD Hedged								
PIMCO Climate Bond	Fund – Income II	L						
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-			
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: Bloomberg MSCI Green Bond Index USD Hedged	-	-	-	-	-			
PIMCO Climate Bond	PIMCO Climate Bond Fund – Income A							
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			

1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
-	-	-	-	-
Fund – Accumulation				
-	-	-	-	-
-	-	-	-	-0.50%
-	-	-	-	0.10%
-	-	-	-	-
-	-	-	-	-
-	-	-	-	(E Class: 1.45%) (Institutional: 1.45%)
	(% change) -	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%)	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%) - - - - - - - - - - - - -	(% change) (average annual compounded return) (%) (average annual compounded return) (%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (29/04/2021)	-	-	-	-	-0.46%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (29/04/2021)	-	-	-	-	0.07%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark:	-	-	-	-	(E Class: 1.45%)
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index	-	-	-	-	(Institutional: 1.45%)
PIMCO ESG Income	Fund – Income II				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)			
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index	-	-	-	-	-			
PIMCO ESG Income	Fund – Income A	,						
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-			
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index	-	-	-	-	-			
PIMCO Global Core	PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund – Accumulation							
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-			

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (22/06/2009)	10.37%	10.00%	8.16%	4.30%	5.33%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (15/04/2009)	11.70%	11.33%	9.48%	5.55%	6.86%
Investor (24/09/2010)	11.27%	10.92%	9.09%	5.19%	4.96%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 60% MSCI All Country	11.00%	11.74%	9.98%	8.48%	(E Class: 8.73%)
World Index / 40% Bloomberg Global	11.00%	11.74%	9.98%	8.48%	(Institutional: 9.14%)
Aggregate USD Hedged	11.00%	11.74%	9.98%	8.48%	(Investor: 7.74%)
PIMCO Global Core A	Asset Allocation Fund	l - Income			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (28/01/2011)	10.40%	9.99%	8.17%	4.30%	3.86%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 60% MSCI All Country World Index / 40% Bloomberg Global Aggregate USD Hedged	11.00%	11.74%	9.98%	8.48%	(E Class: 7.47%)
PIMCO Global Core A	Asset Allocation Fund	– Income II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-	-	-	-	-
PIMCO Global Core A	Asset Allocation Fund	- Income A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: JPMorgan JACI Non- Investment Grade Index	-	-	-	-	-
StocksPLUS TM Fund -	- Accumulation				L
Class H Institutional (08/01/2020)	26.97%	-	-	-	21.03%
E Class (11/09/2006)	26.08%	19.31%	16.64%	15.49%	9.96%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Institutional (31/12/1998)	27.24%	20.38%	17.70%	16.52%	7.92%
Investor (07/01/1999)	26.80%	19.96%	17.29%	16.14%	7.41%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: S&P 500 Index	27.37%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 20.97%)
	27.37%	19.75%	17.25%	15.47%	(E Class: 10.17%)
	27.37%	19.75%	17.25%	15.47%	(Institutional: 7.29%)
	27.37%	19.75%	17.25%	15.47%	(Investor: 7.15%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
StocksPLUS TM Fund –	Income	•			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (22/11/2001)	27.25%	20.39%	17.69%	16.53%	9.37%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: S&P 500 Index	27.37%	19.75%	17.25%	15.47%	(Institutional: 8.67%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)				
StocksPLUS TM Fund –	Income II								
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-				
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-				
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-				
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-				
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-				
Benchmark: S&P 500 Index	-	-	_	_	-				
StocksPLUS TM Fund -	StocksPLUS TM Fund – Income A								
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-				
Benchmark: S&P 500 Index	-	-	-	-	-				

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Strategic Income Fund	- Accumulation				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (16/12/2013)	5.43%	4.90%	4.48%	-	4.30%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (14/03/2018)	6.36%	5.83%	-	-	4.32%
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 75%	4.63%	7.95%	6.43%	-	(E Class: 5.55%)
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and 25% MSCI World Index Net USD††††††	4.63%	7.95%	-	-	(Institutional: 6.38%)

The benchmark of the Strategic Income Fund changed from 75% Bloomberg Barclays Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and 25% MSCI All Country World Index Net USD to 75% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and 25% MSCI World Index Net USD, with effect from 27 July 2016, because it has been determined

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Strategic Income Fund	l – Income				
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 75% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and	-	-	-	-	-

that the MSCI World Index Net USD is a more appropriate benchmark in view of the Fund's investment policy and strategy. The benchmark was then changed to 75% Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index and 25% MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index, with effect from 29 July 2022, because the Investment Advisor determined that it is a more appropriate benchmark for the Investment Advisor's proprietary equity income strategy employed from that date. The benchmark performance figures currently disclosed for the various Classes of the Strategic Income Fund continue to be based on the benchmark prior to 29 July 2022 and will be updated at the next appropriate opportunity.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
25% MSCI World Index Net USD******					
Strategic Income Fund	- Income II				I
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (16/12/2013)	5.35%	4.87%	4.47%	-	4.29%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Investor ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 75% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and 25% MSCI World Index Net USD******	4.63%	7.95%	6.43%	-	(E Class: 5.55%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Strategic Income Fund	l – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: 75% Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index Hedged USD and 25% MSCI World Index Net USD******	<u>-</u>	-	-	<u>-</u>	-
Total Return Bond Fu	nd – Accumulation				L
Class H Institutional (15/10/2002)	-1.23%	5.74%	3.95%	3.52%	4.60%
E Class (31/03/2006)	-1.92%	4.98%	3.20%	2.77%	3.92%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (31/01/1998)	-1.05%	5.92%	4.13%	3.70%	5.28%
Investor (28/01/1999)	-1.38%	5.56%	3.78%	3.34%	4.74%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Administrative (16/05/2003)	-1.52%	5.39%	3.62%	3.18%	3.97%
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Class H Institutional: 4.17%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(E Class: 4.25%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Institutional: 4.74%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Investor: 4.60%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Administrative: 3.93%)
Total Return Bond Fu	nd – Income				,
Class H Institutional (25/05/2018)	-1.21%	5.73%	-	-	4.80%
E Class (10/10/2005)	-1.93%	4.97%	3.21%	2.78%	3.78%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (25/04/2000)	-1.05%	5.93%	4.13%	3.70%	5.34%
Investor (23/10/2000)	-1.41%	5.55%	3.77%	3.34%	4.77%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-1.15%	5.52%	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 4.75%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(E Class: 4.12%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Institutional: 4.82%)
	-1.15%	5.52%	3.65%	3.04%	(Investor: 4.65%)
Total Return Bond Fu	nd – Income II		<u> </u>		<u> </u>
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	-
Total Return Bond Fu	ınd – Income A				
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Index	-	-	-	-	-
US High Yield Bond F	und – Accumulation	_I			
Class H Institutional (15/10/2002)	4.02%	6.38%	5.58%	6.38%	7.34%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (31/03/2006)	3.30%	5.62%	4.82%	5.60%	5.08%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (28/05/1998)	4.19%	6.56%	5.76%	6.56%	6.08%
Investor (18/03/1999)	3.82%	6.19%	5.39%	6.19%	5.74%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofAML U.S. High Yield Constrained	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(Class H Institutional: 7.92%)
Index	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(E Class: 6.73%)
	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(Institutional: 6.24%)
	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(Investor: 6.42%)
US High Yield Bond Fu	und - Income				
Class H Institutional (14/02/2020)	3.96%	-	-	-	3.60%

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
E Class (31/07/2006)	3.24%	5.61%	4.81%	5.60%	5.18%
Class M Retail (11/01/2012)	3.29%	5.59%	4.78%	-	5.23%
Institutional (23/01/2001)	4.24%	6.54%	5.76%	6.56%	6.49%
Investor (14/01/1999)	3.91%	6.19%	5.39%	6.20%	5.71%
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: ICE BofAML U.S. High Yield Constrained	5.38%	-	-	-	(Class H Institutional: 4.63%)
Index	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(E Class: 6.86%)
	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	-	(Class M Retail: 6.39%)
	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(Institutional: 6.89%)
	5.38%	7.07%	6.09%	6.68%	(Investor: 6.41%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)	
US High Yield Bond Fu	und – Income II					
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-	
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-	
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-	
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-	
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-	
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-	
Benchmark: ICE BofAML U.S. High Yield Constrained Index	-	-	-	-	-	
US High Yield Bond F	US High Yield Bond Fund – Income A					
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-	
Benchmark: ICE BofAML U.S. High	-	-	-	-	-	

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
Yield Constrained Index					
US Investment Grade	Corporate Bond Fund	- Accumulation			
Class H Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (07/11/2019)	-1.86%	-	-	-	2.72%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (15/09/2016)	-1.02%	7.33%	5.30%	-	4.63%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark:	-0.55%	-	-	-	(E Class: 4.74%)
Bloomberg U.S. Credit Index	-0.55%	7.73%	5.20%	-	(Institutional: 4.45%)

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
US Investment Grade	Corporate Bond Fund	- Income			
Class H Institutional ⁺	-	-	-	-	-
E Class (08/03/2019)	-1.86%	-	-	-	5.22%
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional (15/09/2016)	-1.03%	7.35%	5.29%	-	4.64%
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S.	-0.55%	-	-	-	(E Class: 6.81%)
Credit Index	-0.55%	7.73%	5.20%	-	(Institutional: 4.45%)

^{*******} This share class was closed on 31 January 2019 and reopened on 8 March 2019.

Fund / Class/ Benchmark	1 Year (% change)	3 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	5 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	10 Years (average annual compounded return) (%)	Since inception (average annual compounded return) (%)
US Investment Grade	Corporate Bond Fund	l – Income II			
Class H Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
E Class*	-	-	-	-	-
Class M Retail*	-	-	-	-	-
Institutional*	-	-	-	-	-
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Administrative*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Credit Index	-	-	-	-	-
US Investment Grade	Corporate Bond Fund	d – Income A			
Investor*	-	-	-	-	-
Benchmark: Bloomberg U.S. Credit Index	-	-	-	-	-

* Not incepted as at 30 November 2021.

Notes:

- 1. All dates in brackets in the leftmost column of the table above indicate the inception dates of each of the active Classes.
- 2. Source: Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.
- 3. Fund performance calculations are based on the net asset value of the shares (i.e. single pricing basis) taking into account the preliminary charge and on the assumption that distributions are reinvested.
- 4. Where no performance information has been given for a Class, the Shares of that Class have either not been incepted or are dormant as at 30 November 2021. Accordingly, track records of at least one year are not available for these Classes. Where the Share Class has been active for a period of less than one year, only performance since inception has been disclosed.

You should note that the past performance of the Funds is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of the Funds.

Expense Ratios and Turnover Ratios

The expense ratios and the turnover ratios of the Funds for the one-year period ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	118%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

⁺ Share class closed.

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Accumulation	1.50	
	E Class – Income	1.50	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.65	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Commodity Real Return Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	219%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.64	
	E Class – Income	Share class closed	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.74	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.09	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Diversified Income Duration	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	186%
Hedged Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.59	
	E Class – Income	1.59	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.69	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.69	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.04	
	Investor Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Diversified Income Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.86	186%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.86	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.59	
	E Class – Income	1.59	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	1.59	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.59	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.69	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.69	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.04	
	Investor Class – Income	1.04	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	1.19	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	W Class – Accumulation	0.55	
	W Class – Income	0.55	
	W Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Dynamic Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	1.07	463%
	Class H Institutional – Income	1.07	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.80	
	E Class – Income	1.80	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.90	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.25	
	Investor Class – Income	1.25	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.40	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	30%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Accumulation	1.85	
	E Class – Income	1.85	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional – Accumulation	0.85	
	Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional – Income II	0.85	
	Investor – Accumulation	1.20	
	Investor – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Emerging Local Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	173%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.89	
	E Class – Income	1.89	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.89	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.89	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.24	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Emerging Markets Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.96	110%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.96	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.69	
	E Class – Income	1.69	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Income	1.69	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.69	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.79	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.79	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.14	
	Investor Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.29	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	53%
Dona runa	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.85	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Share class closed	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.95	
	Institutional Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Share class closed	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Emerging Markets Short-Term	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	89%
Local Currency Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.75	
	E Class – Income	Share class closed	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Euro Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	224%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.36	
	E Class – Income	1.36	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.46	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.46	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.81	
	Investor Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.96	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global Advantage Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	545%

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	E Class – Income	Share class closed	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.70	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global Bond Ex-US Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.66	529%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income	1.39	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.99	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.66	569%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.66	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.39	
	E Class – Income	1.39	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.39	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.99	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	W Class – Accumulation	0.39	
	W Class – Income	0.39	
	W Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global High Yield Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.72	35%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.72	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Share class closed	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.45	
	E Class – Income	1.45	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	1.45	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.45	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.55	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.05	
	Administrative – Income	1.05	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global Investment Grade	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.66	189%
Credit Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	0.66	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.39	
	E Class – Income	1.39	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	1.39	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.39	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.99	
	Administrative – Income	0.99	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	W Class – Accumulation	0.39	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	W Class – Income	0.39	
	W Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Global Real Return Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.66	197%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.39	
	E Class – Income	1.39	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income	0.84	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.99	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Income Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.72	414%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.72	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.45	
	E Class – Income	1.45	
	E Class – Income Q	1.45	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.05	
	Administrative – Income	1.05	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Income Fund II	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	Not incepted as
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	at 31 December
	E Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	2020
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Inflation Multi-Asset Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	330%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	2.10	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Low Average Duration Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.63	480%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.63	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.36	
	E Class – Income	1.36	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.46	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.46	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.81	
	Investor Class – Income	0.81	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	0.96	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	142%
investment state erealt rand	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Low Duration Income Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.72	520%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.45	
	E Class – Income	1.45	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	106%
Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.55	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Income	1.55	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.55	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.65	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.65	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	1.00	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	1.15	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
PIMCO Capital Securities Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	39%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.69	
	E Class – Income	1.69	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	1.69	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.79	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.79	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.14	
	Investor Class – Income	1.14	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.29	
	Administrative – Income	1.29	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
PIMCO Climate Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	272%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.52	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
PIMCO ESG Income Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	Not incented as
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	incepted as at 31
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	December 2020
	E Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	262%

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Anocation Fund	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	2.15	
	E Class – Income	2.15	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.95	
	Institutional Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	1.30	
	Investor Class – Income	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
StocksPLUS TM Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.72	271%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.45	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.55	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Income	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
Strategic Income Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	375%
	Class H Institutional – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.75	
	E Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Income II	1.75	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.85	
	Institutional Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Share class closed	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Share class closed	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
Total Return Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.67	540%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.67	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.40	
	E Class – Income	1.40	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.50	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.50	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.85	
	Investor Class – Income	0.85	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	1.00	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
US High Yield Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	0.72	32%
	Class H Institutional – Income	0.72	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.45	
	E Class – Income	1.45	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	1.45	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.55	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income	0.90	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
US Investment Grade	Class H Institutional – Accumulation	Share class closed	166%
Corporate Bond Fund	Class H Institutional – Income	Share class closed	
	Class H Institutional – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	E Class – Accumulation	1.39	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	E Class – Income	1.39	
	E Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Class M Retail – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Institutional Class – Accumulation	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income	0.49	
	Institutional Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Investor Class – Income A	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Accumulation	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	
	Administrative – Income	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Fund	Class	Expense Ratio (%)	Turnover Ratio (%)
	Administrative – Income II	Not incepted as at 31 December 2020	

Notes:

- 1. The expense ratios are calculated in accordance with the Investment Management Association of Singapore's (IMAS) guidelines on the disclosure of expense ratios and based on the Company's latest audited accounts.
- 2. The following expenses are excluded from the calculation of the expense ratios:-
 - (a) interest expense;
 - (b) brokerage and other transaction costs;
 - (c) foreign exchange gains/losses;
 - (d) front or backend loads arising from the purchase or sale of other funds, and
 - (e) tax deducted at source or arising out of income received.
- 3. The turnover ratios are calculated based on the lesser of purchases or sales expressed as a percentage over average net asset value, i.e., average daily asset value, over the same period used for calculation of the expense ratios.
- 4. Source: Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

23. SOFT DOLLARS COMMISSIONS/ARRANGEMENTS

Any Connected Person may choose to effect transactions through the agency of another person with whom the Connected Person has soft commission arrangements. Please refer to the "SOFT COMMISSIONS" section in the Irish Prospectus for details on soft commission arrangements.

24. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Please refer to the "FUND TRANSACTIONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST" section in the Irish Prospectus for details on for details on the possible conflicts of interest.

Where the Manager manages other collective investment schemes with a similar investment focus, orders for transactions of the same property will be allocated fairly between schemes, in accordance with internal allocation policies as well as any applicable regulatory requirements.

25. REPORTS

Singapore Shareholders will be provided with:

- (i) an annual report and audited accounts of the Funds which will be prepared and sent within four months after the end of the relevant accounting period ending on 31 December; and
- (ii) a semi-annual report and unaudited accounts of the Funds which will be prepared and sent within two months after the end of the relevant semi-annual period in June of each year.

26. SINGAPORE TAX CONSIDERATIONS

You should be aware that you may be required to pay income tax, withholding tax, capital gains tax, wealth tax, stamp taxes or other kinds of tax on distributions or deemed distributions of the Funds, capital gains within the Funds, whether or not realised, income received or accrued or deemed received within the Funds, etc. If you are in doubt of your tax position, you should consult your own independent tax advisers.

27. STRUCTURED PRODUCTS

Shareholders shall not structure or facilitate the structuring of, nor shall an investment in the Company and/or its Funds be associated with the structuring of, any financial product which is linked in any way to an investment in the Company and/or its Funds unless, where relevant, the Shareholder has obtained prior written consent from the Manager or the relevant Distributor in relation to the same and the Shareholder (and the terms of any such financial product) is in compliance with such terms as are agreed between the Shareholder and the Manager or the relevant Distributor and such other terms or requirements as are notified to the Shareholder pursuant to any such agreement. In the event that a Shareholder in the Company fails to comply with the aforementioned requirement, then the Company reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to compulsorily repurchase and cancel any Shares held by the Shareholder and the

Company shall not be liable whatsoever for any loss, liability or cost incurred or suffered by the Shareholder.

28. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Details on the contracts with key parties are set out under the heading "Material Contracts" in the "GENERAL INFORMATION" section of the Irish Prospectus. The Management Agreement and each Investment Advisory Agreement will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' notice in writing, although in certain circumstances, such as a party being unable to pay its debts as they fall due, the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. Where the appointment of the Manager or an Investment Advisor is terminated a successor will be appointed. The Depositary Agreement may be terminated by either party on 90 days prior written notice or forthwith by notice in writing in certain circumstances such as the Depositary being unable to pay its debts as they fall due provided that the Depositary shall continue to act as Depositary until a successor Depositary approved by the Central Bank is appointed by the Company or the Company's authorisation by the Central Bank is revoked.

29. QUERIES AND COMPLAINTS

You should direct all enquiries relating to the Funds to the Singapore Representative at 8 Marina View, #30-01 Asia Square Tower 1, Singapore 018960, telephone number: +65 6491 8008.

30. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION IN SINGAPORE

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company are available for inspection at the office of the Singapore Representative during its normal business hours and copies of the same may be obtained from the Singapore Representative.

31. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE ONLINE

The Singapore Representative will make the following available on its website at www.pimco.com.sg:

- the Singapore Prospectus (as amended from time to time);
- circulars, notices and announcements issued in relation to the Company or the Funds;
- the latest available annual report and semi-annual reports of the Funds; and
- the Company's Risk Management Policies.

SINGAPORE PROSPECTUS

Required pursuant to the Securities and Futures Act 2001 of Singapore

Board of Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

Signed:	Signed:
A.V Mangala	A.V Mangala
Craig A. Dawson	John Bruton
Director	Director
(Signed by V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan	(Signed by V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan
for and on behalf of Craig A. Dawson)	for and on behalf of John Bruton)
Signed:	Signed:
A.V Mangala	I'V Mangala
David M. Kennedy	V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan
Director	Director
(Signed by V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan	
for and on behalf of David M. Kennedy)	
Signed:	Signed:
A.V Mangala	IV layela
Frances Ruane	Ryan P. Blute
Director	Director
(Signed by V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan	(Signed by V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan
for and on behalf of Frances Ruane)	for and on behalf of Ryan P. Blute)



The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Irish Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Singapore Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.



PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc Prospectus

8 August, 2022

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc is an umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between Funds incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear under the heading "Directors of the Company and the Manager" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

10822885v25

THIS PROSPECTUS IS IMPORTANT. IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT ABOUT THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS AND ANY SUPPLEMENTS, THE RISKS INVOLVED IN INVESTING IN THE COMPANY OR THE SUITABILITY FOR YOU OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY, YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR STOCKBROKER, BANK MANAGER, SOLICITOR, ACCOUNTANT OR OTHER FINANCIAL ADVISER.

Defined terms used in this Prospectus and any Supplements have the meaning ascribed to them in the section headed "**Definitions**".

Authorisation by the Central Bank

The Company is an open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between Funds incorporated on 10 December, 1997 and is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank as an undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (S.I. No. 352 of 2011) as amended. Such authorisation is not an endorsement or guarantee of the Company by the Central Bank nor is the Central Bank responsible for the contents of this Prospectus. The authorisation of the Company shall not constitute a warranty by the Central Bank as to the performance of the Company and the Central Bank shall not be liable for the performance or default of the Company.

The Prospectus

The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering or purchase of the Shares may be restricted in certain jurisdictions. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by or to anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not lawful or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

Any information given, or representations made, by any dealer, salesman or other person not contained in this Prospectus or in any reports and accounts of the Company forming part hereof must be regarded as unauthorised and accordingly must not be relied upon. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the offer, issue or sale of Shares shall under any circumstances constitute a representation that the information contained in this Prospectus or any Supplement is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Prospectus. This Prospectus may from time to time be updated and prospective investors should enquire of the Manager as to the issue of any later Prospectus or Supplements or as to the issue of any reports and accounts of the Company.

This Prospectus and any Supplements may be translated into other languages. Any such translation shall only contain the same information and have the same meaning as the English language Prospectus and Supplements. To the extent that there is any inconsistency between the English language Prospectus and Supplements and the Prospectus/Supplements in another language, the English language Prospectus/Supplements will prevail, except to the extent (but only to the extent) required by the laws of any jurisdiction including the regulations or requirements of the financial regulator of such jurisdiction where the shares are sold, that in any action based upon disclosure in the Prospectus/Supplement in a language other than English, the language of the Prospectus/Supplement on which such action is based shall prevail.

A table detailing each Fund and the respective Share Classes offered, whether they are hedged/unhedged, as well as the currency in which the Share Classes will be denominated is set out in the Supplement for each Fund. Within each Class, the Company may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) or Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income).

The value of and income from Shares in the Company may go up or down and you may not get back the amount you have invested in the Company. Before investing in the Company, you should consider the risks involved in such investment. The difference at any one time between the sale and repurchase price of Shares means that the investment in a Fund should be viewed as medium to long-term. Please see the sections headed, "General Risk Factors", "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques".

Potential investors should inform themselves as to (a) the possible tax consequences, (b) the legal requirements, (c) any foreign currency exchange restrictions or exchange control requirements, and (d) any other requisite governmental or other consents or formalities which they might encounter under the laws of the countries of their incorporation, citizenship, residence or domicile, which might be relevant to the subscription, purchase, holding or disposal of Shares.

Where permitted by applicable law or regulation, an intermediary or adviser providing financial advice, may charge fees or commissions relating to a Shareholder's investment in the Company e.g. trailer fees. In the event that applicable law or regulation specifically precludes the payment or receipt of such fees or commissions in relation to Classes of Shares in the Company to which it provides advice, the intermediaries or advisers must ensure compliance with such restrictions. In this respect, the intermediary or adviser must be satisfied that it complies with all applicable law and regulation, including that the fee structure of the relevant Classes of Shares is appropriate to enable it to comply with such applicable law and regulation.

Persons who are Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland may acquire Shares provided they are acquired and held through a Recognised Clearing System. Exempt Irish Residents may acquire Shares directly from the Company. Applicants who are Irish Resident, Ordinarily Resident in Ireland or Exempt Irish Residents will be required to certify their status as such.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

All Shareholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and are deemed to have notice of the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, copies of which are available upon request from the Company's registered office and from the Administrator.

Listing on the Irish Stock Exchange trading as Euronext Dublin ("Euronext Dublin")

Certain Classes of Shares have been listed on Euronext Dublin. Details of the listings are specified in the relevant Supplement for each Fund. No application has been made for the Shares of the Company to be listed on any other stock exchange. The Directors do not anticipate that an active secondary market will develop in the Shares.

Neither the admission of the Shares of the Company to listing on the Official List and trading on the Global Exchange Market nor the approval of the Prospectus pursuant to the listing requirements of Euronext Dublin shall constitute a warranty or representation by Euronext Dublin as to the competence of service providers to or any other party connected to the Company, the adequacy of information contained in this Prospectus or the suitability of the Company for investment purposes.

United States of America

Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the 1933 Act, or qualified under any applicable state statutes, and the Shares may not be transferred, offered or sold in the United States of America (including its territories and possessions) or to or for the benefit of, directly or indirectly, any U.S. Person (as that term is used in Regulation S under the 1933 Act), except pursuant to registration or an exemption. The Company is not, and will not be, registered under the 1940 Act, and investors will not be entitled to the benefit of registration under the 1940 Act. The Company reserves the right to make a private placement of its Shares to a limited number or category of U.S. Persons. The Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission or other U.S. regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of this offering or the accuracy or adequacy of these offering materials. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

The Articles give powers to the Directors to impose restrictions on the shareholdings by (and consequently to redeem Shares held by) or the transfer of Shares to any U.S. Person (unless permitted under certain exceptions under the laws of the United States) or by any person who appears to be in breach of the laws or requirements of any country or government authority or by any person or persons in circumstances (whether directly or indirectly affecting such person or persons, and whether taken alone or in conjunction with any other persons, connected or not, or any other circumstances appearing to the Directors to be relevant) which, in the opinion of the Directors, might result in the Company incurring any liability to taxation or suffering any other pecuniary disadvantage which the Company might not otherwise have incurred or suffered.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DEFINITIONS	
INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY	
THE COMPANY	
Duration	20
CREDIT RATINGS	20
INDICES	21
INTEGRATION OF SUSTAINABILITY RISKS	21
TAXONOMY REGULATION ALIGNMENT	
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES	
GENERAL	
CROSS INVESTMENT	
Borrowing Powers	
Collateral	
FINANCIAL INDICES	
ELIGIBLE COUNTERPARTY	
EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT AND SECURITIES FINANCING TRANSACTIONS	
SECURITIES FINANCING TRANSACTIONS	
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS	
MORTGAGE DOLLAR ROLLS	
LOANS OF PORTFOLIO SECURITIES	
GENERAL RISK FACTORS	
CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND IN	
TECHNIQUESKEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS	44
KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)	
HOW TO PURCHASE SHARES	
CLASSES AND TYPES OF SHARES	
INCOME II SHARES	
Types of Hedged Classes	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RELATED TO SHARE CLASS HEDGING	
APPLICATIONS FOR SHARES	
HOW TO REDEEM SHARES	
HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES	
FUND TRANSACTIONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	
CALCULATION AND SUSPENSION OF CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	
NET ASSET VALUE	
CALCULATION	
SWING PRICING	
SUSPENSION	86
PUBLICATION OF SHARE PRICES	
DIVIDEND POLICY	
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION	
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND THE MANAGER	90
Manager	91
INVESTMENT ADVISORS	91
Depositary	92
ADMINISTRATOR	93
DISTRIBUTORS	93
PAYING AGENTS/REPRESENTATIVES/SUB-DISTRIBUTORS	94
FEES AND EXPENSES	
Management Fee	
Z Classes Management Fee	
INVESTMENT IN OTHER COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT SCHEMES LINKED TO THE MANAGER	
SERVICE FEE	
TRAIL FEE	
DISTRIBUTION FEE	_
ESTABLISHMENT COSTS	

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION	98
REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE MANAGER	
OTHER CHARGES	98
EXPENSE LIMITATION (INCLUDING MANAGEMENT FEE WAIVER AND RECOUPMENT)	
REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS	99
FEE INCREASES	
SOFT COMMISSIONS	
TAXATION	
REPORTS, ACCOUNTS, AND HOLDINGS DISCLOSURE	115
GENERAL INFORMATION	
INCORPORATION AND SHARE CAPITAL	
MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION	116
FORM OF SHARES, SHARE CERTIFICATES AND TRANSFER OF SHARES	
MATERIAL CONTRACTS	121
Miscellaneous	124
DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION	124
APPENDIX 1 – REGULATED MARKETS	
APPENDIX 2 - DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES RATINGS	130
APPENDIX 3	
APPENDIX 4 – INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS	
APPENDIX 5 - DELEGATION OF DEPOSITARY SAFEKEEPING DUTIES	1
DIRECTORY	6

DEFINITIONS

In this Prospectus the following words and phrases shall have the meanings indicated below:

"1933 Act" means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

"1940 Act" means the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

"Accumulation Share" means a Share where the income of a Fund is accumulated and not distributed.

"Administrative Classes" means the Administrative Class Shares of the Company set forth in the

Supplement for each Fund.

"Administrator" means State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited with effect from 12.01 a.m.

(Irish time) on 1 July, 2017 and any successor thereto appointed in accordance

with the requirements of the Central Bank.

"ADRs" means American Depository Receipts.

"Application Form" means any application form to be completed by subscribers for Shares as

prescribed by the Company from time to time.

"Articles" means the Articles of Association of the Company.

"AUD" means Australian Dollars, the lawful currency of Australia.

"Base Currency" means the currency of account of a Fund as specified in the relevant

Supplement relating to that Fund.

"BE Retail" means Class BE Retail Shares of the Company where set forth in the

Supplement for a Fund, each a "BE Retail Class".

"Benchmark Regulation" means Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of the European Parliament and of the

Council of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds.

"BM Retail" means Class BM Retail Shares of the Company where set forth in the

Supplement for a Fund, each a "BM Retail Class".

"BN Retail" means Class BN Retail Shares of the Company where set forth in the

Supplement for a Fund, each a "BN Retail Class".

"BRL" means Brazilian Real, the lawful currency of Brazil.

"Business Day" means any day on which banks are open for business in Dublin, Ireland or such

other days as may be specified by the Company, with the approval of the

Depositary.

"CAD" means Canadian Dollars, the lawful currency of Canada.

"Central Bank" means The Central Bank of Ireland or any successor regulatory authority

thereto.

"Central Bank Rules" means the Central Bank UCITS Regulations and any other statutory

instrument, regulations, rules, conditions, notices, requirements or guidance of the Central Bank issued from time to time applicable to the Company pursuant

to the Regulations.

"Central Bank UCITS Regulations"

means the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations) 2019 or such other amending or replacement regulations issued from time to time by the Central Bank.

"CHF"

means Swiss Franc, the lawful currency of Switzerland.

"CLP"

means Chilean Peso, the lawful currency of Chile.

"Class"

means any class of Shares in the Company. Classes referred to in this Prospectus and any Supplement and offered by the Company are set forth in this Prospectus and any Supplements as may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

"Class H Institutional"

means Class H Institutional Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund.

"Companies Act 2014"

means the Companies Act 2014 as may be amended, supplemented, consolidated, substituted in any form or otherwise modified from time to time.

"Company"

means PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc, an open-ended investment company with variable capital incorporated in Ireland pursuant to the Companies Act 2014.

"Connected Person"

means the Manager or Depositary and the delegates or sub-delegates of the Manager or Depositary (excluding any non-group company sub-depositaries appointed by the Depositary) and any associated or group company of the Manager, Depositary, delegate or sub-delegate.

"Courts Service"

The Courts Service is responsible for the administration of moneys under the control or subject to the order of the Courts.

"Currency Exposure Classes"

means the Institutional Class, Investor Class, Administrative Class, Class H Institutional, W Class, Class G Institutional, E Class, G Retail Class, M Retail Class, T Class, Z Class, R Class, F Class, BE Retail Class, BM Retail Class and BN Retail Class (or any other classes set forth in the Supplement for each Fund) Currency Exposure Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund, and each a "Currency Exposure Class".

"CZK"

means Czech Koruna, the lawful currency of the Czech Republic.

"Dealing Day"

means in relation to a Fund such day or days as shall be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund provided that in any event there will be one Dealing Day per fortnight. The Directors have delegated to PIMCO the authority to change the frequency of Dealing Days per Fund. Any change in the frequency of Dealing Days must receive the prior approval of the Depositary and will be notified to Shareholders of the affected Fund(s) in advance.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for any Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer a Fund or (ii) value a portion of a Fund's assets. For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

"Dealing Deadline"

means the time by which a request to purchase or redeem shares on a Dealing Day must be received to be effected on that Dealing Day.

For all Classes, the Dealing Deadline is 4.00p.m. Irish time on the Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.

The Directors have authorised PIMCO to advance the Dealing Deadline when the principal bond markets close early in advance of a holiday generally observed by participants in such markets or in the case of the happening of an event outside the control of the Company which precipitates the early closing of the principal bond markets. Although PIMCO is so authorised, it is not required to advance the Dealing Deadline under the circumstances set forth above.

"Depositary"

means State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited with effect from 12.01 a.m. (Irish time) on 1 July, 2017 and any successor thereto appointed in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.

"Depositary Agreement"

mean the depositary agreement dated 30 June, 2017 between the Depositary and the Company as may be amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time.

"Directors"

means the Directors of the Company.

"Distribution Fee"

means the distribution fee payable by a Fund's T Class Shares, BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares and BE Retail Shares to the Distributor which may be used to reimburse financial consultants, broker-dealers and other intermediaries for services rendered to the Shareholders who hold T Class Shares, BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares and BE Retail Shares of a relevant Fund.

"Distributor"

means PIMCO Europe Ltd and/or PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd and/or PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd and/or PIMCO Asia Limited and/or PIMCO Europe GmbH.

"DKK"

means Danish Krone, the lawful currency of Denmark.

"E Classes"

means Class E Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund, each an "E Class".

"Economically tied to"

means the Investment Advisor generally considers an instrument to be economically tied to a country if the issuer is the government of that country (or any agency or instrumentality of such government), or if the issuer is organised under the laws of that country. In the case of certain money market instruments, such instruments will be considered economically tied to a country if either the issuer or the guarantor of such money market instrument is organised under the laws of that country. The Investment Advisor generally considers derivative instruments to be economically tied to a country if the underlying assets are currencies of that country (or baskets or indices of such currencies), or are instruments or securities that are issued by the government of, or issuers organised under the laws of, that country.

"EDRs"

means European Depository Receipts.

"EEA"

means the European Economic Area (EU plus Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein).

"Eligible Counterparty"

means a counterparty to an over-the-counter derivatives transaction with which a Fund may trade and belonging to one of the categories approved by the Central Bank which at the date of this Prospectus comprise the following:

- i. a Relevant Institution:
- ii. an investment firm, authorised in accordance with the Markets in Financial Instruments Directive in an EEA Member State: or
- iii. a group company of an entity issued with a bank holding company licence from the Federal Reserve of the United States of America where that group company is subject to bank holding company consolidated supervision by that Federal Reserve.

"EMIR"

means Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 on OTC derivatives, central counterparties and trade repositories.

"Equity Securities"

means common stocks, preferred stocks, convertible securities; and ADRs, GDRs and EDRs for such securities.

"EU"

means the European Union.

"euro(s)" or "EUR"

means the lawful currency of the participating member states of the European Union which have adopted the single currency in accordance with the EC Treaty of Rome dated 25 March 1957 as amended.

"Euronext Dublin"

means the Irish Stock Exchange trading as Euronext Dublin and any successor thereto.

"Exchange Charge"

means the fee paid by Class H Institutional, E Class, F Class, M Retail, G Retail and R Class Shareholders. The Exchange Charge is generally payable to the Distributor and/or repaid to participating brokers, certain banks and other financial intermediaries in connection with the exchange of Class H Institutional, E Class, F Class, M Retail, G Retail and R Class. Details of the Exchange Charge payable are included in the section entitled "**Key Information Regarding Share Transactions**".

"Exempt Irish Investor"

means the following:

9

- a pension scheme which is an exempt approved scheme within the meaning of Section 774 of the Taxes Act or a retirement annuity contract or a trust scheme to which Section 784 or 785 of the Taxes Act applies;
- a company carrying on life business within the meaning of Section 706 of the Taxes Act;
- an investment undertaking within the meaning of Section 739B(1) of the Taxes Act;
- a special investment scheme within the meaning of Section 737 of the Taxes Act;
- a charity being a person referred to in Section 739D(6)(f)(i) of the Taxes Act;
- a unit trust to which Section 731(5)(a) of the Taxes Act applies;
- a qualifying fund manager within the meaning of Section 784A(1)(a)
 of the Taxes Act where the Shares held are assets of an approved
 retirement fund or an approved minimum retirement fund;
- a qualifying management company within the meaning of Section 739B of the Taxes Act;
- an investment limited partnership within the meaning of Section 739J of the Taxes Act;

10822885v25

- a personal retirement savings account ("PRSA") administrator acting on behalf of a person who is entitled to exemption from income tax and capital gains tax by virtue of Section 787I of the Taxes Act and the Shares are assets of a PRSA;
- a credit union within the meaning of Section 2 of the Credit Union Act, 1997;
- the National Asset Management Agency;
- the National Treasury Management Agency or a Fund investment vehicle (within the meaning of section 37 of the National Treasury Management Agency (Amendment) Act 2014) of which the Minister for Finance is the sole beneficial owner, or the State acting through the National Treasury Management Agency;
- the Motor Insurers' Bureau of Ireland in respect of an investment made by it of moneys paid to the Motor Insurer Insolvency Compensation Fund under the Insurance Act 1964 (amended by the Insurance (Amendment) Act 2018), and the Motor Insurers' Bureau of Ireland has made a declaration to that effect to the Company;
- a company which is within the charge to corporation tax in accordance with Section 110(2) of the Taxes Act in respect of payments made to it by the Company; or
- any other Irish Resident or persons who are Ordinarily Resident in Ireland who may be permitted to own Shares under taxation legislation or by written practice or concession of the Irish Revenue Commissioners without giving rise to a charge to tax in the Company or jeopardising tax exemptions associated with the Company giving rise to a charge to tax in the Company;

provided that they have correctly completed the Relevant Declaration.

"Fitch"

"Fixed Income Instruments"

"Fixed Income Securities"

means Fitch Ratings Inc.

as used in this Prospectus and any Supplement includes Fixed Income Securities and derivative instruments including but not limited to futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) that are issued in connection with, synthesise, or are linked or referenced to such Fixed Income Securities.

as used in this Prospectus and any Supplement includes the following instruments:

- a) securities issued or guaranteed by Member States and non-Member States, their sub-divisions, agencies or instrumentalities;
- b) corporate debt securities and corporate commercial paper;
- c) mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities which are transferable securities that are collateralised by receivables or other assets;
- d) inflation-indexed bonds issued both by governments and corporations;
- e) event-linked bonds issued by both governments and corporations;
- f) securities of international agencies or supranational entities;
- debt securities whose interest is, in the opinion of bond counsel for the issuer at the time of issuance, exempt from U.S. federal income tax (municipal bonds);

- h) freely transferable and unleveraged structured notes, including securitised loan participations;
- freely transferable and unleveraged hybrid securities which are derivatives that combine a traditional stock or bond with an option or forward contract;
- loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Fixed Income Securities may have fixed, variable, or floating rates of interest, and may vary inversely with respect to a reference rate.

means Class F Shares of the Company where set forth in the Supplement for a Fund, each a "F Class".

means a sub-fund of the Company, each a "Fund".

means Class G Institutional Shares of the Company set forth in the Prospectus and Supplements for each Fund.

means Class G Retail Shares of the Company set forth in the Prospectus and Supplements for each Fund.

means the lawful currency of the United Kingdom or any successor currency.

the EU data protection regime introduced by the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation 2016/679).

means Global Depository Receipts.

means the Institutional Class, Investor Class, Administrative Class, Class H Institutional, W Class, Class G Institutional, E Class, G Retail Class, M Retail Class, T Class, Z Class, R Class, F Class, BE Retail Class, BM Retail Class and BN Retail Class (or any other classes set forth in the Supplement for each Fund) Hedged Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund, and each a "Hedged Class".

means Hong Kong Dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.

means Hungarian Forint, the lawful currency of Hungary.

means New Israeli Shekel, the lawful currency of Israel.

means within the Investor Classes, a Fund may also issue Income A Shares which distribute income on an annual basis.

means a Share where the income of a Fund is distributed to a Shareholder.

means an income distributing Share which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders. In order to provide such enhanced yield the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base currency of the Share Class of the relevant Fund (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes.

"F Class"

"Funds"

"G Institutional Classes"

"G Retail Classes"

"GBP" or "UK Sterling"

"GDPR"

"GDRs"

"Hedged Classes"

"HKD"

"HUF"

"ILS"

"Income A"

"Income Share"

"Income II Share"

"Initial Issue Price"

means the price (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable) per Share at which Shares are initially offered in a Fund/Class during the Initial Offer Period which is specified for the relevant Fund/Class in the relevant Supplement for each Fund.

"Initial Offer Period"

means the period during which Shares in a Fund are initially offered at the Initial Issue Price specified for the relevant Class of Share in the Fund in the relevant Supplement for each Fund.

"Institutional Classes"

means the Institutional Class Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund.

"Intermediary"

means a person who:

- carries on a business which consists of, or includes, the receipt of payments from an investment undertaking on behalf of other persons; or
- holds shares in an investment undertaking on behalf of other persons.

"Investment Advisor"

means PIMCO, PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd, PIMCO Europe Limited or PIMCO Europe GmbH or any one or more Investment Advisors or any successor(s) thereto appointed by the Manager to act as Investment Advisor of one or more Funds as detailed in each relevant Supplement.

"Investor Classes"

means the Investor Class Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund.

"Ireland"

means the Republic of Ireland.

"Irish Resident"

means in the case of:

- an individual, means an individual who is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.
- a trust, means a trust that is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.
- a company, means a company that is resident in Ireland for tax purposes.

An individual will be regarded as being resident in Ireland for a tax year if he/she is present in Ireland: (1) for a period of at least 183 days in that tax year; or (2) for a period of at least 280 days in any two consecutive tax years, provided that the individual is present in Ireland for at least 31 days in each period. In determining days present in Ireland, an individual is deemed to be present if he/she is in Ireland at any time during the day.

A trust will generally be Irish resident where the trustee is resident in Ireland or a majority of the trustees (if more than one) are resident in Ireland.

A company incorporated in Ireland and also companies not so incorporated but that are managed and controlled in Ireland, will be tax resident in Ireland except to the extent that the company in question is, by virtue of a double taxation treaty between Ireland and another country, regarded as resident in a territory other than Ireland (and thus not resident in Ireland).

It should be noted that the determination of a company's residence for tax purposes can be complex in certain cases and prospective investors are referred to the specific legislative provisions that are contained in Section 23A of the Taxes Act.

"Irish Time" means the time in the same time zone as Greenwich, England and used in the

Republic of Ireland.

"JPY" means Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan.

"KRW" means Korean Won, the lawful currency of Korea.

"M Retail" means Class M Retail Shares of the Company set forth in the Prospectus and

Supplements for each Fund.

"Management Fee" means the management fee payable to the Manager as set forth in the section

entitled "FEES AND EXPENSES".

"Manager" means PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited, or any other person or

persons for the time being duly appointed manager of the Company in

succession thereto.

"Member State" means a member state of the European Union.

"MiFID II Directive" means Directive 2014/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of

15 May, 2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending Directive

2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU (recast).

"Minimum Holding" means in respect of each Class, the minimum value of shares which must be

held by Shareholders pursuant to the table appearing under the heading "Key

Information Regarding Share Transactions".

"Minimum Initial Subscription" means in respect of each Class, the minimum amount which may initially be

subscribed by an investor prior to becoming a Shareholder pursuant to the table appearing under the heading "Key Information Regarding Share

Transactions".

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc.

"MXN" means Mexican Peso, the lawful currency of Mexico.

"Net Asset Value" means the net asset value of a Fund calculated in accordance with the

principles set out under the heading "Calculation and Suspension of

Calculation of Net Asset Value".

"Net Asset Value per Share" means in respect of a Share of a Fund the amount calculated in accordance

with the principles set out under the heading "Calculation and Suspension of

Calculation of Net Asset Value".

"Net Capital Activity" means the net cash movement of subscriptions and redemptions into and out

of a particular Fund across all Share Classes on a given Dealing Day.

"NOK" means the Norwegian Krone, the lawful currency of Norway.

policy shall be followed at all times except in certain circumstances on a temporary and exceptional basis when it is in the best interests of Shareholders including, but not limited to, (1) when a Fund has high levels of cash as a result of subscriptions or earnings; (2) when a Fund has a high level of redemptions;

means when used in connection with an investment policy of a Fund that such

or (3) when the Investment Advisor takes temporary action to preserve the value of the Fund in emergency market conditions or in the event of movements in

interest rates.

"NZD" means New Zealand Dollar, the lawful currency of New Zealand.

10822885v25 13

"normally"

"OECD"

means the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The 33 members of the OECD are: Australia, Austria, Belgium, Canada, Chile, Czech Republic, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy, Japan, Luxembourg, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Slovak Republic, Slovenia, South Korea, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey, United Kingdom and United States.

"Ordinarily Resident in Ireland"

in the case of:

- an individual, means an individual who is ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes
- a trust, means a trust that is ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes.

An individual will be regarded as ordinarily resident for a particular tax year if he/she has been Irish Resident for the three previous consecutive tax years (i.e. he/she becomes ordinarily resident with effect from the commencement of the fourth tax year). An individual will remain ordinarily resident in Ireland until he/she has been non-Irish Resident for three consecutive tax years. Thus, an individual who is resident and ordinarily resident in Ireland in the tax year 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 and departs from Ireland in that tax year will remain ordinarily resident up to the end of the tax year 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

The concept of a trust's ordinary residence is somewhat obscure and linked to its tax residence.

"Partially Hedged Classes"

means the Institutional Class, Investor Class, Administrative Class, Class H Institutional, W Class, Class G Institutional, E Class, G Retail Class, M Retail Class, T Class, Z Class, R Class, F Class, BE Retail Class, BM Retail Class and BN Retail Class (or any other classes set forth in the Supplement for each Fund) Partially Hedged Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund, and each a "Partially Hedged Class".

"PIMCO"

means Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

"PLN"

means Polish Zloty, the lawful currency of Poland.

14

"Preliminary Charge"

means the preliminary charge, if any, payable on the application for Shares as is specified for the relevant Fund and Class.

"Prospectus"

the prospectus of the Company and any Supplements and addenda thereto issued in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations and the Central Bank.

"R Classes"

means Class R Shares of the Company set forth in the Prospectus and Supplements for each Fund.

"Recognised Clearing System"

means any clearing system listed in Section 246A of the Taxes Act (including, but not limited to, Euroclear, Clearstream Banking AG, Clearstream Banking SA and CREST) or any other system for clearing shares which is designated for the purposes of Chapter 1A in Part 27 of the Taxes Act, by the Irish Revenue Commissioners, as a recognised clearing system.

"Redemption Charge"

means the redemption charge, if any, payable on the redemption of Shares as is specified for the relevant Fund and Class.

10822885v25

"Redemption Request Form"

means the redemption request form for redemption of Shares, which may be obtained by contacting the Administrator.

"Regulated Market"

means a stock exchange or a regulated, recognised market which is a market that operates regularly and is open to the public and which in each case is in a Member State, or if not in a Member State, is listed in **Appendix 1**.

"Regulations"

means the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations, 2011 (S.I. No. 352 of 2011) and any further amendments thereto) and any regulations or notices issued by the Central Bank pursuant thereto for the time being in force.

"Relevant Declaration"

means the declaration relevant to the Shareholder as set out in Schedule 2B of the Taxes Act.

"Relevant Period"

means a period of 8 years beginning with the acquisition of a Share by a Shareholder and each subsequent period of 8 years beginning immediately after the preceding Relevant Period.

"Relevant Institution"

means credit institutions authorised in an EEA Member State or credit institutions authorised within a signatory state (other than an EEA Member State) to the Basle Capital Convergence Agreement of July 1988, or a credit institution in a third country deemed equivalent pursuant to Article 107(4) of the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012.

"RMB"

means Chinese Renminbi, the lawful currency of the People's Republic of China. Unless the context otherwise requires, the term "RMB" refers to offshore Chinese Renminbi ("CNH") and not to onshore Chinese Renminbi ("CNY"). CNH represents the exchange rate of Chinese Renminbi that is traded offshore in Hong Kong or markets outside the People's Republic of China.

"Rule 144A Securities"

means securities which are not registered under the 1933 Act but can be sold to certain institutional buyers in accordance with Rule 144A under the 1933 Act.

"S&P"

means Standard & Poor's Ratings Service.

"SEC"

means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

"Securities Financing Transactions"

means repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, securities lending agreements, margin lending transactions and any other transactions within the scope of SFTR that a Fund is permitted to engage in.

"SEK"

means Swedish Krona, the lawful currency of Sweden.

"Service Fee"

means the service fee payable by a Fund to the Manager and used to reimburse broker-dealers and other intermediaries for services provided to Shareholders who hold the Investor Class of a relevant Fund.

"Settlement Deadline"

means, for purchases of shares, the time by which the Administrator must have received payment, provided that the Directors or their delegate may waive the Settlement Deadline for a period of up to ten Business Days from the day on which the relevant subscription request was received.

The Settlement Deadline for purchases of (i) Institutional Classes, G Institutional Classes, Investor Classes, Administrative Classes and W Class is normally by the first Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) in

respect of the CAD, CHF, EUR, GBP, HUF, MXN, NOK, PLN, SEK and USD denominated Classes and by the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) in respect of the AUD, CNY, CZK, DKK, HKD, ILS, JPY, NZD and SGD denominated Classes, and (ii) H Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, E Classes, T Classes, R Classes, F Classes, BE Retail, BM Retail and BN Retail is normally by the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of payment.

means, for redemptions of shares, the time by which redemption proceeds will generally be paid. For all Funds redemption proceeds from the (i) Institutional Classes, G Institutional Classes, Investor Classes, Administrative Classes, Z Class and W Class are normally paid the Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day (except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, HKD, JPY, NZD, RMB or SGD denominated Classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day) and for (ii) H Institutional, E Classes, G Retail, M Retail, T Classes, R Classes, F Classes, BE Retail, BM Retail and BN Retail, normally by the third business day following the relevant Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund). In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.

"SFT Regulation" or "SFTR"

means Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 of the European Parliament and of the Council on transparency of securities financing transactions and of reuse and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012, as may be amended, supplemented, consolidated, substituted in any form or otherwise modified from time to time.

"SGD"

means Singapore Dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore.

"Shareholders"

means holders of Shares, and each a "Shareholder".

"Shares"

means shares in the Company (and, where the context so permits or requires, the shares in a Fund).

"Socially Responsible Advisor"

means with respect to the Emerging Markets Bond ESG Fund, Storebrand Kapitalforvaltning AS or any other person or persons for the time being duly appointed Socially Responsible Advisor in succession thereto by the Company.

"Specified US Person"

means (i) a US citizen or resident individual, (ii) a partnership or corporation organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States or any State thereof (iii) a trust if (a) a court within the United States would have authority under applicable law to render orders or judgments concerning substantially all issues regarding administration of the trust, and (b) one or more US persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or an estate of a decedent that is a citizen or resident of the United States excluding (1) a corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets; (2) any corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group, as defined in section 1471(e)(2) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, as a corporation described in clause (i); (3) the United States or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality thereof; (4) any State of the United States, any U.S. Territory, any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality of any one or more of the foregoing; (5) any organization

exempt from taxation under section 501(a) or an individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code; (6) any bank as defined in section 581 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code; (7) any real estate investment trust as defined in section 856 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code; (8) any regulated investment company as defined in section 851 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code or any entity registered with the Securities Exchange Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. 80a-64); (9) any common trust fund as defined in section 584(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code; (10) any trust that is exempt from tax under section 664(c) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code or that is described in section 4947(a)(1) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code; (11) a dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any State; or (12) a broker as defined in section 6045(c) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. This definition shall be interpreted in accordance with the US Internal Revenue Code.

"Supplement"

means a supplement to this Prospectus specifying certain information in respect of a Fund and/or one or more Classes.

"Swing Factor"

means such amount, as determined by the Directors, by which the Net Asset Value per Share may be adjusted upwards or downwards in order to take account of dealing, transaction related costs (such as fiscal and other costs and charges) which would be payable on the effective acquisition or disposal of assets in the relevant Fund, provided that, for the purpose of calculating the expenses of a Fund which are based on the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Fund, the Administrator will continue to use the un-swung Net Asset Value per Share. Under normal market conditions, the Swing Factor will not exceed 2% of the original Net Asset Value per Share in any Fund. In exceptional market circumstances, however, this maximum level may be increased up to 5% to protect the interests of Shareholders.

"T Classes"

means Class T Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund, each a "T Class".

"Taxes Act"

means the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (of Ireland) as amended.

"Threshold"

means the threshold amount applicable to "Net Capital Activity" as determined by the Directors from time to time, beyond which threshold amount the Swing Factor shall apply.

"Total Return Swap"

means a derivative (and a transaction within the scope of SFTR) whereby the total economic performance of a reference obligation is transferred from one counterparty to another counterparty.

"Trail Fee"

means the trail fee payable by a Fund's Administrative Class Shares to the Distributor which may be used to reimburse financial consultants, broker-dealers and other intermediaries for services rendered to the Shareholders.

"UCITS"

means an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities, being an undertaking:

- (a) the sole objective of which is the collective investment in either or both:-transferable securities; other liquid financial assets referred to in Regulation 68 of the Regulations, of capital raised from the public and which operates on the principle of risk spreading;
- (b) the shares of which are, at the request of holders, repurchased or redeemed, directly or indirectly, out of the undertaking's assets.

"UK Financial Conduct Authority"

means the UK Financial Conduct Authority or any successor regulatory authority thereto.

"Umbrella Cash Account"

means (a) a cash account opened in the name of the Company on behalf of all Funds into which (i) subscription monies received from investors who have subscribed for Shares are deposited and held until Shares are issued as of the relevant Dealing Day; and/or (ii) redemption monies due to investors who have redeemed Shares are deposited and held until paid to the relevant investors; and/or (iii) dividend payments owing to Shareholders are deposited and held until paid to such Shareholders.

"Unified Fee"

means the Management Fee plus any applicable Service Fee, Trail Fee or Distribution Fee as set out in the Fund Supplement in respect of a Share Class.

"United Kingdom"

means the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

"United States" or "U.S."

means the United States of America, its territories, possessions and all areas subject to its jurisdiction.

"U.S. Dollars" or "USD"

means the lawful currency of the United States.

"U.S. Person"

means a "U.S. Person", as defined by Rule 902 of Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "1933 Act"), including:

- (i) any natural person resident in the United States;
- (ii) any partnership or corporation organised or incorporated under the laws of the United States;
- (iii) any estate of which any executor or administrator is a U.S. Person;
- (iv) any trust of which any trustee is a U.S. Person;
- (v) any agency or branch of a non-U.S. entity located in the United States;
- (vi) any non-discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a U.S. Person:
- (vii) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary organised, incorporated, or (if an individual) resident in the United States; and
- (viii) any partnership or corporation if:
- (a) organised or incorporated under the laws of any non-U.S. jurisdiction; and
- (b) formed by a U.S. Person principally for the purposes of investing in securities not registered under the 1933 Act, unless it is organised or incorporated, and owned, by accredited investors (as defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the 1933 Act) who are not natural persons, estates or trusts.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, "U.S. Person" shall not include:

 (i) any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held for the benefit or account of a non-U.S. Person by a dealer

- or other professional fiduciary organised, incorporated, or (if an individual) resident in the United States;
- (ii) any estate of which any professional fiduciary acting as executor or administrator is a U.S. Person, if:
- (a) an executor or administrator of the estate who is not a U.S. Person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the assets of the estate, and
- (b) the estate is governed by non-United States law;
- (iii) any trust of which any professional fiduciary acting as trustee is a U.S. Person if a trustee who is not a U.S. Person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the trust assets and no beneficiary of the trust (and no settlor if the trust is revocable) is a U.S. Person;
- (iv) an employee benefit plan established and administered in accordance with the law of a country other than the United States and customary practices and documentation of such country;
- (v) any agency or branch of a U.S. Person located outside the United States if:
- (a) the agency or branch operates for valid business reasons, and
- (b) the agency or branch is engaged in the business of insurance or banking and is subject to substantive insurance or banking regulation, respectively, in the jurisdiction where located;
- (vi) certain international organisations (and their agencies, affiliates and pension plans) as specified in Rule 902(k)(2)(vi) of Regulation S under the 1933 Act; or
- (viii) an entity excluded or exempted from the definition of "U.S. Person" in reliance on or with reference to interpretations or positions of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff.

the point in time at which a Fund's investments are valued and the Net Asset Value per Share is determined. The Valuation Point is normally 9:00 p.m. Irish Time on each Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) or, if the Dealing Deadline for any Dealing Day is brought forward, such other point in time as the Directors, with the consent of the Depositary, shall determine provided that the Valuation Point is after the Dealing Deadline.

means W Class Shares of the Company set forth in the Supplement for each Fund.

"Valuation Point"

"W Class"

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

The information set out under this heading is a summary of the principal features of the Company and the Funds and should be read in conjunction with the full text of this Prospectus.

The Company

The Company is an open-ended investment company with variable capital and with segregated liability between Funds authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 under the Regulations. It is an umbrella type company in that classes of Shares may be issued in relation to different Funds from time to time. More than one class of Shares may, at the discretion of the Directors, be issued in relation to a Fund. This Prospectus and any Supplements constitute an offering of the Funds and Share Classes noted in this Prospectus and the relevant Supplements (as amended or supplemented from time to time). The Prospectus and Supplements detail each Fund and the respective Share Classes offered as well as the currency in which the Share Classes are denominated. Within each Class, the Company may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (Shares which seek to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). A separate portfolio of assets is maintained for each Fund and is invested in accordance with the investment objectives and policies applicable to such Fund. Particulars (including investment objectives and policies) relating to individual Funds are set forth in the relevant Supplement which forms part of and should be read in conjunction with this Prospectus.

Further Funds may be created from time to time by the Directors with the prior written approval of the Central Bank. Further Classes may be created from time to time by the Directors and will be notified to, and cleared, in advance with the Central Bank.

The Company is an umbrella fund with segregated liability between Funds. Accordingly any liability incurred on behalf of or attributable to any Fund of the Company shall be discharged solely out of the assets of that Fund, and neither the Company nor any director, receiver, examiner, liquidator, provisional liquidator or other person shall apply, nor be obliged to apply, the assets of any such Fund in satisfaction of any liability incurred on behalf of or attributable to any other Fund of the Company, irrespective of when such liability was incurred.

Duration

Duration is a measure of the expected life of a fixed income security that is used to determine the sensitivity of a security's price to changes in interest rates that incorporates a security's yield, coupon, final maturity and call features, among other characteristics. The longer a security's duration, the more sensitive it will be to changes in interest rates. Similarly, a Fund with a longer average portfolio duration will be more sensitive to changes in interest rates than a Fund with a shorter average portfolio duration. By way of example, the price of a bond fund with a duration of five years would be expected to fall approximately 5% if interest rates rose by one percentage point.

Effective duration takes into account that for certain bonds expected cash flows will fluctuate as interest rates change and is defined in nominal yield terms, which is market convention for most bond investors and managers. Durations for real return type bond funds (including the Global Real Return Fund), which are based on real yields, are converted to nominal durations through a conversion factor, typically between 20% and 90% of the respective real duration. Similarly the effective duration of the indices against which those funds measure their duration will be calculated using the same conversion factors. Where the average portfolio duration of a Fund is measured against that of an index, the Investment Advisor may use an internal model for calculating the duration of the index which may result in a different value to that calculated by the index provider or another third party. Further details on the average portfolio duration band of each Fund will be set out in the relevant Supplement and an up-to-date description of each Fund's duration will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request

Credit Ratings

In this Prospectus, references are made to credit ratings of debt securities which measure an issuer's expected ability to pay principal and interest over time. Credit ratings are determined by rating organizations, such as S&P, Moody's or Fitch. The following terms are generally used to describe the credit quality of debt securities depending on the security's credit rating or, if unrated, credit quality as determined by the Investment Advisor:

- High quality
- Investment grade
- Below investment grade ("High Yield Securities" or "Junk Bonds")

For a further description of credit ratings, see "Appendix 2 — Description of Securities Ratings". As noted in Appendix 2, Moody's, S&P and Fitch may modify their ratings of securities to show relative standing within a rating category, with the addition of numerical modifiers (1, 2 or 3) in the case of Moody's, and with the addition of a plus (+) or minus (-) sign in the case of S&P and Fitch. A Fund may purchase a security, regardless of any rating modification, provided the security is rated at or above the Fund's minimum rating category. For example, a Fund may purchase a security rated B1 by Moody's or B- by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, provided the Fund may purchase securities rated B.

Indices

Certain Funds may refer to indices within the Supplement of the relevant Funds. These indices may be referenced for various purposes including, but not limited to, duration measurement, as a benchmark which the Fund seeks to outperform and Relative VaR measurement.

The particular purpose of the relevant index shall be clearly disclosed in the relevant Supplement. Unless otherwise referenced in the relevant Supplement, indices will not be used to measure the performance of a Fund in accordance with Article 3(1)(7)(e) of the Benchmark Regulation.

The Manager has put in place written plans, in accordance with Article 28(2) of the Benchmark Regulation, detailing the actions it will take in the event that any index it uses for any Fund in accordance with Article 3(1)(7)(e) of the Benchmark Regulation materially changes or ceases to be provided. These written plans detail the steps the Manager will take to nominate a suitable alternative index.

Actively managed Funds will not follow a passive investment strategy and the Investment Advisor will apply investment techniques and risk analysis in making investment decisions for such Funds. Whether a Fund is actively or passively managed will be disclosed in the relevant Supplement.

Where referenced in the relevant Supplement, a benchmark may be used as part of the active management of a Fund including, but not limited to, for duration measurement, as a benchmark which the Fund seeks to outperform, performance comparison purposes and/or Relative VaR measurement. In such instances, certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the benchmark and the Fund may from time to time show a high degree of correlation with the performance of any such benchmark. However the benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the benchmark.

Unless otherwise referenced in the relevant Supplement, a benchmark shall not be used in the active management of a Fund. However, investors should note that a Fund may from time to time show a high degree of correlation with the performance of one or more financial indices not referenced in the Supplement. Such correlation may be coincidental or may arise because any such financial index may be representative of the asset class, market sector or geographic location in which the Fund is invested or uses a similar investment methodology to that used in managing the Fund.

Integration of Sustainability Risks

Under the EU Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation ("SFDR"), "sustainability risk" means an environmental, social or governance ("ESG") event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of an investment ("Sustainability Risks"). The management of Sustainability Risks therefore forms an important part of the due diligence process implemented by the Manager and the Investment Advisor. When assessing the Sustainability Risks associated with underlying investments, the Manager and the Investment Advisor are assessing the risk that the value of such underlying investments could be materially negatively impacted by an ESG event. Sustainability Risks are identified, monitored and managed by the Manager and the Investment Advisor. This information applies to each of the Funds unless otherwise specified in a Fund Supplement.

The Manager and the Investment Advisor define ESG integration as the consistent consideration of material Sustainability Risks into the investment research and due diligence process to enhance the Funds' risk-adjusted returns. Material Sustainability Risks may include but are not limited to: climate change risks, social inequality, shifting consumer preferences, regulatory risks, talent management or misconduct at an issuer, among others. The Manager and the Investment Advisor believe incorporating relevant Sustainability Risks should be part of a robust investment process.

The Manager and the Investment Advisor recognise that Sustainability Risks are increasingly essential inputs when evaluating global economies, markets, industries and business models. Material Sustainability Risks are important considerations when evaluating long-term investment opportunities and risks for all asset classes in both public and private markets.

Integrating Sustainability Risks into the evaluation process does not mean that ESG information is the sole or primary consideration for an investment decision; instead, the Investment Advisor evaluates and weighs a variety of financial and non-financial factors, which can include ESG considerations, to make investment decisions. The relevance of Sustainability Risks to investment decisions varies across asset classes and strategies. Increasing and diversifying the information assessed by the portfolio management team of the Investment Advisor where relevant generates a more holistic view of an investment, which should generate opportunities to enhance returns for investors.

Engagement Philosophy

Active engagement with issuers may form part of the Investment Advisor's ESG and Sustainability Risks integration. The Manager and the Investment Advisor believe that ESG investing is not only about investing and/or engaging with issuers that already demonstrate a favourable approach to ESG, but also about engaging with those with less advanced sustainability practices. This can be a direct way for the Investment Advisor to influence positive changes that may benefit all stakeholders, including investors, employees, society and the environment.

The Investment Advisor's credit research analysts may engage with the issuers on topics such as corporate strategy, leverage, and balance sheet management, as well as ESG-related topics such as climate change targets and environmental plans, human capital management, and board qualifications and composition.

The assessment and mitigation of Sustainability Risks

Sustainability Risks may arise and impact a specific investment made by the Company or may have a broader impact on an economic sector, geographical regions or countries, which, in turn, may impact the Company's investments. To the extent that an ESG event occurs, there may be a sudden, material negative impact on the value of an investment, and hence the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund. Such negative impact may result in an entire loss of value of the relevant investment(s) and may have an equivalent negative impact on the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund.

ESG Investment Risk

Certain Funds may pursue an ESG investing strategy, which typically selects or excludes securities of certain issuers for reasons other than financial performance. Such strategy carries the risk that a Fund's performance will differ from similar funds that do not utilize an ESG investing strategy. For example, the application of this strategy could affect a Fund's exposure to certain sectors or types of investments, which could negatively impact a Fund's performance.

There is no guarantee that the factors utilized by the Investment Advisor will reflect the opinions of any particular investor, and the factors utilized by the Investment Advisor may differ from the factors that any particular investor considers relevant in evaluating an issuer's ESG practices.

Future ESG development and regulation may impact a Fund's implementation of its investment strategy. In addition, there may be cost implications arising from ESG related due diligence, increased reporting and use of third-party ESG data providers.

Taxonomy Regulation Alignment

Unless otherwise stated in a Fund Supplement, the investments underlying the Funds do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company provides a broad range of investment choices. Investors should be aware that the investments made by a Fund and the results achieved by a Fund at any given time are not expected to be the same as those made by other funds for which the Investment Advisor acts as Investment Advisor, including funds with names, investment objectives and policies similar to the Funds.

General

The investment objective and policies of each Fund are described in the relevant Supplement for each Fund. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of any Fund will be achieved. A change in the investment objective of a Fund or a material change in investment policy of a Fund may only be made with the approval of an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders of the relevant Fund. The Directors have the power to change a Fund's investment policies. In the event of such a change of investment objectives and/or material investment policies, a reasonable notification period will be provided to enable Shareholders to redeem their Shares prior to the implementation of these changes.

Investments made by each of the Funds will be made in accordance with the Regulations. The investment restrictions contained in the Regulations are set forth in **Appendix 4.** Investment restrictions applicable to a Fund, unless otherwise required by the Regulations, are applicable at the time of purchase. Any subsequent change resulting from market fluctuations or other changes in a Fund's total assets (for example a change in a security's rating or in the percentage of a Fund's assets invested in certain securities or other instruments, or in the average duration of a Fund's investment portfolio), will not require a Fund to dispose of an investment unless the Investment Advisor determines that it is practicable to sell or close out the investment without undue market or tax consequences to the Fund. A Fund may retain such securities if the Investment Advisor deems it in the best interests of Shareholders.

Following the date of approval of a Fund and subject to the Regulations, there may be a period of time before the Investment Advisor configures the investments of a Fund in line with the stated investment objective and policies of the Fund. Accordingly there is no guarantee that the Fund is capable of meeting immediately its stated investment objective and policies during this period of time. In addition, following the date notice is served to Shareholders of the termination of a Fund, a Fund may not be capable of meeting any additional investment limit or criteria set by the Fund.

When the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, each Fund, may invest without limit but in accordance with the Regulations in U.S. debt securities (including taxable securities and short-term money market securities) of governments, their agencies or instrumentalities and corporations. There is no guarantee that a Fund will achieve its investment objective in utilising such strategies.

A discussion of the general risk factors that should be considered prior to investing in the Funds is provided under the heading "General Risk Factors" and additional information is provided under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities. Derivatives. Other Investments and Investment Techniques".

The Company will employ a risk management process which will enable it to measure, monitor and manage the risks attached to financial derivative positions and details of this process have been provided to the Central Bank. The Company will provide on request to Shareholders supplementary information relating to the risk management methods employed by the Company including the quantitative limits that are applied and any recent developments in the risk and yield characteristics of the main categories of investments.

The exchanges and markets in which the Funds may invest are listed in **Appendix 1** in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. The Central Bank does not issue a list of approved markets or exchanges. A description of the rating categories relevant to each Fund is contained under the heading "**Description of Securities Ratings**" in **Appendix 2**.

Any references to "total portfolio exposure" shall be to all of the assets of the Fund and all exposures created through investment in derivatives.

Cross Investment

Investors should note that, subject to the requirements of the Central Bank, each of the Funds may invest in the other Funds of the Company. Investment may not be made in a Fund that itself holds shares in other Funds of the Company.

Borrowing Powers

The Company may only borrow for the account of a Fund on a temporary basis and the aggregate amount of such borrowings may not exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of each Fund. Subject to this limit the Directors may exercise all borrowing powers on behalf of the Company. In accordance with the provisions of the UCITS Regulations the Company may charge the assets of a Fund as security for such borrowings.

Collateral

Each Fund may receive cash and high quality securities permitted by the Central Bank to the extent deemed necessary by the Investment Advisor in respect of over-the-counter derivative transactions or efficient portfolio management techniques and Securities Financing Transactions for the Fund. A documented haircut policy is in place for the Funds detailing the policy in respect of each class of assets received and which takes into account the characteristics of the assets and the results of any stress tests conducted as required.

Collateral received from a counterparty for the benefit of a Fund may be in the form of cash or non-cash assets and must, at all times, meet with the specific criteria outlined in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations in relation to (i) liquidity; (ii) valuation; (iii) issuer credit quality; (iv) correlation; (v) diversification (asset concentration); and (vi) immediate availability. There are no restrictions on maturity provided the collateral is sufficiently liquid. A Fund may be fully collateralised in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by an EU Member State, one or more of its local authorities, a third country, or a public international body to which one or more EU Member States belong (and which issuers are set out in Appendix 4 – "Investment Restrictions"). In such circumstances, the Fund shall receive securities from at least 6 different issues, but securities from any single issue should not account for more than 30% of the Fund's net value.

Re-invested cash collateral shall be diversified in accordance with the diversification requirements applicable to non-cash collateral. Re-invested cash collateral exposes the Funds to certain risks such as the risk of a failure or default of the issuer of the relevant security in which the cash collateral has been invested. Investors should consult the "General Risk Factors" of the Prospectus for information on counterparty risk and credit risk in this regard.

Collateral posted to a counterparty by or on behalf of a Fund will consist of such collateral as is agreed with the counterparty from time to time and may include any types of assets held by the Fund.

Regarding valuation, collateral received shall be valued on at least a daily basis and assets that exhibit high price volatility should not be accepted as collateral unless suitably conservative haircuts are in place.

Where appropriate, non-cash collateral held for the benefit of a Fund shall be valued in accordance with the valuation policies and principles applicable to the Company. Subject to any agreement on valuation made with the counterparty, collateral posted to a recipient counterparty will be valued daily at mark-to-market value.

Any non-cash assets received by the Fund from a counterparty on a title transfer basis (whether in respect of a Securities Financing Transaction, an over-the-counter derivative transaction or otherwise) shall be held by the Depositary or a duly appointed sub-depositary. Assets provided by the Fund on a title transfer basis shall no longer belong to the Fund and shall pass outside the custodial network. The counterparty may use those assets at its absolute discretion. Assets provided to a counterparty other than on a title transfer basis shall be held by the Depositary or a duly appointed sub-depositary.

Cash collateral may not be invested other than in the following:

- deposits with Relevant Institutions;
- high-quality government bonds;
- reverse repurchase agreements provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the Fund is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on an accrued basis;
- short-term money market funds as defined in Article 2(14) of Regulation (EU) 2017/1131 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2017 on money market funds (the "Money Market Funds Regulation").

Financial Indices

Details of any financial indices used by the Funds will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Furthermore, the financial indices to which the Funds may gain exposure will typically be rebalanced on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. The costs associated with gaining exposure to a financial index will be impacted by the frequency with which the relevant financial index is rebalanced. Where the weighting of a particular constituent in the financial index exceeds the UCITS investment restrictions, the Investment Advisor will as a priority objective look to remedy the situation taking into account the interests of Shareholders and the Fund. Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.

Eligible Counterparty

A Fund may invest in over-the-counter derivative transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank and provided that the counterparty is an Eligible Counterparty.

The Company will conduct due diligence in the selection of counterparties to an over-the-counter derivative transaction or a Securities Financing Transaction. Such due diligence shall include consideration of the legal status, country of origin, credit rating and minimum credit rating (where relevant) of the counterparty.

Save where the relevant counterparty to the relevant Securities Financing Transaction or over-the-counter derivative contract is a Relevant Institution, where such counterparty (a) is subject to a credit rating by an agency registered and supervised by ESMA that rating shall be taken into account by the Company in the credit assessment process; and (b) where a counterparty is downgraded to A-2 or below (or comparable rating) by the credit rating agency referred to in subparagraph (a) this shall result in a new credit assessment being conducted of the counterparty by the Company without delay.

EFFICIENT PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT AND SECURITIES FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Company may employ techniques and instruments intended to provide protection against exchange risks in the context of the management of the assets and liabilities of each Fund and under the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Central Bank from time to time. Furthermore, new techniques and instruments may be developed which may be suitable for use by a Fund in the future and a Fund may employ such techniques and instruments in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.

To the extent permitted by the investment objectives and policies of the Funds and subject to the limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time, use of the following techniques and instruments for efficient portfolio management purposes apply to all the Funds.

The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will only be used in line with the best interests of the Funds. Efficient portfolio management techniques may be used with the aim of reducing certain risks associated with the Funds' investments, reducing costs and to generate additional income for the Funds having regard to the risk profile of the Funds. The use of efficient portfolio management techniques will not result in a change to the investment objective as outlined in the relevant Fund Supplement.

Securities Financing Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of SFTR and the Central Bank, each Fund may use certain Securities Financing Transactions where provided for in the relevant Supplement. Such Securities Financing Transactions may be entered into for any purpose that is consistent with the investment objective of the relevant Fund, including to generate income or profits in order to increase portfolio returns or to reduce portfolio expenses or risks. A general description of the types of Securities Financing Transactions a Fund may engage in is set out below.

Any type of assets that may be held by each Fund in accordance with its investment objective and policies may be subject to such Securities Financing Transactions. Where provided for in the relevant Supplement, the Fund may also use Total Return Swaps. Subject to each Fund's investment objective and polices, there is no limit on the proportion of assets that may be subject to Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps and therefore the maximum and expected proportion of the Fund's assets that can be subject to Securities Financing Transactions will be 100%, i.e. all of the assets of the Fund. In any case the most recent semi-annual and annual accounts of the Company will express the amount of the Fund's assets subject to Securities Financing Transactions and Total Return Swaps.

The Investment Advisor classifies *repurchase agreements* as transactions whereby a counterparty sells a security to the Fund with a simultaneous agreement to repurchase the security from the Fund at a fixed future date at a stipulated price reflecting a market rate of interest unrelated to the coupon rate of the securities. The Investment Advisor classifies *reverse repurchase agreements* as transactions whereby a counterparty purchases securities from a Fund and simultaneously commits to resell the securities to the Fund at an agreed upon date and price.

Total Return Swaps may be entered into for any purpose that is consistent with the investment objective of a Fund, including efficient portfolio management (such as hedging purposes or the reduction of portfolio expenses), speculative purposes (in order to increase income and profits for the portfolio), or to gain exposure to certain markets.

The Funds shall not enter into securities lending agreements until such time as an updated supplement is filed with the Central Bank.

All revenues from Securities Financing Transactions, Total Return Swaps and other efficient portfolio management techniques, net of direct and indirect operational costs, will be returned to the Funds. Any direct and indirect operational costs/fees arising do not include hidden revenue and will be paid to such entities as outlined in the annual and semi-annual report of the Company.

Investors should consult the sections of the Prospectus below and entitled "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" and "Fund Transactions and Conflicts of Interest" for more information on the risks associated with efficient portfolio management.

Derivative Instruments

The Funds may purchase and sell structured notes and hybrid securities, purchase and write call and put options on securities (including straddles), securities indexes and currencies, and enter into futures contracts and use options on futures contracts (including straddles). Each Fund may also enter into swap agreements including, but not limited to, 10822885v25

swap agreements on interest rates, currency exchange rates, security indexes, specific securities, and credit swaps. To the extent a Fund may invest in foreign currency-denominated securities, it may also invest in currency exchange rate swap agreements. The Funds may also enter into options on swap agreements with respect to currencies, interest rates, and securities indexes and may also enter into currency forward contracts and credit default swaps. The Funds may use these techniques with respect to its management of (i) interest rates, (ii) currency or exchange rates, or (iii) securities prices. The Funds may enter into when-issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, futures, options, swaps and currency transactions for efficient portfolio management purposes.

If the Investment Advisor incorrectly forecasts interest rates, market values or other economic factors in using a derivatives strategy for a Fund for efficient portfolio management purposes, the Fund might have been in a better position if it had not entered into the transaction at all. The use of these strategies involves certain special risks, including a possible imperfect correlation, or even no correlation, between price movements of derivative instruments and price movements of related investments. While some strategies involving derivative instruments can reduce the risk of loss, they can also reduce the opportunity for gain or even result in losses by offsetting favourable price movements in related investments, or due to the possible inability of a Fund to purchase or sell a portfolio security at a time that otherwise would be favourable for it to do so, or the possible need for a Fund to sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time, and the possible inability of a Fund to close out or to liquidate its derivatives positions.

Whether a Fund's use of swap agreements and options on swap agreements for efficient portfolio management purposes will be successful will depend on the Investment Advisor's ability to correctly predict whether certain types of investments are likely to produce greater returns than other investments. Because they are two-party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven days, swap agreements may be considered to be illiquid investments. Moreover, a Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement in the event of the default or bankruptcy of a swap agreement counterparty. The swaps market is a relatively new market and is largely unregulated. It is possible that developments in the swaps market, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect a Fund's ability to terminate existing swap agreements or to realise amounts to be received under such agreements.

A Fund may enter into credit default swap agreements. The "buyer" in a credit default contract is obligated to pay the "seller" a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract provided that no event of default on an underlying reference obligation has occurred. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value, or "par value", of the reference obligation in exchange for the reference obligation. A Fund may be either the buyer or seller in a credit default swap transaction. If a Fund is a buyer and no event of default occurs, the Fund will lose its investment and recover nothing. However, if an event of default occurs, the Fund (if the buyer) will receive the full notional value of the reference obligation that may have little or no value. As a seller, a Fund receives a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the contract, which typically is between six months and three years, provided that there is no default event. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value of the reference obligation.

Mortgage Dollar Rolls

Each of the Funds may use mortgage dollar rolls for efficient portfolio management purposes, including as a costefficient substitute for a direct exposure or for performance enhancement purposes. A "mortgage dollar roll" is similar to a reverse repurchase agreement in certain respects. In a "dollar roll" transaction, a Fund sells a mortgage-related security to a dealer and simultaneously agrees to repurchase a similar security (but not the same security) in the future at a pre-determined price. A "dollar roll" can be viewed like a reverse repurchase agreement. Unlike in the case of reverse repurchase agreements, the counterparty (which is a regulated broker/ dealer) is not obliged to post collateral at least equal in value to the underlying securities. In addition, the dealer with which a Fund enters into a dollar roll transaction is not obligated to return the same securities as those originally sold by the Fund, but only securities which are "substantially identical". To be considered "substantially identical", the securities returned to a Fund generally must: (1) be collateralised by the same types of underlying mortgages; (2) be issued by the same agency and be part of the same programme; (3) have a similar original stated maturity; (4) have identical net coupon rates; (5) have similar market yields (and therefore price); and (6) satisfy "good delivery" requirements, meaning that the aggregate principal amounts of the securities delivered and received back must be within 2.5% of the initial amount delivered. Because a dollar roll involves an agreement to purchase or sell a security in the future at a pre-determined price, the Company will be unable to exploit market movements in the price of a particular security in respect of which a mortgage dollar roll transaction has been agreed. If a mortgage dollar roll counterparty should default the Fund will be exposed to the market price (which may move upwards or downwards) at which the Fund must purchase replacement securities to honour a future sale obligation less the sale proceeds to be received by the Fund in respect of that future sale obligation.

Loans of Portfolio Securities

Each Fund's performance will continue to reflect changes in the value of securities loaned and will also reflect the receipt of either interest through investment of cash collateral by the Fund in permissible investments, or a fee, if the collateral is U.S. Government securities. Securities lending involves the risk of loss of rights in the collateral or delay in recovery of the collateral should the borrower fail to return the securities loaned or become insolvent. The Funds may pay lending fees to the party arranging the loan.

GENERAL RISK FACTORS

The value of Shares of each Fund can go down as well as up and an investor may not get back the amount invested. Risks attributable to securities in which the Funds may invest are discussed in "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" below.

The securities and instruments in which the Funds may invest are subject to normal market fluctuations and other risks inherent in such investments and there can be no assurance that any appreciation in value will occur. The value of an investment in a Fund changes with the values of that Fund's investments. Many factors can affect those values. The following describes some of the general risk factors which should be considered prior to investing in the Funds. Details of specific risks attaching to a particular Fund or Class which are additional to those described in this section will be disclosed in the relevant Supplement.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fixed income securities, dividend-paying equity securities and other instruments in a Fund's portfolio will decline in value because of an increase in interest rates. As nominal interest rates rise, the value of Fixed Income Securities, dividend-paying equity securities and other instruments held by a Fund is likely to decrease. Securities with longer durations tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter durations. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest rate and an expected inflation rate. Interest rate changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and the Fund may lose money as a result of movements in interest rates. A Fund may not be able to hedge against changes in interest rates or may choose not to do so for cost or other reasons. In addition, any hedges may not work as intended. Inflation-indexed securities decline in value when real interest rates rise. In certain interest rate environments, such as when real interest rates are rising faster than nominal interest rates, inflation-indexed securities may experience greater losses than other fixed income securities with similar durations.

Fixed income securities with longer durations tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than securities with shorter durations. The values of equity and other non-fixed income securities may also decline due to fluctuations in interest rates. Inflation-indexed bonds decline in value when real interest rates rise. In certain interest rate environments, such as when real interest rates are rising faster than nominal interest rates, inflation-indexed bonds may experience greater losses than other fixed income securities with similar durations.

Variable and floating rate securities generally are less sensitive to interest rate changes but may decline in value if their interest rates do not rise as much, or as quickly, as interest rates in general. Conversely, floating rate securities will not generally increase in value if interest rates decline. Inverse floating rate securities may decrease in value if interest rates increase. Inverse floating rate securities may also exhibit greater price volatility than a fixed rate obligation with similar credit quality. When a Fund holds variable or floating rate securities, a decrease (or, in the case of inverse floating rate securities, an increase) in market interest rates will adversely affect the income received from such securities and the net asset value of the Fund's shares.

Dividend-paying equity securities, particularly those whose market price is closely related to their yield, may be more sensitive to changes in interest rates. During periods of rising interest rates, the values of such securities may decline, which may result in losses to the Fund.

A wide variety of factors can cause interest rates to rise (e.g., monetary policies, inflation rates, general economic conditions, etc.). This is especially true under economic conditions where interest rates are at low levels. Thus, Funds that invest in fixed income securities may face a heightened level of interest rate risk.

Very low or negative interest rates may magnify interest rate risk. Changing interest rates, including rates that fall below zero, may have unpredictable effects on markets, may result in heightened market volatility and may detract from Fund performance to the extent a Fund is exposed to such interest rates.

Measures such as average duration may not accurately reflect the true interest rate sensitivity of a Fund. This is especially the case if the Fund consists of securities with widely varying durations. Therefore, a Fund with an average duration that suggests a certain level of interest rate risk may in fact be subject to greater interest rate risk than the average would suggest. This risk is greater to the extent the Fund uses leverage or derivatives in connection with the management of the Fund.

Basis Risk

Strategies that target perceived pricing inefficiencies and similar strategies, such as arbitrage strategies, are subject to the risk that markets or the prices of individual securities do not move as forecast, resulting in potentially reduced returns or losses to a Fund and possibly costs associated with unwinding certain trades. Forecasting market movements is difficult, and securities may be mispriced or improperly valued by the Investment Advisors. Securities issued by the same entity, or securities otherwise considered similar, may not be priced or valued similarly across markets or in the same market, and attempts to profit from pricing differences may not be successful for several reasons, including unexpected changes in pricing and valuation. To the extent a Fund uses derivatives to pursue certain strategies, the Fund is subject to the additional risk that the derivative's performance does not correlate perfectly, if at all, with the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index.

Measures such as average credit quality or average duration may not accurately reflect the true credit risk or interest rate sensitivity of a Fund. This is especially the case if the Fund consists of securities with widely varying credit ratings or durations. Therefore, a Fund with an average credit rating or average duration that suggests a certain credit quality or level of interest rate risk may in fact be subject to greater credit risk or interest rate risk than the average would suggest. These risks are greater to the extent the Fund uses leverage or derivatives in connection with the management of the Fund.

Credit Risk

A Fund could lose money if the issuer or guarantor of a Fixed Income Security, or the counterparty to a derivatives contract, repurchase agreement or a loan of portfolio securities, is unable or unwilling to make timely principal and/or interest payments, or to otherwise honour its obligations. Securities are subject to varying degrees of credit risk, which are often reflected in credit ratings. Municipal bonds are subject to the risk that litigation, legislation or other political events, local business or economic conditions, or the bankruptcy of the issuer could have a significant effect on an issuer's ability to make payments of principal and/or interest.

Measures such as average credit quality may not accurately reflect the true credit risk of a Fund. This is especially the case if the Fund consists of securities with widely varying credit ratings. Therefore, a Fund with an average credit rating that suggests a certain credit quality may in fact be subject to greater credit risk than the average would suggest. This risk is greater to the extent the Fund uses leverage or derivatives in connection with the management of the Fund.

High Yield Risk

Funds that invest in high yield below investment grade securities and unrated securities of similar credit quality (commonly known as "junk bonds") may be subject to greater levels of interest rate risk, credit risk, call risk and liquidity risk than Funds that do not invest in such securities. These securities are considered predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to make principal and interest payments, and may be more volatile than higherrated securities of similar maturity. An economic downturn or period of rising interest rates or individual corporate developments could adversely affect the market for high yield securities and reduce a Fund's ability to sell these securities at an advantageous time or price. In particular, junk bonds are often issued by smaller, less creditworthy companies or by highly levered (indebted) companies, which are generally less able than more financially stable companies to make scheduled payments of interest and principal. High yield securities structured as zero-coupon bonds or pay-in-kind securities tend to be especially volatile as they are particularly sensitive to downward pricing pressures from rising interest rates or widening spreads and may require a Fund make taxable distributions of imputed income without receiving the actual cash currency. If the issuer of a security is in default with respect to interest or principal payments, a Fund may lose its entire investment. Issuers of high yield securities may have the right to "call" or redeem the issue prior to maturity, which may result in the Fund having to reinvest its proceeds in securities paying a lower interest rate. Also, junk bonds tend to be less marketable (i.e., less liquid) than higher-rated securities because the market for them is not as broad or active, high yield issuances may be smaller than investment grade issuances and less public information is typically available about high yield securities. Because of the risks involved in investing in high yield securities, an investment in a Fund that invests in such securities may be considered speculative.

Market Risk

The market price of securities owned by a Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Securities may decline in value due to factors affecting securities markets generally or particular industries represented in the securities markets. The value of a security may decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general

outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates, adverse changes to credit markets or adverse investor sentiment generally. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labour shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. During a general downturn in the securities markets, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultaneously. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities. Credit ratings downgrades may also negatively affect securities held by each Fund. Even when markets perform well, there is no assurance that the investments held by a Fund will increase in value along with the broader market. In addition, market risk includes the risk that geopolitical events will disrupt the economy on a national or global level. For instance, terrorism, market manipulation, government defaults, government shutdowns, and natural/environmental disasters can all negatively impact the securities markets, which could cause the Funds to lose value. Any market disruptions could also prevent a Fund from executing advantageous investment decisions in a timely manner. Funds that have focused their investments in a region enduring geopolitical market disruption will face higher risks of loss.

Certain market conditions may pose heightened risks with respect to Funds that invest in fixed income securities, as discussed more under "interest rate risk". Any future interest rate increases could cause the value of any Fund that invests in fixed income securities to decrease. As such, the fixed income securities markets may experience heightened levels of interest rate, volatility and liquidity risk. If rising interest rates cause a Fund to lose enough value, the Fund could also face increased shareholder redemptions, which could force the Fund to liquidate investments at disadvantageous times or prices, therefore adversely affecting the Fund.

Exchanges and securities markets may close early, close late or issue trading halts on specific securities, which may result in, among other things, a Fund being unable to buy or sell certain securities or financial instruments at an advantageous time or accurately price its portfolio investments.

Epidemic/Pandemic Related Risk

An epidemic is a widespread occurrence of an infectious disease in a community at a particular time. A pandemic occurs when an epidemic reaches national or global levels. While an epidemic may primarily affect a particular region (and Funds that have focused their investment in that region may face higher risks of loss), an epidemic may also adversely affect the global economy, the economies of the relevant nations and individual issuers, all of which may negatively impact a Fund's performance. It is likely that a pandemic will have more far-reaching consequences. While a pandemic may vary in severity and duration, it may present significant financial and/or operational risks to the Company, the Manager and/or its service providers (including the Administrator and the Investment Advisor) for its duration and beyond. Depending on the severity of the pandemic, it may result in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty and volatility. For example, beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19. The effects of COVID-19 have and may continue to adversely affect the global economy, the economies of certain nations and individual issuers, all of which may negatively impact a Fund's performance.

Such market disruptions caused by medical and health-related events may cause dramatic losses for a Fund and such events can result in otherwise historically low-risk strategies performing with unprecedented volatility and risk. A pandemic may have an adverse impact on a Fund's portfolio, or a Fund's ability to source new investments or to realise its investments. Epidemics, pandemics and/or similar events could also have an acute effect on individual issuers or related groups of issuers and could adversely affect securities markets, interest rates, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk, inflation, deflation and other factors relating to the Company's or an Investment Advisor's (or other service providers') operations. Additionally, the risks related to health pandemics or outbreaks of disease are heightened due to uncertainty as to whether such an event would qualify as a force majeure event. If a force majeure event is determined to have occurred, a Fund's counterparty may be relieved of its obligations under certain contracts to which the Fund (or its delegate) is a party, or, if it has not, the Fund (or its delegate) may be required to meet its contractual obligations, despite potential constraints on their operations and/or financial stability. Either outcome could adversely impact the Fund's performance.

Issuer Risk

The value of a security may decline for a number of reasons which directly relate to the issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods or services.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk exists when particular investments are difficult to purchase or sell. Also, illiquid securities may become harder to value especially in changing markets. A Fund's investments in illiquid securities may reduce the returns of the Fund because it may be unable to sell the illiquid securities at an advantageous time or price which could prevent the Fund from taking advantage of other investment opportunities. Funds with principal investment strategies that involve foreign securities, derivatives or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk.

Additionally, the market for certain investments may become illiquid under adverse market or economic conditions independent of any specific adverse changes in the conditions of a particular issuer. Bond markets have consistently grown over the past three decades while the capacity for traditional dealer counterparties to engage in fixed income trading has not kept pace and in some cases has decreased. As a result, dealer inventories of corporate bonds, which provide a core indication of the ability of financial intermediaries to "make markets," are at or near historic lows in relation to market size. Because market makers provide stability to a market through their intermediary services, the significant reduction in dealer inventories could potentially lead to decreased liquidity and increased volatility in the fixed income markets. Such issues may be exacerbated during periods of economic uncertainty.

In such cases, a Fund, due to limitations on investments in illiquid securities and the difficulty in purchasing and selling such securities or instruments, may be unable to achieve its desired level of exposure to a certain sector. To the extent that a Fund's principal investment strategies involve securities of companies with smaller market capitalizations, foreign securities, illiquid sectors of fixed income securities, or securities with substantial market and/or credit risk, the Fund will tend to have the greatest exposure to liquidity risk. Further, fixed income securities with longer durations until maturity face heightened levels of liquidity risk as compared to fixed income securities with shorter durations until maturity. Finally, liquidity risk also refers to the risk of unusually high redemption requests or other unusual market conditions that may make it difficult for a Fund to fully honour redemption requests within the allowable time period. Meeting such redemption requests could require a Fund to sell securities at reduced prices or under unfavourable conditions, which would reduce the value of the Fund. It may also be the case that other market participants may be attempting to liquidate fixed income holdings at the same time as a Fund, causing increased supply in the market and contributing to liquidity risk and downward pricing pressure.

Capital Erosion Risk

Certain Funds and Share Classes may have as the priority objective the generation of income rather than capital. Investors should note that the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees and any other fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth. In this regard, distributions made during the life of the Fund or an applicable Share Class should be understood as a type of capital reimbursement.

Derivatives Risk

Each Fund may be subject to risks associated with derivative instruments.

Derivatives are financial contracts whose value depends on, or is derived from, the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index. The various derivative instruments that the Funds may use are set out in the section headed "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Derivatives will typically be used as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset and/or as part of strategies designed to gain exposure to, for example, issuers, portions of the yield curve, indices, sectors, currencies, and/or geographic regions, and/or to reduce exposure to other risks, such as interest rate or currency risk. The Funds may also use derivatives for gaining exposure within the limits set out by the Central Bank, in which case their use would involve exposure risk, and in some cases, may subject a Fund to the potential for unlimited loss. The use of derivatives may cause the Fund's investment returns to be impacted by the performance of securities the Fund does not own and result in the Fund's total investment exposure exceeding the value of its portfolio.

A Fund's use of derivative instruments involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other traditional investments. Derivatives are subject to a number of risks described elsewhere in this section, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, market risk, credit risk and management risk, as well as risks arising from changes in margin requirements. They also involve the risk of mispricing or improper valuation and the risk that changes in the value of the derivative may not correlate perfectly with the underlying asset, rate or index. A Fund investing in a derivative instrument could lose more than the principal amount invested and derivatives may increase the volatility of the Fund, especially in unusual or extreme market conditions. Also, suitable derivative

transactions may not be available in all circumstances and there can be no assurance that a Fund will engage in these transactions to reduce exposure to other risks when that would be beneficial or that, if used, such strategies will be successful. In addition, a Fund's use of derivatives may increase or accelerate the amount of taxes payable by Shareholders.

Participation in the markets for derivative instruments involves investment risks and transaction costs to which a Fund may not be subject absent the use of these strategies. The skills needed to successfully execute derivative strategies may be different from those needed for other types of transactions. If the Fund incorrectly forecasts the value and/or creditworthiness of securities, currencies, interest rates, counterparties or other economic factors involved in a derivative transaction, the Fund might have been in a better position if the Fund had not entered into such derivative transaction. In evaluating the risks and contractual obligations associated with particular derivative instruments, it is important to consider that certain derivative transactions may be modified or terminated only by mutual consent of the Fund and its counterparty. Therefore, it may not be possible for a Fund to modify, terminate, or offset the Fund's obligations or the Fund's exposure to the risks associated with a derivative transaction prior to its scheduled termination or maturity date, which may create a possibility of increased volatility and/or decreased liquidity to the Fund. In such case, the Fund may lose money.

Because the markets for certain derivative instruments (including markets located in foreign countries) are relatively new and still developing, appropriate derivative transactions may not be available in all circumstances for risk management or other purposes. Upon the expiration of a particular contract, a Fund may wish to retain a Fund's position in the derivative instrument by entering into a similar contract, but may be unable to do so if the counterparty to the original contract is unwilling to enter into the new contract and no other appropriate counterparty can be found. When such markets are unavailable, a Fund will be subject to increased liquidity and investment risk.

When a derivative is used as a hedge against a position that a Fund holds, any loss generated by the derivative generally should be substantially offset by gains on the hedged investment, and vice versa. Although hedging can reduce or eliminate losses, it can also reduce or eliminate gains. Hedges are sometimes subject to imperfect matching between the derivative and the underlying security, and there can be no assurance that a Fund's hedging transactions will be effective.

Additional future regulation of the derivatives markets may make derivatives more costly, may limit the availability of derivatives, or may otherwise adversely affect the value or performance of derivatives. Any such adverse future developments could limit a Fund's ability to employ certain strategies that use derivatives, impair the effectiveness of a Fund's derivative transactions and cause the Fund to lose value.

Securitisations Risk

A Fund may invest in securitisations. Under Regulation (EU) 2017/2402) (the "Securitisation Regulation"), the Manager must comply with certain due diligence and ongoing monitoring requirements relating to investment in securitisations. The Securitisation Regulation requires parties involved in an EU securitisation to make certain information on the securitisation available to investors which should allow the Manager to conduct the necessary due diligence and ongoing monitoring required under the Securitisation Regulation. However in the case of a non-EU securitisation, such information may not be readily available. This may result in the Manager not being able to gain exposure to such securitisation, thus restricting the investment universe for the Manager. This in turn may have a negative impact on the performance of the Fund.

Under the Securitisation Regulation, the Manager is obliged to conduct due diligence. Where the Manager or its delegates engages professional advisors in connection with the completion of such due diligence, this may result in additional costs being borne by the Fund.

Equity Risk

To the extent a Fund invests in equity or equity-related investments, it will be subject to equity risk. The values of equity securities may decline due to general market conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general outlook for corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates or adverse investor sentiment generally. They may also decline due to factors which affect a particular industry or industries, such as labour shortages or increased production costs and competitive conditions within an industry. Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than fixed income securities.

Equity securities with higher dividend yields may be sensitive to changes in interest rates, and as interest rates rise, the prices of such securities may fall, which may result in losses to the Fund. A Fund's use of a dividend capture strategy (i.e., purchasing an equity security shortly before the issuer pays a dividend and selling it shortly thereafter) exposes the Fund to higher portfolio turnover, increased trading costs and the potential for capital loss, particularly in the event of significant short-term price movements of stocks subject to dividend capture trading. Also, securities purchased to capture a dividend often decline in value at the time of sale (i.e., shortly following the dividend) and the resulting realized loss to the Fund may exceed the amount of the dividend received, thereby negatively impacting the Fund's net asset value.

Mortgage Risk

A Fund that purchases mortgage-related securities is subject to certain additional risks. Rising interest rates tend to extend the duration of mortgage-related securities, making them more sensitive to changes in interest rates. As a result, in a period of rising interest rates, a Fund that holds mortgage-related securities may exhibit additional volatility. This is known as extension risk. In addition, mortgage-related securities are subject to prepayment risk. When interest rates decline, borrowers may pay off their mortgages sooner than expected. This can reduce the returns of a Fund because the Fund will have to reinvest that money at the lower prevailing interest rates.

Global Investment Risk

A Fund that invests in securities of certain international jurisdictions may experience more rapid and extreme changes in value. The value of a Fund's assets may be affected by uncertainties such as international political developments, changes in government policies, changes in taxation, restrictions on foreign investment and currency repatriation, currency fluctuations and other developments in the laws and regulations of countries in which investment may be made. The securities markets of many countries are relatively small, with a limited number of companies representing a small number of industries. Additionally, issuers in many countries are usually not subject to a high degree of regulation. Furthermore, the legal infrastructure and accounting, auditing and reporting standards in certain countries in which investment may be made may not provide the same degree of investor protection or information to investors as would generally apply in major securities markets. Also, nationalisation, expropriation or confiscatory taxation, currency blockage, economic uncertainty, political changes or diplomatic developments could adversely affect a Fund's investments. In the event of nationalisation, expropriation or other confiscation, a Fund could lose its entire investment in that country. Adverse conditions in a certain region can adversely affect securities of other countries whose economies appear to be unrelated. To the extent that a Fund invests a significant portion of its assets in a concentrated geographic area like Eastern Europe or Asia, the Fund will generally have more exposure to regional economic risks associated with investments.

Emerging Markets Risk

Certain of the Funds may invest in securities of issuers based in countries with developing, or "emerging market" economies.

Foreign investment risk may be particularly high to the extent a Fund invests in emerging market securities. Emerging market securities may present market, credit, currency, liquidity, legal, political and other risks different from, and potentially greater than, the risks of investing in securities and instruments economically tied to developed foreign countries. To the extent a Fund invests in emerging market securities that are economically tied to a particular region, country or group of countries, the Fund may be more sensitive to adverse political or social events affecting that region, country or group of countries. Economic, business, political, or social instability may affect emerging market securities differently, and often more severely, than developed market securities. A Fund that focuses its investments in multiple asset classes of emerging market securities may have a limited ability to mitigate losses in an environment that is adverse to emerging market securities in general. Emerging market securities may also be more volatile, less liquid and more difficult to value than securities economically tied to developed foreign countries. The systems and procedures for trading and settlement of securities in emerging markets are less developed and less transparent and transactions may take longer to settle. Rising interest rates, combined with widening credit spreads, could negatively impact the value of emerging market debt and increase funding costs for foreign issuers. In such a scenario, foreign issuers might not be able to service their debt obligations, the market for emerging market debt could suffer from reduced liquidity, and any investing Funds could lose money.

Settlement Risk

Each market may have different clearance and settlement procedures which may make it difficult to conduct securities transactions. A Fund may invest in certain markets in different parts of the world where settlement systems do not recognise legal structures established in other jurisdictions and/or such systems are not fully developed.

Currency Risk

Certain of the Funds may be exposed to currency exchange risk. Changes in exchange rates between currencies or the conversion from one currency to another may cause the value of a Fund's investments to diminish or increase. Currency exchange rates may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. They generally are determined by supply and demand in the currency exchange markets and the relative merits of investments in different countries, actual or perceived changes in interest rates and other complex factors. Currency exchange rates also can be affected unpredictably by intervention (or the failure to intervene) by governments or central banks, or by currency controls or political developments. In addition, in the event that a Fund invests in a currency (i) which ceases to exist or (ii) in which a participant in such currency ceases to be a participant in such currency, it is likely that this would have an adverse impact on a Fund's liquidity.

The Net Asset Value per Share of the unhedged Share Classes will be calculated in the particular Fund's Base Currency and will then be translated into the currency of the Share Class respectively at the market rate. It is expected that, because the Investment Advisor of the Funds will not hedge this currency exposure, the Net Asset Value per Share and performance of the unhedged Share Classes will be impacted by changes in the rate of exchange between the currency exposures of the relevant Fund's and the currency of the unhedged Share Class. Investors in unhedged Share Classes will bear this currency risk.

The costs of currency exchange transactions and any related gains or losses in connection with the purchase, redemption or exchange of the unhedged Share Classes will be borne by such Class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Share of that Class.

Currency Hedging

A Fund may enter into currency exchange transactions and/or use derivatives (at a Fund level or, in certain circumstances as described in this Prospectus, at a Class level) to seek to protect against fluctuation as a result of changes in currency exchange rates. Although these transactions are intended to minimise the risk of loss due to a decline in the value of the hedged currency, they also limit any potential gain that might be realised should the value of the hedged currency increase. The precise matching of the relevant contract amounts and the value of the securities involved will not generally be possible because the future value of such securities will change as a consequence of market movements in the value of such securities between the date when the relevant contract is entered into and the date when it matures. The successful execution of a hedging strategy cannot be assured. It may not be possible to hedge against generally anticipated exchange fluctuations at a price sufficient to protect the assets from the anticipated decline in value as a result of such fluctuations.

Segregated Liability

The Company is an umbrella investment company with segregated liability between Funds. As a result, as a matter of Irish law, any liability attributable to a particular Fund may only be discharged out of the assets of that Fund and the assets of other Funds may not be used to satisfy the liability of that Fund. In addition, any contract entered into by the Company will by operation of law include an implied term to the effect that the counterparty to the contract may not have any recourse to assets of any of the Funds other than the Fund in respect of which the contract was entered into. These provisions are binding both on creditors and in any insolvency but do not prevent the application of any enactment or rule of law which would require the application of the assets of one Fund to discharge some, or all liabilities of another Fund on the grounds of fraud or misrepresentation. In addition, whilst these provisions are binding in an Irish court which would be the primary venue for an action to enforce a debt against the Company, these provisions have not been tested in other jurisdictions, and there remains a possibility that a creditor might seek to attach or seize assets of one Fund in satisfaction of an obligation owed in relation to another Fund in a jurisdiction which would not recognise the principle of segregation of liability between Funds.

Due to the lack of asset segregation between Share Classes, the derivatives used in the currency hedging of a given Share Class become part of the common pool of assets which introduces potential counterparty and operational risk for all investors in the Fund. This could lead to a risk of contagion (also known as spill-over) to other Share Classes,

some of which might not have any currency hedging in place. Whilst all measures will be taken to mitigate this contagion risk, it cannot be fully eliminated i.e. through the default of a derivative counterparty or through the losses relating to Share Class specific assets exceeding the value of the respective Share Class.

Currency Hedging at Share Class Level Risk

Hedging activity at Share Class level may expose the Fund to cross contamination risk as it may not be possible to ensure (contractually or otherwise) that a counterparty's recourse in any such arrangements is limited to the assets of the relevant Share Class. Although the costs, gains and losses of the currency hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Share Class, investors are nonetheless exposed to the risk that currency hedging transactions undertaken in one Share Class may impact negatively on another Share Class, particularly where (pursuant to EMIR) such currency hedging transactions require the Fund to post collateral (i.e. initial or variation margin). Any such collateral is posted by a Fund and at the Fund's risk (rather than by the Share Class and at the risk of the Share Class only because the Share Class does not represent a segregated portion of the Fund's assets) thus exposing investors in other Share Classes to a proportion of this risk.

Renminbi share class risks

The Funds offer share classes designated in Chinese Renminbi (RMB), the lawful currency of the PRC. It should be noted that there may be additional risks involved in investing through RMB over and above those of investing through other currencies. Currency exchange rates can be affected unpredictably by intervention (or failure to intervene) by governments or central banks or by currency controls or political developments, particularly in the PRC. There is also a greater measure of legal uncertainty concerning currency transactions with respect to trades in RMB compared to currencies which have a more established history of being traded internationally.

RMB share classes for the Funds are denominated in offshore RMB (CNH). CNH convertibility to the onshore RMB (CNY) is a managed currency process subject to foreign exchange control policies of and repatriation restrictions imposed by the Chinese government in co-ordination with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The value of CNH could differ, perhaps significantly, from that of CNY due to a number of factors including without limitation those foreign exchange control policies and repatriation restrictions pursued by the Chinese government from time to time as well as other external market forces. In addition, currency markets in RMB may have lower trading volumes than the currencies of more developed countries and accordingly markets in RMB may be materially less liquid, subject to greater dealing spreads and experience materially greater volatility than those of other currencies. In particular, the trading of RMB during European market hours when trades for the hedged share class will be executed entails inherently lower liquidity and greater transaction costs. This is likely to cause performance divergance against the expected peformance of trading RMB during Asian market hours, where liquidity is generally higher and transaction costs are generally lower.

In an extreme event, the lack of liquidity could make it impossible to execute the currency hedge. The Company will seek to implement the hedge and minimize transaction costs on a best efforts basis. However, there can be no guarantee that it will be successful in doing so and cannot eliminate the above risks or transaction costs. The costs and gains/losses of hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Hedged Class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Share of that Class.

Exposure Risk

Derivative transactions may subject the Funds to additional risk exposures. Any transaction which gives rise or may give rise to a future commitment on behalf of a Fund will be covered either by the applicable underlying asset or by liquid assets.

Termination of Funds

The Directors may determine to close and liquidate a Fund at any time, which may have adverse tax consequences to Shareholders. In the event of the termination of a Fund, Shareholders will receive a distribution in cash or in-kind equal to their proportionate interest in the Fund. The value of an investment in a Fund, and any subsequent distribution in the event of a termination, will be subject to market conditions at that time. A terminating distribution would generally be a taxable event to Shareholders, resulting in a gain or loss for tax purposes, depending upon a Shareholder's basis in his or her shares of the Fund. A Shareholder of a terminating Fund will not be entitled to any refund or reimbursement of expenses borne, directly or indirectly, by the Shareholder (such as sales loads, account fees, or fund expenses) and a Shareholder may receive an amount in termination less than the Shareholder's original investment.

Management Risk

Each Fund is subject to management risk because it is an actively managed investment portfolio. The Investment Advisors will apply investment techniques and risk analyses in making investment decisions for the Funds, but there can be no guarantee that these will produce the desired results. Certain securities or other instruments in which a Fund seeks to invest may not be available in the quantities desired. In such circumstances, the Investment Advisor may determine to purchase other securities or instruments as substitutes. Such substitute securities or instruments may not perform as intended, which could result in losses to the Fund. To the extent a Fund employs strategies targeting perceived pricing inefficiencies, arbitrage strategies or similar strategies, it is subject to the risk that the pricing or valuation of the securities and instruments involved in such strategies may change unexpectedly, which may result in reduced returns or losses to the Fund.

Additionally, legislative, regulatory, or tax restrictions, policies or developments may affect the investment techniques available to the Investment Advisors in connection with managing the Funds and may also adversely affect the ability of the Funds to achieve their investment objectives.

Allocation Risk

There is risk that a Fund could lose money as a result of less than optimal or poor asset allocation decisions as to how its assets are allocated or reallocated. The Fund could miss attractive investment opportunities by underweighting markets that subsequently experience significant returns and could lose value by overweighting markets that subsequently experience significant declines.

Valuation Risk

The Administrator may consult the Investment Advisors with respect to the valuation of investments which are (i) unlisted, or (ii) listed or traded on a Regulated Market but where the market price is unrepresentative or not available. There is a possible conflict of interest because of an Investment Advisor's role in determining the valuation of the Fund's investments and the fact that the Investment Advisor receives a fee which increases as the value of the Fund increases.

Value Investing Risk

Certain Funds may use a value investment approach. Value investing attempts to identify companies that the Investment Advisor believes to be undervalued. Value stocks typically have prices that are low relative to factors such as the company's earnings, cash flow or dividends. A value stock may decrease in price or may not increase in price as anticipated by the Investment Advisor if it continues to be undervalued by the market or the factors that the Investment Advisor believes will cause the stock price to increase do not occur. A value investing style may perform better or worse than equity funds that focus on growth stocks or that have a broader investment style.

Small-Cap and Mid-Cap Company Risk

Investments in securities issued by small capitalisation and mid-capitalisation companies involve greater risk than investments in large-capitalisation companies. The value of securities issued by small-cap and mid-cap companies may go up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably, due to narrower markets and more limited managerial and financial resources than large-cap companies. A Fund's investments in small- and mid-cap companies may increase the volatility of its portfolio.

Arbitrage Risk

A Fund's investments in securities or derivatives positions purchased pursuant to an arbitrage strategy in order to take advantage of a perceived relationship between the value of two securities present certain risks. Under an arbitrage strategy, a Fund may purchase one security while using derivatives to synthetically sell short another security. Synthetic short derivative positions entered into pursuant to such a strategy may not perform as intended, which may result to a loss to the Fund. Additionally, issuers of a security purchased pursuant to an arbitrage strategy are often engaged in

significant corporate events such as restructurings, acquisitions, mergers, takeovers, tender offers or exchanges, or liquidations. Such corporate events may not be completed as initially planned or may fail.

Euro and EU Related Risks

A Fund may have investment exposure to Europe and the Eurozone. In light of the sovereign debt crisis in Europe, such investment exposure may subject the Fund to certain risks. For example, it is possible that various Eurozone member countries could abandon the euro and return to a national currency and/or that the euro will cease to exist as a single currency in its current form. The effects of such an abandonment or a country's forced exit from the euro on that country, the rest of the Eurozone, and global markets are impossible to predict, but are likely to be negative and may adversely affect the value of a Fund's investments in Europe. The exit of any country out of the euro would likely have an extremely destabilising effect on all Eurozone countries and their economies and a negative effect on the global economy as a whole. While the governments of many European countries, the European Commission, the European Central Bank, the International Monetary Fund and other authorities are taking measures (such as undertaking economic reforms, providing rescue packages and imposing austerity measures on citizens) to address the current fiscal conditions, there is a possibility that these measures may not have the desired effect and the future stability and growth of Europe remains uncertain.

In addition, under these circumstances, it may be difficult to value investments denominated in euros or in a replacement currency. It is also possible that a country which exits the euro might seek to impose controls on the flow of capital in and out of that country which could result in the Company being unable to accept further subscriptions from, or make redemption payments to, Shareholders in that jurisdiction.

The Funds may face potential risks associated with the referendum on the United Kingdom's continued membership of the EU, which took place on June 23, 2016 and which resulted in a vote for the United Kingdom to leave the EU. Where applicable, that decision to leave could materially and adversely affect the regulatory regime to which PIMCO Europe Ltd., as Investment Advisor to certain Funds, is currently subject in the United Kingdom, particularly in respect of financial services regulation and taxation. Furthermore, the vote to leave the EU may result in substantial volatility in foreign exchange markets and may lead to a sustained weakness in the British pound's exchange rate against the United States dollar, the euro and other currencies which may have a material adverse effect on the Funds. The vote for the United Kingdom to leave the EU may set in train a sustained period of uncertainty, as the United Kingdom seeks to negotiate the terms of its exit. It may also destabilize some or all of the other 27 members of the EU (some of which are countries in which the Investment Advisor conducts business) and/or the Eurozone. There may be detrimental implications for the value of certain of a Fund's investments, its ability to enter into transactions, to value or realise certain of its investments or otherwise to implement its investment policy. This may be due to, among other things, increased uncertainty and volatility in the United Kingdom, EU and other financial markets, fluctuations in asset values, fluctuations in exchange rates, increased illiquidity of investments located, traded or listed within the United Kingdom, the EU or elsewhere, changes in the willingness or ability of financial and other counterparties to enter into transactions, or the price and terms on which they are prepared to transact; and/or changes in legal and regulatory regimes to which the Company, the Investment Advisor and/or certain of a Fund's assets are or become subject to. Shareholders should note that the Company may be required to introduce changes to the way it is structured and introduce, replace or appoint additional service providers or agents and/or amend the terms of appointment of persons or entities engaged currently to provide services to the Company. Although the Company shall seek to minimize the costs and other implications of any such changes, investors should be aware that the costs of such changes may be borne by the Company.

Furthermore, the exit of the United Kingdom from the EU could have a material impact on the United Kingdom's economy and the future growth of that economy, impacting adversely the Company's investments in the United Kingdom. It could also result in prolonged uncertainty regarding aspects of the United Kingdom economy and damage customers' and investors' confidence. Any of these events, as well as an exit or expulsion of a Member State other than the United Kingdom from the EU, could have a material adverse effect on the Funds.

Taxation Risk

Prospective investors and Shareholders should be aware that they may be required to pay income tax, withholding tax, capital gains tax, wealth tax, stamp taxes or any other kind of tax on distributions or deemed distributions of a Fund, capital gains within a Fund, whether or not realised, income received or accrued or deemed received within a Fund, etc. The requirement to pay such taxes will be according to the laws and practices of the country where the Shares are

purchased, sold, held or redeemed and in the country of residence or nationality of the Shareholder and such laws and practices may change from time to time.

Any change in the taxation legislation in Ireland, or elsewhere, could affect (i) the Company or any Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective, (ii) the value of the Company or any Fund's investments or (iii) the ability to pay returns to Shareholders or alter such returns. Any such changes, which could also be retroactive, could have an effect on the validity of the information stated herein based on current tax law and practice. Prospective investors and Shareholders should note that the statements on taxation which are set out herein and in this Prospectus are based on advice which has been received by the Directors regarding the law and practice in force in the relevant jurisdiction as at the date of this Prospectus. As is the case with any investment, there can be no guarantee that the tax position or proposed tax position prevailing at the time an investment is made in the Company will endure indefinitely.

If, as a result of the status of a Shareholder, the Company or a Fund becomes liable to account for tax, in any jurisdiction, including any interest or penalties thereon, the Company or the Fund shall be entitled to deduct such amount from any payment(s) made to such Shareholder, and/or to compulsorily redeem or cancel such number of Shares held by the Shareholder or the beneficial owner of the Shares as have a value sufficient after the deduction of any Redemption Charges to discharge any such liability. The relevant Shareholder shall indemnify and keep the Company or the Fund indemnified against any loss arising to the Company or the Fund by reason of the Company or the Fund becoming liable to account for tax and any interest or penalties thereon on the happening of an event giving rise to a tax liability including if no such deduction, appropriation or cancellation has been made.

Shareholders and prospective investors' attention is drawn to the taxation risks associated with investing in the Company. Please refer to the section headed "Taxation".

Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

The foreign account tax compliance provisions ("FATCA") of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act 2010 which apply to certain payments are essentially designed to require reporting of Specified US Person's direct and indirect ownership of non-US accounts and non-US entities to the US Internal Revenue Service, with any failure to provide the required information resulting in a 30% US withholding tax on direct US investments (and possibly indirect US investments). In order to avoid being subject to US withholding tax, both US investors and non-US investors are likely to be required to provide information regarding themselves and, in some circumstances, their investors. In this regard the Irish and US Governments signed an intergovernmental agreement with respect to the implementation of FATCA (see section entitled "Compliance with US reporting and withholding requirements" for further detail) on 21 December 2012.

Shareholders will be required to provide certifications as to their U.S. or non-U.S. tax status, together with such additional tax information as the Directors or their agents may from time to time request. Failure to furnish requested information or (if applicable) satisfy its own FATCA obligations may subject a Shareholder to liability for any resulting withholding taxes, U.S. information reporting and mandatory redemption of such Shareholder's Shares in the Company. (See "Taxation – United States Federal Income Taxation.")

Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisor with regard to US federal, state, local and non-US tax reporting and certification requirements associated with an investment in the Company.

Common Reporting Standard

Drawing extensively on the intergovernmental approach to implementing FATCA, the OECD developed the Common Reporting Standard to address the issue of offshore tax evasion on a global basis. Additionally, on 9 December 2014, the European Union adopted EU Council Directive 2014/107/EU, amending Directive 2011/16/EU as regards mandatory automatic exchange of information in the field of taxation ("DAC2").

The Common Reporting Standard and DAC2 (collectively referred to herein as "CRS") provide a common standard for due diligence, reporting and exchange of financial account information. Pursuant to CRS, participating jurisdictions and EU Member States will obtain from reporting financial institutions, and automatically exchange with exchange partners on an annual basis, financial information with respect to all reportable accounts identified by financial institutions on the basis of common due diligence and reporting procedures. The Company is required to comply with the CRS due diligence and reporting requirements, as adopted by Ireland. Shareholders may be required to provide additional

information to the Company to enable the Company to satisfy its obligations under the CRS. Failure to provide requested information may subject an investor to liability for any resulting penalties or other charges and/or compulsory redemption of their Shares in the relevant Fund.

Shareholders and prospective investors should consult their own tax advisor with regard to with respect to their own certification requirements associated with an investment in the Company.

Call Risk

A Fund that invests in Fixed Income Securities may be subject to call risk. Call risk refers to the possibility that an issuer may exercise its right to redeem a fixed income security earlier than expected (a call). Issuers may call outstanding securities prior to their maturity for a number of reasons (e.g., declining interest rates, changes in credit spreads and improvements in the issuer's credit quality). If an issuer calls a security in which a Fund has invested, the Fund may not recoup the full amount of its initial investment and may be forced to reinvest in lower-yielding securities, securities with greater credit risks or securities with other, less favourable features.

Operational Risk

An investment in a Fund, like any fund, can involve operational risks arising from factors such as processing errors, human errors, inadequate or failed internal or external processes, failure in systems and technology, changes in personnel and errors caused by third-party service providers. The occurrence of any of these failures, errors or breaches could result in a loss of information, business or regulatory scrutiny, or other events, any of which could have a material adverse effect on a Fund. While the Funds seek to minimize such events through controls and oversight, there may still be failures that could cause losses to a Fund.

Regulatory Risk

Financial entities, such as investment companies and investment advisers, are generally subject to extensive regulation and intervention from national and European authorities. Such regulation and/or intervention may change the way a Fund is regulated, affect the expenses incurred directly by the Fund and the value of its investments, and limit and/or preclude a Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective. Such regulation may change frequently and may have significant adverse consequences. Moreover, government regulation may have unpredictable and unintended effects and could materially impact the profitability of the Funds and the value of assets they hold, expose the Funds to additional costs, require changes to investment practices, and adversely affect the Funds' ability to pay dividends. Funds may incur additional costs to comply with new requirement.

Depositary Risk

If a Fund invests in assets that are financial instruments that can be held in custody ("Custody Assets"), the Depositary is required to perform full safekeeping functions and will be liable for any loss of such assets held in custody unless it can prove that the loss has arisen as a result of an external event beyond its reasonable control, the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to the contrary. In the event of such a loss (and the absence of proof of the loss being caused by such an external event), the Depositary is required to return identical assets to those lost or a corresponding amount to the Fund without undue delay.

If a Fund invests in assets that are not financial instruments that can be held in custody ("Non-Custody Assets"), the Depositary is only required to verify the Fund's ownership of such assets and to maintain a record of those assets which the Depositary is satisfied that the Fund holds ownership of. In the event of any loss of such assets, the Depositary will only be liable to the extent the loss has occurred due to its negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations pursuant to the Regulations.

As it is likely that a Fund may each invest in both Custody Assets and Non-Custody Assets, it should be noted that the safekeeping functions of the Depositary in relation to the respective categories of assets and the corresponding standard of liability of the Depositary applicable to such functions differ significantly. A Fund enjoys a strong level of protection in terms of Depositary liability for the safekeeping of Custody Assets. However, the level of protection for Non-Custody Assets is significantly lower. Accordingly, the greater the proportion of a Fund invested in categories of

Non-Custody Assets, the greater the risk that any loss of such assets that may occur may not be recoverable. While it will be determined on a case-by-case basis whether a specific investment by the Fund is a Custody Asset or a Non-Custody Asset, generally it should be noted that derivatives traded by a Fund over-the-counter will be Non-Custody Assets. There may also be other asset types that a Fund invests in from time to time that would be treated similarly. Given the framework of Depositary liability under the Regulations, these Non-Custody Assets, from a safekeeping perspective, expose the Fund to a greater degree of risk than Custody Assets, such as publicly traded equities and bonds.

GDPR Related Risk

Under the GDPR, data controllers are subject to additional obligations including, amongst others, accountability and transparency requirements whereby the data controller is responsible for, and must be able to demonstrate compliance with the rules set down in the GDPR relating to data processing and must provide data subjects with more detailed information regarding the processing of their personal data. Under the GDPR, data subjects are afforded additional rights, including the right to rectify inaccurate personal information, the right to have personal data held by a data controller erased in certain circumstances and the right to restrict or object to processing in a number of circumstances. The implementation of GDPR may result in increased operational and compliance costs being borne directly or indirectly by the Company in accordance with the Prospectus. Further there is a risk of non-compliance by the Company or its service providers and as such the Company or its service providers could face significant administrative fines.

Benchmark Regulation Risk

Subject to certain transitional and grandfathering arrangements, the Benchmark Regulation took effect from 1 January 2018. Subject to the applicable transitional arrangements, a Fund will no longer be able to "use" a benchmark within the meaning of the Benchmark Regulation which is provided by an EU index provider which is not registered or authorised pursuant to Article 34 of the Benchmark Regulation. In the event that the relevant EU index provider does not comply with the Benchmark Regulation in line with the transitional arrangements set down in the Benchmark Regulation or if the benchmark materially changes or ceases to exist, a Fund will be required to identify a suitable alternative benchmark if available which may prove difficult or impossible.

LIBOR Phase Out Risk

Certain securities and instruments in which a Fund may invest rely in some fashion upon LIBOR. LIBOR is an average interest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark Administration, that banks charge one another for the use of short-term money. In light of the phasing out of the use of LIBOR, relevant Funds will need to transition to another benchmark (e.g. the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, which is to replace U.S. dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of overnight borrowings through repurchase agreement transactions collateralized with U.S. Treasury securities). Any potential effects of the transition away from LIBOR on a Fund or on certain securities and instruments in which a Fund invests can be difficult to ascertain, and they may vary depending on factors that include, but are not limited to: (i) existing fallback or termination provisions in individual contracts and (ii) whether, how, and when industry participants develop and adopt new reference rates and fallbacks for both legacy and new products and instruments. For example, certain of a Fund's securities and investments may involve individual contracts that have no existing fallback provision or language that contemplates the discontinuation of LIBOR, and those investments could experience increased volatility or reduced liquidity as a result of the transition process. In addition, interest rate provisions included in such contracts may need to be renegotiated in contemplation of the transition away from LIBOR. The transition may also result in a reduction in the value of certain investments held by a Fund or a reduction in the effectiveness of related Fund transactions such as hedges. Furthermore, the transition process may also require changes to be made to a Fund's investment objective and policies. Any such effects of the transition away from LIBOR, as well as other unforeseen effects, could result in losses to a Fund or in additional costs being borne by the Fund.

Concentrated Investor Risk

Shareholders should note that certain Funds may have a concentrated investor base where large institutional type clients (such as pension funds, insurance companies or other collective investment schemes, including those which may be managed by PIMCO affiliated entities) hold a significant portion of the assets of a Fund. This exposes other Shareholders in the Fund to certain risks. These risks include the risk that a large portion of the assets of a Fund may be redeemed on any day which could impact the overall viability of the Fund or could impact the ability of other investors,

who have not submitted redemption requests on that day, to redeem from the Fund e.g. where it may be necessary to impose a redemption gate.

New / Small Fund Risk

A new or smaller Fund's performance may not represent how the Fund is expected to or may perform in the long-term if and when it becomes larger and has fully implemented its investment strategies. Investment positions may have a disproportionate impact (negative or positive) on performance in new and smaller Funds. New and smaller Funds may also require a period of time before they are fully invested in securities that meet their investment objectives and policies and achieve a representative portfolio composition. Fund performance may be lower or higher during this "ramp-up" period, and may also be more volatile, than would be the case after the Fund is fully invested. Similarly, a new or smaller Fund's investment strategy may require a longer period of time to show returns that are representative of the strategy. New Funds have limited performance histories for investors to evaluate and new and smaller Funds may not attract sufficient assets to achieve investment and trading efficiencies. If a new or smaller Fund were to fail to successfully implement its investment strategies or achieve its investment objective, performance may be negatively impacted, and any resulting liquidation could create negative transaction costs for the Fund and tax consequences for investors.

Cyber Security Risk

As the use of technology has become more prevalent in the course of business, the Funds have become potentially more susceptible to operational risks through breaches in cyber security. A breach in cyber security refers to both intentional and unintentional events that may cause a Fund to lose proprietary information, suffer data corruption, or lose operational capacity. This in turn could cause a Fund to incur regulatory penalties, reputational damage, additional compliance costs associated with corrective measures, and/or financial loss. Cyber security breaches may involve unauthorized access to a Fund's digital information systems (e.g. through "hacking" or malicious software coding), but may also result from outside attacks such as denial-of-service attacks (i.e. efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users). In addition, cyber security breaches of a Fund's third party service providers (e.g., administrators, transfer agents, depositaries and sub-advisers) or issuers that a Fund invests in can also subject a Fund to many of the same risks associated with direct cyber security breaches. Like with operational risk in general, the Funds have established risk management systems designed to reduce the risks associated with cyber security. However, there is no guarantee that such efforts will succeed, especially since the Funds do not directly control the cyber security systems of issuers or third party service providers.

Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account

The Company has established a dedicated cash account at the umbrella level in the name of the Company into which all subscription, redemption, and dividend payments shall be lodged. This account shall be defined herein as the "Umbrella Cash Account". All subscriptions, redemptions or dividends payable to or from the relevant Fund will be channelled and managed through such Umbrella Cash Account and no such account shall be operated at the level of each individual Fund. However the Company will ensure that the amounts within the Umbrella Cash Account whether positive or negative can be attributed to the relevant Fund in order to comply with the requirement that the assets and liabilities of each Fund are kept separate from all other Funds and that separate books and records are maintained for each Fund in which all transactions relevant to a Fund are recorded.

Certain risks associated with the operation of the Umbrella Cash Account are set out below in the sections entitled (i) "How to Purchase Shares" – "Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account in respect of Subscriptions"; (ii) "How to Redeem Shares" - "Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account in respect of Redemptions"; and (iii) "Dividend Policy" respectively.

In addition, investors should note that in the event of the insolvency of another Fund of the Company, recovery of any amounts to which a relevant Fund is entitled, but which may have transferred to such other insolvent Fund as a result of the operation of the Umbrella Cash Account (for example by way of an inadvertent error) will be subject to the principles of Irish trust law and the terms of the operational procedures for the Umbrella Cash Account. There may be delays in effecting and/or disputes as to the recovery of such amounts, and the insolvent Fund may have insufficient funds to repay the amounts due to the relevant Fund.

In circumstances where subscription monies are received from an investor in advance of a Dealing Day in respect of 10822885v25 42

which an application for Shares has been, or expected to be, received and are held in an Umbrella Cash Account, any such investor shall rank as a general creditor of the Fund until such time as Shares are issued as of the relevant Dealing Day. Therefore in the event that such monies are lost prior to the issue of Shares as of the relevant Dealing Day to the relevant investor, the Company on behalf of the Fund may be obliged to make good any losses which the Fund incurs in connection with the loss of such monies to the investor (in its capacity as a creditor of the Fund), in which case such loss will need to be discharged out of the assets of the relevant Fund and therefore will represent a diminution in the Net Asset Value per Share for existing Shareholders of the relevant Fund.

Similarly, in circumstances where redemption monies are payable to an investor subsequent to a Dealing Day of a Fund as of which Shares of that investor were redeemed or dividend monies are payable to an investor and such redemption / dividend monies are held in an Umbrella Cash Account, any such investor /Shareholder shall rank as an unsecured creditor of the relevant Fund until such time as such redemption/ dividend monies are paid to the investor/ Shareholder. Therefore in the event that such monies are lost prior to payment to the relevant investor/ Shareholder, the Company on behalf of the Fund may be obliged to make good any losses which the Fund incurs in connection with the loss of such monies to the investor/ Shareholder (in its capacity as a general creditor of the Fund), in which case such loss will need to be discharged out of the assets of the relevant Fund and therefore will represent a diminution in the Net Asset Value per Share for existing Shareholders of the relevant Fund. Any issues with respect to delayed redemption or dividend payments will be addressed promptly.

Other Risks

The above summary of risks does not purport to be an exhaustive list of all the risk factors relating to investments in the Funds. Various other risks may apply. Investors should also carefully consider their investment horizon, particularly in light of any Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge that may be imposed.

CHARACTERISTICS AND RISKS OF SECURITIES, DERIVATIVES, OTHER INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT TECHNIQUES

The following describes different Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques used by certain of the Funds and discusses certain concepts relevant to the investment policies of the Funds. A Fund's use of each of the securities, derivatives and investment techniques below must comply with the investment objectives and policies of the relevant Fund, and in particular with the rating, maturity and other instrument-specific criteria specified in the investment policy of the relevant Fund.

Government Securities

Government securities are obligations of, or guaranteed by, a government, its agencies or government-sponsored enterprises. However, the relevant governments do not guarantee the Net Asset Value of any Fund's Shares. Government securities are subject to market and interest rate risk and may be subject to varying degrees of credit risk. Government securities may include zero coupon securities, which tend to be subject to greater market risk than interest-paying securities of similar maturities.

Mortgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Securities

Certain Funds may invest in mortgage- or other asset-backed securities. Mortgage-related securities include mortgage pass-through securities, collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs") (CMOs are debt obligations of a legal entity that are collateralised by mortgages. They are typically rated by a rating agency and registered with the SEC and are structured into multiple classes, often referred to as "tranches", with each class bearing a different stated maturity and entitled to a different schedule for payments of principal and interest, including pre-payments), commercial mortgage-backed securities, privately-issued mortgage-backed securities, mortgage dollar rolls, CMO residuals (which are mortgage securities issued by agencies or instrumentalities of the US Government or by private originators of, or investors in, mortgage loans, including savings and loan associations, homebuilders, mortgage banks, commercial banks, investment banks, partnerships, trusts and special purpose entities of the foregoing), stripped mortgage-backed securities ("SMBSs") and other securities that directly or indirectly represent a participation in, or are secured by and payable from, mortgage loans on real property.

The value of some mortgage- or asset-backed securities may be particularly sensitive to changes in prevailing interest rates. Early repayment of principal on some mortgage-related securities may expose a Fund to a lower rate of return upon reinvestment of principal. When interest rates rise, the value of a mortgage-related security generally will decline; however, when interest rates are declining, the value of mortgage-related securities with prepayment features may not increase as much as other Fixed Income Securities. The rate of prepayments on underlying mortgages will affect the price and volatility of a mortgage-related security, and may shorten or extend the effective maturity of the security beyond what was anticipated at the time of purchase. If unanticipated rates of prepayment on underlying mortgages increase the effective maturity of a mortgage-related security, the volatility of the security can be expected to increase. The value of these securities may fluctuate in response to the market's perception of the creditworthiness of the issuers. Additionally, although mortgages and mortgage-related securities are generally supported by some form of government or private guarantee and/or insurance and/or collateral, there is no assurance that private guarantors or insurers will meet their obligations or that any collateral backing the security will cover the debt.

One type of SMBS has one class receiving all of the interest from the mortgage assets (the interest-only, or "IO" class), while the other class will receive all of the principal (the principal-only, or "PO" class). The yield to maturity on an IO class is extremely sensitive to the rate of principal payments (including prepayments) on the underlying mortgage assets, and a rapid rate of principal payments may have a material adverse effect on a Fund's yield to maturity from these securities.

Certain Funds may invest in collateralized debt obligations ("CDOs"), which include collateralized bond obligations ("CBOs"), collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs") and other similarly structured securities. A CBO is a trust which is backed by a diversified pool of high risk, below investment grade fixed income securities. A CLO is a securitised, 144A security rated by one or more rating agencies and is typically collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, among others, domestic and foreign senior secured loans, senior unsecured loans, and subordinate corporate loans, including loans that may be rated below investment grade or equivalent unrated loans. The Funds may invest in other asset-backed securities that have been offered to investors.

The CMOs referred to above may include support bonds. As CMOs have evolved, some classes of CMO bonds have become more common. For example, the Funds may invest in parallel-pay and planned amortization class ("PAC") CMOs and multi-class pass through certificates. Parallel-pay CMOs and multi-class pass through certificates are structured to provide payments of principal on each payment date to more than one class. These simultaneous payments are taken into account in calculating the stated maturity date or final distribution date of each class, which, as with other CMO and multi-class pass-through structures, must be retired by its stated maturity date or final distribution date but may be retired earlier. PACs generally require payments of a specified amount of principal on each payment date. PACs are parallel-pay CMOs with the required principal amount on such securities having the highest priority after interest has been paid to all classes. Any CMO or multi-class pass through structure that includes PAC securities must also have support tranches—known as support bonds, companion bonds or non-PAC bonds—which lend or absorb principal cash flows to allow the PAC securities to maintain their stated maturities and final distribution dates within a range of actual prepayment experience. These support tranches are subject to a higher level of maturity risk compared to other mortgage-related securities, and usually provide a higher yield to compensate investors. If principal cash flows are received in amounts outside a pre-determined range such that the support bonds cannot lend or absorb sufficient cash flows to the PAC securities as intended, the PAC securities are subject to heightened maturity risk. Consistent with a Fund's investment objectives and policies, the Investment Advisor may invest in various tranches of CMO bonds, including support bonds.

Certain funds may invest in credit risk transfer securities which have similar risks and characteristics to those associated with other types of mortgage related securities.

Loans, Loan Participations and Loan Assignments

Certain Funds may invest in loans, loan participations and/or loan assignments as provided for in the relevant Supplement and provided such instruments constitute transferable securities (as defined by the Regulations) or money market instruments normally dealt in the money market, which are liquid and have a value that may be accurately determined at any time.

Such loans are deemed to constitute money market instruments normally dealt in on the money market where they fulfil one of the following criteria:

- (a) they have a maturity at issuance of up to and including 397 days;
- (b) they have a residual maturity of up to and including 397 days;
- (c) they undergo regular yield adjustments in line with money market conditions at least every 397 days; or
- their risk profile, including credit and interest rate risks, corresponds to that of financial instruments which have a maturity as referred to in points (a) or (b), or are subject to a yield adjustment as referred to in point (c).

Such loans are deemed to be liquid where they can be sold at limited cost in an adequately short time frame, taking into account the obligation of the applicable Fund to repurchase its Shares at the request of any Shareholder. Such loans are deemed to have a value which can be accurately determined at any time where such loans are subject to accurate and reliable valuations systems, which fulfil the following criteria:

- (a) they enable the applicable Fund to calculate the Net Asset Value in accordance with the value at which the loan held in the portfolio could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction; and
- (b) they are based either on market data or on valuation models including systems based on amortised costs.

Loan participations typically represent direct participation in a loan to a corporate borrower, and generally are offered by banks or other financial institutions or lending syndicates. When purchasing loan participations, a Fund assumes the economic risk associated with the corporate borrower and the credit risk associated with an interposed bank or other financial intermediary. Loan assignments typically involve a transfer of debt from a lender to a third party. When purchasing loan assignments, a Fund assumes the credit risk associated with the corporate borrower only.

Such loans may be secured or unsecured. Loans that are fully secured offer a Fund more protection than an unsecured loan in the event of non-payment of scheduled interest or principal. However, there is no assurance that the liquidation of collateral from a secured loan would satisfy the corporate borrower's obligation. In addition, investments in loans through a direct assignment include the risk that if a loan is terminated, a Fund could become part owner of any collateral, and would bear the costs and liabilities associated with owning and disposing of the collateral.

A loan is often administered by an agent bank acting as agent for all holders. Unless, under the terms of the loan or other indebtedness, a Fund has direct recourse against the corporate borrower, the Fund may have to rely on the agent bank or other financial intermediary to apply appropriate credit remedies against a corporate borrower.

The loan participations or assignments in which a Fund intends to invest may not be rated by any internationally recognised rating service.

Corporate Debt Securities

Corporate debt securities include corporate bonds, debentures, notes (which are transferable securities listed or traded on a Regulated Market) and other similar corporate debt instruments, including convertible securities. Debt securities may be acquired with warrants attached. Corporate income-producing securities may also include forms of preferred or preference stock. The rate of interest on a corporate debt security may be fixed, floating or variable, and may vary inversely with respect to a reference rate. See "*Variable and Floating Rate Securities*" below. The rate of return or return of principal on some debt obligations may be linked or indexed to the level of exchange rates between the USD and a different currency or currencies.

Corporate debt securities are subject to the risk of the issuer's inability to meet principal and interest payments on the obligation and may also be subject to price volatility due to such factors as interest rate sensitivity, market perception of the creditworthiness of the issuer and general market liquidity. When interest rates rise, the value of corporate debt securities can be expected to decline. Debt securities with longer maturities tend to be more sensitive to interest rate movements than those with shorter maturities. In addition, corporate debt securities may be highly customised and as a result may be subject to, among others, liquidity and pricing transparency risks.

Company defaults can impact the level of returns generated by corporate debt securities. An unexpected default can reduce income and the capital value of a corporate debt security. Furthermore, market expectations regarding economic conditions and the likely number of corporate defaults may impact the value of corporate debt securities.

Corporate debt securities may be subject to illiquidity risk, as they may be difficult to purchase or sell in different market conditions. For further information, see the section headed "Liquidity Risk" in "**General Risk Factors**".

High Yield Securities and Securities of Distressed Companies

Securities rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch are sometimes referred to as "high yield" or "junk" bonds. Investing in high yield securities and securities of distressed companies (including both debt and equity securities) involves special risks in addition to the risks associated with investments in higher-rated fixed income securities. While offering a greater potential opportunity for capital appreciation and higher yields, high yield securities and securities of distressed companies typically entail greater potential price volatility and may be less liquid than higher-rated securities. High yield securities and debt securities of distressed companies may be regarded as predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's continuing ability to meet principal and interest payments. Issuers of high yield and distressed company securities may be involved in restructurings or bankruptcy proceedings that may not be successful. Analysis of the creditworthiness of issuers of higher quality debt securities.

High yield securities and debt securities of distressed companies may be more susceptible to real or perceived adverse economic and competitive industry conditions than investment grade securities. The prices of these securities have been found to be less sensitive to interest-rate changes than higher-rated investments, but more sensitive to adverse economic downturns or individual corporate developments. A projection of an economic downturn for example, could cause a decline in prices of high yield securities and debt securities of distressed companies because the advent of a recession could lessen the ability of a highly leveraged company to make principal and interest payments on its debt securities, and a high yield security may lose significant market value before a default occurs. If an issuer of securities defaults, in addition to risking payment of all or a portion of interest and principal, the Funds by investing in such securities, may incur additional expenses to seek recovery of their respective investments. In the case of securities structured as zero-coupon or pay-in-kind securities, their market prices are affected to a greater extent by interest rate changes, and therefore tend to be more volatile than securities which pay interest periodically and in cash. The Investment Advisor seeks to reduce these risks through diversification, credit analysis and attention to current developments and trends in both the economy and financial markets.

High yield and distressed company securities may not be listed on any exchange and a secondary market for such securities may be comparatively illiquid relative to markets for other more liquid fixed income securities. Consequently,

transactions in high yield and distressed company securities may involve greater costs than transactions in more actively traded securities, which could adversely affect the price at which the Funds could sell a high yield or distressed company security, and could adversely affect the daily net asset value of the shares. A lack of publicly-available information, irregular trading activity and wide bid/ask spreads among other factors, may, in certain circumstances, make high yield debt more difficult to sell at an advantageous time or price than other types of securities or instruments. These factors may result in a Fund being unable to realize full value for these securities and/or may result in a Fund not receiving the proceeds from a sale of a high yield or distressed company security for an extended period after such sale, each of which could result in losses to the Fund. In addition, adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may decrease the values and liquidity of high yield and distressed company securities, especially in a thinly-traded market. When secondary markets for high yield and distressed company securities are less liquid than the market for other types of securities, it may be more difficult to value the securities because such valuation may require more research, and elements of judgment may play a greater role in the valuation because there is less reliable, objective data available. The Investment Advisor seeks to minimize the risks of investing in all securities through diversification, in-depth analysis and attention to current market developments.

The use of credit ratings as the sole method of evaluating high yield securities can involve certain risks. For example, credit ratings evaluate the safety of principal and interest payments of a debt security, not the market value risk of a security. Also, credit rating agencies may fail to change credit ratings in a timely fashion to reflect events since the security was last rated. PIMCO does not rely solely on credit ratings when selecting debt securities for the Funds, and develops its own independent analysis of issuer credit quality. If a credit rating agency changes the rating of a debt security held by a Fund, the Fund may retain the security if PIMCO deems it in the best interest of shareholders.

ESG Fixed Income Securities

Certain Funds may invest in various types of ESG Fixed Income Securities which notably enable issuers to raise capital to fund projects with positive environmental and/or social benefits as provided for in the relevant Supplement. ESG Fixed Income Securities shall include but are not limited to green labeled bonds and other debt instruments geared toward sustainability. Labeled bonds are often verified by a third party (such as an audit firm), which certifies that the bond will fund projects (e.g. green labeled bonds are those issues with proceeds specifically earmarked to be used for environmental projects).

Green Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or re-finance new and existing projects or activities with positive environmental impact. Eligible project categories include: renewable energy, energy efficiency, clean transportation, green buildings, wastewater management and climate change adaptation.

Social Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or re-finance social projects or activities that aim to address or mitigate a specific social issue or seek to achieve positive social outcomes. Social Project categories include providing and/or promoting: affordable basic infrastructure, access to essential services, affordable housing, employment generation, food security, or socioeconomic advancement and empowerment.

Sustainability Bonds: are a type of bond whose proceeds are used to finance or re-finance a combination of green and social projects or activities. Sustainability bonds with strict accountability of the use of proceeds towards activities that advance the UN Sustainable Development Goals or SDGs may be labeled as SDG Bonds.

Sustainability-linked Bonds: are bonds which are structurally linked to the issuer's achievement of certain sustainability goals, such as through a covenant linking the coupon of a bond to specific environmental and/or social goals. Progress, or lack thereof, toward the aforementioned goals or selected key performance indicators results in a decrease or increase in the instrument's coupon.

In contrast to the green, social and sustainability bonds described above, sustainability-linked bonds do not finance particular projects but rather finance the general functioning of an issuer that has explicit sustainability targets that are linked to the financing conditions of the bond.

Roll Transactions

A Fund may engage in roll-timing strategies where the Fund seeks to extend the expiration or maturity of a position, such as a forward contract, futures contract or "to-be-announced" (TBA) transaction, on an underlying asset by closing out the position before expiration and contemporaneously opening a new position with respect to the same underlying asset that has substantially similar terms except for a later expiration date. Such "rolls" enable the Fund to maintain continuous investment exposure to an underlying asset beyond the expiration of the initial position without delivery of

the underlying asset. Similarly, as certain standardized swap agreements transition from over-the-counter trading to mandatory exchange-trading and clearing due to the implementation of the European Market Infrastructure Regulation, a Fund may "roll" an existing over-the-counter swap agreement by closing out the position before expiration and contemporaneously entering into a new exchange-traded and cleared swap agreement on the same underlying asset with substantially similar terms except for a later expiration date. These types of new positions opened contemporaneous with the closing of an existing position on the same underlying asset with substantially similar terms are collectively referred to as "Roll Transactions." Roll Transactions are, in particular, subject to the Derivatives Risk and Operational Risk outlined herein.

Credit Ratings and Unrated Securities

Rating agencies are private services that provide ratings of the credit quality of fixed income securities, including convertible securities. **Appendix 2** to this Prospectus describes the various ratings assigned to fixed income securities by Moody's, S&P and Fitch. Ratings assigned by a rating agency are not absolute standards of credit quality and do not evaluate market risks. Rating agencies may fail to make timely changes in credit ratings and an issuer's current financial condition may be better or worse than a rating indicates. A Fund will not necessarily sell a security when its rating is reduced below its rating at the time of purchase and the Fund may retain such securities if the Investment Advisor deems it in the best interests of Shareholders. The Investment Advisors do not rely solely on credit ratings, and develop their own analysis of issuer credit quality. In the event that the rating services assign different ratings to the same security, the Investment Advisor will determine which rating it believes best reflects the security's quality and risk at that time, which may be the higher of the several assigned ratings.

A Fund may purchase unrated securities (which are not rated by a rating agency) if its Investment Advisor determines that the security is of comparable quality to a rated security that the Fund may purchase. Unrated securities may be less liquid than comparable rated securities and involve the risk that the Investment Advisor may not accurately evaluate the security's comparative credit rating. Analysis of the creditworthiness of issuers of high yield securities may be more complex than for issuers of higher-quality fixed income securities. To the extent that a Fund invests in high yield and/or unrated securities, the Fund's success in achieving its investment objective may depend more heavily on the Investment Advisor's creditworthiness analysis than if the Fund invested exclusively in higher-quality and rated securities.

Variable and Floating Rate Securities

Variable and floating rate securities provide for a periodic adjustment in the interest rate paid on the obligations. Each Fund may invest in floating rate debt instruments ("floaters") and engage in credit spread trades. A credit spread trade is an investment position where the value of the investment position is determined by movements in the difference between the prices or interest rates, as the case may be, of the respective securities or currencies. The interest rate on a floater is a variable rate which is tied to another interest rate and resets periodically.

While variable and floating rate securities provide a Fund with a certain degree of protection against rises in interest rates, a Fund will participate in any declines in interest rates as well.

Certain Funds may invest in inverse floating rate debt instruments ("Inverse Floaters"). The interest rate on an inverse floater resets in the opposite direction from the market rate of interest to which the Inverse Floater is indexed. An inverse floating rate security may exhibit greater price volatility than a fixed rate obligation of similar credit quality.

Inflation-Indexed Bonds

Inflation-indexed bonds are fixed income securities whose principal value is periodically adjusted according to the rate of inflation. If the index measuring inflation falls, the principal value of inflation-indexed bonds will be adjusted downward, and consequently the interest payable on these securities (calculated with respect to a smaller principal amount) will be reduced. Repayment of the original bond principal upon maturity (as adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the case of U.S. Treasury inflation-indexed bonds. For bonds that do not provide a similar guarantee, the adjusted principal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the original principal.

The value of inflation-indexed bonds is expected to change in response to changes in real interest rates. Real interest rates are tied to the relationship between nominal interest rates and the rate of inflation. If nominal interest rates increase at a faster rate than inflation, real interest rates may rise, leading to a decrease in value of inflation-indexed bonds. Short-term increases in inflation may lead to a decline in value. Any increase in the principal amount of an inflation-

indexed bond will be considered taxable ordinary income, even though investors do not receive their principal until maturity.

Convertible and Equity Securities

The convertible securities in which the Funds may invest consist of bonds, notes, debentures and preferred stocks which may be converted or exchanged at a stated or determinable exchange ratio into underlying shares of common stock. Convertible securities may offer higher income than the common stocks into which they are convertible. A Fund may be required to permit the issuer of a convertible security to redeem the security, convert it into the underlying common stock, or sell it to a third party.

A Fund with convertible securities may not be able to control whether the issuer of a convertible security chooses to convert that security. If the issuer chooses to do so, this action could have an adverse effect on a Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective because the issuer may force conversion before the Fund would otherwise choose.

While some countries or companies may be regarded as favourable investments, pure fixed income opportunities may be unattractive or limited due to insufficient supply, or legal or technical restrictions. In such cases, a Fund may consider convertible securities or equity securities to gain exposure to such investments.

Equity securities generally have greater price volatility than Fixed Income Securities. The market price of equity securities owned by a Fund may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably. Equity securities may decline in value due to factors affecting equity securities markets generally or particular industries represented in those markets. The value of an equity security may also decline for a number of reasons which directly relate to the issuer, such as management performance, financial leverage and reduced demand for the issuer's goods or services.

Contingent Convertible Instruments

Contingent convertible securities ("CoCos") are a form of hybrid debt security that are intended to either convert into equity or have their principal written down upon the occurrence of certain 'triggers' linked to regulatory capital thresholds or where the issuing banking institution's regulatory authorities question the continued viability of the entity as a going-concern. CoCos will have unique equity conversion or principal write-down features which are tailored to the issuing banking institution and its regulatory requirements. Some additional risks associated with CoCos are set forth below:

- Loss absorption risk: CoCo features have been designed to meet specific regulatory requirements imposed on banking institutions. In particular, CoCos can be converted into equity of the issuing banking institution or have their principal written down if their regulatory capital ratio falls below a pre-determined level or when the relevant regulatory authority deems the banking institution being non-viable. In addition those hybrid debt instruments have no stated maturity and fully discretionary coupons. This means coupons can potentially be cancelled at the banking institution's discretion or at the request of the relevant regulatory authority in order to help the bank absorb losses.
- Subordinated Instruments. CoCos will, in the majority of circumstances, be issued in the form of subordinated debt instruments in order to provide the appropriate regulatory capital treatment prior to a conversion. Accordingly, in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of an issuer prior to a conversion having occurred, the rights and claims of the holders of the CoCos, such as the Funds, against the issuer in respect of or arising under the terms of the CoCos shall generally rank junior to the claims of all holders of unsubordinated obligations of the issuer. In addition, if the CoCos are converted into the issuer's underlying equity securities following a conversion event, each holder will be subordinated due to their conversion from being the holder of a debt instrument to being the holder of an equity instrument.
- Market Value will fluctuate based on unpredictable factors. The value of CoCos is unpredictable and will be influenced by many factors including, without limitation (i) the creditworthiness of the issuer and/or fluctuations in such issuer's applicable capital ratios; (ii) supply and demand for the CoCos; (iii) general market conditions and available liquidity and (iv) economic, financial and political events that affect the issuer, its particular market or the financial markets in general.

Equity-Linked Securities and Equity-Linked Notes

Certain Funds may invest a portion of their assets in equity-linked securities. Equity-linked securities are privately issued derivative securities that have a return component based on the performance of a single stock, a basket of stocks, or a

stock index. Equity-linked securities are often used for many of the same purposes as, and share many of the same risks with, other derivative instruments.

An equity-linked note is a note, typically issued by a company or financial institution, whose performance is tied to a single stock, a basket of stocks, or a stock index. Generally, upon the maturity of the note, the holder receives a return of principal based on the capital appreciation of the linked securities. The terms of an equity-linked note may also provide for the periodic interest payments to holders at either a fixed or floating rate. Because the notes are equity linked, they may return a lower amount at maturity due to a decline in value of the linked security or securities. To the extent a Fund invests in equity-linked notes issued by foreign issuers, it will be subject to the risks associated with the debt securities of foreign issuers and with securities denominated in foreign currencies. Equity-linked notes are also subject to default risk and counterparty risk.

Global Securities

Investing in securities on a global basis involves special risks and considerations. Shareholders should consider carefully the substantial risks involved for Funds that invest in securities issued by companies and governments on a global basis. These risks include: differences in accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards; generally higher commission rates on foreign portfolio transactions; the possibility of nationalisation, expropriation or confiscatory taxation; adverse changes in investment or exchange control regulations; and political instability. Individual foreign economies may differ favourably or unfavourably from an investor's economy in such respects as growth of gross domestic product, rates of inflation, capital reinvestment, resources, self-sufficiency and balance of payments position. The securities markets, values of securities, yields and risk associated with certain securities markets may change independently of each other. Also, certain securities and dividends and interest payable on those securities may be subject to foreign taxes, including taxes withheld from payments on those securities. Global securities often trade with less frequency and volume than domestic securities and therefore may exhibit greater price volatility. Investments in securities on a global basis may also involve higher custodial costs than domestic investments and additional transaction costs with respect to foreign currency conversions. Changes in foreign exchange rates also will affect the value of securities denominated or quoted in foreign currencies.

Certain Funds also may invest in sovereign debt issued by governments, their agencies or instrumentalities, or other government-related entities. Holders of sovereign debt may be requested to participate in the rescheduling of such debt and to extend further loans to governmental entities. In addition, there is no bankruptcy proceeding by which defaulted sovereign debt may be collected.

Emerging Markets Securities

Certain Funds may invest in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or "emerging market" economies ("emerging market securities"). A security is economically tied to an emerging market country if the issuer or guarantor of the security has its headquarters in the country or if the currency of settlement of the security is a currency of the emerging market country.

The Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify and invest in countries that it considers to qualify as emerging securities markets. In making investments in emerging markets securities, a Fund emphasises countries with relatively low gross national product per capita and with the potential for rapid economic growth. Emerging market countries are generally located in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe. The Investment Advisor will select the Funds' country and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, and any other specific factors the Investment Advisor believes to be relevant.

Additional risks of emerging markets securities may include: greater social, economic and political uncertainty and instability; more substantial governmental involvement in the economy; less governmental supervision and regulation; unavailability of currency hedging techniques; companies that are newly organised and small; differences in auditing and financial reporting standards, which may result in unavailability of material information about issuers; and less developed legal systems. In addition, emerging securities markets may have different clearance and settlement procedures, which may be unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions or otherwise make it difficult to engage in such transactions. Settlement problems may cause a Fund to miss attractive investment opportunities, hold a portion of its assets in cash pending investment, or be delayed in disposing of a portfolio security. Such a delay could result in possible liability to a purchaser of the security.

Currency Transactions

For efficient portfolio management and investment purposes, each Fund may buy and sell foreign currency options and / or foreign currency futures and may engage in foreign currency transactions either on a spot or forward basis, subject to the limits and restrictions set down by the Central Bank from time to time, to reduce the risks of adverse market changes in exchange rates or to increase exposure to foreign currencies or to shift exposure to foreign currency fluctuations from one country to another. For the purposes of efficient portfolio management, the Hedged Classes, the Partially Hedged Classes and the Currency Exposure Classes may buy and sell currencies on a spot and forward basis in addition to the techniques and instruments set down by the Central Bank from time to time, to reduce the risks of adverse changes in exchange rates subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time.

A forward currency exchange contract, which involves an obligation to purchase or sell a specific currency at a future date at a price set at the time of the contract, reduces a Fund's exposure to changes in the value of the currency it will deliver and increases its exposure to changes in the value of the currency it will receive for the duration of the contract. The effect on the value of a Fund is similar to selling securities denominated in one currency and purchasing securities denominated in another currency. A contract to sell currency would limit any potential gain which might be realised if the value of the hedged currency increases. A Fund may enter into these contracts to hedge against exchange risk, to increase exposure to a currency or to shift exposure to currency fluctuations from one currency to another. Suitable hedging transactions may not be available in all circumstances and there can be no assurance that a Fund will engage in such transactions at any given time or from time to time. Also, such transactions may not be successful and may eliminate any chance for a Fund to benefit from favourable fluctuations in relevant foreign currencies. A Fund may use one currency (or a basket of currencies) to hedge against adverse changes in the value of another currency (or a basket of currencies) when exchange rates between the two currencies are positively correlated.

The Investment Advisors will not employ any techniques to hedge the unhedged Share Classes' exposure to changes in the exchange rate between the relevant Fund's Base Currency and the currency of the unhedged Share Class respectively. As such, the Net Asset Value per Share and investment performance of the unhedged Share Classes will be affected by changes in the value of the currency of the unhedged Share Class, relative to the relevant Fund's Base Currency.

Event-Linked Bonds

Event-linked bonds are debt obligations generally issued by special purpose vehicles organised by insurance companies, with interest payments tied to the insurance losses of casualty insurance contracts. Large insurance losses, such as those caused by a storm, will reduce the interest payments and could effect principal payments. Small losses will lead to above-market interest payments.

Generally, event-linked bonds are issued as Rule 144A securities. The Funds will only invest in bonds which meet the credit quality criteria set out in the investment policies relevant to each Fund. In the event that they are not issued with an undertaking to register with the US Securities and Exchanges Commission within one year of issue, investment in such instruments will be subject to the 10% aggregate restriction on investment in unlisted securities.

If a trigger event causes losses exceeding a specific amount in the geographic region and time period specified in a bond, liability under the terms of the bond is limited to the principal and accrued interest of the bond. If no trigger event occurs, the Fund will recover its principal plus interest. Often, event-linked bonds provide for extensions of maturity that are mandatory, or optional at the discretion of the issuer, in order to process and audit loss claims in those cases where a trigger event has, or possibly has, occurred. An extension of maturity may increase volatility. In addition to the specified trigger events, event-linked bonds may also expose the Fund to certain unanticipated risks including but not limited to issuer risk, credit risk, counterparty risk, adverse regulatory or jurisdictional interpretations, and adverse tax consequences. Event-linked bonds may become illiquid upon the occurrence of a trigger event.

Contracts for Difference and Equity Swaps

Contracts for difference ("CFDs") (also known as synthetic swaps) can be used to secure a profit or avoid a loss by reference to fluctuations in the value or price of equities or financial instruments or in an index of such equities or financial instruments. An equity CFD is a derivative instrument designed to replicate the economic performance and the cash flows of a conventional share investment.

CFDs may be used either as a substitute for direct investment in the underlying equity security or as an alternative to and for the same purposes as futures and options, particularly in cases where there is no futures contract available in

relation to a specific security, or where an index option or index future represents an inefficient method of gaining exposure because of pricing risk or the risk of delta or beta mismatches.

Certain Funds may invest in CFDs and total return equity swaps (equity swaps). The risks inherent in CFDs and equity swaps are dependent on the position that a Fund may take in the transaction: by utilising CFDs and equity swaps, a Fund may put itself in a "long" position on the underlying value, in which case the Fund will profit from any increase in the underlying stock, and suffer from any fall. The risks inherent in a "long" position are identical to the risks inherent in the purchase of the underlying stock. Conversely, a Fund may put itself in a "short" position on the underlying stock, in which case the Fund will profit from any decrease in the underlying stock, and suffer from any increase. The risks inherent in a "short" position are greater than those of a "long" position: while there is a ceiling to a maximum loss in a "long" position if the underlying stock is valued at zero, the maximum loss of a "short" position is that of the increase in the underlying stock, an increase that, in theory, is unlimited.

It should be noted that a "long" or "short" CFD or equity swap position is based on the relevant Investment Advisor's opinion of the future direction of the underlying security. The position could have a negative impact on the Fund's performance. However, there is an additional risk related to the counterparty when CFDs and equity swaps are utilised: the Fund runs the risk that the counterparty will not be in a position to make a payment to which it has committed. The relevant Investment Advisor will ensure that the counterparties involved in this type of transaction are carefully selected and that the counterparty risk is limited and strictly controlled.

Derivatives

Each Fund may, but is not required to, use derivative instruments for risk management purposes or as part of their investment strategies in accordance with the limits and guidelines issued by the Central Bank from time to time. Generally, derivatives are financial contracts whose value depends upon, or is derived from, the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or index, and may relate to stocks, bonds, interest rates, currencies or currency exchange rates and related indexes. Examples of derivative instruments which a Fund may use include options contracts, futures contracts, options on futures contracts, swap agreements (including credit swaps, credit default swaps, forward swap spreadlocks, options on swap agreements, straddles, forward currency exchange contracts and structured notes), provided that in each case the use of such instruments (i) will not result in an exposure to instruments other than transferable securities, financial indices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates or currencies, (ii) will not result in an exposure to underlying assets other than to assets in which a Fund may invest directly and (iii) the use of such instruments will not cause a Fund to diverge from its investment objective. The Investment Advisor may decide not to employ any of these strategies and there is no assurance that any derivatives strategy used by a Fund will succeed.

The Funds may purchase and sell structured notes and hybrid securities, purchase and write call and put options on securities (including straddles), securities indexes and currencies, and enter into futures contracts and use options on futures contracts (including straddles). Each Fund may also enter into swap agreements including, but not limited to, swap agreements on interest rates, security indexes, specific securities, and credit swaps. To the extent a Fund may invest in foreign currency-denominated securities, it may also invest in currency exchange rate swap agreements. The Funds may also enter into swap agreements including options on swap agreements with respect to currencies, interest rates, and securities indexes and may also enter into currency forward contracts and credit default swaps. The Funds may use these techniques as part of their overall investment strategies.

Certain Funds, may invest in derivatives that could be classified as "exotic". Specifically, in the case of these Funds, these will be barrier options and variance and volatility swaps. Variance and volatility swaps are over-the-counter financial derivatives that enable one to hedge risk and/or efficiently manage exposure associated with the magnitude of a movement as measured by the volatility or variance of some underlying product like an exchange rate, interest rate or stock rate and may be used in circumstances where, for example, the investment advisor is of the view that realized volatility on a specific asset is likely to be different from what the market is currently pricing. A barrier option is a type of financial option where the option to exercise rights under the relevant contract depends on whether or not the underlying asset has reached or exceeded a predetermined price. The additional component of a barrier option is the trigger – or barrier – which, in the case of a "knock-in" option, if reached, results in a payment being made to the purchaser of the barrier option. Conversely, a "knock-out" option will only result in payment being made to the purchaser of that option if the trigger is never reached during the life of the contract. Barrier options may be used in circumstances where, for example, the investment advisor is of the view that the probability of the price a specific asset moving through a threshold is likely to be different from what the market is currently pricing.

If the Investment Advisor incorrectly forecasts interest rates, market values or other economic factors in using a derivatives strategy for a Fund, the Fund might have been in a better position if it had not entered into the transaction

at all. The use of these strategies involves certain special risks, including a possible imperfect correlation, or even no correlation, between price movements of derivative instruments and price movements of related investments. While some strategies involving derivative instruments can reduce the risk of loss, they can also reduce the opportunity for gain or even result in losses by offsetting favourable price movements in related investments, or due to the possible inability of a Fund to purchase or sell a portfolio security at a time that otherwise would be favourable for it to do so, or the possible need for a Fund to sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time, and the possible inability of a Fund to close out or to liquidate its derivatives positions.

Whether a Fund's use of swap agreements and options on swap agreements will be successful will depend on the Investment Advisor's ability to correctly predict whether certain types of investments are likely to produce greater returns than other investments. Because they are two-party contracts and because they may have terms of greater than seven days, swap agreements may be considered to be illiquid investments. Moreover, a Fund bears the risk of loss of the amount expected to be received under a swap agreement in the event of the default or bankruptcy of a swap agreement counterparty. The swaps market is a relatively new market and is largely unregulated. It is possible that developments in the swaps market, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect a Fund's ability to terminate existing swap agreements or to realise amounts to be received under such agreements. Swaps used by the Funds will be consistent with the investment policy of the relevant Fund as set out in the Supplement.

Swap agreements are two-party contracts for periods ranging from a few weeks to more than one year. In a standard swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns (or differentials in rates of return) earned or realized on particular pre-determined investments or instruments, which may be adjusted for an interest factor. The gross returns to be exchanged or "swapped" between the parties are generally calculated with respect to a "notional amount", i.e., the return on or increase in value of a particular currency amount invested at a particular interest rate, in particular, foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index. A "quanto" or "differential" swap combines both an interest rate and a currency transaction. Other forms of swap agreements include interest rate caps, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates exceed a specified rate or "cap"; interest rate floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a specified rate or "floor"; and interest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and purchases a floor or vice versa in an attempt to protect itself against interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels.

A Fund may enter into credit default swap agreements. The "buyer" in a credit default contract is obligated to pay the "seller" a periodic stream of payments over the term of the contract provided that no event of default on an underlying reference obligation has occurred. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value, or "par value", of the reference obligation in exchange for the reference obligation. A Fund may be either the buyer or seller in a credit default swap transaction. If a Fund is a buyer and no event of default occurs, the Fund will lose its investment and recover nothing. However, if an event of default occurs, the Fund (if the buyer) will receive the full notional value of the reference obligation that may have little or no value. As a seller, a Fund receives a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the contract, which typically is between six months and three years, provided that there is no default event. If an event of default occurs, the seller must pay the buyer the full notional value of the reference obligation.

A structured note is a derivative debt security combining a fixed income instrument with a series of derivative components. As a result, the bond's coupon, average life, and/or redemption values can become exposed to the forward movement in various indices, equity prices, foreign exchange rates, mortgage backed security prepayment speeds, etc.

A hybrid security is a security which combines two or more financial instruments. Hybrid securities generally combine a traditional stock or bond with an option or forward contract. Generally, the principal amount payable upon maturity or redemption, or interest rate of a hybrid security, is tied (positively or negatively) to the price of some currency or securities index or another interest rate or some other economic factor (each a "benchmark"). The interest rate or (unlike most fixed income securities) the principal amount payable at maturity of a hybrid security may be increased or decreased, depending on the changes in the value of the benchmark.

A Fund's use of derivative instruments involves risks different from, or possibly greater than, the risks associated with investing directly in securities and other more traditional investments. The following provides a general discussion of important risk factors relating to all derivative instruments that may be used by the Funds.

Management Risk: Derivative products are highly specialized instruments that require investment techniques and risk analyses different from those associated with stocks and bonds. The use of a derivative requires an understanding not

only of the underlying instrument but also of the derivative itself, without the benefit of observing the performance of the derivative under all possible market conditions.

Credit Risk: The use of a derivative instrument involves the risk that a loss may be sustained as a result of the failure of another party to the contract (usually referred to as a "counterparty") to make required payments or otherwise comply with the contract's terms. Additionally, credit default swaps could result in losses if a Fund does not correctly evaluate the creditworthiness of the company on which the credit default swap is based. Over-the-counter derivatives are also subject to the risk that the other party in the transaction will not fulfill its contractual obligations. For derivatives traded on exchanges, the primary credit risk is the creditworthiness of the exchange itself or the related clearing broker.

Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk exists when a particular derivative instrument is difficult to purchase or sell. If a derivative transaction is particularly large or if the relevant market is illiquid (as is the case with many privately negotiated derivatives), it may not be possible to initiate a transaction or liquidate a position at an advantageous time or price.

Exposure Risk: Certain transactions may give rise to a form of exposure. Such transactions may include, among others, reverse repurchase agreements, and the use of when-issued, delayed delivery or forward commitment transactions. Although the use of derivatives may create an exposure risk, any exposure arising as a result of the use of derivatives will be risk managed using an advanced risk measurement methodology, in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements.

Lack of Availability: Because the markets for certain derivative instruments are relatively new and still developing, suitable derivatives transactions may not be available in all circumstances for risk management or other purposes. Upon the expiration of a particular contract, the Investment Advisor may wish to retain the Fund's position in the derivative instrument by entering into a similar contract, but may be unable to do so if the counterparty to the original contract is unwilling to enter into the new contract and no other suitable counterparty can be found. There is no assurance that a Fund will engage in derivatives transactions at any time or from time to time. A Fund's ability to use derivatives may also be limited by certain regulatory and tax considerations.

Market and Other Risks: Like most other investments, derivative instruments are subject to the risk that the market value of the instrument will change in a way detrimental to a Fund's interest. If the Investment Advisor incorrectly forecasts the values of securities, currencies or interest rates or other economic factors in using derivatives for a Fund, the Fund might have been in a better position if it had not entered into the transaction at all. While some strategies involving derivative instruments can reduce the risk of loss, they can also reduce the opportunity for gain or even result in losses by offsetting favorable price movements in other Fund investments. A Fund may also have to buy or sell a security at a disadvantageous time or price because the Fund is legally required to maintain offsetting positions or asset coverage in connection with certain derivatives transactions.

Other risks in using derivatives include the risk of mis-pricing or improper valuation of derivatives and the inability of derivatives to correlate perfectly with underlying assets, rates and indexes. Many derivatives, in particular privately negotiated derivatives, are complex and often valued subjectively. Improper valuations can result in increased cash payment requirements to counterparties or a loss of value to a Fund. Also, the value of derivatives may not correlate perfectly, or at all, with the value of the assets, reference rates or indexes they are designed to closely track. In addition, a Fund's use of derivatives may cause the Fund to realise higher amounts of short-term capital gains (generally taxed at ordinary income tax rates) than if the Fund had not used such instruments.

When-Issued, Delayed Delivery and Forward Commitment Transactions

Each Fund may purchase securities which it is eligible to purchase on a when-issued basis, may purchase and sell such securities for delayed delivery and may make contracts to purchase such securities for a fixed price at a future date beyond normal settlement time (forward commitments) all for investment and /or efficient portfolio management purposes. When such purchases are outstanding, a Fund will set aside and maintain until the settlement date assets determined to be liquid by the Investment Advisor in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price. When-issued transactions, delayed delivery purchases and forward commitments involve a risk of loss if the value of the securities decline prior to the settlement date. This risk is in addition to the risk that the Fund's other assets will decline in value. Typically, no income accrues on securities a Fund has committed to purchase prior to the time delivery of the securities is made, although a Fund may earn income on securities it has segregated to cover these positions.

Transferable Illiquid Securities

Certain illiquid securities may require pricing at fair value as determined in good faith under the supervision of the Directors. An Investment Advisor may be subject to significant delays in disposing of illiquid securities and transactions in illiquid securities may entail registration expenses and other transaction costs that are higher than those for transactions in liquid securities. The term "illiquid securities" for this purpose means securities that cannot be disposed of within seven days in the ordinary course of business at approximately the amount at which a Fund has valued the securities.

Depository Receipts

ADRs, GDRs and EDRs are transferable securities in registered form certifying that a certain number of shares have been deposited with a custodian bank by whom the ADR, GDR or EDR has been issued. ADRs are traded on U.S. exchanges and markets, GDRs on European exchanges and markets and U.S. exchanges and markets and EDRs on European exchanges and markets.

Municipal Securities Risk

A Fund may be more sensitive to adverse economic, business or political developments if it invests a substantial portion of its assets in the bonds of similar projects (such as those relating to education, health care, housing, transportation, and utilities), industrial development bonds, or in general obligation bonds, particularly if there is a large concentration from issuers in a single locality. This is because the value of municipal securities can be significantly affected by the political, economic, legal, and legislative realities of the particular issuer's locality or municipal sector events. In addition, a significant restructuring of national tax rates or even serious discussion on the topic in a relevant legislative body could cause municipal bond prices to fall. The demand for municipal securities is strongly influenced by the value of tax-exempt income to investors. Lower income tax rates could reduce the advantage of owning municipal securities. Similarly, changes to regulations tied to a specific sector, such as the hospital sector, could have an impact on the revenue stream for a given subset of the market.

Municipal securities are also subject to interest rate, credit, and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate risk: The value of municipal securities, similar to other fixed income securities, will likely drop as interest rates rise in the general market. Conversely, when rates decline, bond prices generally rise.

Credit Risk: The risk that a borrower may be unable to make interest or principal payments when they are due. Funds that invest in municipal securities rely on the ability of the issuer to service its debt. This subjects a Fund to credit risk in that the municipal issuer may be fiscally unstable or exposed to large liabilities that could impair its ability to honor its obligations. Municipal issuers with significant debt service requirements, in the near-to mid-term; unrated issuers and those with less capital and liquidity to absorb additional expenses may be most at risk. A Fund that invests in lower quality or high yield municipal securities may be more sensitive to the adverse credit events in the municipal market. The treatment of municipalities in bankruptcy is more uncertain, and potentially more adverse to debt holders, than for corporate issues.

Liquidity risk: The risk that investors may have difficulty finding a buyer when they seek to sell, and therefore, may be forced to sell at a discount to the market value. Liquidity may sometimes be impaired in the municipal market and Funds that primarily invest in municipal securities may find it difficult to purchase or sell such securities at opportune times. Liquidity can be impaired due to interest rate concerns, credit events, or general supply and demand imbalances. These adverse developments sometimes cause a Fund to endure higher redemption rates. Depending on the particular issuer and current economic conditions, municipal securities could be deemed more volatile investments.

In addition to general municipal market risks, different municipal sectors may face different risks. For instance, general obligation bonds are secured by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the municipality issuing the obligation. As such, timely payment depends on the municipality's ability to raise tax revenue and maintain a fiscally sound budget. The timely payments may also be influenced by any unfunded pension liabilities or other post-employee benefit plan (OPEB) liabilities.

Revenue bonds are secured by special tax revenues or other revenue sources. If the specified revenues do not materialize, then the bonds may not be repaid.

Private activity bonds are yet another type of municipal security. Municipalities use private activity bonds to finance the development of industrial facilities for use by private enterprise. Principal and interest payments are to be made by the private enterprise benefitting from the development, which means that the holder of the bond is exposed to the risk that the private issuer may default on the bond.

Moral obligation bonds are usually issued by special purpose public entities. If the public entity defaults, repayment becomes a "moral obligation" instead of a legal one. The lack of a legally enforceable right to payment in the event of default poses a special risk for a holder of the bond because it has little or no ability to seek recourse in the event of default.

Municipal notes are similar to general municipal debt obligations, but they generally possess shorter terms. Municipal notes can be used to provide interim financing and may not be repaid if anticipated revenues are not realized.

Real Estate Risk

A Fund that invests in real estate-linked derivative instruments is subject to risks similar to those associated with direct ownership of real estate, including losses from casualty or condemnation, and changes in local and general economic conditions, supply and demand, interest rates, zoning laws, regulatory limitations on rents, property taxes and operating expenses. An investment in a real estate-linked derivative instrument that is linked to the value of a real estate investment trust ("REIT") is subject to additional risks, such as poor performance by the manager of the REIT, adverse changes to the tax laws or failure by the REIT to qualify for tax-free pass-through of income. In addition, some REITs have limited diversification because they invest in a limited number of properties, a narrow geographic area, or a single type of property. Also, the organisational documents of a REIT may contain provisions that make changes in control of the REIT difficult and time-consuming. Finally, private REITs are not traded on a national securities exchange. As such, these products are generally illiquid. This reduces the ability of a Fund to redeem its investment early. Private REITs are also generally harder to value and may bear higher fees than public REITs.

Special Risks of Investing in Russian Securities

Although investment in Russian securities does not constitute the principal investment focus of any Fund, rather it constitutes a sector in the investment discretion of certain Funds, the Funds may invest a portion of their assets in securities of issuers located in Russia. In addition to the risks disclosed above under the heading "Emerging Markets Securities", investments in securities of Russian issuers may involve a particularly high degree of risk and special considerations not typically associated with investing in more developed markets, many of which stem from Russia's continuing political and economic instability and the slow-paced development of its market economy. In particular, investments in Russia are subject to the risk that non-Russian countries may impose economic sanctions, which may impact companies in many sectors, including energy, financial services and defence, among others, which may negatively impact the Fund's performance and/or ability to achieve its investment objective. For example, certain investments may become illiquid (e.g. in the event that the Funds are prohibited from transacting in certain investments tied to Russia), which could cause the Fund to sell other portfolio holdings at a disadvantageous time or price in order to meet Shareholder redemptions. It is also possible that such sanctions may prevent non-Russian entities that provide services to the Funds from transacting with Russian entities. Under such circumstances, the Funds may not receive payments due with respect to certain investments, such as the payments due in connection with a Fund's holding of a fixed income security. More generally, investments in Russian securities should be considered highly speculative. Such risks and special considerations include: (a) delays in settling portfolio transactions and the risk of loss arising out of Russia's system of share registration and custody; (b) pervasiveness of corruption, insider trading, and crime in the Russian economic system; (c) difficulties associated in obtaining accurate market valuations of many Russian securities, based partly on the limited amount of publicly available information; (d) the general financial condition of Russian companies, which may involve particularly large amounts of inter-company debt; (e) the risk that the Russian tax system will not be reformed to prevent inconsistent, retroactive and/or exorbitant taxation or, in the alternative, the risk that a reformed tax system may result in the inconsistent and unpredictable enforcement of the new tax laws (f) the risk that the government of Russia or other executive or legislative bodies may decide not to continue to support the economic reform programs implemented since the dissolution of the Soviet Union (q) the lack of corporate governance provisions applying in Russia generally, and (h) the lack of any rules or regulations relating to investor protection.

Russian securities are issued in book-entry form, with ownership recorded in a share register held by the issuer's registrar. Transfers are effected by entries to the books of registrars. Transferees of shares have no proprietary rights in respect of shares until their name appears in the register of Shareholders of the issuer. The law and practice relating to registration of shareholdings are not well developed in Russia and registration delays and failures to register shares can occur. In common with other emerging markets, Russia has no central source for the issuance or publication of

corporate actions information. The Depositary therefore cannot guarantee the completeness or timeliness of the distribution of corporate actions notifications.

Specific Risks of Investing in Chinese Securities

Although investment in Chinese securities or securities economically tied to China does not constitute the principal investment focus of any Fund, rather it may constitute a sector in the investment discretion of certain Funds, the Funds may invest a portion of their assets in securities of issuers located in the People's Republic of China ("PRC"). In addition to the risks disclosed under the heading "*Emerging Markets Securities*", investments in securities of Chinese issuers may involve a particularly high degree of risk and special considerations not typically associated with investing in more developed markets.

These additional risks include (without limitation): (a) inefficiencies resulting from erratic growth; (b) the unavailability of consistently-reliable economic data; (c) potentially high rates of inflation; (d) dependence on exports and international trade; (e) relatively high levels of asset price volatility, suspension risk and difficulties in settlement of securities; (f) small market capitalization and less liquidity; (g) greater competition from regional economies; (h) fluctuations in currency exchange rates, particularly in light of the relative lack of currency hedging instruments and controls on the ability to exchange local currency for U.S. dollars or other currencies; (i) the relatively small size and absence of operating history of many Chinese companies; (i) the developing nature of the legal and regulatory framework for securities markets, custody arrangements and commerce; and (k) uncertainty with respect to the commitment of the government of the PRC to economic reforms and development of the Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor ("FII") program (including the qualified foreign institutional investor ("QFII") program and/or the RMB qualified foreign institutional investor ("RQFII") program, which are now merging into one program based on recent PRC regulatory developments), pursuant to which the Funds may invest in the PRC and which regulates repatriation and currency conversion. In addition, there is a lower level of regulation and enforcement activity in these securities markets compared to more developed international markets. These could potentially be a lack of consistency in interpreting and applying the relevant regulations and a risk that the regulators may impose immediate or rapid changes to existing laws or introduce new laws, rules, regulations or policies without any prior consultation with or notice to market participates which may severely restrict a Fund's ability to pursue its investment objectives or strategies. There also exists control on foreign investment in China and limitations on repatriation of invest capital. Under the FII program, there are certain regulatory restrictions particularly on aspects including (without limitation to) investment scope, repatriation of funds. foreign shareholding limit and account structure. Although the relevant FII regulations have recently been revised to relax regulatory restrictions on the onshore investment and capital management by FIIs (including removing investment quota limit and simplifying process for repatriation of investment proceeds), it is a very new development and is therefore subject to uncertainties as to how well it will be implemented in practice, especially at the early stage. On the other hand, the recently amended FII regulations are also enhancing ongoing supervision on FIIs in terms of information disclosure among other aspects. In particular, FIIs are required to procure their underlying clients (such as any Fund investing in PRC securities via FII program) to comply with PRC disclosure of interests rules (e.g., the 5% substantial shareholder reporting obligation and the applicable aggregation with concerted parties and across holdings under various access channels including FII program and Stock Connect (if applicable)) and make the required disclosure on behalf of such underlying investors.

As a result of PRC regulatory requirements, a Fund may be limited in its ability to invest in securities or instruments tied to the PRC and/or may be required to liquidate its holdings in securities or instruments tied to the PRC. Under certain instances, such liquidations may result in losses for a Fund. In addition, securities exchanges in the PRC typically have the right to suspend or limit trading in any security traded on the relevant exchange. The PRC government or relevant PRC regulators may also implement policies that may adversely affect the PRC financial markets. Such suspensions, limitations or policies may have a negative impact on the performance of a Fund's investments.

Although the PRC has experienced a relatively stable political environment in recent years, there is no guarantee that such stability will be maintained in the future. As an emerging market, many factors may affect such stability – such as increasing gaps between the rich and poor or agrarian unrest and instability of existing political structures – and may result in adverse consequences to a Fund investing in securities and instruments economically tied to the PRC. Political uncertainty, military intervention and political corruption could reverse favorable trends toward market and economic reform, privatization and removal of trade barriers, and could result in significant disruption to securities markets.

The PRC is dominated by the one-party rule of the Communist Party. Investments in the PRC are subject to risks associated with greater governmental control over and involvement in the economy. The PRC manages its currency at artificial levels relative to the U.S. dollar rather than at levels determined by the market. This type of system can lead to sudden and large adjustments in the currency, which, in turn, can have a disruptive and negative effect on foreign

investors. The PRC also may restrict the free conversion of its currency into foreign currencies. Currency repatriation restrictions may have the effect of making securities and instruments tied to the PRC relatively illiquid, particularly in connection with redemption requests. In addition, the government of the PRC exercises significant control over economic growth through direct and heavy involvement in resource allocation and monetary policy, control over payment of foreign currency denominated obligations and provision of preferential treatment to particular industries and/or companies. Economic reform programs in the PRC have contributed to growth, but there is no guarantee that such reforms will continue.

Natural disasters such as droughts, floods, earthquakes and tsunamis have plagued the PRC in the past, and the region's economy may be affected by such environmental events in the future. A Fund's investment in the PRC is, therefore, subject to the risk of such events. In addition, the relationship between the PRC and Taiwan is particularly sensitive, and hostilities between the PRC and Taiwan may present a risk to a Fund's investments in the PRC.

The application of tax laws (e.g., the imposition of withholding taxes on dividend or interest payments) or confiscatory taxation may also affect a Fund's investment in the PRC. Because the rules governing taxation of investments in securities and instruments economically tied to the PRC are unclear, the Company may provide for capital gains taxes on Funds investing in such securities and instruments by reserving both realized and unrealized gains from disposing or holding securities and instruments economically tied to the PRC. This approach is based on current market practice and the Investment Advisor's understanding of the applicable tax rules. Changes in market practice or understanding of the applicable tax rules may result in the amounts reserved being too great or too small relative to actual tax burdens. Investors should be aware that their investments may be adversely affected by changes in Chinese tax law and regulations, which may apply with retrospective effect and which are constantly in a state of flux and will change constantly over time.

In addition, the PRC securities markets, including the Shanghai Stock Exchange, Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Beijing Stock Exchange, are undergoing a period of growth and change which may lead to difficulties in the settlement and recording of transactions and interpreting and applying the relevant regulations.

Finally, there are additional risks involved in investing through RMB over and above those of investing through other currencies. In this regard, please see the risk entitled "*Renminbi share class risks*" below for further information.

Access to the China Inter-Bank Bond Market

To the extent permissible by the relevant PRC regulations or authorities and subject to compliance with the relevant Fund Supplement, a Fund may also directly invest in permissible Fixed Income Instruments traded on the China Inter-Bank Bond Market (the "CIBM") including via a direct access regime (the "CIBM Direct Access") and/or Bond Connect, in compliance with the relevant rules issued by the People's Bank of China ("PBOC"), including its Shanghai Head Office, including but not limited to the Announcement [2016] No.3 and its implementing rules ("CIBM Rules") through an application filed with the PBOC, without being subject to any investment quota restrictions.

Although there is no quota restriction under the CIBM Rules, relevant information about the Fund's investments needs to be filed with PBOC and an updated filing may be required if there is any significant change to the filed information. It cannot be predicted whether PBOC will make any comments on or require any changes with respect to such information for the purpose of filing. If so required, the Investment Advisor or a Sub-Investment Advisor will need to follow PBOC instructions and make the relevant changes accordingly.

Market volatility and potential lack of liquidity due to low trading volume of certain debt securities in the CIBM may result in prices of certain debt securities traded on such market fluctuating significantly. A Fund investing in such market is therefore subject to liquidity and volatility risks. The bid and offer spreads of the prices of such securities may be large, and the Fund may therefore incur significant trading and realisation costs and may even suffer losses when selling such investments.

To the extent that a Fund invests in the CIBM, the Fund may also be exposed to risks associated with settlement procedures and default of counterparties. The counterparty which has entered into a transaction with the Fund may default in its obligation to settle the transaction by delivery of the relevant security or by payment for value.

The CIBM is also subject to regulatory risks. The CIBM Rules are relatively new and are still subject to continuous evolvement, which may adversely affect the Fund's capability to invest in the CIBM. In September 2020, PBOC, the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange jointly released a consultation draft regarding investment in China's bond markets by foreign institutional investors, which, if formally

promulgated, will bring changes to access filing, custody model and other aspects of foreign investor's investment in CIBM. In the extreme circumstances where the relevant PRC authorities suspend account opening or trading on the CIBM, a Fund's ability to invest in the CIBM will be limited and the Fund may suffer substantial losses as a result.

PBOC will exercise on-going supervision on the Fund's trading under the CIBM Rules and may take relevant administrative actions such as suspension of trading and mandatory exit against the Fund and/or the Investment Advisor and/or the Sub-Investment Advisor (as applicable) in the event of any non-compliance with the CIBM Rules.

Except for interest income from certain bonds (i.e. government bonds, local government bonds and railway bonds which are entitled to a 100% enterprise income tax exemption and 50% enterprise income tax exemption respectively in accordance with the Implementation Rules to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and a circular dated 16 April 2019 on the Announcement on Income Tax Policies on Interest Income from Railway Bonds), interest income derived by non-resident institutional investors from other bonds traded through the CIBM Direct Access to the CIBM is PRC-sourced income and subject to PRC withholding income tax at a rate of 10% and VAT at a rate of 6%.

According to the Circular on the Enterprise Income Tax and Value-Added Tax Policies for Foreign Institutions investing in Onshore Bond Markets, the enterprise income tax and VAT of the coupon interest income gained by overseas institutions in China bond markets will be temporarily exempted from 7 November 2018 to 6 November 2021, which has been extended to 31 December 2025 pursuant to the Announcement on the Renewal of Enterprise Income Tax and Value-Added Tax Policies for Foreign Institutions Investing in the Onshore Bond Markets issued on 22 November 2021. The scope of the enterprise income tax exemption has excluded bond interest gained by foreign institutions' onshore entities/establishment that are directly connected with such onshore entities/establishment.

Capital gains derived by non-resident institutional investors from the trading of CIBM bonds are technically considered as non-PRC sourced gains hence not taxable for PRC withholding income tax. While the PRC tax authorities are currently enforcing such non-taxable treatment in practice, no clear guidance is available on such non-taxable treatment under the current tax regulations.

Pursuant to another circular dated 30 June 2016 on the Supplementary Circular on VAT Policies on Interbank Transactions of Financial Institutions under Caishui [2016] No. 70, the capital gains derived by foreign institutions approved by PBOC from the investment in the local currency markets of CIBM shall be exempted from VAT.

In addition, the tax law and regulations of the PRC are constantly changing, and they may be changed with retrospective effect. The interpretation and applicability of the tax law and regulations by tax authorities are not as consistent and transparent as those of more developed nations, and may vary from region to region. As a result, the PRC taxes and duties payable by the Investment Advisor and which are to be reimbursed by the Fund to the extent attributable to the assets held through CIBM Direct Access to the CIBM may change at any time.

Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via CIBM Direct Access

Under the CIBM Direct Access, an onshore trading and settlement agent shall be engaged by the Investment Advisor or a Sub-Investment Advisor to make the filing on behalf of the Fund and conduct trading and settlement agency services for the Fund.

Since the relevant filings and account opening for investment via the CIBM Direct Access have to be carried out via an onshore settlement agent, the Fund is subject to the risks of default or errors on the part of the onshore settlement agent.

Under the CIBM Direct Access, the CIBM Rules allow foreign investors to remit investment amounts in RMB or foreign currency into China for investing in the CIBM. For repatriation of funds out of China by a Fund, the ratio of RMB to foreign currency should generally match the original currency ratio when the investment principal was remitted into China, with a maximum permissible deviation of 10%. Such requirements may change in the future which may have an adverse impact on the Fund's investment in the CIBM.

In September 2020, CIBM direct RFQ trading service was launched by China Foreign Exchange Trade System & National Interbank Funding Center ("CFETS"). Under such service, foreign investors under CIBM Direct Access may solicit cash bond trading with domestic market makers by requesting for quotation ("RFQ") and confirm the trades in CFETS system. As a novel arrangement under CIBM Direct Access, CIBM direct RFQ trading may be subject to further adjustments and uncertainties in implementation, which may have an adverse impact on the Fund's investment to the extent the Fund transacts via CIBM direct RFQ trading mechanism.

Risks relating to investment in the CIBM via Bond Connect

The Bond Connect initiative was launched in July 2017 to facilitate CIBM access between Hong Kong and Mainland China. It was established by CFETS, China Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd ("CCDC"), Shanghai Clearing House ("SHCH") and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Central Moneymarkets Unit ("CMU").

The Bond Connect scheme is designed to be efficient and more convenient for offshore investors at an operational level, by using familiar trading interfaces of established electronic platforms without requiring investors to engage an onshore settlement agent. Orders are executed electronically with any of the eligible onshore participating dealers who are recognized by CFETS. Cash is exchanged offshore in Hong Kong. The infrastructure contemplates two-way access between Hong Kong and China, enabling eligible foreign investors to invest through Hong Kong into the CIBM (generally referred to as "Northbound Trading Link") and eligible domestic investors to invest into overseas bonds market (generally referred to as "Southbound Trading Link"). Under the Northbound Trading Link, eligible foreign investors utilising Bond Connect are required to appoint the CFETS or other institutions recognised by the PBOC as registration agents to apply for registration with the PBOC.

The Northbound Trading Link under Bond Connect adopts a multi-layered custody arrangement whereby CCDC/SHCH performs the primary settlement function as the ultimate central securities depository, which handles bond custody and settlement for the CMU in Mainland China. The CMU is the nominee holder of CIBM bonds acquired by overseas investors via the Northbound Trading Link. The CMU handles custody and settlement for the accounts opened with it for the beneficial ownership of those overseas investors.

Under the multi-layered custody arrangement of Bond Connect

- 1) the CMU acts as "nominee holder "of CIBM bonds; and
- 2) overseas investors are the "beneficial owners" of CIBM bonds through CMU members.

Overseas investors invest through offshore electronic trading platforms where trade orders are executed on CFETS, CIBM's centralised electronic trading platform, between investors and onshore participating dealers.

Under the multi-layered custody arrangement, while the distinct concepts of "nominee holder" and "beneficial owner" are generally recognized under relevant PRC regulations, the application of such rules is untested, and there is no assurance that PRC courts will recognise such rules, e.g. in liquidation proceedings of PRC companies or other legal proceedings.

Under Northbound Trading Link, bond issuers and trading of CIBM bonds are subject to market rules in China. Any changes in laws, regulations and policies of the China bond market or rules in relation to Northbound Trading Link may affect prices and liquidity of the relevant CIBM bonds and the Fund's investment in relevant bonds may be adversely affected.

Commodity Risk

A Fund's investments in commodity index-linked derivative instruments may subject the Fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. The value of commodity index-linked derivative instruments may be affected by changes in overall market movements, commodity index volatility, changes in interest rates, or factors affecting a particular industry or commodity, such as drought, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs and international economic, political and regulatory developments.

Underlying Fund Risk

Where a Fund invests in other collective investment schemes (in accordance with the Central Bank requirements) the Fund may be subject to valuation risk due to the manner and timing of valuations of its investments in such other collective investment schemes may be valued by fund administrators affiliated to fund managers, or by the fund managers themselves, resulting in valuations which are not verified by an independent third party on a regular or timely basis. Accordingly, there is a risk that (i) the valuations of the Fund may not reflect the true value of the other collective investment schemes holdings at a specific time which could result in significant losses

or inaccurate pricing for the Fund and/or (ii) valuation may not be available as at the relevant Valuation Point for the Fund so that some or all of the assets of the Fund may be valued on an estimated basis.

While the Investment Advisor or its delegate will comply with the investment restrictions applicable to the Funds, the manager of and/or service providers to the other collective investment schemes are not obliged to comply with such investment restrictions in the management/administration of the other collective investment schemes. No assurance is given that the investment restrictions of the Funds with respect to individual issuers or other exposures will be adhered to by the other collective investment schemes or that, when aggregated, exposure by the other collective investment schemes to individual issuers or counterparties will not exceed the investment restrictions applicable to the Funds.

The cost of investing in the Funds will generally be higher than the cost of investing in an investment fund that invests directly in individual stocks and bonds. By investing in the Funds, an investor will indirectly bear fees and expenses charged by the other collective investment schemes in addition to the Fund's direct fees and expenses. In addition, the use of a fund of funds structure could affect the timing, amount and character of distributions to Shareholders.

Where a Fund invests in other collective investment schemes, the risks associated with its investments are closely related to the risks associated with the securities and other investments held by the other collective investment schemes. The ability of such a Fund to achieve its investment objectives will depend upon the ability of the other collective investment schemes to achieve their investment objectives. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of any other collective investment schemes will be achieved.

Subject to the requirements of the Central Bank, each of the Funds may invest in the other Funds of the Company and/or other collective investment schemes managed by the Investment Advisor or entities affiliated with the Investment Advisor ("Affiliated Funds"). In some cases, the Funds may be a large or predominant shareholder of a particular Affiliated Fund. Investment decisions made with respect to the Affiliated Funds could, under certain circumstances, negatively impact the Funds with respect to the expenses and investment performance of the Affiliated Funds. For instance, large redemptions of shares from an Affiliated Fund may result in the Affiliated Fund having to sell securities when it otherwise would not do so. Such transactions may impact on the return the Affiliated Fund provides a Fund.

Investments in Exchange-Traded Funds ("ETFs")

Investments in ETFs entail certain risks; in particular, investments in index ETFs involve the risk that the ETF's performance may not track the performance of the index the ETF is designed to track. Unlike the index, an ETF incurs administrative expenses and transaction costs in trading securities. In addition, the timing and magnitude of cash inflows and outflows from and to investors buying and redeeming shares in the ETF could create cash balances that cause the ETF's performance to deviate from the index (which remains "fully invested" at all times). Performance of an ETF and the index it is designed to track also may diverge because the composition of the index and the securities held by the ETF may occasionally differ.

In addition, investments in ETFs involve the risk that the market prices of ETF shares will fluctuate, sometimes rapidly and materially, in response to changes in the ETF's net asset value, the value of ETF holdings and supply and demand for ETF shares. Although the creation/redemption feature of ETFs generally makes it more likely that ETF shares will trade close to net asset value, market volatility, lack of an active trading market for ETF shares, disruptions at market participants (such as authorized participants or market makers) and any disruptions in the ordinary functioning of the creation/redemption process may result in ETF shares trading significantly above (at a "premium") or below (at a "discount") NAV. Significant losses may result when transacting in ETF shares in these and other circumstances. Neither the Investment Advisor not the Company can predict whether ETF shares will trade above, below or at NAV. An ETF's investment results are based on the ETF's daily net asset value. Investors transacting in ETF shares in the secondary market, where market prices may differ from NAV, may experience investment results that differ from results based on the ETF's daily net asset value.

Short Selling

Typically, UCITS, such as the Company, invest on a "long only" basis. This means that their net asset value will rise (or fall) in value based on the market value of the assets they hold. A "short" sale involves the sale of a security that the seller does not own in the hope of purchasing the same security (or a security exchangeable for such security) at a later date at a lower price. To make a delivery to the buyer, the seller must borrow the security and is obligated to return the security (or a security exchangeable for such security) to the lender, which is accomplished by a later purchase of said security. Although the Company is not permitted to enter into short sales under the Regulations, a Fund may, by

employing certain derivative techniques (such as contracts for difference) designed to produce the same economic effect as a short sale (a "synthetic short"), establish both "long" and "short" positions in individual stocks and markets. As a result, as well as holding assets that may rise or fall with markets, a Fund may also hold positions that will rise as the market value falls, and fall as the market value rises. Taking synthetic short positions involves trading on margin and accordingly can involve greater risk than investments based on a long position.

Securities Financing Transactions Risk

Securities Financing Transactions create several risks for the Company and its investors, including counterparty risk if the counterparty to a Securities Financing Transaction defaults on its obligation and liquidity risk if the Fund is unable to liquidate collateral provided to it to cover a counterparty default.

Repurchase Agreements: In the event of the failure of the counterparty with which cash has been placed, the Fund may suffer loss as there may be delay in recovering cash placed out or difficulty in realising collateral or proceeds from the sale of the collateral may be less than the cash placed with the counterparty due to market movements.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements: In the event of the failure of the counterparty with which collateral has been placed, the Fund may suffer loss as there may be delays in recovering collateral placed out or the cash originally received may be less than the collateral placed with the counterparty due to market movements.

Collateral Risk: Collateral or margin may be passed by the Fund to a counterparty or broker in respect of over-the-counter derivative transactions or Securities Financing Transactions. Assets deposited as collateral or margin with brokers may not be held in segregated accounts by the brokers and may therefore become available to the creditors of such brokers in the event of their insolvency or bankruptcy. Where collateral is posted to a counterparty or broker by way of title transfer, the collateral may be re-used by such counterparty or broker for their own purpose, thus exposing the Fund to additional risk. Risks related to a counterparty's right of re-use of any collateral include that, upon the exercise of such right of re-use, such assets will no longer belong to the relevant Fund and the Fund will only have a contractual claim for the return of equivalent assets. In the event of the insolvency of a counterparty the Fund shall rank as an unsecured creditor and may not recover its assets from the counterparty. More broadly, assets subject to a right of re-use by a counterparty may form part of a complex chain of transactions over which the Fund or its delegates will not have any visibility or control.

Total Return Swaps: In respect of Total Return Swaps, if the volatility or expectation of volatility of the reference asset(s) varies, the market value of the financial instruments may be adversely affected. The Fund will be subject to the credit risk of the counterparty to the swap, as well as that of the issuer of the reference obligation. If there is a default by the counterparty to a swap contract a Fund will be limited to contractual remedies pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction. There is no assurance that swap contract counterparties will be able to meet their obligations pursuant to swap contracts or that, in the event of default, the Fund will succeed in pursuing contractual remedies. A Fund thus assumes the risk that it may be delayed in or prevented from obtaining payments owed to it pursuant to swap contracts. The value of the index/reference asset underlying a Total Return Swap may differ to the value attributable per Share due to various factors such as the costs incurred in relation to the Total Return Swap entered into by the Fund to gain such exposure, fees charged by the Fund, differences in currency values and costs associated with hedged or unhedged share classes.

10822885v25 62

KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS

The summary information outlined below and on the subsequent page relates to the purchase and sale of shares of the Company. Please refer to other

sections of this Prospectus for additional detail relating to these policies.

	Institutio nal Classes	G Institutio nal Classes	H Institutional Classes	R Classes	Investor Classes	Administrative Classes	E Classes	T Classes	M Retail Classes	G Retail Classes	W Class	Z Classes
Dealing Days	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily
Dealing Deadline ¹	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time	4.00 p.m. Irish Time
Subscription Settlement Deadline ²	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³	By the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day ³
Exchange Charge	None	None	Max. 1% ⁴	Max. 1% ⁴	None	None	Max. 1% ⁴	None	Max. 1% ⁴	Max. 1% ⁴	None	None
Minimum Initial Subscription	USD 5 million	USD 5 million	USD 1 million	USD 1,000 ⁶	USD 1 million	USD 1 million	USD 1,000 ⁶	USD 1,000 ⁶	USD 1,000 ⁶	USD 1,000 ⁶	USD 5 million	USD 50 million

1	For all Classes, the Dealing Deadline is 4.00p.m. Irish time on the Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.
2	Where subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the receipt of payment.
3	The Subscription Settlement Deadline will be either by the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day depending on the denominated currency of the Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the first Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the CAD, CHF, EUR, GBP, HUF, MXN, NOK, PLN, SEK and USD denominated Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the AUD, CNY, CZK, DKK, HKD, ILS, JPY, NZD and SGD denominated Classes.
4	An Exchange Charge may be imposed which may not exceed 1% of the subscription price for the total number of Shares in the Fund receiving the exchange, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to "How to Exchange Shares" for Exchange Charge information relating to Class H Institutional, E Classes, M Retail Classes, G Retail Classes, and R Classes.
5	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency. The Directors or their delegate may waive the Minimum Initial Subscription (applicable to investors prior to becoming a Shareholder) and Minimum Holding (which is applicable to Shareholders).
6	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency as appropriate if invested through an intermediary omnibus account. USD10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe. USD 1 million if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.
7	No Preliminary Charge is payable if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be deducted from the amount payable in respect of the subscription. The Preliminary Charge is payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Investors wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee may be payable to the provider of such nominee services. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the GBP Institutional Classes. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the T Classes and investors of T Classes wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee will not be payable to the provider of such nominee services (other than the Distribution Fee payable as set out in the Prospectus).
8	Unless otherwise disclosed in the relevant Supplement.
9	The time by which redemption proceeds will generally be paid. Where redemption for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the payment of proceeds. In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.
10	Except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.

No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be imposed for BE Retail, BN Retail and BM Retail Classes. A contingent deferred sales charge shall be imposed as further outlined in the relevant Supplement.

Minimum	USD	USD	USD	USD1,000	USD	USD	USD	USD	USD	USD	USD 500,000	USD
Holding ⁵	500,000	500,000	500,000		500,000	500,000	1,000	1,000	1,000	1,000		20 million
Preliminary	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	None	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%	Max. 5%
Charge ⁷												
Redemption	None	None	None	None	None	None	None	None	None	None	None	None
Charge ⁸												
Valuation	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m. Irish	9.00 p.m. Irish	9.00 p.m. Irish	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m.	9.00 p.m. Irish	9.00 p.m.
Point ⁸	Irish Time	Irish Time	Time	Time	Time	Irish Time	Irish	Irish Time	Irish Time	Irish Time	Time	Irish Time
							Time					
Redemption	One	One	Third Business	Third Business	One Business Day	One Business	Third	Third Business	Third Business	Third Business	One Business	One Business
Settlement	Business	Business	Day following	Day following	following relevant	Day following	Business	Day following	Day following	Day following	Day following	Day following
Deadline ⁹	Day	Day	relevant	relevant Dealing	Dealing Day ¹⁰	relevant Dealing	Day	relevant	relevant	relevant	relevant	relevant
	following	following	Dealing Day	Day		Day ¹⁰	following	Dealing Day	Dealing Day	Dealing Day	Dealing Day ¹⁰	Dealing Day ¹⁰
	relevant	relevant		•			relevant					
	Dealing	Dealing					Dealing					
	Day ¹⁰	Day ¹⁰					Day					

2	Where subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the receipt of payment.
3	The Subscription Settlement Deadline will be either by the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day depending on the denominated currency of the Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the first Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the CAD, CHF, EUR, GBP, HUF, MXN, NOK, PLN, SEK and USD denominated Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the AUD, CNY, CZK, DKK, HKD, ILS, JPY, NZD and SGD denominated Classes.
4	An Exchange Charge may be imposed which may not exceed 1% of the subscription price for the total number of Shares in the Fund receiving the exchange, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to "How to Exchange Shares" for Exchange Charge information relating to Class H Institutional, E Classes, M Retail Classes, G Retail Classes, and R Classes.
5	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency. The Directors or their delegate may waive the Minimum Initial Subscription (applicable to investors prior to becoming a Shareholder) and Minimum Holding (which is applicable to Shareholders).
6	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency as appropriate if invested through an intermediary omnibus account. USD10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe. USD 1 million if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.
7	No Preliminary Charge is payable if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be deducted from the amount payable in respect of the subscription. The Preliminary Charge is payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Investors wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee may be payable to the provider of such nominee services. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the GBP Institutional Classes. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the T Classes and investors of T Classes wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee will not be payable to the provider of such nominee services (other than the Distribution Fee payable as set out in the Prospectus).
8	Unless otherwise disclosed in the relevant Supplement.
9	The time by which redemption proceeds will generally be paid. Where redemption for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the payment of proceeds. In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.
10	Except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.
11	No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be imposed for BE Retail, BN Retail and BM Retail Classes. A contingent deferred sales charge shall be imposed as further outlined in the relevant Supplement.

For all Classes, the Dealing Deadline is 4.00p.m. Irish time on the Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.

KEY INFORMATION REGARDING SHARE TRANSACTIONS (cont.)

	BE Retail Classes	BM Retail Classes	BN Retail Classes	N Retail Classes	F Classes
Dealing Days	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily	Daily
Dealing Deadline ¹	4.00 p.m. Irish Time				
Subscription Settlement Deadline ²	By the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day				
Exchange Charge	None	None	None	Max. 1% ⁴	None
Minimum Initial Subscription	USD 1,000 ⁶				
Minimum Holding ⁵	USD 1,000	USD 1,000	USD 1,000	USD 1,000	USD 1,000

1	For all Classes, the Dealing Deadline is 4.00p.m. Irish time on the Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.
2	Where subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the receipt of payment.
3	The Subscription Settlement Deadline will be either by the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day depending on the denominated currency of the Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the first Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the CAD, CHF, EUR, GBP, HUF, MXN, NOK, PLN, SEK and USD denominated Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the AUD, CNY, CZK, DKK, HKD, ILS, JPY, NZD and SGD denominated Classes.
4	An Exchange Charge may be imposed which may not exceed 1% of the subscription price for the total number of Shares in the Fund receiving the exchange, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to "How to Exchange Shares" for Exchange Charge information relating to Class H Institutional, E Classes, M Retail Classes, G Retail Classes, and R Classes.
5	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency. The Directors or their delegate may waive the Minimum Initial Subscription (applicable to investors prior to becoming a Shareholder) and Minimum Holding (which is applicable to Shareholders).
6	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency as appropriate if invested through an intermediary omnibus account. USD10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe. USD 1 million if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.
7	No Preliminary Charge is payable if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be deducted from the amount payable in respect of the subscription. The Preliminary Charge is payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Investors wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee may be payable to the provider of such nominee services. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the GBP Institutional Classes. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the T Classes and investors of T Classes wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee will not be payable to the provider of such nominee services (other than the Distribution Fee payable as set out in the Prospectus).
8	Unless otherwise disclosed in the relevant Supplement.
9	The time by which redemption proceeds will generally be paid. Where redemption for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the payment of proceeds. In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.
10	Except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.

10822885v25

No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be imposed for BE Retail, BN Retail and BM Retail Classes. A contingent deferred sales charge shall be imposed as further outlined in the relevant Supplement.

Preliminary Charge ⁷	None ¹¹	None ¹¹	None ¹¹	Max. 5%	Max. 5%
Redemption Charge ⁸	None ¹¹	None ¹¹	None ¹¹	None	None
Valuation Point ⁸	9.00 p.m. Irish Time				
Redemption Settlement Deadline ⁹	Third Business Day following relevant Dealing Day				

1	For all Classes, the Dealing Deadline is 4.00p.m. Irish time on the Dealing Day (or such other time as may be specified in the relevant Supplement for that Fund) for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.
2	Where subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the receipt of payment.
3	The Subscription Settlement Deadline will be either by the first or second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day depending on the denominated currency of the Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the first Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the CAD, CHF, EUR, GBP, HUF, MXN, NOK, PLN, SEK and USD denominated Classes. The Settlement Deadline will be by the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for the AUD, CNY, CZK, DKK, HKD, ILS, JPY, NZD and SGD denominated Classes.
4	An Exchange Charge may be imposed which may not exceed 1% of the subscription price for the total number of Shares in the Fund receiving the exchange, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to "How to Exchange Shares" for Exchange Charge information relating to Class H Institutional, E Classes, M Retail Classes, G Retail Classes, and R Classes.
5	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency. The Directors or their delegate may waive the Minimum Initial Subscription (applicable to investors prior to becoming a Shareholder) and Minimum Holding (which is applicable to Shareholders).
6	Or equivalent in the relevant Share Class currency as appropriate if invested through an intermediary omnibus account. USD10,000 if invested directly through NSCC FundServe. USD 1 million if invested through a direct non-omnibus account.
7	No Preliminary Charge is payable if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be deducted from the amount payable in respect of the subscription. The Preliminary Charge is payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Investors wishing to avail of nominee services should note that a separate fee may be payable to the provider of such nominee services. No Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of the GBP Institutional Classes. No Preliminary Charge is payable to the provider of such nominee services (other than the Distribution Fee payable as set out in the Prospectus).
8	Unless otherwise disclosed in the relevant Supplement.
9	The time by which redemption proceeds will generally be paid. Where redemption for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier or later deadlines for the payment of proceeds. In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.
10	Except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.
11	No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be imposed for BE Retail, BN Retail and BM Retail Classes. A contingent deferred sales charge shall be imposed as further outlined in the relevant Supplement.

HOW TO PURCHASE SHARES

Classes and Types of Shares

Classes of Shares

The Z Classes are offered primarily for other Funds of the Company or for direct investment by institutional investors who have entered into an investment management or other agreement with the Investment Advisor or a PIMCO affiliate authorising investment in Z Classes.

Subject to the discretion of the Manager, the Institutional Class is intended for direct investment by institutional investors such as pension funds, sovereign wealth funds, foundations, charities and official institutions. The Institutional Class is also intended for other investors in certain jurisdictions where there are prohibitions on the payment of trail fees and in other jurisdictions for eligible counterparties, professional investors or intermediaries that have separate fee based agreements with their clients relating to (i) the provision of independent advisory services; or (ii) discretionary portfolio management services.

The Investor Classes are offered primarily through broker-dealers, intermediaries and other entities with agreements with the Distributor, and each pays a Service Fee to the Manager which may be used to reimburse such entities for services they provide to such Fund's Shareholders. Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares which distribute income on an annual basis.

The Administrative Classes are offered primarily through various intermediaries (including offshore programs of U.S. broker/dealers) and firms which have dealer agreements with the Distributor or which have agreed to act as introducing brokers for the Company. The Administrative Classes feature a Trail Fee which compensates such entities for services they provide to Administrative Class Shareholders.

Class H Institutional Shares are offered primarily as an investment vehicle for institutional asset allocation products.

Subject to the discretion of the Manager or its duly appointed delegate, W Class Shares are offered solely through intermediaries (who have entered into a written agreement with the Distributor and who satisfy certain minimum qualifying criteria (including but not limited to having a minimum of USD 10 billion in aggregate of client assets invested in the Company's Funds)) to investors that have entered into separate fee based agreements with such intermediaries relating to (i) the provision of independent advisory services; or (ii) discretionary portfolio management services.

E Classes, F Classes and BE Retail Classes are offered primarily as an investment to retail investors. Investors wishing to purchase E Class, F Class and BE Retail Class shares should do so via their financial intermediary.

The G Institutional Classes are offered primarily for direct investment by institutional investors and may also be offered through certain financial intermediaries that charge their customers transaction or other fees with respect to the customers' investments in the Funds. The G Institutional Classes are offered for investment by institutional investors seeking an income paying class that distributes on an annual basis. Certain Funds may also issue G Institutional Accumulation Shares.

The G Retail Classes are offered primarily as an investment to retail investors. Investors wishing to purchase G Retail Class shares should do so via their financial intermediary. The G Retail Classes are offered for investment by retail investors seeking an income paying class that distributes on an annual basis.

The M Retail and BM Retail Classes are offered primarily as an investment to retail investors. Investors wishing to purchase M Retail and BM Retail Class shares should do so via their financial intermediary. The M Retail and BM Retail Classes are offered for investment by retail investors seeking an income paying class that distributes on a monthly basis.

T Classes are offered in certain countries primarily to retail investors through selected broker-dealers, intermediaries and other entities who have agreements with the Distributor and at the Distributor's discretion, and a Distribution Fee is payable to the Distributor which may be used to reimburse such entities for services they provide to such Fund's Shareholders.

N Retail Classes and BN Retail Classes are offered at the Manager's discretion and are only intended for retail investors in certain jurisdiction(s) where N Retail Classes and BN Retail Classes are registered for sale to the public and are only offered through broker-dealers, intermediaries and other entities who have agreements with either the Distributor or a sub-agent engaged by the Distributor pursuant to applicable laws and regulations in a relevant jurisdiction that explicitly reference and authorise the distribution of N Retail Classes and BN Retail Classes to the public in the relevant jurisdiction(s).

The R Classes are intended for investors in certain jurisdictions where there are prohibitions on the payment and/or receipt of trail fees or commissions, for example, the UK and the Netherlands, and in other jurisdictions where the share class is registered for sale to eligible counterparties, professional investors or intermediaries that have separate fee based agreements with their clients relating to (i) the provision of independent advisory services; or (ii) discretionary portfolio management services; or (iii) other non-advisory investment services and activities as defined by the MiFID II Directive where such eligible counterparties, professional investors or intermediaries do not receive and retain any trail fees or commissions.

Investors may purchase Institutional Classes, Investor Classes, Administrative Classes, W Class, Class H Institutional, E Classes, F Classes, Class G Institutional, Class G Retail, Class M Retail Classes or R Classes (subject to the above paragraph in respect of R Classes) without a Preliminary Charge if subscribing directly through the Administrator. If subscribing through an intermediary a Preliminary Charge of up to 5% of the amount of the investment in the Fund may be payable to financial intermediaries appointed by a Distributor or directly to the Manager. The Preliminary Charge may either be deducted from the net amount received by the Administrator for the subscription for Shares or from the amount received by a financial intermediary from investors.

In the case of Administrative Classes, Investor Class, Class H Institutional, E Classes, Class G Institutional, Class G Retail, Class M Retail Classes, R Classes, F Classes, BE Retail Classes, BM Retail Classes or BN Retail Classes (subject to the applicable requirements in relation to R Classes), subscription for Shares may be made through a sub-agent, which has entered into an agreement with the Distributor. A sub-agent may charge its customers fees in connection with investments in the Funds and such fees may be in addition to charges applicable to the Funds and described in this Prospectus or in the relevant Supplement for each Fund. The amount of such fees shall be agreed between the sub-agent and its customers and will not be borne by the Fund.

The Company may create additional classes of Shares in a Fund to which different terms, fees and expenses may apply. Any such additional classes of Shares will be notified to, and cleared, in advance with the Central Bank.

Types of Shares

Within each Class of each Fund, the Company may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which are further described below and seek to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income) and each type of these Shares may further be designated as a type of hedged class (further details on which are set out below), if appropriate. The multiple class structure permits an investor to choose the method of purchasing Shares that is most suitable to the investor, given the amount of the purchase, the length of time the investor expects to hold the Shares, and other circumstances. Where there are Shares of a different class or type in issue, the Net Asset Value per Share amongst classes may differ to reflect the fact that income has been accumulated, distributed, or that there are differing charges, fees and expenses.

Income II Shares

Income II Shares are a type of income distributing Shares which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders.

In seeking to provide an enhanced yield the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential (as defined below) between the relevant hedged Share Class and the Base Currency of the relevant Fund (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes described below.

In respect of the Income II Shares, for the types of hedged classes described below, a Fund may enter into certain contracts (such as a forward foreign exchange contract) and such contracts would carry an implicit return based on the interest rate differential between the Base Currency and the hedged Share Class currency involved. Where the interest rate of the hedged Share Class currency is higher than the Base Currency of the relevant Fund, the expected distribution payable to Shareholders of the hedged Share Class currency were to decrease to below that of the Base Currency of the relevant Fund, then the expected distributions payable to Shareholders of the relevant hedged Share Class currency would be lower than the distributions payable to Shareholders of the base Share Class currency of the relevant Fund.

Where yield differentials are taken into account in distributions of the Income II Shares, this will mean that investors will forego capital gains in favour of income distributions when the implied yield of the hedged Share Class exceeds that of the base Share Class currency. Conversely, in times where the net Share Class currency hedging returns are unable to fully cover the yield differential portion of a distribution, such shortfall may result in a reduction of dividends paid and in extreme circumstances, may reduce the capital of the Fund. This risk to capital growth is particularly relevant to Income II Shares as a material proportion of the distributions for this type of Shares may be made out capital.

In the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

Any distributions involving the payment of dividends out of capital, charging of fees to the capital of the Fund and inclusion of yield differentials amounts to a return or withdrawal of part of a Shareholder's original investment or from any capital gains attributable to that original investment.

Whilst the payment of all distributions would result in an immediate reduction of the Net Asset Value per Share, Income II Shares may pay larger distributions (by paying dividends out of capital, charging fees to the capital of the Fund and including yield differentials), which may therefore result in a larger reduction in the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Fund.

Types of Hedged Classes

1. Hedged Classes

With respect to the Hedged Classes, the Company intends to limit the Shareholder's currency risk by reducing the effect of exchange rate fluctuations.

Unless otherwise stated in the relevant Supplement, the Company shall carry out currency hedging in respect of Hedged Classes to reduce the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the currency denominations of the Hedged Classes and the Base Currency of the Fund.

2. Partially Hedged Classes

Partially Hedged Classes seek to hedge only the "developed markets" currency exposures of the assets in the underlying portfolio back to the currency denomination of the Partially Hedged Class while leaving "emerging markets" currency exposures unhedged. For these purposes (i) "emerging markets" generally means any markets which are defined as an emerging or developing economy by the World Bank or its related organisations or the United Nations or its authorities; and (ii) "developed markets" means any markets not classified as an emerging market in accordance with (i).

3. Currency Exposure Classes

Currency Exposure Classes seek to capture exchange rate fluctuations between the denominated currency of the relevant Class and the currencies of the Fund's assets and thus shall effectively give unhedged exposure.

Additional Information related to Share Class hedging

A Fund may offer currency hedged Classes whereby the Fund shall enter into certain currency-related transactions in order to seek to hedge out currency risk. The presence of any currency hedged Classes, as well as details of any particular features, shall be clearly disclosed in the Supplement for the relevant Fund.

A benchmark may be used as a proxy for the purposes of conducting the hedging activity most efficiently where the composition of the benchmark is close to the portfolio of the Fund and their returns are highly correlated. Although the composition of the benchmark is expected to be closely aligned to the portfolio of the Fund, the currency exposures that are contained within the benchmark, including the individual currencies themselves, may differ from the Fund from time to time. This may result in certain individual currencies being over or under hedged.

To the extent that hedging is successful for a particular Class, the performance of the Class is likely to move in line with the performance of the underlying assets, other than due to the impact of the relevant currency hedging technique applicable to the relevant Class.

Any financial instruments used to implement such currency hedging strategies with respect to one or more Classes shall be assets/liabilities of the Fund but will be attributable to the relevant Class(es) and the profit and loss (realised and unrealised), and the costs of the currency hedging transactions (including any administrative costs arising from additional risk management) will accrue solely to the relevant Class. However, investors should note that there is no segregation of liability between Share Classes. Although the costs, profits and losses of the currency hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Class, Shareholders are nonetheless exposed to the risk that hedging transactions undertaken in one Class may impact negatively on the Net Asset Value of another Class. Please refer to the section entitled "Risk Factors; Currency Hedging at Share Class Level Risk" for more details.

Any additional risk introduced to the Fund through the use of currency hedging for a given Share Class should be mitigated and monitored appropriately. Accordingly, in accordance with the Central Bank Rules, the following operational provisions will apply to any currency hedging transactions:

- Counterparty exposure should be managed in accordance with the limits in the Regulations and the Central Bank Rules.
- Over-hedged positions should not exceed 105 per cent. of the net assets of the relevant Class of Shares.
- Under-hedged positions should not fall short of 95 per cent. of the portion of the net assets of the relevant Class which is to be hedged against currency risk.
- Hedged positions will be kept under review on an ongoing basis, at least at the same valuation frequency of the Fund, to ensure that over hedged or under hedged positions do not exceed/fall short of the permitted levels disclosed above.

- Such review (referred to above) will incorporate a procedure to ensure that positions materially in excess of 100% will not be carried forward from month to month.
- The currency exposures of different currency Classes may not be combined or offset and currency exposures of assets of the Fund may not be allocated to separate Share Classes.

Notwithstanding the above, there can be no guarantee that the hedging techniques will be successful and, while not intended, this activity could result in over-hedged or under-hedged positions due to external factors outside the control of the Company. The use of such class hedging techniques may therefore substantially limit holders of Shares in the relevant Classes from benefiting if the currency of that Class falls against that of the Base Currency of the relevant Fund and/or the currency in which the assets of the relevant Fund are denominated. Please refer to the section entitled "Risk Factors; Currency Hedging" for more details.

Applications for Shares

Investment Minimums.

The Minimum Initial Subscription for Shares of each Fund is set out in "**Key Information Regarding Share Transactions**". The Directors have delegated the authority to PIMCO to waive the Minimum Initial Subscription and Minimum Holding.

<u>Timing of Purchase Orders and Share Price Calculations.</u>

A purchase order received by the Administrator, (or by the Administrator's designee or a designee of a Distributor for onward transmission to the Administrator) prior to the Dealing Deadline, together with payment made in one of the ways described below, will be effected at the Net Asset Value per Share determined on that Dealing Day. An order received after the Dealing Deadline will be effected at the Net Asset Value per Share determined on the next Dealing Day. Dealing orders received before the Dealing Deadline by certain qualified intermediaries (who have entered into an agreement with the Manager or Distributor) from persons wishing to subscribe for Shares on a Dealing Day will be transmitted to the Administrator or its delegate prior to 9.00am Irish Time on the following Business Day and will be effected at the Net Asset Value determined on the prior Dealing Day.

Subject to the information above in relation to applications received by the Administrator from financial intermediaries, applications received after the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day shall be held in abeyance until the next Dealing Day unless the Company and Administrator otherwise agree provided that any such late application is received prior to the Valuation Point.

Initial Investment.

An initial order to purchase Shares should be made on the Application Form and sent by post or approved electronic transmission (which may be signed in electronic form as may be permitted by the Manager or the Administrator and where such electronic transmission is in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements) or facsimile (with the original sent by post immediately thereafter unless otherwise determined by the Manager or the Administrator) to the Administrator prior to the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day. Application Forms and details for subscription may be obtained by contacting the Administrator. Applications submitted by facsimile or approved electronic transmission will be treated as definite orders and no application will be capable of withdrawal after acceptance by the Administrator. The Application Form contains certain conditions regarding the application procedure for Shares in the Company and certain indemnities in favour of the Company, Manager, Investment Advisors, Administrator, Depositary, Distributor and other Shareholders for any loss suffered by them as a result of certain applicants acquiring or holding Shares in the Company.

The Application Form (and any other documentation which may be required by the Administrator in order to process the application or in relation to Anti-Money Laundering obligations) must be received promptly

by the Administrator. Any amendments to an investor's registration details and payment instructions will only be effected upon receipt of original documentation. The Company and the Administrator reserve the right to request such additional documentation as may be required from time to time in order to meet regulatory or other requirements. An investor account will be blocked and redemptions will not be permitted from accounts where the Administrator has not received the Application Form (in the format agreed with the Manager or the Administrator) and all relevant supporting documentation (including any documentation requested subsequent to the opening of the account) and all necessary anti-money laundering procedures have been carried out.

In order to be entitled to invest in Z Classes, an investor must have a current investment management or other agreement with either the Investment Advisor or a PIMCO affiliate.

Except as described below, payment for Shares of a Fund must be received by the Administrator by the relevant Settlement Deadline in cleared funds in the relevant Base Currency or the relevant currency denomination of the Share Class. Payment may also be made in any freely convertible currency. In such circumstances, the necessary currency exchange transactions will be arranged by the Administrator on behalf of, and at the expense and risk of, the applicant. If payment in full has not been received by the Settlement Deadline or in the event of non-clearance, any allotment of Shares made in respect of such application may, at the discretion of the Administrator, be cancelled. No Shares may be allotted for which payment in full has not been received. In such a case and notwithstanding cancellation of the application, the Company may charge the applicant for any resulting loss incurred by the Company.

Additional Investments.

An investor may purchase additional Shares of the Funds by submitting a subscription instruction by post to reach the Administrator prior to the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day. Additional investments may also be made by fax order or such other means, including approved electronic transmission, as may be permitted by the Directors (where such means are in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements) and such applications should contain such information as may be specified from time to time by the Directors or their delegate. Existing Shareholders at the date of this Prospectus who wish to subscribe by fax or other means should contact the Administrator for further details.

Issue Price.

Shares are initially issued at an Initial Issue Price and thereafter at the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant class and type of Shares determined on each Dealing Day, plus any applicable subscription charge.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and notified to potential investors in writing, the Initial Issue Price per Share of a Class within a previously unopened Fund, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, shall be AUD 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP10.00, HKD10.00, HUF 10.00, JPY 1,000, KRW10,000, ILS10.00, NOK100.00, NZD10.00, PLN 10.00, SEK100.00, SGD10.00 or USD10.00 (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

Where a Fund is currently operational, or where the Directors wish to offer Shares in a Class from which all issued Shares have previously been redeemed, the Initial Issue Price per Share of a Class not currently operational shall, at the discretion of the Directors or their delegate, be either the price referred to above, or the initial price of a new Class will be calculated from an existing class in the Fund or a price calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value per Share of existing operational Shares of the relevant Fund on the Dealing Day at the end of the Initial Offer Period multiplied by the prevailing market exchange rate on that date, as appropriate.

The Initial Offer Period for each Class shall close as soon as an investor subscribes for Shares of that Class. If all of the Shares of a Class are redeemed, the Directors may re-open the Initial Offer Period upon notification to the Central Bank.

Anti-Money Laundering Provisions.

The Company will retain the right to seek evidence of identity from investors as the Directors deem appropriate to comply with the Company's obligations under anti-money laundering legislation and, in the absence of satisfactory evidence, or for any other reason, may reject any application in whole or in part. The Directors may delegate the exercise of this right and discretion to the Administrator with power to subdelegate. If the application is rejected, the Administrator will, at the risk and cost of the applicant, return application monies or the balance thereof within 28 Business Days of the rejection, by bank transfer.

No payment will be made to an investor unless the Company and/or the Administrator have received the documentation that they have requested and/or require in order for them to comply with their obligations under anti-money laundering legislation. In the event that the investor fails to provide the necessary documentation as required to allow the Company and/or Administrator to comply with their obligations under anti-money laundering legislation, then the Company reserves the right to compulsorily repurchase and cancel any Shares held by the investor.

Should there be no activity on an account for six months or more, the Company and/or Administrative Agent may require additional documentation.

Any failure to supply the Company with any documentation requested by it for anti-money laundering and terrorist financing procedures may result in a delay in the settlement of redemption proceeds or dividend monies. In circumstances where a redemption request is received, the Company will process any redemption request received by a Shareholder, however the proceeds of that redemption will be held in an Umbrella Cash Account and therefore shall remain an asset of the relevant Fund. The redeeming Shareholder will rank as a general creditor of the relevant Fund until such time as the Company is satisfied it has received the documentation required to allow the Company to comply with its anti-money laundering and terrorist financing obligations, following which redemption proceeds will be released.

In the event of an insolvency of the Fund or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or the Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full. Investors / Shareholders due redemption / dividend monies which are held in a Umbrella Cash Account will rank equally with all other unsecured creditors of the relevant Fund and will be entitled to a pro-rata share of monies which are made available to all unsecured creditors by the insolvency practitioner. Therefore in such circumstances, the investor/ Shareholder may not recover all monies originally paid into an Umbrella Cash Account for onward transmission to that investor / Shareholder.

Therefore a Shareholder is advised to ensure that all relevant documentation requested by the Company in order to comply with anti-money laundering and terrorist financing procedures is submitted to the Company promptly on subscribing for Shares in the Company.

Data Protection.

Prospective investors (which may include investors subscribing in their capacity as nominees, intermediaries, authorised participants or in other such capacities) should note that, by virtue of making an investment in the Company and the associated interactions with the Company and its affiliates and delegates (including completing the Application Form, and including the recording of electronic communications or phone calls where applicable), or by virtue of providing the Company with personal information on individuals connected with the investor (for example directors, trustees, employees, representatives, shareholders, investors, clients, beneficial owners or agents) such investors will be providing the Company and its affiliates and delegates with certain personal information related to individuals which constitutes personal data within the meaning of the GDPR.

The Company has prepared a privacy notice ("**Privacy Notice**") outlining the Company's data protection obligations and the data protection rights of individuals under the GDPR.

All new investors shall receive a copy of the Privacy Notice as part of the process to subscribe for Shares in the Company and a copy of the Privacy Notice was sent to all existing investors in the Company that subscribed before the GDPR came into effect.

The Privacy Notice contains information on the following matters in relation to data protection:

- that investors will provide the Company with certain personal information which constitutes personal data within the meaning of the GDPR;
- that the Company shall act as a data controller in respect of this personal data and the fact that
 affiliates and delegates, such as the Administrator, the Investment Advisor and the Distributor may
 act as data processors;
- a description of the lawful purposes for which the personal data may be used, namely (i) where this
 is necessary for the performance of the contract to purchase Shares in the Company; (ii) where this
 is necessary for compliance with a legal obligation to which the Company is subject; and/or (iii) where
 this is necessary for the purposes of the legitimate interests of the Company or a third party and such
 legitimate interests are not overridden by the individual's interests, fundamental rights or freedoms;
- details on the transmission of personal data, including (if applicable) to entities located outside the EEA;
- details of data protection measures taken by the Company;
- an outline of the various data protection rights of individuals as data subjects under the GDPR;
- information on the Company's policy for retention of personal data;
- contact details for further information on data protection matters.

Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account in respect of Subscriptions

Subscription monies received from an investor in advance of a Dealing Day in respect of which an application for Shares has been, or is expected to be, received will be held in a cash account in the name of the Company (herein defined as an Umbrella Cash Account) and will be treated as an asset of the relevant Fund upon receipt and will not benefit from the application of any investor money protection rules (i.e. the subscription monies in such circumstance will not be held on trust as investor monies for the relevant investor). In such circumstance, the investor will be an unsecured creditor of the relevant Fund with respect to the amount subscribed and held by the Company until such Shares are issued as of the relevant Dealing Day.

In the event of an insolvency of the Fund or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or the Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full. Investors who have forwarded subscription monies in advance of a Dealing Day as detailed above and which are held in an Umbrella Cash Account will rank equally with all other unsecured creditors of the relevant Fund and will be entitled to a pro-rata share of monies which are made available to all unsecured creditors by the insolvency practitioner. Therefore in such circumstances, the investor may not recover all monies originally paid into an Umbrella Cash Account in relation to the application for Shares.

Your attention is drawn to the section of the Prospectus entitled "Risk Factors" -"Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account" above.

Other Purchase Information.

Fractional Shares may be issued in amounts of not less than 0.001 of a share. Application monies representing smaller fractions of Shares will not be returned to the applicant but will be retained as part of the assets of the relevant Fund. Shares will be issued in registered form only and share certificates will not be issued. Written confirmations of ownership shall be issued by the Administrator in relation to ownership of Shares.

The Company may, in its absolute discretion, provided that it is satisfied that no material prejudice would result to any existing Shareholders and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2014, accommodate a subscription for Shares of any Class against the vesting in the Company of investments which would form part of the assets of the relevant Fund. The number of Shares to be issued in this way shall be the number

which would on the day the investments are vested in the Company have been issued for cash against the payment of a sum equal to the value of the investments. The value of investments shall be calculated by the Administrator by applying the valuation methods under "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value".

The Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the 1933 Act or qualified under any applicable state statutes, and the Shares may not be transferred, offered or sold in the United States of America (including its territories and possessions) or to or for the benefit of, directly or indirectly, any U.S. Person (as that term is used in Regulation S under the 1933 Act and interpreted by the SEC), except pursuant to registration or an exemption. The definition of "U.S. Person" is set out in the section headed "Definitions". The Company has not been, and will not be, registered under the 1940 Act, and investors will not be entitled to the benefits of such registration. Pursuant to an exmption from registration under the 1940 Act, the Company may make a private placement of the Shares to a limited category of U.S. Persons. The Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities commission or other regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of this offering or the accuracy or adequacy of these offering materials. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

Shares may not be issued or sold during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value of a Fund is suspended in the manner described under "Suspension" under "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value".

All Shares of each Fund will rank pari passu (i.e., equally) unless otherwise stated.

Rejection of an Application.

Any of the Company, Manager, Administrator, Distributor or delegate on behalf of the Company may reject any application in whole or in part without giving any reason for such rejection in which event the subscription monies or any balance thereof will, at the risk and cost of the applicant, be returned without interest, expenses or compensation to the applicant by transfer to the applicant's designated account.

Nominee Service Provider.

For the purposes of facilitating the operational processes of investment in the Company by certain investors, the Administrator has agreed, with the consent of the Company, to appoint a professional nominee service provider to provide nominee services to such investors. Shares acquired on behalf of investors availing of this service will be registered in the name of the nominee service provider and all rights in respect of those Shares will be exercisable against the Company only through the nominee service provider. The Company will deal with the nominee service provider as the registered Shareholder and the nominee service provider shall enter into arrangements with investors to forward all relevant information to investors and to seek their instructions in relation to any matters affecting the Shares held by them. Neither the Company nor the Administrator will have any liability for any failure by the nominee service provider to exercise any rights attached to Shares in accordance with instructions issued by the underlying investors.

Abusive Trading Practices.

The Company generally encourages Shareholders to invest in the Funds as part of a long-term investment strategy. The Company discourages excessive, short-term trading and other abusive trading practices. Such activities, sometimes referred to as "market timing," may have a detrimental effect on the Funds and their Shareholders. For example, depending upon various factors (such as the size of a Fund and the amount of its assets maintained in cash), short-term or excessive trading by Fund Shareholders may interfere with the efficient management of the Fund's portfolio. This could lead to increased transaction costs and taxes, and may harm the performance of the Fund and its Shareholders.

The Company seeks to deter and prevent abusive trading practices, and to reduce these risks, through several methods. First, to the extent that there is a delay between a change in the value of a Fund's portfolio holdings and the time when that change is reflected in the net asset value of the Fund's shares, the Fund

is exposed to a risk. The risk is that investors may seek to exploit this delay by purchasing or redeeming Shares at net asset values that do not reflect appropriate fair value prices. The Company seeks to deter and prevent this activity, sometimes referred to as "stale price arbitrage," by the appropriate use of "fair value" pricing of the Funds' portfolio securities. See "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value" below for more information.

Second, the Company seeks to monitor Shareholder account activities in order to detect and prevent excessive and disruptive trading practices. The Company and PIMCO each reserve the right to restrict or refuse any purchase or exchange transaction if, in the judgment of the Company or of PIMCO, the transaction may adversely affect the interests of a Fund or its Shareholders. If an application is rejected, the Administrator, at the risk of the applicant, will return the application monies or the balance thereof within five Business Days of the rejection, at the cost and risk of the applicant and without interest, by bank transfer to the account from which it was paid. Among other things, the Company may monitor for any patterns of frequent purchases and sales that appear to be made in response to short-term fluctuations in Share price. Notice of any restrictions or rejections of transactions may vary according to the particular circumstances.

Although the Company and its service providers seek to use these methods to detect and prevent abusive trading activities, there can be no assurances that such activities can be mitigated or eliminated. By their nature, omnibus accounts, in which purchases and sales of Fund Shares by multiple investors are aggregated for presentation to the Fund on a net basis, conceal the identity of the individual investors from the Fund. This makes it more difficult for the Funds to identify short-term transactions in the Funds.

Structured Products.

Shareholders shall not structure or facilitate the structuring of, nor shall an investment in the Company and/or its Funds be associated with the structuring of, any financial product which is linked in any way to an investment in the Company and/or its Funds unless, where relevant, the Shareholder has obtained prior written consent from the Manager or the Distributor and the Shareholder (and the terms of any such financial product) is in compliance with such terms as are agreed between the Shareholder and the Manager or the Distributor and such other terms or requirements as are notified to the Shareholder pursuant to any such agreement. In the event that a Shareholder in the Company fails to comply with the aforementioned requirement, then the Company reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to compulsorily repurchase and cancel any Shares held by the Shareholder and the Company shall not be liable whatsoever for any loss, liability or cost incurred or suffered by the Shareholder.

HOW TO REDEEM SHARES

An investor may redeem (sell) Shares by submitting a request to the Administrator (or to the Administrator's designee or a designee of the Distributor for onward transmission to the Administrator). An order to redeem Shares should be made either on the Redemption Request Form and be sent by post or facsimile to the Administrator prior to the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day, or by such other means, including by electronic transmission, as may be permitted by the Directors (where such means are in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements). Redemption Request Forms may be obtained by contacting the Administrator. Redemptions will not be permitted from accounts where the Administrator has not received the Application Form (in the format agreed with the Manager or the Administrator) and all relevant supporting documentation and all necessary anti-money laundering procedures have been carried out.

Applications submitted by facsimile or by such other means, including by electronic transmission, will be treated as definite orders and no application will be capable of withdrawal after acceptance by the Administrator. Faxed or approved electronic transmission redemption requests will be processed only if payment is requested to be made to the account of record. Payment of redemption proceeds will be made to the registered Shareholder or in favour of the joint registered Shareholders, as appropriate.

A redemption request will not be capable of withdrawal after acceptance by the Administrator.

Timing of Redemption Requests and Share Price Calculations

A redemption request received by the Administrator, (or by the Administrator's designee or a designee of a Distributor for onward transmission to the Administrator) prior to the Dealing Deadline will be effected at the Net Asset Value per Share determined on that Dealing Day. A redemption request received after that time becomes effective on the next Dealing Day. Dealing orders received before the Dealing Deadline by certain qualified intermediaries (who have entered into an agreement with the Manager or Distributor) from persons wishing to redeem Shares on a Dealing Day will be transmitted to the Administrator or its delegate prior to 9.00am Irish Time on the following Business Day and will be effected at the Net Asset Value determined on the prior Dealing Day. The request must properly identify all relevant information such as account number, redemption amount (in currency or shares), the Fund name and Class, and must be executed by the appropriate signatories.

Subject to the information above in relation to redemption requests received by the Administrator from financial intermediaries, redemption requests received after the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day shall be held in abeyance until the next Dealing Day unless the Company and Administrator otherwise agree provided that any such late application is received prior to the Valuation Point.

Other Redemption Information

Redemption proceeds will be sent via bank transfer to the bank account referenced on the Application Form as follows:

- Z, Institutional, G Institutional, Investor, Administrative Classes and W Class: normally on the Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day for all Funds, except the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund and the AUD, RMB, HKD, JPY, NZD or SGD denominated Classes which will normally be sent via bank transfer on the second Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day; and
- H Institutional, M Retail, G Retail, E Classes, T Classes, R Classes, F Classes, BE Retail Classes, BM Retail Classes and BN Retail Classes: normally be sent via bank transfer on the third Business Day following the relevant Dealing Day.

In any event, the period between a redemption request and payment of proceeds should not exceed 14 calendar days, provided all relevant documentation has been received.

Redemption proceeds will normally be paid in the Net Asset Value denomination of the relevant Share Class (or in such other currency as may be agreed with the Administrator from time to time). Redemption proceeds will be sent by bank transfer only to the bank name designated on the Application Form.

For Shareholder protection, a request to change the bank designation (or request to change other information contained on the Application Form), must be received by the Administrator in writing with the appropriate number of signers and a signature guarantee from any eligible guarantor institution. Shareholders should consult the Administrator as to whether a particular institution is an eligible guarantor institution.

Shares may not be redeemed during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund is suspended in the manner described under "Suspension" under the heading "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value" below. Applicants for redemption of Shares will be notified of such suspension and, unless withdrawn, their redemption application will be considered on the next Dealing Day following the end of such suspension.

The Company may, with the consent of the relevant Shareholders, satisfy any request for redemption of Shares by the transfer in specie to those Shareholders of assets of the relevant Fund having a value equal to the redemption price for the Shares redeemed as if the redemption proceeds were paid in cash less any redemption charge and other expenses of the transfer provided that any Shareholder requesting redemption shall be entitled to request the sale of any asset or assets proposed to be distributed in specie and the distribution to such Shareholder of the cash proceeds of such sale, the costs of which shall be borne by the relevant Shareholder. The value of investments shall be calculated by the Administrator by applying the valuation methods under "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value".

For all Funds the Company is entitled to limit the number of Shares of any Fund redeemed on any Dealing Day to 10% of the total number of Shares of that Fund in issue. In this event, the Company shall reduce *pro rata* any requests for redemption on that Dealing Day and shall treat the redemption requests as if they were received on each subsequent Dealing Day until all the Shares to which the original request related have been redeemed.

The Articles contain special provisions where a redemption request received from a Shareholder would result in more than 5% of the Net Asset Value of Shares of any Fund being redeemed by the Company on any Dealing Day. In such a case the Company, at its sole discretion, may satisfy the redemption request by the transfer in specie (in kind) to the Shareholder of assets of the relevant Fund having a value equal to the redemption price for the Shares redeemed as if the redemption proceeds were paid in cash less any redemption charge and other expenses of the transfer provided that such a distribution would not be prejudicial to the interests of the remaining Shareholders of that Fund. Where the Shareholder requesting such redemption receives notice of the Company's intention to elect to satisfy the redemption request by such a distribution of assets, that Shareholder may require the Company, instead of transferring those assets, to arrange for their sale and the payment of the proceeds of sale to that Shareholder, the cost of which shall be borne by the relevant Shareholder.

The Company reserves the right to redeem any Shares which are or become owned, directly or indirectly, by a U.S. Person or if the holding of the Shares by any person may result in regulatory proceedings, legal, taxation or material disadvantage for the Company or the Shareholders as a whole. Where the Net Asset Value of the Company, Fund or class is less than such amount as may be determined by the Directors, the Directors, in conjunction with the Investment Advisor, may determine in their absolute discretion that it is in the interests of the relevant Shareholders to compulsorily repurchase all the Shares in issue in the Company or the relevant Fund or class. The Company may by not less than four nor more than twelve weeks' notice to Shareholders expiring on a Dealing Day, compulsorily repurchase at the Redemption Price on such Dealing Day, all of the Participating Shares in any Fund or class or all Funds or classes not previously repurchased.

The Administrator may decline to effect a redemption request, which would have the effect of reducing the value of any shareholding relating to any Fund below the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund. Any redemption request having such an effect may be treated by the Company as a request to redeem the Shareholder's entire holding.

The Company will be required to withhold Irish tax on redemption monies, at the applicable rate, unless it has received from the Shareholder an appropriate declaration in the prescribed form, confirming that the Shareholder is neither an Irish Resident nor an Ordinarily Resident in Ireland investor in respect of whom it is necessary to deduct tax.

If requested, the Directors may, in their absolute discretion and subject to the prior approval of the Depositary, agree to designate additional Dealing Days and Valuation Points for the benefit of all Shareholders for the redemption of Shares relating to any Fund.

The Company reserves the right to compulsorily redeem the entire holding of Z Class Shares of any Shareholder (deducting any amount owed for unpaid investment management fees), if the relevant investment management or other agreement is terminated for any reason whatsoever.

Notwithstanding any other provisions in the Prospectus (including for the avoidance of doubt, any waiver by the Directors or their delegate of the Minimum Initial Subscription or Minimum Holding), the Directors may, in their sole discretion, redeem the entire holding in the case of an account with a shareholding below the Minimum Holding, including in circumstances where redemption requests result in nominal amounts of shares being held in accounts.

Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account in respect of Redemptions

Redemption monies payable to an investor subsequent to a Dealing Day of a Fund as of which Shares of that investor were redeemed (and consequently the investor is no longer a Shareholder of the Fund as of the relevant Dealing Day) will be held in a cash account in the name of the Company (herein defined as an Umbrella Cash Account) and will be treated as an asset of the Fund until paid to that investor and will not benefit from the application of any investor money protection rules (i.e. the redemption monies in such circumstance will not be held on trust for the relevant investor). In such circumstance, the investor will be an unsecured creditor of the relevant Fund with respect to the redemption amount held by the Company until paid to the investor.

In the event of an insolvency of the Fund or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or the Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full. Investors due redemption monies which are held in an Umbrella Cash Account will rank equally with all other unsecured creditors of the relevant Fund and will be entitled to a pro-rata share of monies which are made available to all unsecured creditors by the insolvency practitioner. Therefore in such circumstances, the investor may not recover all monies originally paid into an Umbrella Cash Account for onward transmission to that investor.

Your attention is drawn to the section of the Prospectus entitled "Risk Factors" -"Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account" above."

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

Shareholders may exchange all or part of their Shares of any Class of any Fund (the "Original Fund") for Shares of the same Class of another Fund which are being offered at that time (the "Selected Fund") by giving notice to the Administrator on or prior to the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day. Requests for exchange received after the Dealing Deadline on a Dealing Day will be effected on the following Dealing Day.

Exchanges will be processed on the relevant Dealing Day based on the respective Net Asset Value of the Shares involved with the relevant redemption and subscription occurring simultaneously, and will be effected on the next Dealing Day on which *both* the Original Fund and Selected Fund are dealt providing all relevant documentation has been received in good form.

No exchange will be made if it would result in the Shareholder holding a number of Shares of either the Original Fund or the Selected Fund of a value which is less than the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund and Class.

No fee is charged for exchanges of Institutional Class, Investor Class, Administrative, G Institutional, BE Retail, BM Retail and BN Retail Shares. For Class H Institutional Shares, E Classes, F Classes, M Retail, R Classes and G Retail Shares, an Exchange Charge may be imposed which will not exceed 1.00% of the subscription price for the total number of Shares in the Selected Fund to be calculated as at the Dealing Day on which the exchange is effected. The Exchange Charge will be added to the subscription price of the Selected Fund. PIMCO, at its sole discretion, is authorised to waive the Exchange Charge.

The Administrator shall determine the number of Shares of the new class to be issued on exchange in accordance with the following formula:

$$S = R \times \underline{(RP \times ER)}$$

$$SP$$

where:

- **S** is the number of Shares of the selected Class to be issued;
- **R** is the number of Shares of the first Class specified in the notice which the holder thereof has requested to be exchanged;
- **RP** is the repurchase price per Share of the first Class as calculated as at the Valuation Point for the Dealing Day on which the exchange is to be effected;
- ER in the case of an exchange of Shares designated in the same currency, is 1. In any other case ER is the currency conversion factor determined by the Directors on the relevant Dealing Day as representing the effective rate of exchange applicable to the transfer of assets between Funds relating to the first and the new Class(es) of Shares after adjusting such rate as may be necessary to reflect the effective costs of making such transfer;
- **SP** is the subscription price per Share for the selected Class as calculated as at the Valuation Point for the Dealing Day on which the exchange is to be effected. For Class H Institutional Shares, an Exchange Charge may be added to the subscription price for the Selected Fund.

and the number of shares of the selected Class to be created or issued shall be so created or issued in respect of each of the Shares of the first Class being exchanged in the proportion (or as nearly as may be in the proportion) S to R where S and R have the meanings ascribed to them above.

When requesting the exchange of Shares as an initial investment in a Fund, Shareholders should ensure that the value of the Shares exchanged is equal to or exceeds the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund.

In the case of an exchange of a partial holding only, the value of the remaining holding must also be at least equal to the Minimum Holding for the Fund.

Shares may not be exchanged from one Fund to another during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund is suspended in the manner described under "Suspension" under the heading "Calculation and Suspension of Calculation of Net Asset Value". Shareholders applying to have their Shares exchanged from one Fund to another will be notified of any such suspension and unless withdrawn, their exchange application will be considered on the next Dealing Day on which both the Original Fund and the Selected Fund are dealt following the end of such suspension.

Subject to the information above in relation to exchange requests received by the Administrator from financial intermediaries, exchange requests received after the Dealing Deadline for the relevant Dealing Day shall be held in abeyance until the next Dealing Day unless the Company and Administrator otherwise agree provided that any such late application is received prior to the Valuation Point.

The Company may compulsorily exchange all or any Shares of one class in a Fund (the "Original Share Class") for Participating Shares of any class of the same Fund (the "Selected Share Class") by not less than four weeks' notice expiring on a Dealing Day to holders of Shares in the Original Share Class. No compulsory exchange will be made if it would result in the Shareholder holding a number of Shares of either the Original Share Class or the Selected Share Class of a value which is less than the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund and Class. No fee is charged for compulsory exchanges of any Shares of one class in a Fund and a compulsory exchange will not be effected if it results in an increase of fees to Shareholders. The Company or its delegate shall determine the number of Shares of the Selected Share Class to be issued on exchange in accordance with the formula as outlined above.

The Manager reserves the right to refuse exchange purchases (or purchase and redemption and/or redemption and purchase transactions) if, in the judgment of the Manager, the transaction would adversely affect a Fund and its Shareholders. Although the Manager has no current intention of terminating or modifying the exchange privilege, it reserves the right to do so at any time.

FUND TRANSACTIONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Subject to the provisions of this section, a Connected Person may contract or enter into any financial, banking or other transaction with one another or with the Company including, without limitation, an investment by the Company in the securities of a Shareholder or investment by any Connected Persons in any company or body any of whose investments form part of the assets comprised in any Fund, or be interested in any such contract or transactions.

Any Connected Person may be involved in other financial, investment and professional activities which may on occasion cause a conflict of interest with the management of the Company and/or their respective roles with respect to the Company. These activities may include managing or advising other funds, purchases and sales of securities, banking and other investment management services, brokerage services, valuation of unlisted securities (in circumstances in which fees payable to the entity valuing such securities may increase as the value of the assets increases) and serving as directors, officers, advisers, or agents of other funds or companies, including funds or companies in which the Company may invest. There will be no obligation on the part of any Connected Person to account to Shareholders for any benefits so arising and any such benefits may be retained by the relevant party, provided that such transactions are carried out as if effected on normal commercial terms negotiated at arm's length, are consistent with the best interests of the Shareholders; and

- (a) the value of the transaction is certified by a person who has been approved by the Depositary as being independent and competent (or a person who has been approved by the Manager as being independent and competent in the case of transactions involving the Depositary); or
- (b) the relevant transaction is executed on best terms on an organised investment exchange in accordance with the rules of such exchange; or
- (c) where the conditions set out in (a) and (b) above are not practical, the Depositary is satisfied that the transaction is conducted at arm's length and is in the best interests of Shareholders (or in the case of a transaction involving the Depositary, the Manager is satisfied that the transaction is conducted at arm's length and is in the best interests of Shareholders).

The Depositary (or the Manager in the case of transactions involving the Depositary) must document how it has complied with the provisions of paragraph (a), (b) or (c) above. Where transactions are conducted in accordance with (c) above, the Depositary (or the Manager in the case of transactions involving the Depositary) must document their rationale for being satisfied that the transaction conformed to the principles outlined above.

Any Connected Person may invest in and deal with Shares relating to any Fund or any property of the kind included in the property of the Company for their respective individual accounts or for the account of someone else.

Any cash of the Company may be deposited with any Connected Person provided the investment restrictions detailed in paragraph 2.7 in **Appendix 4** are complied with.

Each Connected Person may also, in the course of their business, have potential conflicts of interest with the Company in circumstances other than those referred to above. Connected Persons will, however, have regard in such event to their contractual obligations to the Company and, in particular, to their obligations to act in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders so far as practicable, having regard to its obligations to other clients when undertaking any investments where conflicts of interest may arise. In the event that a conflict of interest does arise, Connected Persons will endeavour to ensure that such conflicts are resolved fairly.

The Manager may at its complete discretion, from time to time enter into arrangements with banks, financial intermediaries or large institutional Shareholders to offset the Management Fee incurred by virtue of their investment in the Company. Any obligations arising from such arrangements will be met from the Manager's own resources.

CALCULATION AND SUSPENSION OF CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value of each Fund and/or each Class will be calculated by the Administrator as at the Valuation Point on, or with respect to, each Dealing Day in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Net Asset Value of a Fund shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by valuing the assets of the relevant Fund (including income accrued but not collected) and deducting the liabilities of the relevant Fund (including a provision for duties and charges, accrued expenses and fees and other liabilities).

The Net Asset Value attributable to a Class shall be determined as at the Valuation Point for the relevant Dealing Day by calculating that portion of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund attributable to the relevant Class, subject to adjustment to take account of assets and/or liabilities attributable to the Class. The Net Asset Value of a Fund will be expressed in the Base Currency of the Fund, or in such other currency as the Directors may determine either generally or in relation to a particular Class or in a specific case.

The Net Asset Value per Share shall be calculated as at the Valuation Point on, or with respect to, each Dealing Day by dividing the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund or attributable to a Class by the total number of Shares in issue or deemed to be in issue in the Fund or Class as at the relevant Valuation Point and rounding the resulting total to two decimal places or such other number of decimal places as may be determined by the Directors. Such rounding may result in a benefit to the relevant Fund or Shareholder.

Notwithstanding that subscription monies, redemption monies and dividend amounts will be held in a cash account in the name of the Company (herein defined as an Umbrella Cash Account) and treated as assets of and attributable to a Fund:

- (a) any subscription monies received from an investor prior to the Dealing Day of a Fund in respect of which an application for Shares has been, or is expected to be, received will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund until subsequent to the Valuation Point in respect of the Dealing Day as of which Shares of the Fund are agreed to be issued to that investor;
- (b) any redemption monies payable to an investor subsequent to the Dealing Day of a Fund as of which Shares of that investor were redeemed will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund; and
- (c) any dividend amount payable to a Shareholder will not be taken into account as an asset of the Fund for the purpose of determining the Net Asset Value of that Fund.

Calculation

The Articles provide for the method of valuation of the assets and liabilities of each Fund. The Articles provide that the value of any investment listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be calculated by reference to the closing price or, if bid and offer prices are quoted, at the average of the two prices so quoted at the relevant Valuation Point. Where an investment is listed or dealt in on more than one Regulated Market the relevant exchange or market shall be the principal stock exchange or market on which the investment is listed or dealt on or the exchange or market which the Directors determine provides the fairest criteria in determining a value for the relevant investment. Investments listed or traded on a Regulated Market, but acquired or traded at a premium or at a discount outside or off the relevant exchange or market may be valued taking into account the level of premium or discount at the Valuation Point provided that the Depositary must ensure that the adoption of such a procedure is justifiable in the context of establishing the probable realisation value of the investment.

The Articles provide that where quoted prices are for some reason unavailable or do not, in the opinion of the Directors, represent fair market value and in the case of investments which are not listed or dealt in on a market, the value of such investments shall be the probable realisation value estimated with care and in

good faith by the Directors or by another competent person appointed by the Directors and approved for such purpose by the Depositary. In ascertaining such value, the Directors are entitled to accept an estimated valuation from a market-maker or other person qualified in the opinion of the Directors and approved for the purpose by the Depositary to value the relevant investments. Where reliable market quotations are not available for Fixed Income Securities, the value of such securities may be determined by reference to the valuation of other securities which are comparable in rating, yield, due date and other characteristics.

The Articles also provide that derivative contracts traded on a Regulated Market shall be valued at the settlement price as determined by the Regulated Market. If the Regulated Market price is not available, the value shall be the probable realization value estimated with care and in good faith by a competent person, firm or corporation (including the Investment Advisor) selected by the Directors and approved for the purpose by the Depositary. Derivative contracts which are not traded on a Regulated Market may be valued on a daily basis using either a valuation provided by the relevant counterparty or an alternative valuation such as a valuation calculated by the Company or its delegate or by an independent pricing agent. Where the Company does use a valuation other than one provided by the relevant counterparty for derivative contracts which are not traded on a Regulated Market;

- it shall adhere to the principles on valuation of over-the-counter instruments established by bodies such as the International Organisation of Securities Commissions or the Alternative Investment Management Association; the valuation shall be provided by a competent person appointed by the Manager, or Directors and approved for the purpose by the Depositary; and
- the valuation must be reconciled to a valuation provided by the counterparty on a monthly basis and
 if significant differences arise the Company shall arrange for these to be reviewed and seek
 explanations from the relevant parties.

Where the Company uses a valuation provided by the relevant counterparty for derivative contracts which are not traded on a Regulated Market,

- the valuation must be approved or verified by a party who is approved for the purpose by the Depositary and who is independent of the counterparty; and
- the independent verification must be carried out at least weekly.

The Articles also provide that forward foreign exchange contracts and interest rate swap contracts shall be valued in the same manner as derivative contracts which are not traded on a regulated market or, alternatively, by reference to freely available market quotations. If the latter is used, there is no requirement to have such prices independently verified or reconciled to the counterparty valuation.

The Articles also provide that valuations of units or shares or other similar participations in any collective investment scheme which provides for the units or shares or other similar participations therein to be redeemed at the option of the holder out of the assets of that undertaking shall be valued at the last available net asset value per unit or share or other similar participations or (if bid and offer prices are published) the price midway between the last available offer and bid prices.

The Articles further provide that cash assets will normally be valued at face value (together with interest declared or accrued but not yet received as at the relevant Valuation Point) unless in any case the Directors are of the opinion that the same is unlikely to be received or paid in full in which case the Directors may make a discount to reflect the true value thereof as at the Valuation Point; certificates of deposit and similar investments shall normally be valued by reference to the best price available for certificates of deposit or similar investments of like maturity, amount and credit risk at the Valuation Point; forward foreign exchange contracts will normally be valued by reference to the price at which a new forward contract of the same size and maturity could be undertaken at the Valuation Point; and futures contracts, share price index futures contracts and options which are dealt in on a market will normally be valued at market settlement price as at the Valuation Point. If the settlement price is not available, such contracts and options will be valued at

their probable realisation value by such competent person, with care and in good faith as the Depositary shall approve to make such valuations.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this section, in computing the Net Asset Value of a money market fund, the amortised cost method of valuing debt securities will be used. Under this valuation method, securities are valued at cost on the date of purchase and thereafter the Funds assume a constant proportionate amortisation of any discount or premium until maturity of the security, with the result that the carrying value of the security normally will not fluctuate in response to market factors. While the amortised cost method seeks to provide certainty in portfolio valuation, it may result in valuations of any money market fund's securities and the valuation of short-term investments being higher or lower than the market value of such securities. The Net Asset Value of a Share in any money market fund shall be calculated to the nearest 1% of the share price of an Income Share (e.g., USD0.01).

The Administrator will constantly assess the use of the amortised cost method of valuation by determining at least weekly the extent, if any, to which any money market fund's Net Asset Value per Share calculated by using available market quotations deviates from the amortised Net Asset Value per Share. The Administrator shall recommend changes, where necessary, to ensure that investments will be valued at their fair value. If the Directors believe that a deviation from any money market fund's amortised cost per Share may result in material dilution or other unfair results to Shareholders or applicants, the Directors and/or their agents to take such corrective action, if any, as they deem appropriate to eliminate, or reduce, to the extent reasonably practicable, the dilution or unfair results. Under the Company's internal procedures, deviations between the Net Asset Value per Share calculated by using available market quotations and the amortised Net Asset Value per Share in excess of 0.1% will be brought to the attention of the Directors or the Investment Manager. Deviations between the Net Asset Value per Share calculated by using available market quotations and the amortised Net Asset Value per Share in excess of 0.2% will be brought to the attention of the Directors and the Depositary. While deviations in excess of 0.3% will require the Administrator to carry out a review on a daily basis and the Directors will notify the Central Bank with an indication of the action, if any, which will be taken to reduce such dilution. Weekly reviews and any engagement of escalation procedures will be clearly documented.

A Fund which is not a money market scheme may provide for valuation by an amortised cost method in respect of highly rated instruments with a residual maturity not exceeding three months, which have no specific sensitivity to market parameters, including credit risk, and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.

The Directors may, with the approval of the Depositary, adjust the value of any investment if having regard to its currency, marketability, applicable interest rates, anticipated rates of dividend, maturity, liquidity or any other relevant considerations, they consider that such adjustment is required to reflect the fair value thereof.

Any value expressed otherwise than in the Base Currency of the relevant Fund shall be converted into the Base Currency of the relevant Fund at the exchange rate (whether official or otherwise) which the Directors shall determine to be appropriate.

Where on any Dealing Day (i) the value of all redemption requests received by the Company exceeds the value of all applications for Shares received for that Dealing Day, the Directors may value investments at bid prices or (ii) the value of all applications for Shares received by the Company exceeds the value of all redemption requests received for that Dealing Day, the Directors may value investments at offer prices; provided that the valuation policy selected by the Directors is applied consistently throughout the duration of the Company.

If it is impossible or would be incorrect to carry out a valuation of a specific investment in accordance with the above rules owing to particular circumstances the Directors or their delegate shall use another generally recognised method of valuation which is approved by the Depositary, in order to reach a proper valuation of the total assets of the Company. The market price for NASDAQ National Market and small cap securities may also be calculated using the NASDAQ Official Closing Price ("NOCP") instead of the last reported sales price.

Swing Pricing

The underlying securities of a Fund that are listed or dealt in on a Regulated Market are typically valued and priced at the mid or last traded price at the close, but these securities are traded using bid and offer prices. The wider the spreads between these bid and offer prices, the higher the impact on the valuation of a Fund (i.e. the value of the underlying securities of a Fund may be reduced as a result of any spread between the buying and selling and any charges incurred in dealings in the Fund's investments). In the appropriate circumstances and in order to prevent this effect, called "dilution", and the potential adverse effect on the existing or remaining Shareholders, the Directors may implement swing pricing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, swing pricing is implemented by moving the Net Asset Value per Share up or down by a Swing Factor depending on the direction of net cash flows for a particular Fund. This adjusted Net Asset Value will then be applied to any subscriptions or redemptions which are received on the relevant Dealing Day. Significant net inflows will cause an upward swing in the Net Asset Value per Share, significant net outflows a downward swing. Swing pricing is implemented by the Company when net cash flows exceed a pre-determined Threshold set by the Directors, beyond which the Directors believe the amount of dilution caused by transaction related costs could be material to a Fund.

Swing pricing will be at a Fund level rather than Share Class level as transaction related costs are incurred at Fund level. Swing pricing shall be applicable to all Funds unless otherwise stated in the Supplement for the relevant Fund.

Suspension

The Directors may at any time declare a temporary suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value and the issue, redemption or exchange of Shares of any Fund during:

- (i) any period when any of the principal markets or stock exchanges on which a substantial portion of the investments of the relevant Fund are quoted or dealt is closed, otherwise than for ordinary holidays, or during which dealings therein are restricted or suspended;
- (ii) any period when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Directors, disposal or valuation of investments of the relevant Fund is not reasonably practicable without this being seriously detrimental to the interests of Shareholders of the relevant class or if, in the opinion of the Directors, redemption prices cannot fairly be calculated;
- (iii) any breakdown in the means of communication normally employed in determining the price of any of the investments of the Funds or other assets or when for any other reason the current prices on any market or stock exchange of any assets of the relevant Fund cannot be promptly and accurately ascertained; or
- (iv) any period during which the Company is unable to repatriate funds required for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of Shares of any Fund from Shareholders or during which the transfer of funds involved in the realisation or acquisition of investments or payments due on redemption of Shares cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be effected at normal prices or normal rates of exchange.

The Central Bank may also require the temporary suspension of redemption of Shares of any Class in the interests of the Shareholders or the public.

Shareholders who have requested the issue or redemption of Shares of any Fund or exchange of Shares of one Fund to another will be notified of any such suspension in such manner as may be directed by the Directors and, unless withdrawn but subject to the limitation referred to above, their requests will be dealt with on the first Dealing Day after the suspension is lifted. Any such suspension shall be notified to the

Central Bank and Euronext Dublin immediately and in any event within the same Business Day on which such a suspension occurs. Where possible, all reasonable steps will be taken to bring any period of suspension to an end as soon as possible.

PUBLICATION OF SHARE PRICES

Except where the determination of the Net Asset Value has been suspended, the up-to-date Net Asset Value per Share for each Fund will be available from the Administrator and at the following address: www.pimco.com and/or publicly disclosed as the Directors may decide from time to time and in accordance with the laws prevailing in Ireland, as amended, modified, interpreted or otherwise permitted by the Central Bank or other appropriate regulatory authority having jurisdiction. Additionally, the Net Asset Value per Share for those Funds with Classes listed on Euronext Dublin shall be transmitted to Euronext Dublin immediately following calculation.

The up-to-date Net Asset Value per Share of each Fund can also be accessed on Bloomberg and Reuters. Relevant Bloomberg ticker symbols will be available from the Company or its delegate upon request.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Articles, the Directors are entitled to pay such dividends at such times as they think fit and as appear to be justified out of (i) net investment income which consists of interest and dividends; (ii) realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses) and; (iii) other funds (including capital) as may be lawfully distributed from the relevant Fund or Share Class of the relevant Fund.

Unless otherwise provided for in the Supplement for the relevant Fund, it is the current dividend policy of the Directors to pay to the holders of Income Shares the net investment income of the Funds, if any (which consists of interest and dividends, less expenses). The income or gains allocated to Accumulation Shares will neither be declared nor distributed but the Net Asset Value per Share of Accumulation Shares will be increased to take account of such income or gains. Income II Shares seek to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders as further outlined in the section "How to Purchase Shares", sub-section "Types of Shares".

An equalisation account will be maintained by each Fund so that the amount distributed will be the same for all Shares of the same class notwithstanding different dates of issue. A sum equal to that part of the issued price per Share which reflects net income (if any) accrued but undistributed up to the date of issue of the Shares will be deemed to be an equalisation payment and treated as repaid to the relevant Shareholder on (i) the redemption of such Shares prior to the payment of the first dividend thereon or (ii) the payment of the first dividend to which the Shareholder was entitled in the same accounting period as that in which the Shares are issued. The payment of any dividends subsequent to the payment of the first dividend will be deemed to include net income (if any) accrued but unpaid up to the date of the relevant redemption or declaration of dividend.

Shareholders can elect to reinvest dividends in additional Shares or have the dividends paid in cash by ticking the appropriate box on the Application Form.

Dividends not reinvested in Shares will be paid to the Shareholder by way of bank transfer. Any dividend unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of declaration of such dividend shall be forfeited and shall revert to the account of the relevant Fund.

Pending payment to the relevant Shareholder, dividend payments will be held in an account in the name of the Company (herein defined as an Umbrella Cash Account) and will be treated as an asset of the Fund until paid to that Shareholder and will not benefit from the application of any investor money protection rules (i.e. the distribution monies in such circumstance will not be held on trust for the relevant Shareholder). In such circumstance, the Shareholder will be an unsecured creditor of the relevant Fund with respect to the distribution amount held by the Company until paid to the Shareholder and the Shareholder entitled to such dividend amount will be an unsecured creditor of the Fund.

In the event of an insolvency of the Fund or the Company, there is no guarantee that the Fund or the Company will have sufficient funds to pay unsecured creditors in full. Shareholders due dividend monies which are held in an Umbrella Cash Account will rank equally with all other unsecured creditors of the relevant Fund and will be entitled to a pro-rata share of monies which are made available to all unsecured creditors by the insolvency practitioner. Therefore in such circumstances, the Shareholder may not recover all monies originally paid into an Umbrella Cash Account for onward transmission to that Shareholder.

Your attention is drawn to the section of the Prospectus entitled "Risk Factors" – "Operation of the Umbrella Cash Account" above.

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

Directors of the Company and the Manager

The powers of management of the Company and the Company's assets are vested in the Directors. The Directors have delegated the day-to-day management and running of the Company to the Manager. Consequently, all Directors of the Company are non-executive.

The Directors of the Company and the Manager are as follows:

V. Mangala Ananthanarayanan

Ms. Ananthanarayanan is a managing director and head of business management for the Europe, Middle East and Africa regions ("EMEA") and the Asia Pacific region ("APAC") for PIMCO. Previously, she was head of enterprise risk for PIMCO Europe Ltd. and prior to joining PIMCO in 2006, she was in the assurance and business advisory services group at PricewaterhouseCoopers. She has 13 years of investment experience and holds a master's degree from the London Business School. Ms. Ananthanarayanan is also a chartered accountant and director of the Manager, PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A., PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Taiwan Limited, PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Foundation Europe, PIMCO Australia Management Limited, PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited, PIMCO Europe Treuhanstiftung and NOMI Network.

Ryan Blute

Mr. Blute is a managing director and head of PIMCO's global wealth management business in EMEA. Previously, he served as both the head of PIMCO's Munich office and as the head of the firm's product strategy group in EMEA. Mr. Blute joined PIMCO in 2000 as an institutional account manager at the firm's headquarters in Newport Beach. He holds an MBA from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business and an undergraduate degree from the University of Arizona. He also holds the certified public accountant designation. Mr. Blute is a director of the Manager, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Europe Ltd and PIMCO Foundation Europe.

John Bruton

Mr. Bruton (Irish) is a former TD (a *member of the Irish parliament*) who served as Taoiseach (*Irish prime minister*) from 1994 to 1997. He was first elected to Dáil Éireann (*Irish parliament*) in 1969 at the age of 22. He became Leader of Fine Gael (*a political party in Ireland*) in 1990 and lead it into government in 1994 in a three party coalition. He resigned his Dáil seat in 2004. He served as Minister for Finance from 1981 to 1982 and from 1986 to 1987; Minister for Industry & Energy from 1982 to 1983; Minister for Trade, Commerce & Tourism from 1983 to 1986; and was Parliamentary Secretary (Junior Minister) from 1973 to 1977. From 2002 to 2003, he served on the Presidium of the Convention that drafted the European Constitution, which is the basis of the Lisbon Treaty of the EU. He was Ambassador of the European Union to the United States from 2004 to 2009. He was President of IFSC Ireland, a body set up to promote Ireland as a location for international financial services from 2010 to 2015. Currently he serves on the board of the IDLF (*Irish Diaspora Loan Fund*), PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager, PIMCO ETFs plc, Eli Lily International Corporation, Centre of European Policy Studies, Co-Operation Ireland, Trane Technologies plc, the Institute of International and European Affairs and Terebellum Limited. He was born in 1947 and graduated from University College Dublin with a Bachelor of Arts degree in economics and politics in 1968. He was called to the Bar of Ireland in 1972.

Craig A. Dawson

Mr. Dawson is a managing director and head of PIMCO Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA). Previously, he was head of strategic business management at PIMCO. Prior to this, he was head of PIMCO's business in Germany, Austria, Switzerland and Italy, and head of product management for Europe. Prior to joining PIMCO in 1999, Mr. Dawson worked with Wilshire Associates, an investment consulting firm. He has 20 years of investment experience and holds an MBA from the University of Chicago Graduate School of

Business. He received his undergraduate degree from the University of California, San Diego. Mr. Dawson is a director of the Manager, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO ETFs plc, PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Foundation Europe and Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

David M. Kennedy

Mr. Kennedy (Irish) has worked as an independent consultant in aviation and in strategic management and as a non-executive director of a number of public and private companies since 1988. His current directorships include AGF International Advisors (Ireland) Limited, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager and PIMCO ETFs plc. From 1974 to 1988 he served as chief executive of Aer Lingus and from 1996 to 1997 as chief operating officer of Trans World Airlines. He was a director of the Bank of Ireland from 1984 to 1995, Deputy Governor from 1989 to 1991, from 1994 to 1998 Chairman of the Trustees of the Bank of Ireland pension fund and from 2000 to 2004 Chairman of Bank of Ireland Life. He was educated at University College Dublin where he graduated in 1961 with an MSc degree in experimental physics.

Frances Ruane

Dr. Ruane (Irish) was Director of the Economic and Social Research Institute in Dublin from 2006 to 2015. Prior to that she was Professor of Economics at Trinity College Dublin ("TCD"), specialising in international economics and economic development policy. At TCD she held various organisational roles, including Bursar from 1991 to 1995, and she was a member of the College's Investment and Pension Fund Committees. She has served on several public-sector boards in Ireland, including the National Treasury Management Agency and IDA Ireland and on several EU oversight committees. Her current directorships include PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, the Manager, PIMCO ETFs plc and Abbey Theatre Amharclann na Mainistreach. She is also a member of the Public Interest Committee of KPMG. She completed her undergraduate studies at University College Dublin and was awarded and MPhil and DPhil in Economics from University of Oxford.

Manager

PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited has been appointed Manager of the Company under a Management Agreement (summarised under "General Information"). The Manager is responsible for the investment management of each Fund and the general administration of the Company and may delegate such functions subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors. The Manager, a private limited company, incorporated on 14 November, 1997 is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. The authorised share capital of the Manager is EUR 100,000,000.652 of which EUR 10,064,626.65 is issued and paid up. Currently, the Manager manages the Company, PIMCO Select Funds plc, PIMCO Funds Ireland plc, PIMCO Specialty Funds Ireland plc and PIMCO ETFs plc.

As noted above, the Directors of the Manager are the same as those of the Company. For the purposes of this Prospectus, the address of all the Directors is the registered office of the Company. The Company Secretary of the Manager is State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited.

Investment Advisors

The Manager has delegated the investment management of the Funds to PIMCO, PIMCO Asia Pte Limited, PIMCO Europe Ltd and PIMCO Europe GmbH under Investment Advisory Agreements (summarised under "General Information") and has power to delegate such functions. Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, PIMCO was appointed Investment Advisor.

The Investment Advisor may delegate the discretionary investment management of certain Funds to one or more sub-investment advisors, subject to all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Accordingly, one or more sub-investment advisors may be appointed in respect of a particular Fund or Funds. The fees of each sub-investment advisor so appointed shall be paid by the Manager, or by the Investment Advisors

on behalf of the Manager, from the Management Fee. Details of such appointment will be provided to Shareholders on request and shall be further disclosed in the Company's periodic reports.

PIMCO is a Delaware limited company located at 650 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach, California 92660 U.S.A. As at 31 March, 2016 PIMCO has approximately US\$1.5 trillion in assets under management. PIMCO is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a European-based, multinational insurance and financial services holding company and is a publicly traded German company.

PIMCO is regulated by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), an independent, non-partisan, quasi-judicial regulatory agency with responsibility for administering and enforcing the following federal securities laws: U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended, U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended and U.S. Investment Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. PIMCO is registered as an investment advisor with the SEC under the U.S. Advisors Act of 1940, as amended.

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Singapore, is regulated under the Monetary Authority of Singapore in the course of its investment business and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE.

PIMCO Europe Ltd is an investment advisory firm incorporated on 24 April 1991 as a limited liability company under the laws of England and Wales. It is regulated by the FCA under the FSMA in the course of its investment business and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. PIMCO Europe Ltd is also the promoter of the Company.

The Manager has appointed PIMCO Europe GmbH as an Investment Advisor with discretionary powers pursuant to the PIMCO Europe GmbH Investment Advisory Agreement. Under the terms of the PIMCO Europe GmbH Investment Advisory Agreement, the Investment Advisor is responsible, subject to the overall supervision and control of the Directors, for managing the assets and investments of specific Funds of the Company in accordance with the investment objective and policies of each Fund. The Manager shall not be liable for any actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or expenses arising as a result of the acts or omissions of PIMCO Europe GmbH or for its own acts or omissions in following the advice or recommendations of PIMCO Europe GmbH.

PIMCO Europe GmbH is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Germany whose principal place of business is at Seidlstraße 24-24a, 80335 Munich, Deutschland. PIMCO Europe GmbH holds a licence for portfolio management from Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht ("BaFin") in Germany. PIMCO Europe GmbH is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE.

The Investment Advisors have full discretion to make investments on behalf of the Funds by virtue of having discretionary investment management functions delegated to them by the Manager, in accordance with the Regulations and the investment objectives, and policies set forth in this Prospectus and the relevant Supplement for each Fund.

Depositary

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited has been appointed to act as depositary of the Company pursuant to the Depositary Agreement (summarised under "General Information").

Biography of Depositary

The Depositary is a limited liability company incorporated in Ireland on 22 May, 1991 and is, like the Administrator, ultimately owned by the State Street Corporation. Its authorised shared capital is £5,000,000 and its issued and paid up capital is £200,000. As at 28 February 2018, the Depositary held funds under custody in excess of \$1.104 trillion. The Depositary's principal business is the provision of custodial and trustee services for collective investment schemes and other portfolios.

Duties of the Depositary

The duty of the Depositary is to provide safekeeping, oversight and asset verification services in respect of the assets of the Company and each Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations. The Depositary will also provide cash monitoring services in respect of each Fund's cash flows and subscriptions.

The Depositary will be obliged, inter alia, to ensure that the sale, issue, repurchase and cancellation of Shares in the Company is carried out in accordance with the Regulations and the Articles. The Depositary will carry out the instructions of the Company, unless they conflict with the Regulations or the Articles. The Depositary is also obliged to enquire into the conduct of the Company in each financial year and report thereon to the Shareholders.

Depositary Liability

Pursuant to the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary will be liable for loss of financial instruments held in custody (i.e. those assets which are required to be held in custody pursuant to the Regulations) or in the custody of any sub-depositary, unless it can prove that loss has arisen as a result of an external event beyond its control, the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to the contrary.

The Depositary shall also be liable for all other losses suffered as a result of the Depositary's negligent or intentional failure to properly fulfil its obligations under the Regulations.

Delegation

Under the Depositary Agreement, the Depositary has power to delegate the whole or any part of its depositary functions, however, its liability will not be affected by the fact that it has entrusted to a third party some or all of the assets in its safekeeping.

The Depositary has delegated its safe-keeping duties in respect of financial instruments in custody to the third parties set out in Appendix 5. No conflicts arise as a result of such delegation.

Up-to-date information regarding the duties of the Depositary, any conflicts of interest that may arise and the Depositary's delegation arrangements will be made available to investors on request.

Administrator

The Manager has delegated responsibility for the administration of the Company, including providing fund accounting services and acting as registration agent and company secretary, to State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited pursuant to an administration agreement (summarised under "General Information"). The responsibilities of the Administrator include share registration and transfer agency services, valuation of the Company's assets and calculation of the Net Asset Value per Share and the preparation of the Company's semi-annual and annual reports.

The Administrator is a limited company incorporated in Ireland on 23 March, 1992 and is ultimately a wholly-owned subsidiary of the State Street Corporation. The authorised share capital of State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited is £5,000,000 with an issued and paid up capital of £350,000. State Street Corporation is a leading world-wide specialist in providing sophisticated global investors with investment servicing and investment management. State Street Corporation is headquartered in Boston, Massachusetts, U.S.A., and trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "STT".

Distributors

The Manager has delegated responsibility for distribution of Shares of the Company to PIMCO Europe Ltd, PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd, PIMCO Asia Limited, PIMCO Europe GmbH and PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. under separate distribution agreements (summarised under "General Information"). PIMCO Europe Ltd is a limited

liability company organised under the laws of England and Wales, is regulated under the U.K. Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 in the course of its investment business and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Singapore, is regulated under the Monetary Authority of Singapore in the course of its investment business and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. PIMCO Asia Limited is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Hong Kong, is regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in the course of its investment business and is ultimately owned by Allianz SE. PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. is a limited liability company organised under the laws of New South Wales, Australia, is regulated by the Australian Securities and Investment Commission in the course of its investment business and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE. PIMCO Europe GmbH is a limited liability company organised under the laws of Germany and is ultimately majority-owned by Allianz SE.

Paying Agents/Representatives/Sub-Distributors

Local laws/regulations in various jurisdictions may require the appointment of paying agents/representatives/distributors/correspondent banks ("Paying Agents") and maintenance of accounts by such Agents through which subscription and redemption monies or dividends may be paid. Shareholders who choose or are obliged under local regulations to pay or receive subscription or redemption monies or dividends via an intermediate entity rather than directly to the Depositary (e.g. a Paying Agent in a local jurisdiction) bear a credit risk against that intermediate entity with respect to (a) subscription monies prior to the transmission of such monies to the Depositary for the account of the Company or the relevant Fund and (b) redemption monies payable by such intermediate entity to the relevant Shareholder. Fees and expenses of Paying Agents appointed by the Company or the Manager on behalf of the Company or a Fund which will be at normal commercial rates and will be paid by the Manager or by the Investment Advisors on behalf of the Manager from the Management Fee for the Fund in respect of which a Paying Agent has been appointed.

Country Supplements dealing with matters pertaining to Shareholders in jurisdictions in which Paying Agents are appointed may be prepared for circulation to such Shareholders and, if so, a summary of the material provisions of the agreements appointing the Paying Agents will be included in the relevant Country Supplements.

FEES AND EXPENSES

Save for the BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares and BE Retail Shares as disclosed in the relevant Fund Supplement, the Unified Fee shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of each Fund.

Management Fee

The Manager, in respect of each Fund and as detailed below, provides or procures investment advisory, administration, custody and other services in return for which each Fund pays a single Management Fee to the Manager. The Management Fee for each Fund is accrued on each Dealing Day and is payable monthly in arrears.

The Manager may pay the Management Fee in full or in part to the Investment Advisors in order to pay for the investment advisory and other services provided by the Investment Advisors and in order for the Investment Advisors to pay for administration, custody and other services procured for the Funds by the Manager.

(a) Investment Advisory Services

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures investment advisory services. Such services include the investment and reinvestment of the assets of each Fund. The fees of the Investment Advisors (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager from the Management Fee.

(b) Administration and Depositary Services

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures administration and depositary services. Such services include administration, transfer agency, fund accounting, depositary and sub-depositary in respect of each Fund. The fees and expenses of the Administrator and Depositary (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager from the Management Fee, or by the Investment Advisors.

(c) Other Services and Expenses

On behalf of the Company, the Manager provides and/or procures certain other services. These may include listing broker services, paying agent and other local representative services, accounting, audit, legal and other professional adviser services, company secretarial services, printing, publishing and translation services, and the provision and co-ordination of certain supervisorial, administrative and shareholder services necessary for operation of the Funds.

Fees and any ordinary expenses in relation to these services (together with VAT, if any thereon) will be paid by the Manager, or by the Investment Advisors on behalf of the Manager, from the Management Fee. Such fees and expenses will include country registration costs, paying agent and local representative costs, costs incurred in relation to preparing, translating, printing, publishing and distributing the Prospectus, annual and semi-annual reports and other notices and documents to Shareholders, expenses of the publication and distribution of the Net Asset Value, costs of maintaining a listing of Shares on Euronext Dublin, costs in connection with obtaining and maintaining a credit rating for any Funds or Classes or Shares, expenses of Shareholders meetings, insurance premia (such as Directors and Officers and Errors and Omissions policy premia), ordinary professional fees and expenses, annual audit fees, Companies Registration Office filing fees and other routine statutory and regulatory fees, and ordinary expenses incurred by PIMCO and PIMCO Europe Ltd. in the provision of additional supervisorial services to the Company, which services may include assistance and advice given in the preparation of annual and semi-annual reports, Prospectus updates, oversight of third party service providers' share transfer operations and assisting with arranging Shareholder and board meetings.

The Company shall bear the cost of any value added tax applicable to any fees payable to the Manager or any value added tax applicable to any other amounts payable to the Manager in the performance of its duties.

The Funds will bear other expenses related to their operation that are not covered by the Management Fee which may vary and affect the total level of expenses within the Funds including, but not limited to, taxes and governmental fees, brokerage fees, commissions and other transaction expenses (including, but not limited to, fees and expenses related to due diligence on investments and potential investments and/or related to negotiations of such transactions), costs of borrowing money including interest expenses, establishment costs, extraordinary expenses (such as litigation and indemnification expenses) and fees and expenses of the Company's independent Directors and their counsel.

The Management Fee for each Share Class of each Fund (expressed as a per annum percentage of its Net Asset Value) is set out in the relevant Supplement for each Fund. Shareholders should also note that Management Fees and other fees may be charged to capital at a Fund or Share Class level, where specifically provided for in the relevant Supplement of a Fund.

The Management Fee attributable to certain Share Classes is generally higher than the Management Fee attributable to the Institutional Classes. From this higher fee the Manager may pay for the expense of distribution, intermediary and other services rendered to Shareholders in these Share Classes of the Funds directly or indirectly by distributors or broker-dealers, banks, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries.

Given the fixed nature of Management Fee, the Manager, and not Shareholders, takes the risk of any price increases in the cost of the services covered by the Management Fee and takes the risk of expense levels relating to such services increasing above the Management Fee as a result of a decrease in net assets. Conversely, the Manager, and not Shareholders, would benefit from any price decrease in the cost of services covered by the Management Fee, including decreased expense levels resulting from an increase in net assets.

Z Classes Management Fee

Due to the nature of the Z Class offering and in an effort to avoid the duplication of fees, the Management Fee for the Z Classes will be set at 0% per annum.

Investment in other Collective Investment Schemes linked to the Manager

If a Fund acquires units of another collective investment scheme which is managed, directly or indirectly, by the Manager or any affiliate of the Manager with which it is linked by way of common management or control or by way of a direct or indirect stake of more than 10% of the capital or votes, the Fund may not be charged any subscription, conversion or redemption fees in connection with the Fund's investment in the other collective investment scheme. If a Fund invests in shares of any other Fund of the Company, the investing Fund may not charge a Management Fee in respect of that portion of its assets invested in the other Fund of the Company save that it may do so if the investing Fund's investment is restricted to a zero Management Fee Share Class of the other Fund (such as the Company's Z Class shares). In addition, this restriction will not prevent the Manager from charging a Management Fee to the investing Fund if the Manager is charging such fee for onward transmission to an unaffiliated party as remuneration for asset allocation services in relation to a Fund for which the service of such a party is used.

Service Fee

The Service Fee which applies to the Investor Classes only is paid to the Manager and may be used to reimburse broker-dealers, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries that provide services in connection with the distribution and marketing of Shares and/or the provision of certain shareholder services or the administration of plans or programmes that use Fund Shares as their funding medium, and to reimburse other related expenses. The services are provided directly by the Manager or indirectly through broker-dealers, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries to all Shareholders of the Investor Classes.

The same services apply to all Shareholders of the Investor Classes respectively for the fees levied. These services may include responding to Shareholder inquiries about the Funds and their performance; assisting Shareholders with purchases, redemptions and exchanges of Shares; maintaining individualised account information and providing account statements for Shareholders; and maintaining other records relevant to a Shareholder's investment in the Funds.

Plans or programmes that use Fund Shares as their funding medium may include unit-linked insurance products and pension, retirement or savings plans maintained by employers. All Shareholders in the Investor Classes will receive services pursuant to agreements entered into with financial intermediaries with whom those Shareholders have a servicing relationship. The Service Fee for each Fund is set out in the relevant Supplement for that Fund. The Service Fee for each Fund is accrued on each Dealing Day and is payable monthly in arrears. The Manager may retain for its own benefit in whole or in part any Service Fee not payable to broker-dealers, financial intermediaries or other intermediaries.

Trail Fee

The Trail Fee which applies to Administrative Class Shares is paid to the Distributor for personal services rendered to Shareholders of the Funds and the maintenance of Shareholder accounts, including compensation to, and expenses (including telephone and overhead expenses) of, financial consultants or other employees of participating or introducing brokers, certain banks and other financial intermediaries who assist in the processing of purchase or redemption requests or the processing of dividend payments, who provide information periodically to Shareholders showing their positions in a Fund's Shares, who forward communications from the Company to Shareholders, who render ongoing advice concerning the suitability of particular investment opportunities offered by the Funds in light of the Shareholders' needs, who respond to inquiries from Shareholders relating to such services, or who train personnel in the provision of such services.

The services are provided directly by the Distributor or indirectly through brokerdealers, banks, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries to all Shareholders of Administrative Class Shares. The Trail Fee for each Fund is set out in the relevant Supplement for that Fund. The Trail Fee for each Fund is accrued on each Dealing Day and is payable monthly in arrears. The Distributor may retain for its own benefit in whole or in part any Trail Fee not payable to broker-dealers, banks, financial intermediaries or other intermediaries.

Distribution Fee

The Distribution Fee which applies to T Class Shares, BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares and BE Retail Shares is paid to the Distributor for services rendered to Shareholders of the Funds.

The services are provided directly by the Distributor or indirectly through broker-dealers, banks, financial intermediaries, or other intermediaries to all Shareholders of T Class Shares. The Distribution Fee for each Fund is set out in the relevant Supplement for that Fund. The Distribution Fee for each Fund is accrued on each Dealing Day and is payable monthly in arrears. The Distributor may retain for its own benefit in whole or in part any Distribution Fee not payable to broker-dealers, banks, financial intermediaries or other intermediaries.

In respect of the BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares and BE Retail Shares only, where disclosed in the relevant Supplement, the Distribution Fee may be up to 1% of the Net Asset Value and therefore the Unified Fee may exceed 2.50% of the Net Asset Value of BN Retail Shares, BM Retail Shares, and BE Retail Shares.

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing each new Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant supplemental prospectus in relation thereto will be set out in the relevant Fund Supplement and amortised over the first year of each Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine. The cost of establishing

any subsequent Fund will be charged to the relevant Fund and such costs will be subject to the Expense Limitation provisions noted below.

Directors' Remuneration

The Articles provide that the Directors shall be entitled to a fee by way of remuneration at a rate to be determined from time to time by the Company. The aggregate fee paid to each independent Director shall not exceed EUR60,000 in each year. In addition, each independent Director will be reimbursed for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

Remuneration Policy of the Manager

The Manager has approved a remuneration policy which is summarised below. The Manager will be held ultimately responsible for the implementation of the policy.

In the implementation of its policy the Manager will ensure good corporate governance and promote sound and effective risk management. It will not encourage any risk taking which would be considered inconsistent with the risk profile of the Company, its Funds, the Articles of Association or this Prospectus. The Manager will ensure that any decisions are consistent with the overall business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Manager and try to avoid any conflicts of interest which may arise.

The Manager will ensure that the remuneration policy is reviewed internally and independently annually. The principles set out in the remuneration policy apply to remuneration of any type paid by the Manager including in certain circumstances and to certain persons prescribed in the Regulations.

The details of the Manager's up-to-date remuneration policy is available from www.pimco.com (or a paper copy will be made available free of charge upon request).

Other Charges

Details of any Preliminary Charge payable on a subscription for Shares (if any) and/or any Redemption Charge payable on redemption of Shares (if any) payable on redemption of Shares (if any) and/or any Exchange Charge payable on the exchange of Shares (if any) are set out in respect of the Shares of each Fund in "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions."

In the case of the Institutional Classes denominated in GBP, no Preliminary Charge is payable in respect of any Fund.

Expense Limitation (including Management Fee Waiver and Recoupment)

The Manager has agreed with the Company, pursuant to the Management Agreement between the Company and the Manager dated 28 January, 1998 as amended, to manage total annual fund operating expenses for any Class of Fund, by waiving, reducing or reimbursing all or any portion of its Management Fee, to the extent that (and for such period of time that) such operating expenses would exceed, due to the payment of establishment costs and pro rata Directors' fees, the sum of such Class of such Fund's Management Fee (prior to the application of any applicable Management Fee waiver), any Service or Trail fees, as applicable, and other expenses borne by such Fund's Share Class not covered by the Management Fee as described above (other than establishment costs and pro rata Directors' fees), plus 0.0049% per annum (calculated on a daily basis based on the NAV of the Fund).

In any month in which the Management Agreement is in effect, the Manager may recoup from a Fund any portion of the Management Fee waived, reduced or reimbursed pursuant to the Management Agreement (the "Reimbursement Amount") during the previous 36 months, provided that such amount paid to the Manager will not 1), exceed 0.0049% per annum of the Class of the applicable Fund's average net assets (calculated on a daily basis); 2) exceed the total Reimbursement Amount; 3) include any amounts previously reimbursed to the Manager; or 4) cause any Class of a Fund to maintain a net negative yield.

Regarding Share Transactions

Your financial adviser may charge you additional fees or commissions other than those disclosed in this Prospectus. Please speak with the financial adviser through whom you have purchased Shares if you have questions about these additional fees or commissions.

Fee Increases

The rates of fees for the provision of services to any Fund or Class may be increased within the maximum level stated above so long as at least 2 weeks written notice of the new rate(s) is given to Shareholders of the relevant Fund or Class.

SOFT COMMISSIONS

Any Connected Person may effect transactions through the agency of another person with whom the Connected Person has an arrangement under which that party will from time to time provide or procure for the Connected Person, goods, services, or other benefits, such as research and advisory services, computer hardware associated with specialised software, or research services and performance measures etc., the nature of which is such that the benefits provided under the arrangement must be those which assist in the provision of investment services to the Company and may contribute to an improvement in a Fund's performance and that of any Connected Person in providing services to a Fund and for which no direct payment is made but instead the Connected Person undertakes to place business with that party. For the avoidance of doubt, such goods and services do not include travel, accommodations, entertainment, general administrative goods or services, general office equipment or premises, membership fees, employees' salaries or direct money payments. In any event, the execution of transactions will be consistent with best execution standards and brokerage rates will not be in excess of customary institutional full-service brokerage rates. Disclosure of soft commission arrangements will be made in the periodic reports of the Company.

TAXATION

General

The information given is not exhaustive and does not constitute legal or tax advice. It does not purport to deal with all of the tax consequences applicable to the Company or its current or future Funds or to all categories of investors, some of whom may be subject to special rules. Prospective investors should consult their own professional advisers as to the implications of their subscribing for, purchasing, holding, switching or disposing of Shares under the laws of the jurisdictions in which they may be subject to tax. Additionally prospective investors should note that dividends which are paid out of capital may under the laws of the jurisdictions in which they may be subject to tax have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors are recommended to seek advice in this regard.

The following statement on taxation is based on advice received by the Directors regarding the law and practice in force in the noted jurisdictions at the date of this document. As is the case with any investment, there can be no guarantee that the tax position or proposed tax position prevailing at the time an investment in the Company is made will endure indefinitely. Prospective Shareholders should familiarise themselves with and, where appropriate, take advice on the laws and regulations (such as those relating to taxation and exchange controls) applicable to the subscription for, purchasing, holding switching or disposing of Shares in the places of their citizenship, residence, and domicile.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) which the Company receives with respect to its investments (other than securities of Irish issuers) may be subject to taxes, including withholding taxes, in the countries in which the issuers of investments are located. It is anticipated that the Company may not be able to benefit from reduced rates of withholding tax in double taxation agreements between Ireland and such countries. If this position changes in the future and the application of a lower rate results in a repayment to the Company the Net Asset Value will not be re-stated and the benefit will be allocated to the existing Shareholders rateably at the time of the repayment.

Irish Taxation of the Company

The Directors have been advised that on the basis that the Company is resident in Ireland for taxation purposes the taxation position of the Company and the Shareholders is as set out below.

The Directors have been advised that, under current Irish law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes Act, so long as the Company is resident in Ireland. Accordingly the Company is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income and gains.

However, tax can arise on the happening of a "chargeable event" in the Company. A chargeable event includes any distribution payments to Shareholders or any encashment, redemption, cancellation, transfer or deemed disposal (a deemed disposal will occur at the expiration of a Relevant Period) of Shares or the appropriation or cancellation of Shares of a Shareholder by the Company for the purposes of meeting the amount of tax payable on a gain arising on a transfer. No tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in respect of a Shareholder who is neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland at the time of the chargeable event provided that a Relevant Declaration is in place and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct. In the absence of either a Relevant Declaration or the Company satisfying and availing of equivalent measures (see paragraph headed "Equivalent Measures" below) there is a presumption that the investor is Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland. A chargeable event does not include:

- An exchange by a Shareholder, effected by way of an arms-length bargain where no payment is made to the Shareholder, of Shares in the Company for other Shares in the Company;
- Any transactions (which might otherwise be a chargeable event) in relation to shares held in a Recognised Clearing System as designated by order of the Irish Revenue Commissioners;

- A transfer by a Shareholder of the entitlement to Shares where the transfer is between spouses and former spouses, subject to certain conditions; or
- An exchange of Shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction (within the meaning of Section 739H of the Taxes Act) of the Company with another investment undertaking.

If the Company becomes liable to account for tax if a chargeable event occurs, the Company shall be entitled to deduct from the payment arising on a chargeable event an amount equal to the appropriate tax and/or where applicable, to appropriate or cancel such number of Shares held by the Shareholder or the beneficial owner of the Shares as are required to meet the amount of tax. The relevant Shareholder shall indemnify and keep the Company indemnified against loss arising to the Company by reason of the Company becoming liable to account for tax on the happening of a chargeable event if no such deduction, appropriation or cancellation has been made.

Dividends received by the Company from investment in Irish equities may be subject to Irish dividend withholding tax at a rate of 25% (such sum representing income tax). However, the Company can make a declaration to the payer that it is a collective investment undertaking beneficially entitled to the dividends which will entitle the Company to receive such dividends without deduction of Irish dividend withholding tax.

Stamp Duty

No stamp duty is payable in Ireland on the issue, transfer, repurchase or redemption of Shares in the Company. Where any subscription for or redemption of Shares is satisfied by the in specie transfer of securities, property or other types of assets, Irish stamp duty may arise on the transfer of such assets.

No Irish stamp duty will be payable by the Company on the conveyance or transfer of stock or marketable securities provided that the stock or marketable securities in question have not been issued by a company registered in Ireland and provided that the conveyance or transfer does not relate to any immovable property situated in Ireland or any right over or interest in such property or to any stocks or marketable securities of a company (other than a company which is an investment undertaking within the meaning of Section 739B (1) of the Taxes Act (that is not an Irish Real Estate Fund within the meaning of Section 739K of the Taxes Act) or a "qualifying company" within the meaning of Section 110 of the Taxes Act) which is registered in Ireland.

Shareholders Tax

Shares which are held in a Recognised Clearing System

Any payments to a Shareholder or any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of Shares held in a Recognised Clearing System will not give rise to a chargeable event in the Company (there is however ambiguity in the legislation as to whether the rules outlined in this paragraph with regard to Shares held in a Recognised Clearing System, apply in the case of chargeable events arising on a deemed disposal, therefore, as previously advised, Shareholders should seek their own tax advice in this regard). Thus the Company will not have to deduct any Irish taxes on such payments regardless of whether they are held by Shareholders who are Irish Residents or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland, or whether a non-resident Shareholder has made a Relevant Declaration. However, Shareholders who are Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland but whose Shares are attributable to a branch or agency in Ireland may still have a liability to account for Irish tax on a distribution or encashment, redemption or transfer of their Shares.

To the extent any Shares are not held in a Recognised Clearing System at the time of a chargeable event (and subject to the discussion in the previous paragraph relating to a chargeable event arising on a deemed disposal), the following tax consequences will typically arise on a chargeable event.

Shareholders who are neither Irish Residents nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland

The Company will not have to deduct tax on the occasion of a chargeable event in respect of a Shareholder if (a) the Shareholder is neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland, (b) the Shareholder has made a Relevant Declaration on or about the time when the Shares are applied for or acquired by the

Shareholder and (c) the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct. In the absence of either a Relevant Declaration (provided in a timely manner) or the Company satisfying and availing of equivalent measures (see paragraph headed "Equivalent Measures" below) tax will arise on the happening of a chargeable event in the Company regardless of the fact that a Shareholder is neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland. The appropriate tax that will be deducted is as described below.

To the extent that a Shareholder is acting as an Intermediary on behalf of persons who are neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland no tax will have to be deducted by the Company on the occasion of a chargeable event provided that either (i) the Company satisfied and availed of the equivalent measures or (ii) the Intermediary has made a Relevant Declaration that he/she is acting on behalf of such persons and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct.

Shareholders who are neither Irish Residents nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland and either (i) the Company has satisfied and availed of the equivalent measures or (ii) such Shareholders have made Relevant Declarations in respect of which the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct, will not be liable to Irish tax in respect of income from their Shares and gains made on the disposal of their Shares. However, any corporate Shareholder which is not Irish Resident and which holds Shares directly or indirectly by or for a trading branch or agency in Ireland will be liable to Irish tax on income from their Shares or gains made on disposals of the Shares.

Where tax is withheld by the Company on the basis that no Relevant Declaration has been filed with the Company by the Shareholder, Irish legislation provides for a refund of tax only to companies within the charge to Irish corporation tax, to certain incapacitated persons and in certain other limited circumstances.

Shareholders who are Irish Residents or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland

Unless a Shareholder is an Exempt Irish Investor and makes a Relevant Declaration to that effect and the Company is not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein is no longer materially correct or unless the Shares are purchased by the Courts Service, tax at the rate of 41% (25% where the Shareholder is a company and an appropriate declaration is in place) will be required to be deducted by the Company from a distribution (where payments are made annually or at more frequent intervals) to a Shareholder who is Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland. Similarly, tax at the rate of 41% (25% where the Shareholder is a company and an appropriate declaration is in place) will have to be deducted by the Company on any other distribution or gain arising to the Shareholder (other than an Exempt Irish Investor who has made a Relevant Declaration) on an encashment, redemption, cancellation, transfer or deemed disposal (see below) of Shares by a Shareholder who is Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland.

The Finance Act 2006 introduced rules (which were subsequently amended by the Finance Act 2008) in relation to an automatic exit tax for Shareholders who are Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland in respect of Shares held by them in the Company at the ending of a Relevant Period. Such Shareholders (both companies and individuals) will be deemed to have disposed of their Shares ("deemed disposal") at the expiration of that Relevant Period and will be charged to tax at the rate of 41% (25% where the Shareholder is a company and an appropriate declaration is in place) on any deemed gain (calculated without the benefit of indexation relief) accruing to them based on the increased value (if any) of the Shares since purchase or since the previous exit tax applied, whichever is later.

For the purposes of calculating if any further tax arises on a subsequent chargeable event (other than chargeable events arising from the ending of a subsequent Relevant Period or where payments are made annually or at more frequent intervals), the preceding deemed disposal is initially ignored and the appropriate tax calculated as normal. Upon calculation of this tax, credit is immediately given against this tax for any tax paid as a result of the preceding deemed disposal. Where the tax arising on the subsequent chargeable event is greater than that which arose on the preceding deemed disposal, the Company will have to deduct the difference. Where the tax arising on the subsequent chargeable event is less than that

which arose on the preceding deemed disposal, the Company will refund the Shareholder for the excess (subject to the paragraph headed "15% threshold" below).

10% Threshold

The Company will not have to deduct tax ("exit tax") in respect of this deemed disposal where the value of the chargeable shares (i.e. those Shares held by Shareholders to whom the declaration procedures do not apply) in the Company (or Fund being an umbrella scheme) is less than 10% of the value of the total Shares in the Company (or the Fund) and the Company has made an election to report certain details in respect of each affected Shareholder to the Irish Revenue Commissioners (the "Affected Shareholder") in each year that the de minimus limit applies. In such a situation the obligation to account for the tax on any gain arising on a deemed disposal will be the responsibility of the Shareholder on a self-assessment basis ("self-assessors") as opposed to the Company or Fund (or their service providers). The Company is deemed to have made the election to report once it has advised the Affected Shareholders in writing that it will make the required report.

15 % Threshold

As previously stated where the tax arising on the subsequent chargeable event is less than that which arose on the preceding deemed disposal (e.g. due to a subsequent loss on an actual disposal), the Company will refund the Shareholder the excess. Where however immediately before the subsequent chargeable event, the value of chargeable shares in the Company (or Fund being an umbrella scheme) does not exceed 15% of the value of the total Shares, the Company may elect to have any excess tax arising repaid directly by the Irish Revenue Commissioners to the Shareholder. The Company is deemed to have made this election once it notifies the Shareholder in writing that any repayment due will be made directly by the Irish Revenue Commissioners on receipt of a claim by the Shareholder.

Other

To avoid multiple deemed disposal events for multiple Shares an irrevocable election under Section 739D(5B) can be made by the Company to value the Shares held at the 30 June or 31 December of each year prior to the deemed disposal occurring. While the legislation is ambiguous, it is generally understood that the intention is to permit a fund to group shares in six month batches and thereby make it easier to calculate the exit tax by avoiding having to carry out valuations at various dates during the year resulting in a large administrative burden.

The Irish Revenue Commissioners have provided updated investment undertaking guidance notes which deal with the practical aspects of how the above calculations/objectives will be accomplished.

Shareholders (depending on their own personal tax position) who are Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland may still be required to pay tax or further tax on a distribution or gain arising on an encashment, redemption, cancellation, transfer or deemed disposal of their Shares. Alternatively they may be entitled to a refund of all or part of any tax deducted by the Company on a chargeable event.

Equivalent Measures

The Finance Act 2010 ("Act") introduced measures commonly referred to as equivalent measures to amend the rules with regard to Relevant Declarations. The position prior to the Act was that no tax would arise on an investment undertaking with regard to chargeable events in respect of a shareholder who was neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland at the time of the chargeable event, provided that a Relevant Declaration was in place and the investment undertaking was not in possession of any information which would reasonably suggest that the information contained therein was no longer materially correct. In the absence of a Relevant Declaration there was a presumption that the investor was Irish Resident or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland. The Act however contained provisions that permit the above exemption in respect of shareholders who are not Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland to apply where the investment undertaking is not actively marketed to such investors and appropriate equivalent measures are put in place by the investment undertaking to ensure that such shareholders are not Irish Resident nor

Ordinarily Resident in Ireland and the investment undertaking has received approval from the Irish Revenue Commissioners in this regard.

Personal Portfolio Investment Undertaking

The Finance Act 2007 introduced provisions regarding the taxation of Irish Resident individuals or Ordinarily Resident in Ireland individuals who hold shares in investment undertakings. These provisions introduced the concept of a personal portfolio investment undertaking ("PPIU"). Essentially, an investment undertaking will be considered a PPIU in relation to a specific investor where that investor can influence the selection of some or all of the property held by the investment undertaking either directly or through persons acting on behalf of or connected to the investor. Depending on individuals' circumstances, an investment undertaking may be considered a PPIU in relation to some, none or all individual investors i.e. it will only be a PPIU in respect of those individuals' who can "influence" selection. Any gain arising on a chargeable event in relation to an investment undertaking which is a PPIU in respect of an individual on or after 20 February 2007, will be taxed at the rate of 60%. Specific exemptions apply where the property invested in has been widely marketed and made available to the public or for non-property investments entered into by the investment undertaking. Further restrictions may be required in the case of investments in land or unquoted shares deriving their value from land.

Reporting

Pursuant to Section 891C of the Taxes Act and the Return of Values (Investment Undertakings) Regulations 2013, the Company is obliged to report certain details in relation to Shares held by investors to the Irish Revenue Commissioners on an annual basis. The details to be reported include the name, address and date of birth if on record of, and the value of the Shares held by, a Shareholder. In respect of Shares acquired on or after 1 January 2014, the details to be reported also include the tax reference number of the Shareholder (being an Irish tax reference number or VAT registration number, or in the case of an individual, the individual's PPS number) or, in the absence of a tax reference number, a marker indicating that this was not provided. No details are to be reported in respect of Shareholders who are;

- Exempt Irish Investors (as defined above);
- Shareholders who are neither Irish Resident nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland (provided the relevant declaration has been made); or
- Shareholders whose Shares are held in a Recognised Clearing System.

Capital Acquisitions Tax

The disposal of Shares may be subject to Irish gift or inheritance tax (Capital Acquisitions Tax). However, provided that the Company falls within the definition of investment undertaking (within the meaning of Section 739B (1) of the Taxes Act), the disposal of Shares by a Shareholder is not liable to Capital Acquisitions Tax provided that (a) at the date of the gift or inheritance, the donee or successor is neither domiciled nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland; (b) at the date of the disposition, the Shareholder disposing ("disponer") of the Shares is neither domiciled nor Ordinarily Resident in Ireland; and (c) the Shares are comprised in the gift or inheritance at the date of such gift or inheritance and at the valuation date.

With regard to Irish tax residency for Capital Acquisitions Tax purposes, special rules apply for non-Irish domiciled persons. A non-Irish domiciled donee or disponer will not be deemed to be resident or ordinarily resident in Ireland at the relevant date unless;

- that person has been resident in Ireland for the 5 consecutive years of assessment immediately preceding the year of assessment in which that date falls; and
- ii) that person is either resident or ordinarily resident in Ireland on that date.

Compliance with US reporting and withholding requirements

The foreign account tax compliance provisions ("FATCA") of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act 2010 represent an expansive information reporting regime enacted by the United States ("US") aimed at ensuring that Specified US Persons with financial assets outside the US are paying the correct amount of US tax. FATCA will generally impose a withholding tax of up to 30% with respect to certain US source income (including dividends and interest) paid to a foreign financial institution ("FFI") unless the FFI enters directly into a contract ("FFI agreement") with the US Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") or alternatively the FFI is located in a IGA country (please see below). An FFI agreement will impose obligations on the FFI including disclosure of certain information about US investors directly to the IRS and the imposition of withholding tax in the case of non-compliant investors. For these purposes the Company would fall within the definition of a FFI for the purpose of FATCA.

In recognition of both the fact that the stated policy objective of FATCA is to achieve reporting (as opposed to being solely the collecting of withholding tax) and the difficulties which may arise in certain jurisdictions with respect to compliance with FATCA by FFIs, the US has developed an intergovernmental approach to the implementation of FATCA. In this regard the Irish and US Governments signed an intergovernmental agreement ("Irish IGA") on the 21 December 2012 and provisions were included in Finance Act 2013 for the implementation of the Irish IGA and also to permit regulations to be made by the Irish Revenue Commissioners with regard to registration and reporting requirements arising from the Irish IGA. In this regard, the Irish Revenue Commissioners (in conjunction with the Department of Finance) have issued Regulations – S.I. No. 292 of 2014 which is effective from 1 July 2014. Supporting Guidance Notes have been issued by the Irish Revenue Commissioners and are updated on ad-hoc basis.

The Irish IGA is intended to reduce the burden for Irish FFIs of complying with FATCA by simplifying the compliance process and minimising the risk of withholding tax. Under the Irish IGA, information about relevant US investors will be provided on an annual basis by each Irish FFI (unless the FFI is exempted from the FATCA requirements) directly to the Irish Revenue Commissioners. The Irish Revenue Commissioners will then provide such information to the IRS (by the 30 September of the following year) without the need for the FFI to enter into a FFI agreement with the IRS. Nevertheless, the FFI will generally be required to register with the IRS to obtain a Global Intermediary Identification Number commonly referred to as a GIIN.

Under the Irish IGA, FFIs should generally not be required to apply 30% withholding tax. To the extent the Company does suffer US withholding tax on its investments as a result of FATCA, the Directors may take any action in relation to an investor's investment in the Company to ensure that such withholding is economically borne by the relevant investor whose failure to provide the necessary information or to become a participating FFI gave rise to the withholding.

Each prospective investor should consult their own tax advisor regarding the requirements under FATCA with respect to their own situation.

Common Reporting Standard

On 14 July 2014, the OECD issued the Standard for Automatic Exchange of Financial Account Information ("the Standard") which therein contains the Common Reporting Standard. This has been applied in Ireland by means of the relevant international legal framework and Irish tax legislation. Additionally, on 9 December 2014, the European Union adopted EU Council Directive 2014/107/EU, amending Directive 2011/16/EU as regards mandatory automatic exchange of information in the field of taxation ("DAC2") which, in turn, has been applied in Ireland by means of the relevant Irish tax legislation.

The main objective of the Common Reporting Standard and DAC2 (collectively referred to herein as "CRS") is to provide for the annual automatic exchange of certain financial account information between relevant tax authorities of participating jurisdictions or EU Member States. CRS draws extensively on the intergovernmental approach used for the purposes of implementing FATCA and, as such, there are significant similarities between the reporting mechanisms. However, whereas FATCA essentially only

requires reporting of specific information in relation to Specified US Persons to the IRS, CRS has significantly wider ambit due to the multiple jurisdictions participating in the regimes.

Broadly speaking, CRS will require Irish Financial Institutions to identify Account Holders (and, in particular situations, Controlling Persons of such Account Holders) resident in other participating jurisdictions or EU Member States and to report specific information in relation to these Account Holders (and, in particular situations, specific information in relation to identified Controlling Persons) to the Irish Revenue Commissioners on an annual basis (which, in turn, will provide this information to the relevant tax authorities where the Account Holder is resident). In this regard, please note that the Company will be considered an Irish Financial Institution for the purposes of CRS.

For further information on CRS requirements of the Company, please refer to the below "CRS Data Protection Information Notice".

Shareholders and prospective investors should consult their own tax advisor regarding the requirements under CRS with respect to their own situation.

CRS Data Protection Information Notice

The Company hereby confirms that it intends to take such steps as may be required to satisfy any obligations imposed by (i) the Standard and, specifically, the Common Reporting Standard therein, as applied in Ireland by means of the relevant international legal framework and Irish tax legislation and (ii) DAC2, as applied in Ireland by means of the relevant Irish tax legislation, so as to ensure compliance or deemed compliance (as the case may be) with CRS from 1 January 2016.

In this regard, the Company is obliged under Section 891F and Section 891G of the Taxes Act and regulations made pursuant to those sections to collect certain information about each Shareholder's tax arrangements (and also collect information in relation to relevant Controlling Persons of specific Shareholders).

In certain circumstances, the Company may be legally obliged to share this information and other financial information with respect to a Shareholder's interests in the Company with the Irish Revenue Commissioners (and, in particular situations, also share information in relation to relevant Controlling Persons of specific Shareholders). In turn, and to the extent the account has been identified as a Reportable Account, the Irish Revenue Commissioners will exchange this information with the country of residence of the Reportable Person(s) in respect of that Reportable Account. In particular, information that may be reported in respect of a Shareholder (and relevant Controlling Persons, if applicable) includes name, address, date of birth, place of birth, account number, account balance or value at year end (or, if the account was closed during such year, the balance or value at the date of closure of the account), any payments (including redemption and dividend/interest payments) made with respect to the account during the calendar year, tax residency(ies) and tax identification number(s).

Shareholders (and relevant Controlling Persons) can obtain more information on the Company's tax reporting obligations on the website of the Irish Revenue Commissioners (which is available at http://www.revenue.ie/en/business/aeoi/index.html) or the following link in the case of the Common Reporting Standard only: http://www.oecd.org/tax/automatic-exchange/.

All capitalised terms above, unless otherwise defined above, shall have the same meaning as they have in the Standard or DAC2 (as applicable).

Mandatory Disclosure Rules

Council Directive (EU) 2018/822 (amending Directive 2011/16/EU), commonly referred to as "DAC6", became effective on 25 June 2018. Relevant Irish tax legislation has since been introduced to implement this Directive in Ireland.

DAC6 creates an obligation for persons referred to as "intermediaries" to make a return to the relevant tax authorities of information regarding certain cross-border arrangements with particular characteristics, referred to as "hallmarks" (most of which focus on aggressive tax planning arrangements). In certain circumstances, instead of an intermediary, the obligation to report may pass to the relevant taxpayer of a reportable cross-border arrangement.

The transactions contemplated under the Prospectus may fall within the scope of DAC6 and thus may qualify as reportable cross-border arrangements. If that were the case, any person that falls within the definition of an "Intermediary" (this could include the Administrator, the legal and tax advisers of the Company, the Investment Advisors, the Manager, the Distributors etc.) or, in certain circumstances, the relevant taxpayer of a reportable cross-border arrangement (this could include Shareholder(s)) may have to report information in respect of the transactions to the relevant tax authorities. Please note that this may result in the reporting of certain Shareholder information to the relevant tax authorities.

Shareholders and prospective investors should consult their own tax advisor regarding the requirements of DAC6 with respect to their own situation.

United States Federal Income Taxation

The following discussion assumes for convenience that the Company, including each Fund thereof, will be treated as a single entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The law in this area is uncertain. Thus, it is possible that the Company may adopt an alternative approach, treating each Fund of the Company as a separate entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes. There can be no assurance that the U.S. Internal Revenue Service will agree with the position taken by the Company.

Funds of the Company may be organized at different times and may have different investment policies and objectives, and the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a Fund's activities may therefore be different. The discussion herein is limited to the U.S. federal income tax treatment of the Company as currently configured, and is based on laws and regulations currently in effect, which may change retroactively or prospectively.

The following discussion is a general summary of certain U.S. federal tax consequences that may result to the Funds and Shareholders in connection with their investment in the Funds. The discussion does not purport to deal with all of the U.S. federal income tax consequences applicable to the Funds or to all categories of investors, some of whom may be subject to special rules. In particular, the discussion does not address the U.S. federal tax consequences to "United States persons," as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes (referred to herein as "U.S. Taxpayers" and defined below), of an investment in Shares. Such investors should consult their own tax advisors. The discussion assumes that no U.S. Taxpayer will own directly or indirectly, or will be considered as owning by application of certain tax law rules of constructive ownership, 10% or more of total combined voting power or value of all Shares of the Company or any Fund. All investors should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax consequences to them of an investment in the Funds under applicable U.S. federal, state, local and foreign income tax laws as well as with respect to any specific gift, estate and inheritance tax issues.

Taxation of the Company The Company, including each Fund thereof, generally intends to conduct its affairs so that it will not be deemed to be engaged in trade or business in the United States and, therefore, none of its income will be treated as "effectively connected" with a U.S. trade or business carried on by the Fund. Certain categories of income (including dividends (and certain substitute dividends and other dividend equivalent payments) and certain types of interest income) derived by a Fund from U.S. sources will be subject to a U.S. tax of 30%, which tax is generally withheld from such income. Certain other categories of income, generally including capital gains (including those derived from options transactions) and interest on certain portfolio debt obligations (which may include U.S. Government securities), original issue discount obligations having an original maturity of 183 days or less, and certificates of deposit, will not be subject to this 30% tax. If, on the other hand, the Company or any Fund thereof derives income which is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business carried on by such entity, such income will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at the rate applicable to U.S. domestic corporations, and the Company may also be subject to a branch profits tax.

As stated above, the Company generally intends to conduct its activities so as to avoid being treated as engaged in a trade or business in the United States for US federal income tax purposes. Specifically, the Company intends to qualify for safe harbors in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), pursuant to which the Company will not be treated as engaged in such a business if its activities are limited to trading in stocks and securities or commodities for its own account. These safe harbors apply regardless of whether the trading is done by the Company or a resident broker, commission agent, custodian or other agent, or whether such agent has discretionary authority to make decisions in effecting the transactions. The safe harbors do not apply to a dealer in stocks or securities or commodities; the Company does not intend to be such a dealer. In addition, the commodities trading safe harbor applies only if the commodities are of a kind customarily dealt in on an organized commodity exchange, and if the transaction is of a kind customarily consummated at such place.

It should be noted, however, that only limited guidance, including proposed regulations that have yet to be finalized, exists with respect to the tax treatment of non-U.S. persons who effect transactions in securities and commodities derivative positions (including currency derivatives) for their own account within the United States. For example, as currently proposed, the regulations provide a safe harbor with respect to trading interests in currencies and currency derivatives only if the currencies are of a kind customarily dealt in on an organized commodity exchange. Future guidance may cause the Company to alter the manner in which it engages in such activity within the United States.

Notwithstanding the foregoing safe harbors, investments (directly or indirectly through tax transparent entities) in "United States real property interests," including interests (other than as a creditor) in "United States real property holding corporations," as defined in the Code, may cause the Company or a Fund to be engaged in a U.S. trade or business, and to derive income that is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business. In particular, investments in certain master limited partnerships may cause the Company or a Fund to become engaged in a U.S. trade or business. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Company or a Fund will not derive income that is effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business in any given year.

In addition, given the relatively recent introduction of insurance-based and catastrophe securities and related derivative instruments into the marketplace, there can be no absolute assurance that such instruments would qualify as securities, the income and gain from which is not subject to U.S. federal income taxation.

The treatment of credit default swaps, certain Total Return Swaps and certain other swap agreements as "notional principal contracts" for U.S. federal income tax purposes is uncertain. Were the U.S. Internal Revenue Service to take the position that a credit default swap, total return swap or other swap agreement is not treated as a "notional principal contract" for U.S. federal income tax purposes, payments received by the Company from such investments might be subject to U.S. excise, net income and/or branch profits taxes.

Developments in the U.S. tax laws relating to the tax treatment of commodity-linked swaps, structured notes and other instruments may cause the Company to alter the manner in which it gains commodity exposure.

Pursuant to the U.S. Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA"), the Company (or each Fund thereof) will be subject to U.S. federal withholding taxes (at a 30% rate) on payments of certain amounts made to such entity ("withholdable payments"), unless it complies (or is deemed compliant) with extensive reporting and withholding requirements. Withholdable payments generally include interest (including original issue discount), dividends, rents, annuities, and other fixed or determinable annual or periodical gains, profits or income, if such payments are derived from U.S. sources. Income which is effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business, is not, however, included in this definition. To avoid the withholding tax, unless deemed compliant, the Company (or each Fund thereof) will be required to enter into an agreement with the United States to identify and disclose identifying and financial information about each U.S. Taxpayer (or foreign entity with substantial U.S. ownership) which invests in the Company (or Fund), and to withhold tax (at a 30% rate) on withholdable payments and related payments made to any investor which fails to furnish information requested by the Company to satisfy its obligations under the agreement. Pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement between the United States and Ireland, the Company (or each

Fund) may be deemed compliant, and therefore not subject to the withholding tax, if it identifies and reports U.S. taxpayer information directly to the government of Ireland. Certain categories of U.S. investors, generally including, but not limited to, tax-exempt investors, publicly traded corporations, banks, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, common trust funds, brokers, dealers and middlemen, and state and federal governmental entities, are exempt from such reporting. Detailed guidance as to the mechanics and scope of this reporting and withholding regime is continuing to develop. There can be no assurance as to the timing or impact of any such guidance on future Company operations.

Shareholders will be required to provide certifications as to their U.S. or non-U.S. tax status, together with such additional tax information as the Directors or their agents may from time to time request. Failure to furnish requested information or (if applicable) satisfy its own FATCA obligations may subject a Shareholder to liability for any resulting withholding taxes, U.S. information reporting and mandatory redemption of such Shareholder's Shares in the Company.

Taxation of Shareholders

The U.S. tax consequences to a Shareholder of distributions from a Fund and of dispositions of Shares generally depend upon the Shareholder's particular circumstances. It is intended that each Fund will be managed in a manner such that an investment in such Fund will not, in and of itself, subject Shareholders not otherwise subject to U.S. income tax to such tax.

Certain investors who may be permitted to invest in the Funds and who are not U.S. Persons may nonetheless be considered "U.S. Taxpayers" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. "U.S. Taxpayer" means a U.S. citizen or resident alien of the United States (as defined for United States federal income tax purposes); any entity treated as a partnership or corporation for U.S. tax purposes that is created or organised in, or under the laws of, the United States or any State thereof; any other partnership that is treated as a U.S. Taxpayer under U.S. Treasury Department regulations; any estate the income of which is subject to U.S. income taxation regardless of source; and any trust over whose administration a court within the United States has primary supervision and all substantial decisions of which are under the control of one or more U.S. fiduciaries. Persons who have lost their U.S. citizenship and who live outside the United States may nonetheless in some circumstances be treated as U.S. Taxpayers.

In certain circumstances, U.S. Taxpayer investors may be required to furnish the Company with a properly executed IRS Form W-9, and all other investors may be required to furnish an appropriate, properly executed IRS Form W-8. Amounts paid to a U.S. Taxpayer investor as dividends from a Fund, or as gross proceeds from a redemption of Shares, generally may be reportable to the U.S. Taxpayer investor and the U.S. Internal Revenue Service on an IRS Form 1099; tax-exempt entities, corporations, non-U.S. Taxpayer Shareholders and certain other categories of Shareholders, however, would not be subject to reporting on IRS Form 1099, if such Shareholders furnish the Company with an appropriate and properly executed IRS Form W-8 or IRS Form W-9, as appropriate, certifying as to their exempt status. Failure to provide an appropriate and properly executed IRS Form W-8 (in the case of Shareholders who are not U.S. Taxpayers) or IRS Form W-9 (for Shareholders who are U.S. Taxpayers) when required may subject a Shareholder to backup withholding tax. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld may be credited against a Shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability.

As noted above, Shareholders may be required to provide such additional tax certifications and information as the Directors may from time to time request. Failure to provide requested information may subject a Shareholder to liability for any resulting U.S. withholding tax, U.S. tax information reporting, and/or mandatory redemption of such Shareholder's Shares.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

The Company is a passive foreign investment company (a "PFIC") within the meaning of Section 1297(a) of the Code. Shareholders that are U.S. Taxpayers or are owned, directly or indirectly, by U.S. Taxpayers are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the application of the PFIC rules.

U.S. State and Local Taxation

In addition to the U.S. federal income tax consequences described above, investors should consider potential U.S. state and local tax consequences of an investment in the Company. U.S. state and local tax laws often differ from U.S. federal income tax laws. Investors should seek U.S. state and local tax advice based on the investor's particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

California Taxation

The Company, if classified as a corporation for federal income tax purposes as indicated above, will be subject to California franchise or corporation income tax only on its California-source income. A non-U.S. corporation like the Company can avoid having California-source income from direct investments in intangible personal property if either (1) its commercial domicile is outside California or (2) its investment activities fall within a safe harbor that allows it to trade in "stocks or securities" for its own account without generating California-source income. A corporation's commercial domicile is the principal place from which its trade or business is directed or managed. The Company intends to take the position that its commercial domicile is not in California. One factor that may, however, be taken into account in determining the Company's commercial domicile is the fact that its investments are managed, in part, from California. Thus, there can be no assurance that the Company's position will be upheld if challenged. In addition, although the Company generally intends to conduct its investment activities in a manner that satisfies the "stocks or securities" trading safe harbor, there is very little guidance on the definition of "securities" for this purpose. If it were determined, for example, that commodity linked swaps, structured notes, credit default swaps or other derivative instruments are not "securities" for this purpose, the Company could fail to qualify under the "stocks or securities" safe harbor. Consequently, there is no assurance that the Company will avoid having California-source income.

Other Jurisdictions

Income recognized by the Company from jurisdictions outside the United States or Ireland may be subject to tax in such jurisdictions.

UK Tax Considerations

The following summary of certain relevant taxation provisions is based on current law and practice in the UK at the date of publishing. Such law and practice may be subject to change, and the below summary does not constitute legal or tax advice and is not exhaustive of all possible tax considerations. In particular certain classes of investors will be subject to specific rules in the UK and their position is not separately covered here. Furthermore, it will apply only to those United Kingdom Shareholders holding Shares as an investment rather than those which hold Shares as part of a financial trade; and does not cover United Kingdom Shareholders who are tax exempt or subject to special taxation regimes.

Prospective investors should consult their own professional advisers on the relevant taxation considerations applicable to the acquisition, holding and disposal of Shares and the receipt of distributions under the laws of their countries of citizenship, residence or domicile.

Taxation of the Company

As a UCITS, the Company will not be treated as resident in the UK for UK taxation purposes. Accordingly, and provided that the Company does not carry on a trade in the UK through a permanent establishment situated therein for UK corporation tax purposes or through a branch or agency situated in the UK within the charge to income tax, the Company will not be subject to UK corporation tax on income and capital gains arising to it. The Directors intend that the affairs of the Company are conducted so that no such permanent establishment, branch or agency will arise insofar as this is within their control, but it cannot be guaranteed that the conditions necessary to prevent any such permanent establishment coming into being will at all times be satisfied.

Interest and other income received by the Company which has a UK source may be subject to withholding taxes in the UK.

Taxation of Shareholders

Shares in the Company will constitute interests in an "offshore fund" for the purposes of the United Kingdom offshore funds legislation. Each Class of Shares will be treated as a separate "offshore fund" for these purposes. Under the offshore funds regime contained in the United Kingdom Offshore Funds (Tax) Regulations 2009 ("Regulations") persons who are resident in the UK for tax purposes may be liable to income tax (or corporation tax on income) in respect of any gain arising from the disposal or redemption of Shares in an offshore fund. This charge does not apply, however, where Shares are held within a Class of interest which is certified by HM Revenue & Customs ("HMRC") as a "reporting fund" (refer below) throughout the period during which the Shares have been held.

It should be noted that a "disposal" for UK tax purposes would generally include a switching of interest between Funds within the Company and may also include a switching of interests between Share Classes in the same Fund of the Company.

Subject to their personal circumstances, Shareholders resident in the UK for taxation purposes may be liable to UK income tax or corporation tax in respect of dividends or other distributions of income by the Company, whether or not such distributions are reinvested. Reportable income amounts (see below) in excess of cash distribution (if any) will also be regarded as deemed dividends or interest in certain cases (refer below).

Reporting Fund Status ("UKRF")

The Regulations provide that if an investor resident in the UK for taxation purposes holds an interest in an offshore fund and that offshore fund is a 'non-reporting fund', any gain accruing to that investor upon the sale or other disposal of that interest will be charged to UK tax as income rather than a capital gain. Alternatively, where an investor resident in the UK holds an interest in an offshore fund that has been a 'reporting fund' (and a "distributing fund" prior to 1 January 2010 if an existing fund) for all periods of account for which they hold their interest, any gain accruing upon sale or other disposal of the interest will be subject to tax as a capital gain rather than as income; with relief for any accumulated or reinvested profits which have already been subject to UK income tax or corporation tax on income (even where such profits are exempt from UK corporation tax).

In broad terms, a 'reporting fund' is an offshore fund that meets certain upfront and annual reporting requirements to HMRC and its shareholders. The Directors intend to manage the affairs of the Company so that these upfront and annual duties are met and continue to be met on an ongoing basis for each class within the Company that intends to seek UKRF with effect from inception or from 1 January 2010. Such annual duties will include calculating and reporting the income returns of the offshore fund (whether or not distributed) for each reporting period (as defined for UK tax purposes) on a per-Share basis to all relevant Shareholders (as defined for these purposes). UK Shareholders who hold their interests at the end of the reporting period to which the reported income relates, will be subject to income tax or corporation tax on the higher of any cash distribution paid and the full reported amount. The reported income will be deemed to arise to UK Shareholders on the date the report is issued by the Directors, provided the report is issued within 6 months of the end of the financial year of the Funds. Once reporting fund status is obtained from HMRC for the relevant Classes, it will remain in place permanently provided the annual requirements are satisfied.

It is the intention of the Directors to enter the UKRF regime for the Share Classes as listed in Appendix 3.

When the Funds / Share Classes obtain UKRF, UK Shareholders holding such shares at the end of each "reporting period" (as defined for UK tax purposes) will potentially be subject to UK income tax or corporation tax on their Share of a Class' "reported income", to the extent that this amount exceeds any dividends received. The terms "reported income", "reporting period" and their implications are discussed above. Both dividends and reported income will be treated as dividends received from a foreign corporation, subject to any re-characterisation as interest. In the case where the reported income is re-characterised as interest, the tax treatment for UK resident individual shareholders and UK corporate shareholders are as described below.

UK resident corporate Shareholders may be exempt from taxation on dividends paid by the Company, depending on their circumstances and subject to certain conditions being satisfied. In addition, distributions to non-UK companies carrying on a trade in the UK through a permanent establishment in the UK should also fall within the exemption from UK corporation tax on dividends to the extent that the Shares held by that company are used by, or held for, that permanent establishment. Reported income will be treated in the same way as a dividend distribution for these purposes.

Under the corporate debt tax regime in the UK any corporate Shareholder which is within the charge to UK corporation tax will be taxed on the increase in value of its holding on a fair value basis (rather than on disposal) or will obtain tax relief on any equivalent decrease in value, if the Investments held by the offshore fund within which the Shareholder invests, consist of more than 60% (by value) of "qualifying investments". Qualifying investments are broadly those, which yield a return directly or indirectly in the form of interest. An offshore fund fails to satisfy the non-qualifying investments test at any time when its investments consist of more than 60 per cent by market value of, inter alia, government and corporate debt securities, money placed at interest or holdings in unit trust schemes or offshore funds which do not themselves satisfy the non-qualifying investments test.

UK "Anti-Avoidance" Provisions

The attention of individuals resident in the UK for taxation purposes is drawn to the provisions of section sections 714 to 751 (inclusive) of the UK Income Tax Act 2007, which may render them liable to income tax in respect of the undistributed income of the Fund. These provisions are aimed at preventing the avoidance of income tax by individuals through transactions resulting in the transfer of assets or income to persons (including companies) resident or domiciled outside the United Kingdom and may render them liable to income tax in respect of undistributed income of the Company on an annual basis. The legislation is not directed towards the taxation of capital gains. This legislation will, however, not apply if the relevant Shareholder can satisfy HM Revenue & Customs that either:

- i) it would not be reasonable to draw the conclusion from all the circumstances of the case, that the purpose of avoiding liability to taxation was the purpose, or one of the purposes, for which the relevant transactions or any of them were effected;
- ii) all the relevant transactions are genuine commercial transactions and it would not be reasonable to draw the conclusion, from all the circumstances of the case, that any one or more of the transactions was more than incidentally designed for the purpose of avoiding liability to taxation; or
- iii) all the relevant transactions were genuine, arm's length transactions and if the Shareholder were liable to tax under Chapter 2 of Part 13 in respect of such transactions such liability would constitute an unjustified and disproportionate restriction on a freedom protected by Title II or IV of Part Three of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union or Part II or III of the EEA Agreement.

If the Company is controlled for UK taxation purposes by persons (whether companies, individuals or others) who are resident in the United Kingdom for these purposes, or is controlled by two persons, one of whom is resident in the United Kingdom for these purposes and has at least 40 per cent. of the interests, rights and powers by which the two persons together control the Company and the other of whom has at least 40 per cent and not more than 55 per cent of such interests, rights and powers, the Company will be a "controlled foreign company" for the purposes of Part 9A of the Taxation (International and Other Provisions) Act 2010. Where a UK resident company, either alone or together with persons connected or associated with it for United Kingdom taxation purposes, has an interest in 25 per cent or more of the "chargeable profits" of a controlled foreign company (or, in the case of an umbrella fund, a Fund thereof) (a "25% Interest"), the United Kingdom resident company may be subject to United Kingdom taxation on an amount calculated by reference to its proportionate interest in those chargeable profits. The chargeable profits of a controlled foreign company do not include its capital gains. Shareholders who are UK resident companies should therefore be aware that they may in some circumstances be subject to UK tax an amount calculated by reference to undistributed profits of the Fund and should take their own specific professional taxation advice. This legislation is not directed towards the taxation of capital gains. In addition, these

provisions will not apply if a Shareholder reasonably believes that it does not hold a 25% interest in the Company (or Fund) throughout the relevant accounting period.

The attention of persons resident in the UK for taxation purposes (and who, if individuals, are also domiciled in the UK for those purposes) is drawn to the provisions of section 13 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 ("Section 13"). Section 13 applies to any such person whose proportionate interest in the Fund (whether as a Shareholder or otherwise as a "participator" in the Fund for UK taxation purposes) when aggregated with that of persons connected with that person is 25%, or greater, if, at the same time, the Fund is itself controlled in such a manner that it would, were it to have been resident in the UK for taxation purposes, be a "close" company for those purposes. The provisions of Section 13 could, if applied, result in such a Shareholder being treated for the purposes of UK taxation of chargeable gains as if a part of any chargeable gain accruing to the Fund had accrued to the Shareholder directly, that part being equal to the proportion of the gain that corresponds to that Shareholder's proportionate interest in the Company as a "participator". An exemption may apply where none of the acquisition, holding or disposal of the relevant assets had a tax avoidance main purpose or where the relevant gains arise on the disposal of assets used only for the purposes of genuine, economically significant business activities carried on outside the UK. In the case of UK resident individuals domiciled outside the UK, Section 13 applies only to gains relating to UK situate assets of the Company and gains relating to non-UK situate assets if such gains are remitted to the UK.

Stamp Duty Reserve Tax ("SDRT")

In the absence of an exemption applicable to a prospective Shareholder (such as that available to intermediaries under section 88A of the Finance Act 1986) stamp duty reserve tax (or stamp duty) at the rate of 0.5% will be payable by prospective Shareholders on the acquisition of Shares in companies incorporated in the United Kingdom or which maintain a share register in the United Kingdom for the purpose of subsequent subscription for Shares, and may arise on the transfer of Investments to Shareholders on redemption.

Because the Company is not incorporated in the United Kingdom and the register of holders of Shares will be kept outside the United Kingdom, no liability to SDRT will arise by reason of the transfer, subscription for or redemption of Shares except as stated above. Liability to stamp duty will not arise provided that any instrument in writing transferring Shares in the Company is executed and retained at all times outside the United Kingdom.

Shareholders are referred to the section above headed "Organisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development ("OECD") Common Reporting Standard".

Genuine diversity of ownership

Units in each of the Sub-Funds shall be widely available. The intended categories of investors for the Sub-Funds are not restricted. Units in the Sub-Funds shall be marketed and made available sufficiently widely to reach the intended categories of investors, and in a manner appropriate to attract those categories of investors.

REPORTS, ACCOUNTS, AND HOLDINGS DISCLOSURE

The Company will prepare an annual report and audited accounts as of 31 December in each calendar year and a half-yearly report and unaudited accounts as of 30 June in each year. The audited annual report and accounts will be published within four months of the Company's financial year end and its semi-annual report will be published within 2 months of the end of the half year period and in each case will be offered to subscribers before conclusion of a contract and supplied to Shareholders free of charge on request and will be available to the public at the office of the Administrator. If a Fund or Class is listed, the annual report will be circulated to Euronext Dublin within 6 months of the end of the relevant financial period.

Save as otherwise provided for in any relevant Fund Supplement, the Company will publicly disclose each Fund's portfolio holdings on a calendar quarter basis. The information will be made available no earlier than the first Business Day falling 60 days after the quarter's end and will remain accessible until the posting of the following quarter's schedule. The Directors may at their discretion make available (via the Fund's website or other means) portfolio information to all Shareholders in a Fund earlier if they think it is appropriate to do so.

Save as otherwise provided for in any relevant Fund Supplement, the Company may share the Funds' non-public holdings information with service providers including sub-advisers to the Company who may require access to such information in order to fulfill their contractual duties to the Funds. The Company may also disclose non-public information regarding a Fund's portfolio holdings to certain mutual fund analysts, pricing services rating agencies and rating and tracking entities such as Morningstar and Lipper Analytical Services, or other entities or third parties (including entities that analyze a Fund's portfolio holdings and provide analysis or other services (but not necessarily the holdings information itself) to Shareholders or potential Shareholders) that have a legitimate business purpose in receiving such information sooner than 60 days after a quarter's end or on a more frequent basis as applicable. Where non-public holding information is to be disclosed to a third party, that third party may be required to enter into an agreement with the Company or the Investment Advisor governing the disclosure of such information.

In addition, portfolio holdings information with respect to securities held by the Funds that are in default, distressed, or experiencing a negative credit event (which for these purposes would include any downgrade by a recognised rating agency or where unrated deemed to be downgraded by the Investment Advisor) may be disclosed at any time after such disclosure has been broadly disseminated via the Funds' website or other means.

Notwithstanding any provision contained in this section, the Company may (or may not) at its discretion, upon request from any Shareholder in a Fund (or their duly appointed agent or delegate), disclose that Fund's portfolio holdings or such other information (for example risk data or statistics) to such Shareholder (or their duly appointed agent or delegate) on a non-public and more frequent basis, provided the Shareholder (or their duly appointed agent or delegate) has entered into an agreement with the Company or the Investment Advisor governing the disclosure of such information. To the extent that the Company provides non-public holdings information or other information to a Shareholder in a Fund, the Company will provide the same holdings information or other information to any other Shareholder in the Fund on request provided such Shareholder (or their duly appointed agent or delegate) has entered into an agreement with the Company or the Investment Advisor governing the disclosure of such information.

The above policy does not prohibit the Company from publicly distributing non-specific and/or summary information about a Fund that may, for example, reflect on the quality or character of the Fund's portfolio without identifying any particular security holding of the Fund.

Notwithstanding any other provision contained in the Prospectus or a Fund Supplement, nothing shall limit, prevent or restrict the Company from disclosing portfolio holdings information for the purposes of compliance with the laws and regulations of any relevant jurisdiction where shares of the Company are sold or disclosing such information to a court of a competent jurisdiction, upon request.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Incorporation and Share Capital

The Company was incorporated and registered in Ireland under the Companies Act 2014 and the Regulations as an investment company with variable capital on 10th December, 1997 with registered number 276928.

At the date hereof the authorised share capital of the Company is EUR38,092 divided into 30,000 subscriber shares of EUR1.27 each and 500,000,000,000 shares of no par value initially designated as unclassified shares. All but seven of the original 30,000 subscriber shares issued have been redeemed.

Subscriber shares do not entitle the holders to any dividend and on a winding up entitle the holders to receive the amount paid up thereon but not otherwise to participate in the assets of the Company. Details of the voting rights applicable to subscriber shares are summarised under "Voting Rights" below. The Articles provide that any subscriber shares which are not held by PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited or its nominees are subject to compulsory redemption by the Company.

The Articles permit the Directors to designate Shares in any Fund which will have different charging structures, be hedged/unhedged and/or other special features and which will be pre-determined and will be set forth in the relevant Fund.

Memorandum and Articles of Association

The Memorandum of Association of the Company provides that the sole objective for which the Company is established is the collective investment in transferable securities and/or other liquid financial assets referred to in Regulation 68 of the Regulations of capital raised from the public and the Company operates on the principle of risk spreading in accordance with the Regulations. The Articles contain provisions to the following effect:

(i) Variation of rights. The rights attached to any class of Shares may, whether or not the Company is being wound up, be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate general meeting of the holders of the Shares of that class. To every such separate general meeting the provisions of the Articles relating to general meetings shall apply but so that the necessary quorum at any such meeting (other than an adjourned meeting) shall be two persons holding or representing by proxy at least one third of the issued shares of the class in question and, at an adjourned meeting, one person holding shares of the class in question or his proxy. Any holder of the Shares of the class in question present in person or by proxy may demand a poll.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the Shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly *provided* by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further Shares ranking pari passu therewith.

- (ii) Voting Rights. The Articles provide that on a show of hands every Shareholder who is present in person or by proxy shall be entitled to one vote; on a poll, every Shareholder present in person or by proxy shall be entitled to one vote in respect of each whole Share held by him; and on a poll of all of the holders of Shares of more than one class for the time being the voting rights of Shareholders shall be adjusted in a manner determined by the Directors so as to reflect the latest calculated redemption price per Share of each of the classes in question. On a poll, every holder of a subscriber share present in person or by proxy shall be entitled to one vote in respect of his holding of such Share.
- (iii) Change in Share Capital. The Company may, from time to time by ordinary resolution, increase its capital by such amount as the ordinary resolution shall prescribe. The Company may also,

from time to time by ordinary resolution alter (without reducing) its share capital by consolidating and dividing all or any of its share capital into Shares of larger amount than its existing Shares and also by subdividing its Shares or any of them into Shares of smaller amount or by cancelling any Shares, which at the date of the passing of the ordinary resolution in that behalf have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person. In addition to any right of the Company specifically conferred by the Articles to reduce its share capital, the Company may by special resolution from time to time reduce its share capital in any way, and in particular, without prejudice to the generality to the foregoing power, may extinguish or reduce the liability on any of its Shares in respect of share capital not paid up or, with or without extinguishing or reducing liability on any of its Shares, cancel any paid up share capital which is lost, or which is not represented by available assets, or pay off any paid up share capital which is in excess of the requirements of the Company. The Company may by special resolution from time to time reduce its share capital in any way permitted by law.

(iv) Directors' Interests. No Director or intending Director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the Company either as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such contract or any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Company in which any Director is in any way interested be liable to be avoided, nor shall any Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established, but the nature of his interest must be declared by him at the meeting of the Directors at which the question of entering into the contract or arrangement is first taken into consideration, or if the Director was not at the date of that meeting interested in the proposed contract or arrangement, then at the next meeting of the Directors held after he becomes so interested, and in a case where the Director becomes interested in a contract or arrangement after it is made, then at the first meeting of the Directors held after he becomes so interested.

A Director shall not vote or be counted in the quorum in respect of any contract or arrangement in which he is materially interested otherwise than by virtue of his interest in Shares or debentures or other securities of or otherwise in or through the Company and if he shall do so his vote shall not be counted, but the aforesaid prohibition shall not apply to:

- (a) any contract or arrangement by a Director to guarantee or underwrite Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
- (b) any contract or resolution for giving to a Director any security or indemnity in respect of money lent by him or obligations undertaken by him for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
- (c) any contract or dealing with a corporation where the sole interest of a Director is that he is a director, member or creditor of such corporation, but is not the holder of or beneficially interested in 1% or more of the issued shares of any class of such corporation or of any third corporation through which his interest is derived or of the voting rights available to members of the relevant company (any such interest being deemed for the purpose of the Articles to be a material interest in all circumstances).

The aforesaid prohibitions may at any time be suspended or relaxed to any extent, and either generally or in respect of any particular contract, arrangement or transaction by the Company by ordinary resolution. The Company in general meeting may by ordinary resolution ratify any transaction not duly authorised by reason of any contravention of this paragraph (iv). A general notice in writing given to the Directors by any Director to the effect that he is a member of any specified company or firm, and is to be regarded as interested in any contract which may thereafter be made with that company or firm, shall (if such Director shall give the same at a meeting of the Directors or shall take reasonable steps to secure that the same is brought up and read at the next meeting of the Directors after it is given) be deemed a sufficient declaration of interest in relation to any contract so made.

If any question shall arise at any meeting as to the materiality of a Director's interest or as to the entitlement of any Director to vote and such question is not resolved by his voluntarily agreeing to abstain from voting, such question shall be referred to the chairman of the meeting, and his ruling in relation to any other Director shall be final and conclusive except in a case where the nature or extent of the interests of the Director concerned have not been fairly disclosed.

A Director, notwithstanding his interest, may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting whereat any contract or arrangement in which he is materially interested is considered (other than in respect of his appointment to any office or place of profit under the Company), and he may vote thereat on all matters other than those in respect of which he is debarred from voting above.

- (v) Borrowing Powers. The Company may only borrow on a temporary basis and the aggregate amount of such borrowings may not exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of each Fund. Subject to this limit the Directors may exercise all borrowing powers on behalf of the Company and may charge its assets as security for such borrowings only in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations.
- (vi) Retirement of Directors. Directors will not retire by rotation or require to be re-elected in general meeting following appointment.
- (vii) *Directors Remuneration*. The Directors shall be entitled to a fee by way of remuneration at a rate to be determined from time to time by the Company and disclosed in the Prospectus.
- (viii) Transfer of Shares. Save as provided below under "Form of Shares, Share Certificates and Transfer of Shares" the Shares are freely transferable and entitled to participate equally in the profits and dividends of the Fund to which they relate and in its assets upon liquidation. The Shares, which are of no par value and which must be fully paid on issue, carry no preferential or pre-emptive rights.
- (ix) Dividends. The Directors may at such times as they think fit declare and pay or reinvest such dividends, including interim dividends on the Shares or on any class of Shares, as appear to the Directors to be justified by the profits being (i) the net investment income consisting of interest and dividends, (ii) realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses and (iii) other funds (including capital) as may be lawfully distributed (including fees and expenses) determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles of the relevant Fund and including the accretions of discount less the amortisation of any premium on the investments of the relevant Fund where the investments of that Fund are valued on an amortised cost basis. The Directors may, with the sanction of the Company in general meeting, satisfy any dividend due to holders of the Shares in whole or in part by distributing to them in specie any of the assets of the Company and in particular any investments to which the Company is entitled. All unclaimed dividends on Shares may be invested or otherwise made use of by the Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company. Any dividend unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of declaration of such dividend shall be forfeited and shall revert to the relevant Fund.
- (x) Funds. The Directors are required to establish a separate fund in the following manner:
 - (a) the Company shall keep separate books in which all transactions relating to the relevant fund shall be recorded and, in particular, the proceeds from the allotment and issue of Shares of such fund, the investments and the liabilities and income and expenditure attributable thereto shall be applied or charged to such fund and where appropriate allocated or attributed to the relevant class of Shares or types of Shares in issue in the fund subject to the provisions of the Articles;
 - (b) any assets derived from any other assets (whether cash or otherwise) comprised in any fund shall be applied in the books of the Company to the same fund as the asset from which it was derived and any increase or diminution in the value of such an asset shall be applied to the relevant fund;

- (c) in the event that there are any assets of the Company (not being attributable to subscriber shares) which the Directors do not consider are attributable to a particular fund or funds, the Directors shall, with the approval of the Depositary, allocate such assets to and among any one or more of the funds in such manner and on such basis as they, in their discretion, deem fair and equitable; and the Directors shall have the power to and may at any time and from time to time with the approval of the Depositary vary such basis in respect of assets not previously allocated;
- (d) each Fund shall be charged with the liabilities, expenses, costs, charges or reserves of the Company in respect of or attributable to that Fund and any such liabilities, expenses, costs, charges or reserves of the Company not attributable to any particular Fund or Funds shall be allocated and charged by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary in such manner and on such basis as the Directors in their discretion deem fair and equitable, and the Directors shall have the power to and may at any time and from time to time with the approval of the Depositary vary such basis including, where circumstances so permit, the re-allocation of such liabilities, expenses, costs, charges and reserves;
- (e) if, as a result of a creditor proceeding against certain of the assets of the Company or otherwise, a liability, expense, cost, charge or reserve would be borne in a different manner from that in which it would have been borne under paragraph (d) above, or in any similar circumstances, the Directors may transfer in the books and records of the Company any assets to and from any of the funds;
- (f) where the assets of the Company (if any) attributable to the subscriber shares give rise to any net profits, the Directors may allocate assets representing such net profits to such fund or funds as they deem appropriate.

Subject as otherwise provided in the Articles, the assets held in each fund shall be applied solely in respect of the Shares of the Class to which such fund appertains.

- (xi) Winding up. The Articles contain provisions to the following effect:
 - (a) Any Fund may be terminated by the Directors in their absolute discretion by notice in writing to the Depositary in any of the following events:
 - (1) if the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund shall be less than such amount as may be determined by the Directors in respect of that Fund;
 - (2) if any Fund shall cease to be authorised or otherwise officially approved;
 - (3) if any law shall be passed which renders it illegal or in the opinion of the Directors impracticable or inadvisable to continue the relevant Fund.

The decision of the Directors in any of the events specified herein shall be final and binding on all the parties concerned but the Directors shall be under no liability on account of any failure to terminate the relevant Fund pursuant to these provisions of the Articles or otherwise.

- (b) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2014, if the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator shall apply the assets of each Fund in such manner and order as he thinks fit in satisfaction of creditors' claims relating to that Fund. The liquidator shall in relation to the assets available for distribution among the members make in the books of the Company such transfers thereof to and from Class Funds as may be necessary to ensure that the creditors' claims are attributed in accordance with the following provisions.
- (c) The assets available for distribution among the Shareholders shall then be applied in the following priority:
 - (1) First, in the payment to the holders of the Shares of each Fund of a sum in the currency in which that Fund is designated or in any other currency selected by the

liquidator as nearly as possible equal (at a rate of exchange determined by the liquidator) to the net asset value of the Shares of, or where appropriate of the relevant class or type of Shares of such Fund held by such holders respectively as at the date of commencement to wind up provided that there are sufficient assets available in the relevant Fund to enable such payment to be made. In the event that there are insufficient assets available in the relevant Fund to enable such payment to be made recourse shall be had:

- (A) first, to the assets of the Company not comprised within any of the Funds; and
- (B) secondly, to the assets remaining in the Funds for the other classes of Shares (after payment to the holders of the Shares of the classes to which they relate of the amounts to which they are respectively entitled under this paragraph (1)) pro rata to the total value of such assets remaining within each such Fund.
- (2) Secondly, in the payment to the holders of the subscriber shares of sums up to the nominal amount paid thereon out of the assets of the Company not comprised within any of the Funds remaining after any recourse thereto under sub-paragraph (c)(1)(A) above. In the event that there are insufficient assets as aforesaid to enable such payment in full to be made, no recourse shall be had to the assets comprised within any of the Funds.
- (3) Thirdly, in the payment to the holders of Shares of any balance then remaining in the relevant Funds, such payment being made in proportion to the number of Shares issued in the relevant Fund.
- (4) Fourthly, in the payment to the holders of the Shares of any balance then remaining and not comprised within any of the Funds, such payment being made in proportion to the number of Shares held.
- (d) If the Company shall be wound up (whether the liquidation is voluntary, under supervision or by the court) the liquidator may, with the authority of a special resolution and any other sanction required by the Companies Act 2014, divide among the Shareholders in specie the whole or any part of the assets of the Company, and whether or not the assets shall consist of property of a single kind, and may for such purposes set such value as the liquidator deems fair upon any one or more class or classes of property, and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the Shareholders or different classes of Shareholders. The liquidator may, with the like authority, vest any part of the assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the Shareholders as the liquidator, with the like authority, shall think fit, and the liquidation of the Company may be closed and the Company dissolved, but so that no Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any assets in respect of which there is liability. If a Shareholder so requests, the Company shall arrange to dispose of the assets in specie on behalf of the Shareholder and shall pay the cash proceeds to the Shareholder. The price obtained on a disposal may be different from the price at which the assets were valued when determining the Net Asset Value and the Company shall not be liable for any difference arising.
- (xii) Share Qualification. The Articles do not contain a share qualification for Directors.

Form of Shares, Share Certificates and Transfer of Shares

Shares will be issued in registered form only and share certificates will not be issued. Written confirmations of entry in the register of Shareholders will be issued within five Business Days after the Dealing Day on which Shares are allotted subject to receipt of payment in respect of such Shares.

Shares in each Fund will be transferable by instrument in writing signed by (or, in the case of a transfer by a body corporate, signed on behalf of or sealed by) the transferor. In the case of the death of one of joint Shareholders, the survivor or survivors will be the only person or persons recognised by the Company as having any title to or interest in the Shares registered in the names of such joint Shareholders.

Registration of any transfer may be refused by the Directors if following the transfer either transferor or transferee would hold Shares having a value less than the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund specified in "**Key Information Regarding Share Transactions**" above.

The Shares have not been, and will not be, registered under the 1933 Act, or qualified under any applicable state statutes, and the Shares may not be transferred to or for the benefit of, directly or indirectly, any U.S. Person (as that term is used in Regulation S under the 1933 Act), except pursuant to registration or an exemption. The definition of "U.S. Person" is set out in the section headed "**Definitions**".

Material Contracts

The following contracts have been entered into otherwise than in the ordinary course of the business intended to be carried on by the Company and are or may be material:

- (a) The Management Agreement dated 28 January, 1998 as amended by Side Letter dated 14 June, 2006 and as may be further amended from time to time between the Company and the Manager; this agreement provides that the appointment of the Manager will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities from the Company in favour of the Manager which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reasons of the negligence, bad faith, fraud or wilful default of the Manager in the performance or non-performance of its obligations or duties under the agreement.
- (b) **Depositary Agreement** between the Company and the Depositary dated 30 June, 2017 pursuant to which the Depositary was appointed as Depositary of the Company's assets subject to the overall supervision of the Company. The Depositary Agreement shall continue for an initial period of three years from 1 July 2017 and thereafter may be terminated by either party on 90 days prior written notice or forthwith by notice in writing in certain circumstances such as the Depositary being unable to pay its debts as they fall due provided that the Depositary shall continue to act as Depositary until a successor Depositary approved by the Central Bank is appointed by the Company or the Company's authorisation by the Central Bank is revoked. The Depositary has the power to delegate its duties but its liability will not be affected by the fact that it has entrusted to a third party some or all of the assets in its safekeeping.

The Depositary Agreement provides that the Depositary shall be indemnified by the Company and held harmless out of the assets of the relevant Fund from all actions, proceedings and claims (including claims of any person purporting to be the beneficial owner of any part of the assets) and against all losses, damages, claims, costs, actions, liabilities, suits, proceedings or expenses (including reasonable legal and professional expenses) arising therefrom which may be brought against, suffered or incurred by the Depositary by reason of the performance of the Depositary's duties under the terms of the Depositary Agreement save where any such actions, proceedings, claims, costs, demands or expenses arise as a result of the Depositary's negligent or intentional failure to properly perform its duties under the Depositary Agreement or the loss of financial instruments held in custody pursuant to the Depositary Agreement or which otherwise arise as a result of the fraud, wilful default, bad faith or negligence of the Depositary. Any such indemnity shall extend to the Depositary acting upon a forged or unauthorised document or signature (provided the Depositary reasonably believed the document to have been authorised or the signature to have been genuine).

(c) The Administration Agreement between the Manager and the Administrator dated 30 June, 2017 under which the latter was appointed as Administrator to manage and administer the affairs of the Company on behalf of the Manager, subject to the terms and conditions of the Administration Agreement and subject to the overall supervision of the Manager. The Administration Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for an initial term of three years from 1 July, 2017 and thereafter may be terminated by either party on 90 days written notice or forthwith by notice in writing in certain circumstances such as the liquidation of either party (except for a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of reconstruction or amalgamation upon terms previously approved in writing by the non-defaulting party) or a receiver or examiner is appointed to such party or upon the happening of a like event whether at the direction of an appropriate regulatory agency or court of competent jurisdiction or otherwise. The Administrator has the power to delegate its duties with the prior approval of the Central Bank and the Manager provided that the minimum activities are carried out in Ireland in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank.

The Administration Agreement provides that the Manager shall indemnify and hold the Administrator and its directors, officers, employees and agents harmless from all direct loss, cost, damage and expense, including reasonable legal counsel and professional fees and disbursements, incurred or suffered by the Administrator resulting from any claim, demand, action, proceeding or suit in connection with any action or omission by the Administrator in the performance of its duties under the Administration Agreement, or as a result of the Administrator acting upon any instructions reasonably believed by it to have been duly authorized by the Manager, or as a result of the Administrator acting upon any instructions or advice (in accordance with the Administration Agreement), save where any such claim, demand, action or suit, proceeding or loss, cost, damage or expense, arise as a result of the fraud, wilful default, recklessness, bad faith or negligence of the Administrator or its directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives.

- (d) The Investment Advisory Agreement, dated 22 December, 2005, as amended and re-stated by an agreement dated 25 May, 2018, between PIMCO and the Manager. This agreement provides that the appointment of PIMCO will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' notice in writing, although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities in favour of PIMCO which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith or wilful default of PIMCO in the performance or non-performance of its obligations or duties under the agreement.
- (e) The Investment Advisory Agreement, dated 22 December, 2005, as amended and re-stated by an agreement dated 25 May, 2018, as may be further amended from time to time, between PIMCO Europe Ltd. and the Manager. This agreement provides that the appointment of PIMCO Europe Ltd will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' notice in writing, although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities in favour of PIMCO Europe Ltd which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith, recklessness or wilful default of PIMCO Europe Ltd in the performance or non-performance of its obligations or duties under the agreement.
- (f) The **Distribution Agreement**, dated 19 March, 2001 between the Manager and PIMCO Europe Ltd (and as may be further amended between the Manager and PIMCO Europe Ltd from time to time); this agreement provides that the appointment of the Distributor will continue unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities from the Manager in favour of the Distributor which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reasons of the negligence, recklessness, fraud, bad faith or wilful misfeasance of the Distributor in the performance of its duties.
- (g) The Investment Advisory Agreement, dated 4 April 2013, as amended and re-stated by an agreement dated 25 May, 2018, as may be further amended from time to time, between PIMCO Europe GmbH (formerly known as PIMCO Deutschland GmbH) and the Manager. This agreement provides that the appointment of PIMCO Europe GmbH will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' notice in writing,

although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities in favour of PIMCO Europe GmbH which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith, recklessness or wilful default of PIMCO Europe GmbH in the performance or non-performance of its obligations or duties under the agreement.

- (h) The Investment Advisory Agreement, dated 4 April, 2013, as amended and re-stated by an agreement dated 25 May, 2018, between PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. and the Manager. This agreement provides that the appointment of PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. will continue in force unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' notice in writing, although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. This agreement contains certain indemnities in favour of PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reason of the negligence, fraud, bad faith, recklessness or wilful default of PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. in the performance or non-performance of its obligations or duties under the agreement.
- (i) The **Distribution Agreement**, dated 2 February, 2005 between the Manager and PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. (and as may be further amended between the Manager and PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. from time to time). This agreement provides that the appointment of the Distributor will continue unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other. This agreement contains certain indemnities from the Manager in favour of the Distributor which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reasons of the negligence, recklessness, fraud, bad faith or wilful default of the Distributor in the performance of its duties.
- (j) The **Distribution Agreement**, dated 28 November, 2003 between the Manager and PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. (and as may be further amended between the Manager and PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. from time to time). This agreement provides that the appointment of the Distributor will continue unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other not less than 90 days' written notice although in certain circumstances the agreement may be terminated forthwith by notice in writing by either party to the other; this agreement contains certain indemnities from the Manager in favour of the Distributor which are restricted to exclude matters arising by reasons of the negligence, recklessness, fraud, bad faith or wilful default of the Distributor in the performance of its duties.
- (k) The Distribution Agreement between the Manager and PIMCO Asia Limited dated 2 January, 2018 under which the latter was appointed as distributor of the Company's Shares subject to the overall supervision of the Manager. The Distribution Agreement may be terminated by either party on 90 days written notice (or such shorter notice as may be agreed by the parties) or forthwith by notice in writing in certain circumstances such as the insolvency of either party or unremedied breach after notice. The Distributor has the power to delegate its duties. The agreement provides that the Manager shall indemnify the Distributor against and hold it harmless from any actions, proceedings, claims, costs, demands and expenses including legal and professional expenses brought against or suffered or incurred by the Distributor in the performance of its duties other than due to the negligence, dishonesty, fraud or wilful default of the Distributor in the performance of its obligations.
- (I) The **Distribution Agreement** between the Manager and PIMCO Europe GmbH (formerly known as PIMCO Deutschland GmbH) dated 1 October, 2018 under which the latter was appointed as distributor of the Company's Shares subject to the overall supervision of the Manager. The Distribution Agreement may be terminated by either party on 90 days written notice (or such shorter notice as may be agreed by the parties) or forthwith by notice in writing in certain circumstances such as the insolvency of either party or unremedied breach after notice. The Distributor has the power to delegate its duties. The agreement provides that the Manager shall indemnify the Distributor against and hold it harmless from any actions, proceedings, claims, costs, demands and expenses including legal and professional expenses

brought against or suffered or incurred by the Distributor in the performance of its duties other than due to the negligence, dishonesty, fraud or wilful default of the Distributor in the performance of its obligations.

Miscellaneous

Save as disclosed under "Incorporation and Share Capital" above, no share or loan capital of the Company has been issued or agreed to be issued, under option or otherwise.

From the date of this Prospectus, the Funds will not acquire securities of issuers which engage in business activities prohibited by the Oslo convention/United Nations convention on cluster munitions. In determining whether a company engages in such business activities, the Investment Advisor may rely on (a) assessments that are based on research analysis provided by institutions specialising in screening compliance with said conventions and/or (b) information provided by other vendors who provide relevant data feeds relating to cluster munition manufacturers and/or (c) on responses received from an issuer in the course of shareholder engagement activities and/or (d) on other publicly available information. Any assessments may either be made by the Investment Advisor itself or obtained from third parties, including other PIMCO group companies.

Save as disclosed under the heading, "Directors' Interests" above, no Director has any interest in the promotion of or in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by the Company.

Save as may result from the entry by the Company into the agreements listed under "Material Contracts" above or any other fees, commissions or expenses discharged, no amount or benefit has been paid or given or is intended to be paid or given to any promoter of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, no commissions, discounts, brokerages or other special terms have been paid or granted or are payable for subscribing or agreeing to subscribe, or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions, for any Shares or loan capital of the Company.

Documents for Inspection

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the registered office of the Company and at the office of the Administrator during normal business hours on Business Days:

- (a) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company;
- (b) the Regulations; and
- (c) the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

Copies of the annual and semi-annual reports and the Memorandum and Articles may be obtained from the Administrator free of charge.

APPENDIX 1 - REGULATED MARKETS

The following is a list of regulated stock exchanges and markets which operate regularly and are recognized and open to the public in which the assets of each Fund may be invested from time to time and is set out in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. With the exception of permitted investments in unlisted securities or units of open-ended collective investment schemes, investments will be restricted to the stock exchanges and markets below. The Central Bank does not issue a list of approved stock exchanges or markets. The stock exchanges and markets listed in the prospectus will be drawn from the following list.

- (i) any stock exchange which is:-
 - located in any Member State (with the exception of Malta); or
 - located in any of the following countries: Australia, Canada, Japan, Hong Kong, New Zealand, Norway, Switzerland, United Kingdom, United States of America; or
 - any stock exchange included in the following list:-

Argentina Bolsa de Comercio de Buenos Aires Bolsa de Comercio de Cordoba Argentina Argentina Bolsa de Comercio de Rosario Argentina Bolsa de Comercio de Mendoza Argentina Bolsa de Comercio de La Plata Bahrain Bahrain Stock Exchange Bangladesh Dhaka Stock Exchange Bangladesh Chittagong Stock Exchange Bermuda Stock Exchange Bermuda Botswana Stock Exchange Botswana

Brazil Bolsa de Valores de Rio de Janeiro

Brazil Bolsa de Valores da Bahia-Sergipe-Alagoas

Brazil Bolsa de Valores do Extremo Sul

Brazil Bolsa de Valores Minas-Espírito Santo-Brasília

Brazil Bolsa de Valores do Paraná

Brazil Bolsa de Valores de Pernambuco e Paraiba

Brazil Bolsa de Valores de Santos Brazil Bolsa de Valores de São Paulo Brazil Bolsa de Valores Regional Brazil Brazilian Futures Exchange Chile Bolsa de Comercio de Santiago Chile Bolsa Electronica de Chile China (Peoples Republic of) Shanghai Securities Exchange China (Peoples Republic of) Shenzhen Stock Exchange

Columbia Bolsa de Bogata
Columbia Bolsa de Medellin
Columbia Bolsa de Occidente

Egypt Alexandria Stock Exchange
Egypt Cairo Stock Exchange
Ghana Stock Exchange

Hong Kong Hong Kong Futures Exchange Ltd Hong Kong Hong Kong Stock Exchange Iceland Iceland Stock Exchange India Bangalooru Stock Exchange Calcutta Stock Exchange India Chennai Stock Exchange India India Cochin Stock Exchange Delhi Stock Exchange India Gauhati Stock Exchange India Hyderabad Stock Exchange India India Ludhiana Stock Exchange India Magadh Stock Exchange

10822885v25

India Mumbai Stock Exchange

India National Stock Exchange of India

India Pune Stock Exchange

India The Stock Exchange – Ahmedabad India Uttar Pradesh Stock Exchange Indonesia Jakarta Stock Exchange Indonesia Surabaya Stock Exchange Israel Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Jordan Amman Financial Market Kenya Nairobi Stock Exchange

Kuwait Kuwait Stock Exchange
Malaysia Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange
Mauritius Stock Exchange of Mauritius
Mexico Bolsa Mexicana de Valores

Morocco Societe de la Bourse des Valeurs de Casablanca

Nigeria Nigerian Stock Exchange in Lagos Nigeria Nigerian Stock Exchange in Kaduna Nigerian Stock Exchange in Port Harcourt

Namibia Namibian Stock Exchange Pakistan Islamabad Stock Exchange Pakistan Karachi Stock Exchange Pakistan Lahore Stock Exchange Bolsa de Valores de Lima Peru **Philippines** Philippine Stock Exchange Russia Moscow Exchange Saudi Arabia Saudi Stock Exchange Singapore Stock Exchange Singapore South Africa Johannesburg Stock Exchange

South Korea Korea Stock Exchange South Korea KOSDAQ Market

Sri Lanka Colombo Stock Exchange

Taiwan (Republic of China) Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation

Taiwan (Republic of China)

Thailand

Turkey

Ukraine

Uruguay

Gre Tai Securities Market

Stock Exchange of Thailand

Istanbul Stock Exchange

Ukrainian Stock Exchange

Bolsa de Valores de Montevideo

Zambia Lusaka Stock Exchange Zimbabwe Stock Exchange

any of the following markets:

International:-

The market organised by the International Capital Market Association.

In Canada:-

The over-the counter market in Canadian Government Bonds, regulated by the Investment Dealers Association of Canada.

In Europe:-

NASDAQ Europe. (This market is recently formed and the general level of liquidity may not compare favourably to that found on more established exchanges).

The Chinese Inter-Bank Bond Market regulated by the Chinese Central Bank – People's Bank of China.

In the United Kingdom:-

The UK market (i) conducted by banks and other institutions regulated by the FCA and subject to the Inter-Professional Conduct provisions of the FCA's Market Conduct Sourcebook and (ii) in non-investment products which are subject to the guidance contained in the "Non-Investment Products Code" drawn up by the participants in the London market, including the FCA and the Bank of England (formerly known as "The Grey Paper"; and

AIM - the Alternative Investment Market in the UK, regulated and operated by the London Stock Exchange; and

The London International Financial Futures and Options Exchange (LIFFE); and

The London Securities and Derivatives Exchange.

In France:-

The French market for Titres de Créances Négotiables (over-the-counter market in negotiable debt instruments).

In Japan:-

The over-the-counter market in Japan regulated by the Securities Dealers Association of Japan.

In Russia:-

Moscow Exchange

In Singapore:

SESDAQ (the second tier of the Singapore Stock Exchange); and

The Singapore International Monetary Exchange.

In the United States:-

NASDAQ in the United States; and

The market in U.S. Government securities conducted by primary dealers regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; and

The over-the-counter market in the United States conducted by primary and secondary dealers regulated by the Securities and Exchanges Commission and by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. and by banking institutions regulated by the U.S. Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Reserve System or Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation;

All derivative exchanges on which permitted financial derivative instruments may be listed or traded:

- in a Member State (with the exception of Malta);
- in a Member State in the European Economic Area (European Union (with the exception of Malta), Norway and Iceland but excluding Liechtenstein);

in Asia, on the

- China Financial Futures Exchange;
- Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing:
- Jakarta Futures Exchange;
- Korea Futures Exchange;
- Korea Stock Exchange:
- Kuala Lumpur Options and Financial Futures Exchange;
- Bursa Malaysia Derivatives Berhad;
- National Stock Exchange of India;

- Osaka Mercantile Exchange;
- Osaka Securities Exchange;
- Shanghai Futures Exchange;
- Singapore Commodity Exchange;
- Singapore Exchange;
- Stock Exchange of Thailand;
- Taiwan Futures Exchange;
- Taiwan Stock Exchange;
- The Stock Exchange, Mumbai;
- Tokyo International Financial Futures Exchange;
- Tokyo Stock Exchange;

in Australia, on the

- Australian Stock Exchange;
- Sydney Futures Exchange;

in Brazil on the Bolsa de Mercadorias & Futuros;

in Israel on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange;

in Mexico on the Mexican Derivatives Exchange (MEXDER);

in South Africa on the South African Futures Exchange;

in Switzerland on Eurex (Zurich)

in Turkey on Turkdex (Istanbul)

in the United States of America, on the

- American Stock Exchange;
- Chicago Board of Trade;
- Chicago Board Options Exchange;
- Chicago Mercantile Exchange;
- Eurex US:
- International Securities Exchange;
- New York Futures Exchange;
- New York Board of Trade;
- New York Mercantile Exchange;
- Pacific Stock Exchange;
- Philadelphia Stock Exchange;

in Canada on the Bourse de Montreal;

For the purposes only of determining the value of the assets of a Fund, the term "Recognised Exchange" shall be deemed to include, in relation to any derivatives instrument utilised by a Fund, any organised exchange or market on which such derivative instrument is regularly traded.

Further and in addition to the above, each Fund may invest in any of the following stock exchanges and markets in the event that the Company deems it appropriate and only if the Depositary is able to provide custody and in all cases with the approval of the Central Bank:-

Albania Tirana Stock Exchange
Armenia Yerevan Stock Exchange
Costa Rica Bolsa Nacional de Valores
Ecuador Guayaquil Stock Exchange
Ecuador Quito Stock Exchange

Ivory Coast Bourse des Valeurs d'Abidjan Jamaica Stock Exchange

Kazakhstan (Republic of)
Kazakhstan (Republic of)
Kyrgyz Republic
Macedonia

Central Asia Stock Exchange
Kazakhstan Stock Exchange
Kyrgyz Stock Exchange
Macedonian Stock Exchange

Papua New Guinea Lae Stock Exchange

Papua New Guinea Port Moresby Stock Exchange Puerto Rico Stock Exchange in San Juan

Trinidad and Tobago Trinidad and Tobago Stock Exchange
Tunisia Bourse des Valeurs Mobilieres de Tunis
Uzbekistan Toshkent Republican Stock Exchange

Further and in addition to the above, in the event that the Company deems it appropriate each Fund may invest in all derivative exchanges in Liechtenstein on which permitted financial derivative instruments may be listed or traded but only if the Depositary is able to provide custody and in all cases with the approval of the Central Bank.

APPENDIX 2 - DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES RATINGS

A Fund's investments may range in quality from securities rated in the lowest category in which the Fund is permitted to invest to securities rated in the highest category (as rated by Moody's, S&P or Fitch, or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). Unrated securities are treated as if rated, based on the Investment Advisor's view of their comparability to rated securities. The percentage of a Fund's assets invested in securities in a particular rating category will vary. Following is a description of Moody, S&P and Fitch's ratings applicable to fixed income securities.

High Quality Debt Securities are those rated in one of the two highest rating categories (the highest category for commercial paper) or, if unrated, deemed comparable by the Investment Advisor.

Investment Grade Debt Securities are those rated in one of the four highest rating categories or, if unrated, deemed comparable by the Investment Advisor.

Below Investment Grade, High Yield Securities ("Junk Bonds") are those rated lower than Baa by Moody's or BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch and comparable securities. They are deemed predominately speculative with respect to the issuer's ability to repay principal and interest.

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. Moody's Long-Term Ratings: Bonds and Preferred Stock

Aaa: Bonds which are rated Aaa are judged to be of the best quality. They carry the smallest degree of investment risk and are generally referred to as "gilt edge". Interest payments are protected by a large or by an exceptionally stable margin and principal is secure. While the various protective elements are likely to change, such changes as can be visualised are most unlikely to impair the fundamentally strong position of such issues.

Aa: Bonds which are rated Aa are judged to be of high quality by all standards. Together with the Aaa group they comprise what are generally known as high-grade bonds. They are rated lower than the best bonds because margins of protection may not be as large as in Aaa securities or fluctuation of protective elements may be of greater amplitude or there may be other elements present that make the long-term risks appear somewhat larger than with Aaa securities.

A: Bonds which are rated A possess many favourable investment attributes and are to be considered as uppermedium-grade obligations. Factors giving security to principal and interest are considered adequate but elements may be present that suggest a susceptibility to impairment sometime in the future.

Baa: Bonds which are rated Baa are considered as medium-grade obligations (*i.e.*, they are neither highly protected nor poorly secured). Interest payments and principal security appear adequate for the present but certain protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any great length of time. Such bonds lack outstanding investment characteristics and in fact have speculative characteristics as well.

Ba: Bonds which are rated Ba are judged to have speculative elements; their future cannot be considered as well-assured. Often the protection of interest and principal payments may be very moderate and thereby not well safeguarded during both good and bad times over the future. Uncertainty of position characterises bonds in this class.

B: Bonds which are rated B generally lack characteristics of a desirable investment. Assurance of interest and principal payments or of maintenance of other terms of the contract over any long period of time may be small.

Caa: Bonds which are rated Caa are of poor standing. Such issues may be in default or there may be present elements of danger with respect to principal or interest.

Ca: Bonds which are rated Ca represent obligations which are speculative in a high degree. Such issues are often in default or have other marked shortcomings.

C: Bonds which are rated C are the lowest rated class of bonds and issues so rated can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of ever attaining any real investment standing.

Moody's applies numerical modifiers, 1, 2, and 3 in each generic rating classified from Aa through Caa in its corporate bond rating system. The modifier 1 indicates that the security ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category; the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking; and the modifier 3 indicates that the issue ranks in the lower end of its generic rating category.

Corporate Short-Term Debt Ratings

Moody's short-term debt ratings are opinions of the ability of issuers to repay punctually senior debt obligations which have an original maturity not exceeding one year. Obligations relying upon support mechanisms such as letters of credit and bonds of indemnity are excluded unless explicitly rated.

Moody's employs the following three designations, all judged to be investment grade, to indicate the relative repayment ability of rated issuers:

PRIME-1: Issuers rated Prime-1 (or supporting institutions) have a superior ability for repayment of senior short-term debt obligations. Prime-1 repayment ability will often be evidenced by many of the following characteristics: leading market positions in well-established industries; high rates of return on funds employed; conservative capitalisation structure with moderate reliance on debt and ample asset protection; broad margins in earnings coverage of fixed financial charges and high internal cash generation; and well-established access to a range of financial markets and assured sources of alternate liquidity.

PRIME-2: Issuers rated Prime-2 (or supporting institutions) have a strong ability for repayment of senior short-term debt obligations. This will normally be evidenced by many of the characteristics cited above but to a lesser degree. Earnings trends and coverage ratios, while sound, may be more subject to variation. Capitalisation characteristics, while still appropriate, may be more affected by external conditions. Ample alternate liquidity is maintained.

PRIME-3: Issuers rated Prime-3 (or supporting institutions) have an acceptable ability for repayment of senior short-term obligations. The effect of industry characteristics and market compositions may be more pronounced. Variability in earnings and profitability may result in changes in the level of debt protection measurements and may require relatively high financial leverage. Adequate alternate liquidity is maintained.

NOT PRIME: Issuers rated Not Prime do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.

Short-Term Municipal Bond Ratings

There are three rating categories for short-term municipal bonds that define an investment grade situation, which are listed below. In the case of variable rate demand obligations (VRDOs), a two-component rating is assigned. The first element represents an evaluation of the degree of risk associated with scheduled principal and interest payments, and the other represents an evaluation of the degree of risk associated with the demand feature. The short-term rating assigned to the demand feature of VRDOs is designated as VMIG. When either the long- or short-term aspect of a VRDO is not rated, that piece is designated NR, e.g., Aaa/NR or NR/VMIG 1. MIG ratings terminate at the retirement of the obligation while VMIG rating expiration will be a function of each issue's specific structural or credit features.

MIG 1/VMIG 1: This designation denotes superior quality. There is present strong protection by established cash flows, superior liquidity support or demonstrated broad-based access to the market for refinancing.

MIG 2/VMIG 2: This designation denotes strong quality. Margins of protection are ample although not so large as in the preceding group.

MIG 3/VMIG 3: This designation denotes acceptable quality. All security elements are accounted for but there is lacking the undeniable strength of the preceding grades. Liquidity and cash flow protection may be narrow and market access for refinancing is likely to be less well established.

SG: This designation denotes speculative quality. Debt instruments in this category lack margins of protection.

Standard & Poor's Ratings Services Corporate and Municipal Bond Ratings

Investment Grade

AAA: Debt rated AAA has the highest rating assigned by S&P. Capacity to pay interest and repay principal is extremely strong.

AA: Debt rated AA has a very strong capacity to pay interest and repay principal and differs from the highest rated issues only in small degree.

A: Debt rated A has a strong capacity to pay interest and repay principal although it is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than debt in higher rated categories.

BBB: Debt rated BBB is regarded as having an adequate capacity to pay interest and repay principal. Whereas it normally exhibits adequate protection parameters, adverse economic conditions, or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity to pay interest and repay principal for debt in this category than in higher-rated categories.

Speculative Grade

Debt rated BB, B, CCC, CC, and C is regarded as having predominantly speculative characteristics with respect to capacity to pay interest and repay principal. BB indicates the least degree of speculation and C the highest. While such debt will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these are outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.

BB: Debt rated BB has less near-term vulnerability to default than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which could lead to inadequate capacity to meet timely interest and principal payments. The BB rating category is also used for debt subordinated to senior debt that is assigned an actual or implied BBB- rating.

B: Debt rated B has a greater vulnerability to default but currently has the capacity to meet interest payments and principal repayments. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair capacity or willingness to pay interest and repay principal. The B rating category is also used for debt subordinated to senior debt that is assigned an actual or implied BB or BB- rating.

CCC: Debt rated CCC has a currently identifiable vulnerability to default and is dependent upon favourable business, financial, and economic conditions to meet timely payment of interest and repayment of principal. In the event of adverse business, financial or economic conditions, it is not likely to have the capacity to pay interest and repay principal. The CCC rating category is also used for debt subordinated to senior debt that is assigned an actual or implied B or B- rating.

CC: The rating CC is typically applied to debt subordinated to senior debt that is assigned an actual or implied CCC rating.

C: The rating C is typically applied to debt subordinated to senior debt that is assigned an actual or implied CCC-debt rating. The C rating may be used to cover a situation where a bankruptcy petition has been filed, but debt service payments are continued.

CI: The rating CI is reserved for income bonds on which no interest is being paid.

D: Debt rated D is in payment default. The D rating category is used when interest payments or principal payments are not made on the date due even if the applicable grace period has not expired, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made during such grace period. The D rating will also be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition if debt service payments are jeopardised.

Plus (+) or Minus (-): The ratings from AA to CCC may be modified by the addition of a plus or minus sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.

Provisional ratings: The letter "p" indicates that the rating is provisional. A provisional rating assumes the successful completion of the project being financed by the debt being rated and indicates that payment of debt service requirements is largely or entirely dependent upon the successful and timely completion of the project. This rating, however, while addressing credit quality subsequent to completion of the project, makes no comment on the likelihood of, or the risk of default upon failure of, such completion. The investor should exercise his own judgment with respect to such likelihood and risk.

r: The "r" is attached to highlight derivative, hybrid, and certain other obligations that S&P believes may experience high volatility or high variability in expected returns due to non-credit risks. Examples of such obligations are: securities whose principal or interest return is indexed to equities, commodities, or currencies; certain swaps and options; and interest only and principal only mortgage securities.

The absence of an "r" symbol should not be taken as an indication that an obligation will exhibit no volatility or variability in total return.

N.R.: Not rated.

Debt obligations of issuers outside the United States and its territories are rated on the same basis as domestic corporate and municipal issues. The ratings measure the creditworthiness of the obligor but do not take into account currency exchange and related uncertainties.

Commercial Paper Rating Definitions

An S&P commercial paper rating is a current assessment of the likelihood of timely payment of debt having an original maturity of no more than 365 days. Ratings are graded into several categories, ranging from A for the highest quality obligations to D for the lowest. These categories are as follows:

- A-1: This highest category indicates that the degree of safety regarding timely payment is strong. Those issues determined to possess extremely strong safety characteristics are denoted with a plus sign (+) designation.
- A-2: Capacity for timely payment on issues with this designation is satisfactory. However, the relative degree of safety is not as high as for issues designated A-1.
- A-3: Issues carrying this designation have adequate capacity for timely payment. They are, however, more vulnerable to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances than obligations carrying the higher designations.
- B: Issues rated B are regarded as having only speculative capacity for timely payment.
- C: This rating is assigned to short-term debt obligations with a doubtful capacity for payment.
- D: Debt rated D is in payment default. The D rating category is used when interest payments or principal payments are not made on the date due, even if the applicable grace period has not expired, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made during such grace period.

A commercial paper rating is not a recommendation to purchase, sell or hold a security inasmuch as it does not comment as to market price or suitability for a particular investor. The ratings are based on current information furnished to S&P by the issuer or obtained from other sources it considers reliable. S&P does not perform an audit in connection with any rating and may, on occasion, rely on unaudited financial information. The ratings may be changed, suspended, or withdrawn as a result of changes in or unavailability of such information.

Fitch Ratings, Inc

Long-Term Rating Scales

Issuer Credit Rating Scales

Rated entities in a number of sectors, including financial and non-financial corporations, sovereigns and insurance companies, are generally assigned Issuer Default Ratings (IDRs). IDRs opine on an entity's relative vulnerability to default on financial obligations. The "threshold" default risk addressed by the IDR is generally that of the financial obligations whose non-payment would best reflect the uncured failure of that entity. As such, IDRs also address relative vulnerability to bankruptcy, administrative receivership or similar concepts, although the agency recognizes that issuers may also make pre-emptive and therefore voluntary use of such mechanisms.

In aggregate, IDRs provide an ordinal ranking of issuers based on the agency's view of their relative vulnerability to default, rather than a prediction of a specific percentage likelihood of default. For historical information on the default experience of Fitch-rated issuers, please consult the transition and default performance studies available from the Fitch Ratings website.

AAA: Highest credit quality.

'AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of default risk. They are assigned only in cases of exceptionally strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by foreseeable events.

AA: Very high credit quality.

'AA' ratings denote expectations of very low default risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

A: High credit quality.

'A' ratings denote expectations of low default risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for higher ratings.

BBB: Good credit quality.

'BBB' ratings indicate that expectations of default risk are currently low. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered adequate but adverse business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity.

BB: Speculative.

'BB' ratings indicate an elevated vulnerability to default risk, particularly in the event of adverse changes in business or economic conditions over time; however, business or financial flexibility exists which supports the servicing of financial commitments.

B: Highly speculative.

'B' ratings indicate that material default risk is present, but a limited margin of safety remains. Financial commitments are currently being met; however, capacity for continued payment is vulnerable to deterioration in the business and economic environment.

CCC: Substantial credit risk.

10822885v25

Default is a real possibility.

CC: Very high levels of credit risk.

Default of some kind appears probable.

C: Exceptionally high levels of credit risk

Default is imminent or inevitable, or the issuer is in standstill. Conditions that are indicative of a 'C' category rating for an issuer include:

- a. the issuer has entered into a grace or cure period following non-payment of a material financial obligation;
- b. the issuer has entered into a temporary negotiated waiver or standstill agreement following a payment default on a material financial obligation; or
- c. Fitch Ratings otherwise believes a condition of 'RD' or 'D' to be imminent or inevitable, including through the formal announcement of a distressed debt exchange.

RD: Restricted default.

'RD' ratings indicate an issuer that in Fitch Ratings' opinion has experienced an uncured payment default on a bond, loan or other material financial obligation but which has not entered into bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal winding-up procedure, and which has not otherwise ceased operating. This would include:

- a. the selective payment default on a specific class or currency of debt;
- b. the uncured expiry of any applicable grace period, cure period or default forbearance period following a payment default on a bank loan, capital markets security or other material financial obligation;
- c. the extension of multiple waivers or forbearance periods upon a payment default on one or more material financial obligations, either in series or in parallel; or
- d. execution of a distressed debt exchange on one or more material financial obligations.

D: Default.

'D' ratings indicate an issuer that in Fitch Ratings' opinion has entered into bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other formal winding-up procedure, or which has otherwise ceased business.

Default ratings are not assigned prospectively to entities or their obligations; within this context, non-payment on an instrument that contains a deferral feature or grace period will generally not be considered a default until after the expiration of the deferral or grace period, unless a default is otherwise driven by bankruptcy or other similar circumstance, or by a distressed debt exchange.

"Imminent" default typically refers to the occasion where a payment default has been intimated by the issuer, and is all but inevitable. This may, for example, be where an issuer has missed a scheduled payment, but (as is typical) has a grace period during which it may cure the payment default. Another alternative would be where an issuer has formally announced a distressed debt exchange, but the date of the exchange still lies several days or weeks in the immediate future.

In all cases, the assignment of a default rating reflects the agency's opinion as to the most appropriate rating category consistent with the rest of its universe of ratings, and may differ from the definition of default under the terms of an issuer's financial obligations or local commercial practice.

Note:

The modifiers "+" or "-" may be appended to a rating to denote relative status within major rating categories. Such suffixes are not added to the 'AAA' Long-Term IDR category, or to Long-Term IDR categories below 'B'.

Short-Term Ratings

Short-Term Ratings Assigned to Issuers or Obligations in Corporate, Public and Structured Finance

A short-term issuer or obligation rating is based in all cases on the short-term vulnerability to default of the rated entity or security stream and relates to the capacity to meet financial obligations in accordance with the 10822885v25

documentation governing the relevant obligation. Short-Term Ratings are assigned to obligations whose initial maturity is viewed as "short term" based on market convention. Typically, this means up to 13 months for corporate, sovereign, and structured obligations, and up to 36 months for obligations in U.S. public finance markets.

F1: Highest short-term credit quality.

Indicates the strongest intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote any exceptionally strong credit feature.

F2: Good short-term credit quality.

Good intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial commitments.

F3: Fair short-term credit quality.

The intrinsic capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is adequate.

B: Speculative short-term credit quality.

Minimal capacity for timely payment of financial commitments, plus heightened vulnerability to near term adverse changes in financial and economic conditions.

C: High short-term default risk.

Default is a real possibility.

RD: Restricted default.

Indicates an entity that has defaulted on one or more of its financial commitments, although it continues to meet other financial obligations. Typically applicable to entity ratings only.

D: Default.

Indicates a broad-based default event for an entity, or the default of a short-term obligation.

APPENDIX 3

It is the intention of the Company to apply for UKRF for all existing and future Share Classes of the Company.

Investors should refer to the list of reporting funds maintained by HM Revenue & Customs and published on its website for further information in respect of any relevant reporting fund classes.

APPENDIX 4 - INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The Company is authorised as a UCITS pursuant to the Regulations. Pursuant to the Regulations, a UCITS is subject to the following investment restrictions. If the Regulations are altered during the life of the Company, the investment restrictions may be changed to take account of any such alterations. Shareholders will be advised of such changes in the next succeeding annual or semi-annual report of the Company.

1 Permitted Investments

Investments of a UCITS are confined to:

- 1.1 Transferable securities and money market instruments which are either admitted to official listing on a stock exchange in a Member State or non-Member State or which are dealt on a market which is regulated, operates regularly, is recognised and open to the public in a Member State or non-Member State.
- **1.2** Recently issued transferable securities which will be admitted to official listing on a stock exchange or other market (as described above) within a year.
- **1.3** Money market instruments other than those dealt on a Regulated Market.
- **1.4** Units of UCITS.
- **1.5** Units of alternative investment funds.
- **1.6** Deposits with credit institutions.
- **1.7** Financial derivative instruments.

2 Investment Restrictions

- 2.1 A UCITS may invest no more than 10% of net assets in transferable securities and money market instruments other than those referred to in paragraphs 1.
- 2.2 Subject to paragraph (2) of this 2.2 below, a UCITS shall not invest any more than 10% of its assets in securities of the type to which Regulation 68(1)(d) of the Regulations apply.
 - Paragraph (1) of this 2.2 above, does not apply to an investment by a UCITS in US Securities known as "Rule 144 A securities" provided that;
 - (a) the relevant securities have been issued with an undertaking to register the securities with the SEC within 1 year of issue; and
 - (b) the securities are not illiquid securities i.e. they may be realised by the UCITS within 7 days at the price, or approximately at the price, which they are valued by the UCITS.
- 2.3 A UCITS may invest no more than 10% of net assets in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same body provided that the total value of transferable securities and money market instruments held in the issuing bodies in each of which it invests more than 5% is less than 40%.
- 2.4 Subject to the approval of the Central Bank, the limit of 10% (in 2.3) is raised to 25% in the case of bonds that are issued by a credit institution which has its registered office in a Member State and is subject by law to special public supervision designed to protect bond-holders. If a UCITS invests more than 5% of its net assets in these bonds issued by one issuer, the total value of these investments may not exceed 80% of the net asset value of the UCITS.
- 2.5 The limit of 10% (in 2.3) is raised to 35% if the transferable securities or money market instruments are

issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities or by a non-Member State or public international body of which one or more Member States are members.

- 2.6 The transferable securities and money market instruments referred to in 2.4. and 2.5 shall not be taken into account for the purpose of applying the limit of 40% referred to in 2.3.
- 2.7 A UCITS shall not invest more than 20% of its assets in deposits made with the same body.
- 2.8 The risk exposure of a UCITS to a counterparty to an OTC derivative may not exceed 5% of net assets.

This limit is raised to 10% in the case of a credit institution authorised in the EEA or a credit institution authorised within a signatory state (other than an EEA Member State) to the Basle Capital Convergence Agreement of July 1988; or a credit institution in a third country deemed equivalent pursuant to Article 107(4) of the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012.

- 2.9 Notwithstanding paragraphs 2.3, 2.7 and 2.8 above, a combination of two or more of the following issued by, or made or undertaken with, the same body may not exceed 20% of net assets:
 - investments in transferable securities or money market instruments;
 - deposits: and/or
 - counterparty risk exposures arising from OTC derivatives transactions.
- 2.10 The limits referred to in 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.7, 2.8 and 2.9 above may not be combined, so that exposure to a single body shall not exceed 35% of net assets.
- **2.11** Group companies are regarded as a single issuer for the purposes of 2.3, 2.4, 2.5, 2.7, 2.8 and 2.9. However, a limit of 20% of net assets may be applied to investment in transferable securities and money market instruments within the same group.
- 2.12 A UCITS may invest up to 100% of net assets in different transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by any Member State, its local authorities, non-Member States or public international body of which one or more Member States are members.

The individual issuers must be listed in the prospectus and may be drawn from the following list:

OECD Governments (provided the relevant issues are investment grade), Government of Singapore, European Investment Bank, European Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, International Monetary Fund, Euratom, The Asian Development Bank, European Central Bank, Council of Europe, Eurofima, African Development Bank, International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (The World Bank), The Inter American Development Bank, European Union, Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae), Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae), Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Tennessee Valley Authority, Straight-A Funding LLC, Government of the People's Republic of China, Government of Brazil (provided the issues are of investment grade).

The UCITS must hold securities from at least 6 different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

3 Investment in investment funds

3.1 A UCITS may not invest more than 20% of net assets in any one investment fund.

- 3.2 Investment in alternative investment funds may not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of net assets.
- 3.3 The investment fund is prohibited from investing more than 10 per cent of net assets in other openended investment funds.
- 3.4 When a UCITS invests in the units of other investment funds that are managed, directly or by delegation, by the UCITS management company or by any other company with which the UCITS management company is linked by common management or control, or by a substantial direct or indirect holding, that management company or other company may not charge subscription, conversion or redemption fees on account of the UCITS investment in the units of such other investment fund.
- 3.5 Where by virtue of investment in the units of another investment fund, an investment manager or an investment advisor receives a commission on behalf of the UCITS (including a rebated commission), the relevant commission shall be paid into the property of the UCITS.
- 3.6 Investment must not be made in a Fund which itself holds shares in other Funds within the Company.
- 3.7 The investing UCITS may not charge an annual management fee in respect of that portion of its assets invested in other investment funds within the umbrella (whether such fee is paid directly at the investing fund level, indirectly at the receiving fund level or a combination of both), such that there shall be no double charging of the annual management fee to the investing fund as a result of investments in the receiving UCITS. This provision is also applicable to the annual fee charged by the Investment Advisor where such fee is paid directly out of the assets of the Sub-Fund.

4 Index Tracking UCITS

- 4.1 A UCITS may invest up to 20% of net assets in shares and/or debt securities issued by the same body where the investment policy of the UCITS is to replicate an index which satisfies the criteria set out in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations and is recognised by the Central Bank.
- **4.2** The limit in 4.1 may be raised to 35%, and applied to a single issuer, where this is justified by exceptional market conditions.

5 General Provisions

- 5.1 An investment company, or management company acting in connection with all of the CIS it manages, may not acquire any shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuing body.
- **5.2** A UCITS may acquire no more than:
 - (i) 10% of the non-voting shares of any single issuing body;
 - (ii) 10% of the debt securities of any single issuing body;
 - (iii) 25% of the units of any single CIS;
 - (iv) 10% of the money market instruments of any single issuing body.

NOTE: The limits laid down in (ii), (iii) and (iv) above may be disregarded at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of the debt securities or of the money market instruments, or the net amount of the securities in issue cannot be calculated.

- 5.3 5.1 and 5.2 shall not be applicable to:
 - (i) transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State or its local authorities:
 - (ii) transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-Member State;
 - (iii) transferable securities and money market instruments issued by public international bodies of which 10822885v25

one or more Member States are members;

(iv) shares held by a UCITS in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-Member State which invests its assets mainly in the securities of issuing bodies having their registered offices in that State, where under the legislation of that State such a holding represents the only way in which the UCITS can invest in the securities of issuing bodies of that State. This waiver is applicable only if in its investment policies the company from the non-Member State complies with the limits laid down in 2.3 to 2.11, 3.1, 3.2, 5.1, 5.2, 5.4, 5.5 and 5.6 and provided that where these limits are exceeded, paragraphs 5.5 and 5.6 below are observed; and

(v) shares held by an investment company or investment companies in the capital of subsidiary companies carrying on only the business of management, advice or marketing in the country where the subsidiary is located, in regard to the repurchase of units at unit-holders' request exclusively on their behalf.

- **5.4** UCITS need not comply with the investment restrictions herein when exercising subscription rights attaching to transferable securities or money market instruments which form part of their assets.
- 5.5 The Central Bank may allow recently authorised UCITS to derogate from the provisions of 2.3 to 2.12, 3.1, 3.2, 4.1 and 4.2 for six months following the date of their authorisation, provided they observe the principle of risk spreading.
- 5.6 If the limits laid down herein are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of a UCITS, or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, the UCITS must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interests of its unitholders.
- 5.7 Neither an investment company, nor a management company or a trustee acting on behalf of a unit trust or a management company of a common contractual fund, may carry out uncovered sales of:
 - transferable securities;
 - money market instruments;
 - units of CIS; or
 - financial derivative instruments.
- **5.8** A UCITS may hold ancillary liquid assets.
- 6 Financial Derivative Instruments ('FDIs')
- **6.1** The UCITS global exposure relating to FDI must not exceed its total net asset value.
- Position exposure to the underlying assets of FDI, including embedded FDI in transferable securities or money market instruments, when combined where relevant with positions resulting from direct investments, may not exceed the investment limits set out in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations/Guidance. (This provision does not apply in the case of index based FDI provided the underlying index is one which meets with the criteria set out in Central Bank UCITS Regulations.)
- 6.3 UCITS may invest in FDIs dealt in over-the-counter (OTC) provided that
 - The counterparties to over-the-counter transactions (OTCs) are institutions subject to prudential supervision and belonging to categories approved by the Central Bank.
- **6.4** Investment in FDIs are subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank.

7 Restrictions on Borrowing and Lending

7.1 A UCITS may borrow up to 10% of its net assets provided such borrowing is on a temporary basis, including but not limited to for example the financing of redemption requests or to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions. The Depositary may give

a charge over the assets of the UCITS in order to secure borrowings. Credit balances (e.g. cash) may not be offset against borrowings when determining the percentage of borrowings outstanding.

7.2 A UCITS may acquire foreign currency by means of a "back-to-back" loan agreement. The Manager shall ensure that a UCITS with foreign currency borrowings which exceed the value of a back-to-back deposit treats that excess as borrowings for the purpose of Regulation 103 of the UCITS Regulations.

APPENDIX 5 - DELEGATION OF DEPOSITARY SAFEKEEPING DUTIES

The Depositary has delegated those safekeeping duties set out in Article 22(5)(a) of the UCITS Directive to State Street Bank and Trust Company with registered office at Copley Place 100, Huntington Avenue, Boston, Massachusetts 02116, USA, whom it has appointed as its global sub-custodian.

At the date of this prospectus State Street Bank and Trust Company as global sub-custodian has appointed local sub-custodians within the State Street Global Custody Network as listed below.

MarketSubcustodianAlbaniaRaiffeisen Bank sh.a.

Argentina Citibank NA

Australia Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.

Austria Deutsche Bank AG

Bahrain HSBC Bank Middle Eas, Bangladesh Standard Chartered Bank

Belgium Deutsche Bank AG, Netherlands
Benin Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire

Bermuda HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited

Federation of Bosnia and Herzegovinia UniCredit Bank d.d

Botswana Standard Chartered Bank Botswana Limited

Brazil Citibank N.A. – São Paulo Branch Bulgaria Citibank Europe plc, Bulgaria Branch

UniCredit Bulbank AD

Burkina Faso Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire Canada State Street Trust Company Canada

Chile Itaú CorpBanca S.A.

China – A-Share Market HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

China Construction Bank

China – B-Share Market HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

China - Shanghai -Hong Kong Stock Connect Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Citibank N.A.

Colombia Cititrust Colombia, S.A. Sociedad Fiduciaria.

Costa Rica Banco BCT

Croatia Privredna banka Zagreb dd

Zagrebacka banka d.d.

Cyprus BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A., Athens

Czech Republic Československá Obchodnì Banka A.S.

UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.

Denmark Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (SEB)

Nordea Danmark, Filial of Nordea Bank AB

Egypt HSBC Bank Egypt S.A.E.

Estonia AS SEB Pank

Finland Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (Publ) (SEB)

Nordea Bank AB (publ), Finnish Branch

France Deutsche Bank AG, Netherlands

Republic of Georgia JSC Bank of Georgia

Germany Deutsche Bank AG

State Street Bank International GmbH
Ghana Standard Chartered Bank Ghana Limited
Greece BNP Paribas Securities Services, S.C.A.
Guinea-Bissau Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire

Hong Kong Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hungary UniCredit Bank Hungary Zrt.

Citibank Europe plc

Iceland Landsbankinn hf

India The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

Limited

Deutsche Bank AG
Deutsche Bank A.G.

Ireland State Street Bank and Trust Company

Israel Bank Hapoalim B.M.
Italy Deutsche Bank S.p.A.
Ivory Coast Standard Chartered Bank

Jamaica Scotia Investments Jamaica Limited

Japan The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, Japan

branch (HSBC) Mizuho Bank, Ltd

Jordan Standard Chartered Bank Shmeissani Branch

Kazakhstan JSC Citibank Kazakhstan

Kenya Standard Chartered Bank Kenya Limited

Republic of Korea Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Deutsche Bank AG Investor Services

Kuwait HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

Latvia AS SEB Banka Lithuania SEB Bankas

Malawi Standard Bank Limited

Malaysia Standard Chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad

Deutsche Bank (Malaysia) Berhad
Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire

Mauritius Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
Mexico Banco Nacional de México S.A. (Banamex)

Morocco Citibank Maghreb Namibia Standard Bank Namibia

Netherlands Deutsche Bank AG, Netherlands

New Zealand The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.

Niger Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire

Nigeria Stanbic IBTC Bank Plc.

Norway Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken

Nordea Bank AB (Publ), filial I Norge

Oman HSBC Bank Oman S.A.O.G.

Mali

Indonesia

Pakistan Deutsche Bank A.G.
Panama Citibank, N.A.

Peru Citibank del Perú S.A
Philippines Deutsche Bank AG
Poland Bank Handlowy w

Bank Polska Kasa Opieki S.A.

Portugal Deutsche Bank AG, Netherlands Puerto Rico Citibank, N.A. Puerto Rico Qatar HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

Romania Citibank Europe plc, Dublin – Romania Branch

Russia AO Citibank

Saudi Arabia HSBC Saudi Arabia Limited

Senegal Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire

Serbia Unicredit Bank Serbia JSC

Singapore United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB)

Citibank, N.A.

Slovak Republic UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.

Slovenia UniCredit Banka Slovenija d.d.

South Africa Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

FirstRand Bank Limited

Spain Deutsche Bank SAE

Sri Lanka The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation

Limited

Republic of Srpska UniCredit Bank d.d

Swaziland Standard Bank Swaziland Limited Sweden Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken

Nordea Bank AB (publ)

Switzerland UBS Switzerland AG

Credit Suisse (Switzerland) Ltd.

Taiwan Deutsche Bank AG

Standard Chartered Bank (Taiwan) Limited Standard Chartered Bank Tanzania Limited

Thailand Standard Chartered Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited

Togo Standard Chartered Bank Cote d'Ivoire Tunisia Union Internationale de Banques (UIB)

Turkey Citibank A.Ş.

Deutsche Bank, A.Ş.

Uganda Standard Chartered Bank Uganda Limited

Ukraine PJSC Citibank

United Arab Emirates - HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

Abu Dhabi Securities Exchange (ADX)

United Arab Emirates - DFM HSBC Bank Middle East Limited United Arab Emirates - Dubai International HSBC Bank Middle East Limited

Financial Center (DIFC)

United Kingdom State Street Bank and Trust Company
United States Street Bank and Trust Company

Uruguay Banco Itau Uruguay S.A.

Vietnam Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
Zambia Standard Chartered Bank Zambia Plc
Zimbabwe Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe Limited

3

Tanzania

APPENDIX 6 - RESTRICTIONS ON SALES IN SELECTED JURISDICTIONS

Notice to Residents of Australia

The Company is not registered as a foreign company in Australia. The provision of this Prospectus to any person does not constitute an offer of Shares to any person to whom such offer or invitation would be unlawful. Any such offer or invitation will only be extended to a person in Australia if that person is: (i) a sophisticated or professional investor for the purposes of section 708 of the Corporations Act of Australia; and (ii) a wholesale client for the purposes of section 761G of the Corporations Act of Australia (the "Corporations Act"). This Prospectus is not intended to be distributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other class of persons in Australia (in particular any person who is a retail client for the purposes of the Corporations Act). No person who is a member of such other class or a retail client is eligible to subscribe for or hold Shares in the Company. There are no cooling off or similar rights available to investors in Shares of the Company.

This Prospectus is not a disclosure document under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act or a product disclosure statement under Part 7.9 of the Corporations Act. It is not required to, and does not, contain all the information which would be required in a disclosure document or a product disclosure document. It has not been lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. Any person to whom Shares are issued or sold must not, within 12 months after the issue, offer, transfer or assign any of those Shares to investors in Australia except in circumstances where disclosure to investors is not required under the Corporations Act.

No person referred to in this Prospectus holds an Australian financial services licence, other than PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd. The information in this Prospectus has been prepared without taking into account any investor's investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs. Recipients of this Prospectus should read this Prospectus, rely upon their own enquiries, and should consider the need to obtain independent legal, financial and taxation advice relevant to participation in a Fund of this type, prior to making any investment decision. This Prospectus has not been prepared specifically for Australian investors. It (i) contains references to dollar amounts which are not Australian dollars; (ii) may contain financial information which is not prepared in accordance with Australian law or practices; (iii) may not address risks associated with investment in foreign currency denominated investments; and (iv) does not address Australian tax issues. Nothing in this Prospectus is, or may be relied upon as, a promise or a representation or a warranty as to any future event.

Notice to Residents of the Dubai International Financial Centre

This Prospectus relates to an investment fund which is not subject to any form of regulation or approval by the Dubai Financial Services Authority ("DFSA"). The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any Prospectus or other documents in connection with this Company. Accordingly, the DFSA has not approved this Prospectus or any other associated documents nor taken any steps to verify the information set out in this Prospectus and has no responsibility for it. The Shares to which this Prospectus relates may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective purchasers should conduct their own due diligence on the Shares. If you do not understand the contents of this document you should consult an authorized financial adviser.

Notice to Residents of Philippines

The securities are not being offered or sold to persons in the Philippines other than to qualified buyers under Section 10(I) of the Securities Regulation Code (SRC) and Rule 10.1 of the 2015 Implementing Rules and Regulations of the SRC. Accordingly, the securities may not be offered or sold to non-qualified buyers, or assigned by the purchasers thereof to non-qualified buyers, nor may any document or material in connection with the offer or sale of the securities be circulated or distributed by the recipients thereof to non-qualified buyers.

THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED OR SOLD HEREIN HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE. ANY FUTURE OFFER OR SALE OF THE SECURITIES IS SUBJECT TO THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE CODE UNLESS SUCH OFFER OR SALE QUALIFIES AS AN EXEMPT TRANSACTION.

Notice to Residents of Thailand

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the "**SEC**") of Thailand has not granted permission for Shares of the Company to be offered directly to any type or any number of residents of Thailand. No interests in the Company may be advertised or offered for sale in Thailand or marketed through any means of communication to any resident of Thailand.

This document shall be distributed on a confidential basis to (and by unsolicited request of) the person to whom it is addressed. This document has not been reviewed or approved by the SEC of Thailand. It may not be reproduced in any form or shown to the public generally or transmitted to any person other than the person to whom it is addressed.

Notice to Residents of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

This document may not be distributed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia except to such persons as are permitted under the Investment Fund Regulations issued by the Capital Market Authority.

The Capital Market Authority does not make any representation as to the accuracy or completeness of this document, and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this document. Prospective purchasers of the securities offered hereby should conduct their own due diligence on the accuracy of the information relating to the securities. If you do not understand the contents of this document you should consult an authorised financial adviser.

DIRECTORY

COMPANY

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc,

Registered Office: 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin, D02 HD32, Ireland.

MANAGER

PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited,

Registered Office: Third Floor, Harcourt Building, Harcourt Street, Dublin 2, D02 F721, Ireland.

INVESTMENT ADVISORS

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, 650 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach, California 92660, USA.

PIMCO Europe Ltd, 11 Baker Street, London, W1U 3AH, United Kingdom.

Tel: +44 20 3640 1000

Fax:+44 20 2640 1007

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. 8 Marina View, #30-01 Asia Square Tower 1, Singapore 018960

PIMCO Europe GmbH, Seidlstrasse 24 – 24a, 80335 Munich, Germany.

ADMINISTRATOR

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Registered Office: 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin, D02 HD32, Ireland.

DEPOSITARY

State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited

Registered Office: 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2. D02 HD32, Ireland.

DISTRIBUTORS

PIMCO Europe Ltd

11 Baker Street, London, W1U 3AH, United Kingdom.

PIMCO Asia Pte Ltd. 8 Marina View, #30-01 Asia Square Tower 1, Singapore 018960

PIMCO Australia Pty Ltd.

Level 19, 5 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales 2000, Australia.

PIMCO Asia Limited

Suite 2201, 22nd Floor, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central Hong Kong.

PIMCO Europe GmbH

Seidlstrasse 24 – 24a, 80335 Munich, Germany.

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO IRISH LAW

Dillon Eustace

33 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2, Ireland.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

One Spencer Dock, North Wall Quay, Dublin 1, Ireland.

SECRETARY

State Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Registered Office 78 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin, D02 HD32, Ireland.

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Existing Funds of the Company

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

MULTI-SECTOR FIXED INCOME FUNDS

Euro Bond Fund Income Fund

Dynamic Bond Fund Income Fund II

Low Duration Opportunities Fund

PIMCO European Short-Term Opportunities

Fund

Low Average Duration Fund

Low Duration Income Fund

Global Bond Fund

Global Advantage Fund

Global Bond ESG Fund

Total Return Bond Fund

UK Low Duration Fund

Global Bond Ex-US Fund

Euro Income Bond Fund

PIMCO ESG Income Fund Low Duration Opportunities ESG Fund

CREDIT FUNDS

Diversified Income Fund Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund US High Yield Bond Fund Euro Credit Fund UK Corporate Bond Fund

Global High Yield Bond Fund PIMCO Capital Securities Fund

PIMCO Credit Opportunities Bond Fund US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Mor

Fund

Global Investment Grade Credit ESG Fund

Mortgage Opportunities Fund

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund

PIMCO European High Yield Bond Fund

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund
Diversified Income ESG Fund

LONG DURATION FIXED INCOME FUNDS

Euro Long Average Duration Fund UK Long Term Corporate Bond Fund

Euro Ultra-Long Duration Fund

EMERGING MARKETS FUNDS

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund

Currency Fund

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund Emerging Markets Bond Fund

Emerging Local Bond Fund Emerging Markets Bond ESG Fund

PIMCO Asia Local Bond Fund **Emerging Markets 2018 Fund**

PIMCO Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund

Emerging Local Bond ESG Fund

EQUITY FUNDS

StocksPLUS™ Fund * PIMCO EqS Emerging Markets Fund

PIMCO EqS Pathfinder Fund™ * PIMCO RAE Emerging Markets Fund

PIMCO EqS Pathfinder Europe Fund™ * PIMCO RAE Europe Fund

PIMCO Global Dividend Fund PIMCO RAE PLUS US Fund

PIMCO MLP & Energy Infrastructure Fund

PIMCO RAE US Fund PIMCO RAE Global Developed Fund

PIMCO RAFI Dynamic Multi-Factor Global

Developed Equity Fund

PIMCO RAFI Dynamic Multi-Factor Emerging

Markets Equity Fund

PIMCO StocksPLUS™ AR Fund

PIMCO RAFI Dynamic Multi-Factor Europe Equity

Fund

PIMCO RAFI Dynamic Multi-Factor U.S. Equity

Fund

INFLATION PROTECTION FUNDS

Global Real Return Fund Commodity Real Return Fund

Global Low Duration Real Return Fund **UK Real Return**

Fund

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund Global Advantage Real Return Fund

ALTERNATIVE FUNDS

PIMCO TRENDS Managed Futures Strategy

Fund

MULTI-ASSET FUNDS

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund

PIMCO Dividend and Income Builder Fund

PIMCO Emerging Multi-Asset Fund

Strategic Income Fund

SHORT-TERM FUNDS

US Short-Term Fund

Euro Short-Term Fund

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

^{*}Trademark of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC in the United States

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Euro Credit Fund, Euro Bond Fund, Euro Income Bond Fund, PIMCO Capital Securities Fund, Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund, Euro Short-Term Fund, Global Real Return Fund and Global Low Duration Real Return Fund; sub-funds of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company").

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein together with the Supplements for the Funds of the Company as set out above.

Promotion of Environmental Characteristics

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

The information set out below is applicable only to those Funds of the Company listed above. Further particulars (including investment objectives and policies) relating to the individual Fund are set forth in the relevant Supplement.

The Fund shall promote environmental characteristics (such as climate change mitigation) through an exclusion screening process and issuer engagement (for example, encouraging companies to align to the Paris Agreement and/or adopt science-based targets for carbon emissions reduction.

The Fund shall exclude sectors deemed by the Investment Advisor to be harmful to the environment, including the coal industry and unconventional oil (such as arctic oil and oil sands). Notwithstanding this, green (labelled & unlabelled), social, sustainable and other sustainability-labelled Fixed Income Securities from excluded sectors, may be permitted, if the Investment Advisor determines such investments are aligned with the Fund's promotion of environmental characteristics. Green labelled Fixed Income Securities are those issues with proceeds specifically earmarked to be used for climate and environmental projects and green unlabelled Fixed Income Securities are those with proceeds used for climate-aligned projects and initiatives (such as renewable energy and municipal owned water systems) but are issued without formal certifications.

As further outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "Integration of Sustainability Risks", sub-section "Engagement Philosophy", the Investment Advisor may actively engage with companies and issuers in order to seek to improve their ESG practices and governance practices. The Investment Advisor may engage with companies and issuers across a spectrum of environmental commitments, not only those companies and issuers with the most advanced practices. The Fund may retain securities from such companies and issuers if the Investment Advisor deems this is in the best interests of the Fund and its Shareholders.

The Investment Advisor evaluates and weighs a variety of financial factors (as further outlined in the relevant Fund Supplement) and non-financial factors (such as the exclusion screening process and issuer engagement as described herein) when making investment decisions. Increasing and diversifying the information assessed by the portfolio management team of the Investment Advisor generates a more holistic view. Furthermore, the Investment Advisor applies internal processes with binding criteria to incorporate such exclusions. In addition, the companies in which investments are made follow good governance practices as determined by the Investment Advisor.

At the date of this Supplement, investments in environmentally sustainable economic activities within the meaning of the Taxonomy Regulation (i.e. taxonomy aligned investments) shall be 0%. The "do no significant harm" principle applies only to those investments underlying the financial product that take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Dated: 8 August, 2022

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Commodity Real Return Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Commodity Real Return Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Commodity Real Return Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Commodity index- linked derivative instruments backed by a portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index ⁽²⁾	B to Aaa; max 10% below Baa	Quarterly /

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Commodity Real Return Fund is to seek maximum total return consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund may invest in derivative instruments (which may be listed or OTC), including swap agreements, futures, options on futures and structured notes and commodity index-linked notes, which enable it to gain exposures to any of the indices and sub-indices referencing commodities (including but not limited to any index within the Bloomberg Commodity family of indices) which meet with the requirements of and have, where necessary, been cleared by the Central Bank. Details of any indices utilised by the Fund and the types of commodities they reference will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. These instruments will provide exposure to the investment returns of the commodities markets without investing directly in physical commodities, and will be backed by an actively managed portfolio of global Fixed Income Instruments. The Fund may also invest in common and preferred stocks as well as convertible securities of issuers in commodity-related industries.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index by virtue of the fact that the index is used for duration measurement and in reference to the Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return by virtue of the fact that the index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes (together the "Indices"). Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Indices. However, the Indices are not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Indices.

The Fund will utilize an enhanced indexing commodity strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's expertise in gaining efficient exposure to diversified commodity indexes together with active collateral portfolio management. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification active views across commodities and fixed income sectors. With respect to fixed income sectors, top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process both for commodity and fixed income security exposures.

The Fund will typically seek to gain exposure to an index by entering into swap agreements. In a typical swap agreement, the Fund will receive the price appreciation (or depreciation) of the index or a portion of the index from the counterparty to the swap agreement in exchange for paying the counterparty an agreed fee.

⁽²⁾ Index here refers to the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index which measures the fixed income component of the Commodity Real Return Fund.

Assets not invested in commodity index-linked derivative instruments may be invested primarily in investment grade global Fixed Income Instruments. The Investment Advisor will actively manage the fixed income component of the portfolio with a view to enhancing the Fund's total return investment performance subject to the investment limits set out in **Appendix 4**. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).

The Investment Advisor will actively manage the fixed income component of the portfolio with a view to enhancing the Fund's total return investment performance subject to an overall portfolio duration which will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the duration of the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates. The Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index provides a broad-based measure of the major government inflation-linked bond markets. Details of the duration of the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond 1-5 Year Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments as outlined herein. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (details of which are outlined herein or will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short

exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return. The Bloomberg Commodity Index Total Return is an unmanaged index composed of futures contracts on 20 physical commodities. The index is designed to be a highly liquid and diversified benchmark for commodities as an asset class. Further details on the index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Securities and non-USD denominated currency positions. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Securities and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

The Fund may seek to obtain market exposure to the securities in which it primarily invests by entering into a series of repo and/or stocklending arrangements provided it does so subject to the conditions and limits set out in the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets, including but not limited to commercial paper, certificates of deposit, asset backed securities and money market instruments. Any such assets shall be of investment grade or if unrated shall be deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.74	-	-	-	0.74
G Institutional	0.74	-	-	-	0.74
R Class	0.90	-	-	-	0.90
H Institutional	0.91	-	-	-	0.91
Investor	0.74	0.35	-	-	1.09
Administrative	0.74	-	0.50	-	1.24
E Class	1.64	-	-	-	1.64
T Class	1.64	-	-	0.40	2.04
M Retail	1.64	-	-	-	1.64
G Retail	1.64	-	-	-	1.64
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares" for additional detail relating to these policies.

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, CHF 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN

10.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, RMB 100.00 (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional USD Accumulation Share Class of the Fund is currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to the commodities and global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Commodity Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging markets securities, high yield securities and substantially in financial derivative instruments, an investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income Il Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Floating and Fixed Rate Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 1 Year	Max 10% below B	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Diversified Income Duration Hedged Fund is to seek to maximise current yield, consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 80% of its net assets in a diversified portfolio of variable and floating-rate Fixed Income Instruments, Fixed Income Instruments with a duration of less than or equal to one year, and fixed rate Fixed Income Instruments. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will be hedged based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates and is expected to be between negative one year and positive one year. The Fund will achieve this hedging by entering into derivative transactions to effectively convert the fixed rate interest payments into floating-rate interest payments. Such derivatives may include interest rate swaps and interest rate futures.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to an equally weighted blend of the following three indices at constant 0.25 year duration: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex Emerging Markets Index, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan Emerging Market Bond Index ("EMBI") Global; All USD Hedged (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark. The Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex Emerging Markets Index tracks the total returns of global investment-grade fixed income markets excluding emerging markets. The ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index tracks the total returns of below investment grade bonds of developed markets corporates rated BB1 through B3, based on an average of Moody's, S&P and Fitch. Qualifying bonds are capitalization-weighted provided the total allocation to an individual issuer (defined by Bloomberg tickers) does not exceed 2%. Issuers that exceed the limit are reduced to 2% and the face value of each of their bonds is adjusted on a pro-rata basis. Similarly, the face value of bonds of all other issuers that fall below the 2% cap are increased on a pro-rata basis. The JPMorgan EMBI Global tracks total returns for U.S. dollardenominated debt instruments issued by emerging market sovereign and guasi-sovereign entities.

Investments will include bonds, debt securities and other similar instruments issued by various public or private sector entities on a global basis such as bank loans and hybrid or contingent capital. Hybrid or contingent capital is a form of debt which has both debt and equity features e.g. preference shares, that are not pure equity but have traditionally been deemed close enough to it to count towards a bank's tier one or tier two capital ratio. The Fund will adopt a multi-sector bond strategy that invests in floating rate bonds in the global investment grade, global high yield and emerging markets credit sectors. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The Fund may invest all of its assets in derivative instruments, such as options, futures contracts or swap agreements, or in mortgage or asset-backed securities (which are unleveraged) (as described under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Techniques").

The strategy will employ the Investment Advisor's expertise in evaluating global relative value across the fixed income market and credit spectrum. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income sectors. The strategy focuses on securities demonstrating solid or improving fundamentals with the potential for capital appreciation through improvements in credit quality. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.

The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities ("junk bonds") rated Ba and below subject to a maximum of 10% of its net assets in securities rated below B by Moody's or equivalently by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).

The Fund may hold both non-US Dollar denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-US Dollar currency positions. Therefore movements in both non-US Dollar denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-US Dollar denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and active currency positions may be implemented according to prevailing economic conditions using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" including that repurchase, reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions will be used for efficient portfolio management purposes only. The Fund may, without limitation, seek to obtain market exposure to the securities in which it primarily invests by entering into a series of purchase and sale contracts or by using other investment techniques (such as dollar rolls or buy-backs). There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

No more than 25% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities such as convertible bonds (including contingent convertible bonds) which may or may not embed leverage. No more than 20% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one third of its net assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities, (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may use convertibles or equity securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complimentary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures, swap agreements including credit default swaps (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a

currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular bond or fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.69	-	-	-	0.69
G Institutional	0.69	-	-	-	0.69
H Institutional	0.86	-	-	-	0.86
R Class	0.87	-	-	-	0.87
Investor	0.69	0.35	-	-	1.04
Administrative	0.69	-	0.50	-	1.19
E Class	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
T Class	1.59	-	-	0.40	1.99
M Retail	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
G Retail	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II

(which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the quarter, month or year or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the quarter, month or year. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Dividend Policy**" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise current yield through a combination of both income and capital growth and also seek protection against interest rate risk and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Diversified Income Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Diversified Income Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Diversified Income Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Diversified Income Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Diversified Income Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Corporate, high yield and emerging market Fixed Income	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 10% below B	Quarterly
Instruments			

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Diversified Income Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally be within two years (plus or minus) of an equally weighted blend of the following three indices: Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global; All USD Hedged (together the "Benchmark"). The Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex Emerging Markets Index provides a broad-based measure of the global developed investment-grade fixed income markets. The index does not reflect deduction for fees, expenses or taxes. The ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index tracks the performance of below investment grade bonds of corporate issuers domiciled in developed market countries rated BB1 through B3, based on an average of Moody's, S&P and Fitch. Qualifying bonds are capitalisation-weighted provided the total allocation to an individual issuer (defined by Bloomberg tickers) does not exceed 2%. Issuers that exceed the limit are reduced to 2% and the face value of each of their bonds is adjusted on a pro-rata basis. Similarly, the face value of bonds of all other issuers that fall below the 2% cap are increased on a pro-rata basis. The index is rebalanced on the last calendar day of the month. The JPMorgan EMBI Global tracks total returns for U.S. dollar-denominated debt instruments issued by emerging market sovereign and guasi-sovereign entities, Brady bonds, loans, Eurobonds and local market instruments. This index only tracks the particular region or country. Details of the duration of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit ex-Emerging Markets, ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index, JPMorgan EMBI Global; All USD Hedged Indices will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.

The Fund may invest in a diversified pool of corporate Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 10% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). In addition, the Fund may invest, without limit, in Fixed Income Instruments of issuers that are economically tied to emerging markets securities.

The Fund will utilise a global fixed income orientated strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income sectors. The strategy focuses on securities demonstrating solid or improving fundamentals with the potential for capital appreciation through improvements in credit quality. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up

strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets.

Therefore movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and

the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Benchmark. Further details on the indices are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency of the Fund is USD.

Fees and Expenses

Save for the BN Retail and BM Retail Shares, the fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.69	-	-	-	0.69
G Institutional	0.69	-	-	-	0.69
H Institutional	0.86	-	-	-	0.86
R Class	0.87	-	-	-	0.87
Investor	0.69	0.35	-	-	1.04
Administrative	0.69	-	0.50	-	1.19
E Class	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
T Class	1.59	-	-	0.40	1.99
M Retail	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
G Retail	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
N Retail	1.59	-	-	-	1.59
W Class	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
BN Retail	1.59	-	-	1.00	2.59
BM Retail	1.59	-	-	1.00	2.59
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge

Contingent deferred sales charges will be payable in respect of BN Retail and BM Retail Shares at the rates specified below, depending on the period that has elapsed between the initial subscription of the Shares and the date they are redeemed.

Redemption Period	Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (% of Net Asset Value of the Shares on the date of redemption)
Within first 3 months	3.00
After 3 months and before 6 months	2.75
After 6 months and before 9 months	2.50
After 9 months and before 12 months	2.25
After 12 months and before 15 months	2.00
After 15 months and before 18 months	1.75
After 18 months and before 21 months	1.50
After 21 months and before 24 months	1.25
After 24 months and before 27 months	1.00
After 27 months and before 30 months	0.75
After 30 months and before 33 months	0.50
After 33 months and before 36 months	0.25
After 36 months	0.00

Any such contingent deferred sales charges will be paid to the Distributor or the Manager. No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be payable in respect of the BN Retail and BM Retail Shares.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Additional Redemption Information

In addition to the information outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Redeem Shares**", the redemption request for the BN Retail and BM Retail Shares must specify the amount of the relevant Shares to be redeemed.

Compulsory Exchange

It is intended that 36 months after the date of the initial subscription for Shares by each Shareholder in BN Retail and BM Retail, such Shares will be compulsorily exchanged for corresponding N Retail and M Retail Shares, respectively, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Exchange Shares**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions" "How to Purchase Shares" "How to Redeem Shares" "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, W Class, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, N Retail, T Class, Z Class, BN Retail, and BM Retail and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A, Administrative, BM Retail, M Retail, BN Retail and N Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Administrative, BM Retail, M Retail, BN Retail and N Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise current yield through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
N Retail	Acc
N Retail	Inc
N Retail	Inc II
BN Retail	Acc
BN Retail	Inc
BN Retail	Inc II
BM Retail	Acc
BM Retail	Inc
BM Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II
W Class	Acc
W Class	Inc
W Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund because of its ability to invest substantially in financial derivative instruments and to invest in below investment grade instruments and emerging markets, an investment in the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted. Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturity, Equity Securities and equity related securities or related derivatives of such securities.	-5 years to +10 years	N/A	Quarterly

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Dynamic Multi-Asset Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund aims to achieve its investment objective by taking exposure to a wide range of asset classes, such as Equity Securities and equity-related securities, Fixed Income Instruments and currencies as well as commodity-related instruments and property related instruments (though not direct commodity and property investments) which are provided for under the investment policy of the Fund and as outlined in greater detail below. The Fund may achieve the desired exposure by investment in Fixed Income Securities, Equity Securities and equity-related securities and/or derivatives (such as swap agreements, futures and options, which may be exchange traded or over-the-counter) as appropriate, in accordance with the investment limits set out in **Appendix 4**. The Fund's use of derivatives may include using derivatives to create synthetic short positions as further outlined below.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA ESTR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target. The Benchmark tracks the performance of a synthetic asset paying ESTR (Euro Short-Term Rate) to a stated maturity. Further information on the Benchmark is publicly available or available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund is designed to provide exposure to a wide range of asset classes (as further outlined below) using the Investment Advisor's asset allocation expertise. The Investment Advisor uses a three-factor approach to evaluating asset classes and their risks in seeking to achieve the Fund's investment objective which consists of 1) fundamental analysis relating to global economics and projected growth of various industrial sectors, 2) valuation analysis, and 3) assessment of market demand of and supply for asset classes. PIMCO evaluates these factors on an ongoing basis and uses a combination of direct investment and derivative exposure to implement a resulting mix of asset classes within the Fund that reflects the Fund's investment objective.

In order to maintain flexibility and to have the ability to invest in opportunities as they arise, it is not an objective of the Fund to focus its investment in any specific geographic or industry sector (although it may, but is not obliged to, in practice). Similarly, although the Fund has the capability to use the types of investment outlined in this policy, it is possible that certain instrument types are not used all of the time. While analysis is performed daily, material shifts in investment exposures typically take place over medium to longer periods of time.

As part of its investment process, the Investment Advisor will seek to reduce exposure to certain risks by implementing various hedging transactions when consistent with its market outlook. These hedging transactions, (typically implemented using derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap transactions) seek to reduce the Fund's exposure to undesired market risks (such as currency and/or interest rate fluctuations which may adversely impact the Fund).

The Fund will typically invest up to 60% of its net assets in Equity Securities or equity-related securities and which may include investments in other Funds of the Company (Class Z Shares only) or collective investment schemes (as outlined below and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank) that primarily invest in equity or equity-related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, warrants, equity-related exchange-traded funds and securities (such as bonds, structured notes, which may or may not embed leverage, (including equity linked securities, equity-linked notes and participatory notes) or debentures) which are or may be convertible into common or preferred stock. Any investment in exchange-traded funds will be in accordance with the investment limits for investment in collective investment schemes as set out in **Appendix 4**. The convertible securities, which may or may not embed leverage, which the Fund may invest in may include contingent convertible securities.

The Fund may invest fully in Fixed Income Instruments. The Fixed Income Instruments of the Fund may include high yield and investment grade corporate bonds, Fixed Income Securities issued by governments, their agencies and instrumentalities, mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities (which may or may not embed leverage) and derivatives based on such securities. There are no restrictions on the minimum credit rating of Fixed Income Securities held by the Fund and the Fund may without limit invest in below investment grade securities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary from negative 5 years to positive 10 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in commodity-related instruments. Such instruments are derivative instruments based on commodity indices (including the Dow-Jones AIG Commodity Index, the Bloomberg family of commodity indices and other eligible financial indices which meet with the requirements of and have, where necessary, been cleared by the Central Bank) and commodity index-linked notes, which may or may not embed leverage, and which enable the Fund to gain exposures to any of the indices and sub-indices referencing commodities in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. The Fund may also invest in equity or equity-related securities of issuers in commodity-related industries.

The Fund may gain exposure to property through property related securities including listed real estate investment trusts ('REITs'), equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives based on REIT indices or other property related indices which meet with the Central Bank's requirements.

The Fund may invest without limit in those securities and instruments outlined within the Supplement that are economically tied to emerging market countries. Please see the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. As outlined in the aforementioned section, the Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets. The Fund may invest up to 25% of net assets in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments (which may be securitised or unsecuritised) which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-EUR denominated investment positions and non-EUR denominated currency positions. Therefore, movements in both non-EUR denominated investments and non-EUR denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and active currency positions may be implemented according to prevailing economic conditions using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and

Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use equity, equity-related and fixed income-related derivative instruments, including futures (including volatility futures), swaps, options (including call and put options and barrier options), options on futures, swaptions and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps (including Total Return Swaps, interest rate swaps, inflation swaps, long and short credit default swaps, Total Return Swaps on fixed income, equity, commodity or real estate indices, variance and volatility swaps) used by the Fund will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposures to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular financial index. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

The Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes as outlined in paragraph 2 above and for hedging purposes as outlined below. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 1400% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result

may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper and certificates of deposit.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from **Appendix 1** of the Prospectus.

Environmental Characteristics

This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Prospectus entitled "**Promotion of Environmental Characteristics**". The Investment Advisor will apply internal processes with binding criteria to incorporate exclusions of certain sectors as set out in the Promotion of Environmental Characteristics Supplement and will evaluate and weigh various non-financial factors including ESG criteria based on third party evaluation or proprietary analysis and may exclude investments on this basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency of the Fund is EUR.

Fees and Expenses

Save for the BM Retail Shares, the fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.5% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.85	-	-	-	0.85
G Institutional	0.85	-	-	-	0.85
H Institutional	1.02	-	-	-	1.02
R Class	1.02	-	-	-	1.02
Investor	0.85	0.35	-	-	1.20
Administrative	0.85	-	0.50	-	1.35
E Class	1.85	-	-	-	1.85
M Retail	1.85	-	-	-	1.85
G Retail	1.85	-	-	-	1.85
T Retail	1.85	-	-	0.40	2.25
BM Retail	1.85	-	-	1.00	2.85
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge

Contingent deferred sales charges will be payable in respect of BM Retail Shares at the rates specified below, depending on the period that has elapsed between the initial subscription of the Shares and the date they are redeemed.

Redemption Period	Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (% of Net Asset Value of the Shares on the date of redemption)
Within first 3 months	3.00
After 3 months and before 6 months	2.75
After 6 months and before 9 months	2.50
After 9 months and before 12 months	2.25
After 12 months and before 15 months	2.00
After 15 months and before 18 months	1.75
After 18 months and before 21 months	1.50
After 21 months and before 24 months	1.25
After 24 months and before 27 months	1.00
After 27 months and before 30 months	0.75
After 30 months and before 33 months	0.50
After 33 months and before 36 months	0.25
After 36 months	0.00

Any such contingent deferred sales charges will be paid to the Distributor or the Manager. No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be payable in respect of the BM Retail Shares.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Additional Redemption Information

In addition to the information outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "How To Redeem Shares", the redemption request for the BM Retail Shares must specify the amount of the relevant Shares to be redeemed.

Compulsory Exchange

It is intended that 36 months after the date of the initial subscription for Shares by each Shareholder in BM Retail, such Shares will be compulsorily exchanged for corresponding M Retail Shares in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Exchange Shares**".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States and England or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult to (i) administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, Z Class, T Class, BM Retail and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any such extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis. After closing of the Initial Offer Period Shares in the Fund will be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A, BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital.

The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved,

and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income, gains or capital in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in that Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors will be investors looking for a diversified multi-asset fund and those investors seeking an attractive total return over the medium to long term and who are willing to accept the risk and volatility of a portfolio investing predominantly in and allocating dynamically across global equity and fixed income markets.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Commodity Risk, High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Equity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
BM Retail	Acc
BM Retail	Inc
BM Retail	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in emerging markets securities and high yield securities, an investment in the Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees are payable out of the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Shareholders should note that dividends are payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes and the Income II Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Asia Strategic Interest Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	2-8 years	N/A	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek to generate attractive and stable income. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.

The Fund will seek to meet its objectives by investing in a broad array of Fixed Income Instruments which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate attractive levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments issued by corporations, governments, their agencies and instrumentalities located in the Asia ex-Japan countries; (ii) bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments issued by corporations, governments and issuers other than set out in (i); (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities (which are unleveraged); and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.

The Fund may invest up to 50% of its total assets in high yield Fixed Income Securities. The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 2 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the JPMorgan Asia Credit Index (JACI) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund will concentrate its investments, by investing at least two thirds of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments in Asia ex-Japan but may invest up to one third of its total assets in other Fixed Income Instruments including those of government and corporate issuers outside Asia ex-Japan. The Investment Advisor will select the Fund's country, sector, and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative spreads and interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, corporate balance sheet fundamentals, and other specific factors Investment Advisor believes to be relevant.

The Fund may invest in instruments whose return is based on the return of an emerging market security or a currency of an emerging market country, such as a derivative instrument, rather than investing directly in emerging market securities or currencies themselves.

The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of the bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular sector or security. As noted above, capital appreciation is a secondary objective of the Fund. Accordingly, the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. The convertible securities, which may or may not embed leverage, which the Fund may invest in may include contingent convertible securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. The Fund may invest up to 30% of total assets in securities denominated in local currency within the Asia-non Japan region. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to emerging market currencies will be actively managed. Active currency positions and currency hedging will be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/ or (iii) efficient portfolio management in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under the heading "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of that instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index measures the performance of Asia ex-Japan USD denominated bond market. The Index provides a benchmark for investment opportunities in fixed and floating rate US dollar-denominated bonds issued by Asia sovereigns, quasi-sovereigns, banks, and corporates. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit. Any such assets shall be of investment grade, or if unrated, deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.65	-	-	-	0.65
H Institutional	0.82	-	-	-	0.82
R Class	0.83	-	-	-	0.83
Investor	0.65	0.35	-	-	1.00
Administrative	0.65	-	0.50	-	1.15
E Class	1.50	-	-	-	1.50
F Class	1.52	-	-	-	1.52
T Class	1.50	-	-	0.40	1.90
M Retail	1.50	-	-	-	1.50
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in Hong Kong or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Dealing Deadline

Notwithstanding the definition of Dealing Deadline set out in the Prospectus, the Dealing Deadline for all Classes in the Fund is 9.00a.m. Irish time on the relevant Dealing Day for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares" for additional detail relating to these policies.

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, F Class, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income

II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Income A Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the Investor Income A Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income, gains or capital in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in the Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

It should be noted that Management Fees and other fees may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to emerging Asia fixed income markets, including non investment grade securities, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
F Class	Acc
F Class	Inc
F Class	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Emerging Local Bond Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Emerging Local Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Local Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in emerging markets securities, an investment in the Emerging Local Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income Il Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Emerging Local Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments		Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹)	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Instruments	Income	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 15% below B	Quarterly
denominated currencies	in local		_	

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Emerging Local Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund will normally invest at least 80% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments denominated in currencies of countries with emerging securities markets which may be represented by forwards or derivatives such as options, futures contracts, or swap agreements. The Fund may invest in forwards or derivatives denominated in any currency, and forwards or derivatives denominated in any currency will be included under the 80% of assets policy noted in the prior sentence so long as the underlying asset of such forwards or derivatives is a Fixed Income Instrument denominated in the currency of an emerging market country. The Fund may, but is not required to, hedge its exposure to non-U.S. currencies. Assets not invested in instruments denominated in currencies of non-U.S. countries described above may be invested in other types of Fixed Income Instruments.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index-Emerging Markets Global Diversified (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund may invest without limit in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify and invest in countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets. The Investment Advisor will select the Fund's country and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, and other specific factors the Investment Advisor believes to be relevant. The Fund likely will concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe. The Fund may invest in instruments whose return is based on the return of an emerging market security such as a derivative instrument, rather than investing directly in emerging market securities.

The average portfolio duration of this Fund normally varies within two years (plus or minus) of the duration of the Index. The Index is a comprehensive global local emerging markets index, and consists of regularly traded, liquid fixed-rate, domestic currency government bonds to which international investors can gain exposure. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities ("junk bonds") subject to a maximum of 15% of its total assets in securities rated below B by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or, if unrated, determined by PIMCO to be of comparable quality.

The Fund may invest all of its assets in derivative instruments, such as options, futures contracts or swap agreements, or in mortgage or asset-backed securities (as described under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivative and Techniques"). The Fund may, without limitation, seek to obtain market

exposure to the securities in which it primarily invests by entering into a series of purchase and sale contracts or by using other investment techniques such as dollar rolls which is similar to a reverse repurchase agreements in certain respects. In a "dollar roll" the Fund sells a mortgage related security to a dealer and simultaneously agrees to repurchase a similar security (but not the same security) in the future at a pre-determined price. The "total return" sought by the Fund consists of income and capital appreciation, if any, which generally arises from decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular sector or security.

Currency hedging activities and active currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts.

Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilized.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend

on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.89	-	-	-	0.89	
G Institutional	0.89	-	-	-	0.89	
R Class	1.04	-	-	-	1.04	
H Institutional	1.06	-	-	-	1.06	
Investor	0.89	0.35	-	-	1.24	
Administrative	0.89	-	0.50	-	1.39	
E Class	1.89	-	-	-	1.89	
T Class	1.89	-	-	0.40	2.29	
M Retail	1.89	-	-	-	1.89	
G Retail	1.89	-	-	-	1.89	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB

100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Emerging Markets Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022, (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Emerging Markets Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Markets Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Emerging Markets Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Emerging Markets Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Emerging Market Fixed Income	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 15% below B	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Emerging Markets Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 80% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments of issuers that economically are tied to countries with emerging securities markets. Such securities may be denominated in non-U.S. currencies and the USD. The Fund will consider an issuer to be economically tied to a country with an emerging securities market if (1) the issuer maintains its registered office in the country or (2) the issuer has predominant operations in the country. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally be within two years (plus or minus) of the JP Morgan Emerging Markets Bond Index Global (the "Index"). The Index tracks total returns for United States Dollar denominated debt instruments issued by emerging market sovereign and quasi-sovereign entities: Brady bonds, loans, Eurobonds and local market instruments. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify and invest in countries that it considers to qualify as emerging securities markets. However, the Investment Advisor generally considers an emerging securities market to be one located in any country that is defined as an emerging or developing economy by the World Bank or its related organisations or the United Nations or its authorities. The Fund emphasises countries with relatively low gross national product per capita and with the potential for rapid economic growth. The Investment Advisor will select the Fund's country and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, and any other specific factors the Investment Advisor believes to be relevant. The Fund is likely to concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe.

No more than 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of 20% of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment

schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase) are subject to the limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR

number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

Save for the BM Retail Shares, the fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79
G Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79
R Class	0.93	-	-	-	0.93
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	-	0.96
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	-	1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
T Class	1.69	-	-	0.40	2.09
M Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
G Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
BM Retail	1.69	-	-	1.00	2.69
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge

Contingent deferred sales charges will be payable in respect of BM Retail Shares at the rates specified below, depending on the period that has elapsed between the initial subscription of the Shares and the date they are redeemed.

Redemption Period	Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (% of Net Asset Value of the Shares on the date of redemption)
Within first 3 months	3.00
After 3 months and before 6 months	2.75
After 6 months and before 9 months	2.50
After 9 months and before 12 months	2.25
After 12 months and before 15 months	2.00
After 15 months and before 18 months	1.75
After 18 months and before 21 months	1.50
After 21 months and before 24 months	1.25
After 24 months and before 27 months	1.00
After 27 months and before 30 months	0.75
After 30 months and before 33 months	0.50
After 33 months and before 36 months	0.25
After 36 months	0.00

Any such contingent deferred sales charges will be paid to the Distributor or the Manager. No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be payable in respect of the BM Retail Shares.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of each of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Additional Redemption Information

In addition to the information outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "How To Redeem Shares", the redemption request for the BM Retail Shares must specify the amount of the relevant Shares to be redeemed.

Compulsory Exchange

It is intended that 36 months after the date of the initial subscription for Shares by each Shareholder in BM Retail, such Shares will be compulsorily exchanged for corresponding M Retail Shares in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Exchange Shares**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class, BM Retail and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional USD Income Share Class of the Fund is currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator of the Company's listing broker for the most current informtion on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A, BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends paid out in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits

on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
BM Retail	Acc
BM Retail	Inc
BM Retail	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹)	Distribution Frequency
	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 15% below B	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Emerging Markets Corporate Bond Fund is to seek maximum total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing under normal circumstances at least 80% of its assets in an actively managed diversified portfolio consisting of Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries including Fixed Income Instruments that are issued by corporate issuers that are economically tied to emerging market countries. Exposure to such issuers may be achieved through direct investment in Fixed Income Securities or entirely through the use of financial derivative instruments. Although the Fund may invest in all corporate sectors, it is anticipated that a substantial proportion of such Fixed Income Instruments may be issued by infrastructure entities, or other entities which provide exposure to infrastructure projects or assets. As detailed below, the Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments principally for investment and/or for hedging purposes subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank. Such transactions may leverage the Fund and may establish speculative positions. This may result in a higher level of volatility and risk. The Fund's investments may be denominated in USD and non-U.S. currencies.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the J.P. Morgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index Diversified (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

Infrastructure entities are involved in the construction, operation, ownership or maintenance of physical structures, networks and other infrastructure assets that provide public services. Examples of infrastructure projects and assets include (i) transportation, such as roads, bridges, tunnels, railroads, mass transit systems, airports and seaports, (ii) public or private utilities, such as power generation facilities and transmission and distribution lines, water distribution facilities and sewage treatment plants, (iii) communication networks, such as broadcast, wireless and cable networks and transmission equipment, (iv) other public service assets, such as educational facilities, hospitals, stadiums and correctional facilities, (v) housing owned or subsidised by a government or agency, and (vi) developmental organizations or agencies focused on infrastructure development. The Fund may achieve exposure to physical infrastructure assets by direct investment in Fixed Income Instruments as outlined above.

The Fund emphasises countries with relatively low gross national product per capita and with the potential for rapid economic growth. The Investment Advisor will select the Fund's country and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, legal and political developments, and any other specific factors the Investment Advisor believes to be relevant. The Fund will likely concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the developing countries of Europe. The Fund may invest in instruments whose return is based on the return of an emerging market security or a currency of an emerging market

country, such as a derivative instrument, rather than investing directly in emerging market securities or currencies.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally be within two years (plus or minus) of the Index (description outlined below).

The Fund may invest in both investment-grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds") subject to a maximum of 15% of its total assets in securities rated below B by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or, if unrated, determined by PIMCO to be of comparable quality.

No more than 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of 20% of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may invest all of its assets in derivative instruments, such as options, futures contracts or swap agreements, or in mortgage or asset-backed securities (as described under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivative and Techniques"). The Fund may, without limitation, seek to obtain market exposure to the securities in which it primarily invests by entering into a series of purchase and sale contracts or by using other investment techniques such as dollar rolls which is similar to a reverse repurchase agreements in certain respects. In a "dollar roll" the Fund sells a mortgage related security to a dealer and simultaneously agrees to repurchase a similar security (but not the same security) in the future at a predetermined price. The "total return" sought by the Fund consists of income and capital appreciation, if any, which generally arises from decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular sector or security.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts.

Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives

used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index is a uniquely weighted version of the JPMorgan Corporate Emerging Markets Bond Index. It limits the weights of those index countries with larger corporate debt stocks by only including a specified portion of these countries' eligible current face amounts of debt outstanding. Further details on the index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may hold both USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and currency positions. The Fund may, but is not required to, hedge its exposure to non-US currencies. Currency hedging activities and active currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
0.95	-	-	-	0.95	
0.95	-	-	-	0.95	
1.02	-	-	-	1.02	
1.12	-	-	-	1.12	
0.95	0.35	-	-	1.30	
0.95	-	0.50	-	1.45	
1.85	-	-	-	1.85	
1.85	-	-	0.40	2.25	
1.85	-	-	-	1.85	
1.85	-	-	-	1.85	
0.00	-	-	-	0.00	
	Fee (%) 0.95 0.95 1.02 1.12 0.95 0.95 1.85 1.85 1.85 1.85	Fee (%) Fee (%) 0.95 - 1.02 - 1.12 - 0.95 0.35 0.95 - 1.85 - 1.85 - 1.85 - 1.85 - 1.85 -	Fee (%) Fee (%) Fee (%) 0.95 - - 1.02 - - 1.12 - - 0.95 0.35 - 0.95 - 0.50 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - - 1.85 - -	Fee (%) Fee (%) Fee (%) Fee (%) 0.95 - - - 0.95 - - - 1.02 - - - 1.12 - - - 0.95 0.35 - - 0.95 - 0.50 - 1.85 - - - 1.85 - - 0.40 1.85 - - - 1.85 - - - 1.85 - - - 1.85 - - -	Fee (%) (%) (%) 0.95 - - - 0.95 1.02 1.02 1.12 1.2 1.12 1.2 1.2 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.45 1.85

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund's ability to invest in emerging markets, an investment in the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and is suitable for investors who are prepared to accept a higher level of volatility.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments		Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Emerging Currencies Fixed Instruments	Market and/or Income	0 - 2 years	max 15% below B	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Emerging Markets Short-Term Local Currency Fund is to seek maximum total return consistent with the preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 80% of its assets in currencies of, or in Fixed Income Instruments denominated in the currencies of, emerging markets. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or emerging market economies.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to J.P. Morgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (ELMI+) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund may invest directly in Fixed Income Securities denominated in the local currencies of emerging markets. In situations where this is impractical, the Fund will seek to replicate the investment returns of a bond denominated in the local currency of a emerging market by using derivative instruments, including, but not limited to, currency forwards (both deliverable and non-deliverable), interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, Total Return Swaps, options and credit-linked notes.

The Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets. The Investment Advisor will select the Fund's country and currency composition based on its evaluation of relative interest rates, inflation rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, trade and current account balances, and other specific factors the Investment Advisor believes to be relevant. The Fund is likely to concentrate its investments in Asia, Africa, the Middle East, Latin America and the emerging countries of Europe. The Fund may invest in instruments whose return is based on the return of an emerging market security such as a derivative instrument, rather than investing directly in emerging market securities.

The average portfolio duration of this Fund varies based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates and, under normal market conditions, is not expected to exceed two years. The Fund may invest all of its assets in high yield securities, subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets in securities rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment

schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase) are subject to the limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process, which has been cleared by the Central Bank, may be utilised by the Fund. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose

calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index tracks total returns for local-currency-denominated money market instruments in 22 emerging markets countries with at least US\$10 billion of external trade. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.85	-	-	-	0.85	
G Institutional	0.85	-	-	-	0.85	
R Class	0.96	-	-	-	0.96	
H Institutional	1.02	-	-	-	1.02	
Investor	0.85	0.35	-	-	1.20	
Administrative	0.85	-	0.50	-	1.35	
E Class	1.75	-	-	-	1.75	
T Class	1.75	-	-	0.40	2.15	
M Retail	1.75	-	-	-	1.75	
G Retail	1.75	-	-	-	1.75	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CLP 100.00, CHF 10.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to fixed income markets that are economically tied to emerging market countries and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional Acc Institutional Inc Institutional Inc II G Institutional Inc II G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II Investor Inc II Inc II G Retail Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Inc II		
Institutional Inc II G Institutional Inc G Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II Investor Acc Investor Inc Investor Inc Investor Inc II Inc A Administrative Acc Administrative Inc E Class Inc E Class Inc E Class Inc G Retail Inc G Retail Inc IM Retail Inc IM Retail Inc IM Retail Inc IR Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc I Class Acc R Class Inc I Class Acc R Class Inc I Class Inc I Class Acc R Class Inc I	Institutional	Acc
G Institutional Inc G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II Investor Acc Investor Inc Investor Inc II Inc A Administrative Acc Administrative Inc E Class Inc E Class Inc E Class Inc G Retail Inc G Retail Inc M Retail Inc M Retail Inc M Retail Inc I R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc R Class Inc I Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc I Class Inc II I Class Acc I Class Inc II I Class Acc I Class Inc II I Class Acc I Class Inc II I Class Inc III I Class Inc	Institutional	Inc
G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Acc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc III Investor Acc Investor Inc Investor Inc Investor Inc II Inc A Administrative Acc Administrative Inc Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc M Retail Inc I R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc I Class Acc R Class Inc I Class Acc R Class Inc I Class Inc II I Class Inc II I Class Inc II I Class Acc I Class Inc II I Class Inc III	Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional Acc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II Investor Acc Investor Inc Investor Inc II Inc A Administrative Acc Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II Z Class Acc	G Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	H Institutional	Acc
Investor	H Institutional	
Investor	H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Investor	Acc
Investor	Investor	Inc
Administrative Acc Administrative Inc Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II	Investor	Inc II
Administrative Inc Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc II E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II	Investor	Inc A
Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc Inc Inc	Administrative	Acc
E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc Z Class Inc	Administrative	Inc
E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	Administrative	Inc II
E Class Inc II G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc		Acc
G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	E Class	Inc
G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	E Class	Inc II
M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	G Retail	
M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	G Retail	Inc II
R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	M Retail	Inc
R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	M Retail	Inc II
R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	R Class	Acc
T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	R Class	Inc
T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	R Class	Inc II
T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	T Class	Acc
T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc	T Class	Inc
Z Class Inc	T Class	Inc II
Z Class Inc	Z Class	Acc
Z Class Inc II	Z Class	Inc
	Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Euro Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 the ("Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Euro Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Euro Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging markets securities, an investment in the Euro Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income Il Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Euro Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Euro-denominated Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index	B to Aaa (except MBS); max 10% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of EUR-denominated Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the FTSE Euro Broad Investment-Grade Index (EuroBIG) (the "Index"). The Index is an index of the Euro-based investment-grade fixed-income markets across government, government-related, corporate and asset-backed sectors. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade securities, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. As certain countries in the OECD may constitute emerging markets, the Fund may at certain times be invested, directly or indirectly, more than 20% in emerging markets.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.

The Fund may hold both non-EUR denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-EUR denominated currency positions. Non-EUR denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-EUR denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non EUR denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are

more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical

methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index is an index of the Euro-based investment-grade fixed-income markets across government, government-related, corporate and asset-backed sectors. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Environmental Characteristics

This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Prospectus entitled "**Promotion of Environmental Characteristics**".

Investment Advisor

PIMCO Europe Ltd.

Base Currency

The Base Currency is EUR for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.46	-	-	-	0.46
G Institutional	0.46	-	-	-	0.46
H Institutional	0.63	-	-	-	0.63
R Class	0.75	-	-	-	0.75
Investor	0.46	0.35	-	-	0.81
Administrative	0.46	-	0.50	-	0.96
E Class	1.36	-	-	-	1.36
T Class	1.36	-	-	0.30	1.66
M Retail	1.36	-	-	-	1.36
G Retail	1.36	-	-	-	1.36
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in England (or, to the extent that the Fund uses PIMCO Europe GmbH to assist with its investment management, Munich) or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional EUR Accumulation and Investor EUR Accumulation Share Classes of the Fund are currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP

Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily European fixed income markets and who are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Acc
Inc
Inc II
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Inc A
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Inc
Inc II
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II
Acc
Inc
Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global Advantage Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global Advantage Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global Advantage Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Global Advantage Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global Advantage Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 8 years	Max 15% below B	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global Advantage Fund is to seek maximum long-term return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing 80% of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to at least three countries (one of which may be the United States).

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to PIMCO Global Advantage Bond Index (GLADI) (London Close) (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Investment Advisor selects the Fund's country and currency compositions based on an evaluation of various factors, including, but not limited to, relative interest rates, exchange rates, monetary and fiscal policies, and trade and current account balances. The average portfolio duration of the Fund will vary based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates and is not expected to exceed an eight year timeframe.

As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's long term return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection, with additional attention on emerging countries. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market, across both advanced and emerging countries.

The Fund may invest up to 30% of its assets in high yield securities subject to a maximum of 15% of its assets rated lower than B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may invest without limitation in non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and in USD-denominated securities of non-US issuers. In addition, the Fund may invest without limitation in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index is a diversified global index that covers a wide spectrum of global fixed income opportunities and sectors, from developed to emerging markets, nominal to real asset, and cash to derivative instruments. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.70	-	-	-	0.70
G Institutional	0.70	-	-	-	0.70
H Institutional	0.87	-	-	-	0.87
R Class	0.94	-	-	-	0.94
Investor	0.70	0.35	-	-	1.05
Administrative	0.70	-	0.50	-	1.20
E Class	1.70	-	-	-	1.70
T Class	1.70	-	-	0.40	2.10
M Retail	1.70	-	-	-	1.70
G Retail	1.70	-	-	-	1.70
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, DKK 100.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are seek to maximise long-term return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and who are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Partially Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II
	-

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global Bond Fund (the "**Fund**"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "**Company**"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Global Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global Bond Fund - Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
U.S. and non-U.S. intermediate Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 3 years of its index	B to Aaa (except MBS); max 10% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments denominated in major world currencies. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within three years (plus or minus) of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index (the "Index"). The Index provides a broad-based measure of the global investment-grade fixed income markets. The three major components of this Index are the U.S. Aggregate, the Pan-European Aggregate, and the Asian-Pacific Aggregate Indices. The Index also includes Eurodollar and EuroYen corporate bonds, Canadian Government securities, and USD investment grade 144A securities. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or "emerging market" economies ("emerging market securities").

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence

the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
G Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	-	0.66	
R Class	0.76	-	-	-	0.76	
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	-	0.84	
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	-	0.99	
E Class	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
T Class	1.39	-	-	0.30	1.69	
M Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
G Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	
W Class	0.39	-	-	-	0.39	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, W Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional USD Accumulation and Investor USD Accumulation Share Classes of the Fund are currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional Inc Inc Institutional Inc II I	Institutional	Acc
Institutional		
G Institutional Acc G Institutional Inc G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II Investor Acc Investor Inc II Administrative Acc Administrative Inc II E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II U Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc II		
G Institutional Inc II G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II H Institutional Inc II Inc II Inc II Inc II Inc II Inc II Investor Inc Administrative Acc Administrative Inc II Inc I		
G Institutional Inc II H Institutional Acc H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II Investor Acc Investor Inc Investor Inc II Inc II Investor Inc II Inc Administrative Acc Administrative Inc II E Class Inc II G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II U Class Acc D Class Inc II C Class Acc C C Class Inc II C Class Acc C C Class Inc II C Class Acc C Class Inc II C Class Inc		
H Institutional		
H Institutional Inc H Institutional Inc II		
H Institutional Inc II		
Investor		
Administrative Acc Administrative Inc Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc II E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc		
Administrative Inc Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc II E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc		
Administrative Inc II E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc W Class Inc II		
E Class Acc E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Inc Z Class Inc U Class Acc W Class Acc W Class Inc		
E Class Inc E Class Inc II G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Inc II T Class Inc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc		
E Class Inc II G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II Z Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc W Class Inc	_	
G Retail Inc G Retail Inc II M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Acc W Class Inc	E Class	Inc II
M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc II		Inc
M Retail Inc M Retail Inc II R Class Acc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc II T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc II	G Retail	Inc II
R Class Acc R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc		
R Class Inc R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	M Retail	Inc II
R Class Inc II T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	R Class	Acc
T Class Acc T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	R Class	Inc
T Class Inc T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	R Class	Inc II
T Class Inc II Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	T Class	Acc
Z Class Acc Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc		Inc
Z Class Inc Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc		Inc II
Z Class Inc II W Class Acc W Class Inc	Z Class	Acc
W Class Acc W Class Inc		Inc
W Class Inc		Inc II
W Class Inc	W Class	Acc
W Class Inc II		Inc
	W Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global Bond Ex-US Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global Bond Ex-US Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global Bond Ex-US Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Global Bond Ex-US Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global Bond Ex-US Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Non-U.S.	+/- 3 years	B to Aaa (except	Quarterly
intermediate Fixed	of its index	MBS);	
Income Instruments		Max 10% below	
		Baa	

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global Bond Ex-US Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least 70% of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of issuers, having their registered office or predominant operations outside the U.S., representing at least three non-U.S. countries. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within three years (plus or minus) of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate ex-USD Index (the "Index"). The Index provides a broad-based measure of the global investment-grade fixed income markets. The major components of this Index are the Pan-European Aggregate and the Asian-Pacific Aggregate Indices, the Eurodollar and EuroYen indices, and the Canadian index, among a number of smaller indices. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with developing, or "emerging market" economies ("emerging market securities").

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

As part of its investment strategy, the Fund seeks to invest in a diverse, actively managed portfolio of global fixed-income securities. The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities spanning all sectors of the global fixed-income market.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and

forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
G Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	-	0.66	
R Class	0.76	-	-	-	0.76	
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	-	0.84	
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	-	0.99	
E Class	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
T Class	1.39	-	-	0.30	1.69	
M Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
G Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets, predominantly outside the U.S., and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global High Yield Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global High Yield Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global High Yield Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities, an investment in the Global High Yield Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global High Yield Bond Fund - Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	,		Distribution Frequency
U.S. and non-U.S. higher yielding Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 20% Caa or below	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global High Yield Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its total net assets in a diversified portfolio of high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are denominated in major world currencies and are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total net assets in high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are rated Caa or lower by Moody's or CCC or lower by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of a comparable quality). The portion of the Fund's assets that are not invested in Fixed Income Instruments rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch may be invested in higher quality Fixed Income Instruments. The Fund may invest in securities that are in default with respect to the payment of interest or repayment of principal, or presenting an imminent risk of default with respect to such payments. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the ICE BofAML BB-B Rated Developed Markets High Yield Constrained Index (the "Index"). The Index tracks the performance of below investment grade bonds of corporate issuers from developed market countries. For the purposes of the Index. developed markets is defined as an FX-G10 member, a Western European nation, or a territory of the US. The FX-G10 includes all Euro members, the US, Japan, the UK, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Switzerland, Norway and Sweden. Bonds must be rated below investment grade but at least B3 based on a composite of Moody's, S&P, and Fitch. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund will utilise a global high yield credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to

the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated

to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
G Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	-	0.72
R Class	0.80	-	-	-	0.80
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	-	1.05
E Class	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
T Class	1.45	_	-	0.40	1.85
M Retail	1.45	_	-	-	1.45
G Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
BM Retail	1.45	-	-	1.00	2.45
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge

Contingent deferred sales charges will be payable in respect of BM Retail Shares at the rates specified below, depending on the period that has elapsed between the initial subscription of the Shares and the date they are redeemed.

Redemption Period	Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (% of Net Asset Value of the Shares on the date of redemption)
Within first 3 months	3.00
After 3 months and before 6 months	2.75
After 6 months and before 9 months	2.50
After 9 months and before 12 months	2.25
After 12 months and before 15 months	2.00
After 15 months and before 18 months	1.75
After 18 months and before 21 months	1.50
After 21 months and before 24 months	1.25
After 24 months and before 27 months	1.00
After 27 months and before 30 months	0.75
After 30 months and before 33 months	0.50
After 33 months and before 36 months	0.25
After 36 months	0.00

Any such contingent deferred sales charges will be paid to the Distributor or the Manager. No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be payable in respect of the BM Retail Shares.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Additional Redemption Information

In addition to the information outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Redeem Shares**", the redemption request for the BM Retail Shares must specify the amount of the relevant Shares to be redeemed.

Compulsory Exchange

It is intended that 36 months after the date of the initial subscription for Shares by each Shareholder in BM Retail, such Shares will be compulsorily exchanged for corresponding M Retail Shares in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Exchange Shares**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class, BM Retail and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional USD Income Share Class of the Fund is currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A, BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the BM Retail and M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to high yield global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
BM Retail	Acc
BM Retail	Inc
BM Retail	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global Investment Grade Credit Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Global Investment Grade Credit Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging market securities, an investment in the Global Investment Grade Credit Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global Investment Grade Credit Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
U.S. and non-U.S. corporate Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index	B to Aaa (except MBS); Max 15% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global Investment Grade Credit Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments of issuers, having their registered office or predominant operations in at least three countries, one of which may be the U.S. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate-Credit Index (the "Index"). The Index is the Credit component of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index which is an unmanaged Index that provides a broad- based measure of the global investment- grade fixed income markets. The three major components of the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index are the U.S. Aggregate, the Pan-European Aggregate, and the Asian- Pacific Aggregate Indices. However, the Credit component excludes Government and Securitized Securities. The Credit component also includes Eurodollar and Euro- Yen corporate bonds, Canadian securities, and USD investment grade 144A securities. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 15% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries, of which some securities may be below investment grade subject to the limits described above.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund will utilise a global investment grade credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase

and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market

conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
G Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	-	0.66	
R Class	0.76	-	-	-	0.76	
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	-	0.84	
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	-	0.99	
E Class	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
T Class	1.39	-	-	0.40	1.79	
M Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
G Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
W Class	0.39	-	-	-	0.39	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, W Class, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to investment grade global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Acc
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II
W Class	Acc
W Class	Inc
W Class	Inc II
Z Class Z Class Z Class W Class	Acc Inc II Acc Inc

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund because of its ability to invest in below investment grade instruments and emerging markets, an investment in the PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends are payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

PIMCO Global Core Asset Allocation Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturity, Equity Securities and equity related securities or related derivatives of such securities, Z Class Shares of Funds of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc, other collective investment schemes,		N/A	Quarterly

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund aims to achieve its investment objective by taking exposure to a wide range of asset classes, including equities, fixed income, commodities and property as outlined below. The Fund shall not invest directly in commodities or property.

The Fund's assets will not be allocated according to a pre-determined blend or weighting across asset classes or geographical area. Instead, in making investment decisions the Investment Advisor considers various quantitative and qualitative data relating to global economies and projected growth of various industrial sectors and asset classes. The Investment Advisor uses a three-factor approach to evaluating asset classes and their risks in seeking to achieve the Fund's investment objective which consists of 1) fundamental analysis relating to global economics and projected growth of various industrial sectors, 2) valuation analysis, and 3) assessment of market demand of and supply for asset classes. PIMCO evaluates these factors on an ongoing basis and uses a combination of direct investment, collective investment schemes and derivative exposure to implement a resulting mix of asset classes within the Fund that reflects the Fund's investment objective. In order to maintain flexibility and to have the ability to invest in opportunities as they arise, it is not an objective of the Fund to focus its investment in any specific geographic or industry sector (although it may, but is not obliged to, in practice). Similarly, although the Fund has the capability to use the types of investment outlined in this policy, it is possible that certain instrument types are not used all of the time. While analysis is performed daily, material shifts in investment exposures typically take place over medium to longer periods of time.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to a blend of the following two indices: the MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI) and the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index weighted 60%/40% respectively (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.

The Fund may achieve the desired exposure by direct investment in equities and equity-related securities (such as warrants and securities which are convertible into equity securities), Fixed Income Instruments and/or investment in underlying collective investment schemes and/or derivatives (such as swap agreements, futures and options, which may be exchange traded or over-the-counter) as appropriate, in accordance with the investment limits set

out in **Appendix 4**. Collective investment schemes may be other Funds of the Company (Class Z Shares only) or other collective investment schemes promoted or managed by an unaffiliated promoter.

The Fund will typically invest 20% to 80% of its net assets in equity or equity-related securities, and which may include investments in other Funds of the Company (Class Z Shares only) or collective investment schemes (as outlined above and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank) that primarily invest in equity or equity-related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, securities convertible into equity securities or equity exchange-traded funds. Any investment in exchange-traded funds will be in accordance with the investment limits for investment in transferable securities and collective investment schemes as appropriate and as set out in **Appendix 4**.

The Fund may invest up to 25% of its total assets in commodity-related instruments. Such instruments include, but are not limited to, derivative instruments based on commodity indices (including the Dow-Jones AIG Commodity Index and other eligible financial indices which have been cleared by the Central Bank), commodity index-linked notes and eligible exchange-traded funds. The Fund may also invest in equity or equity-related securities of issuers in commodity-related industries.

The Fund may gain exposure to property through property related securities including listed real estate investment trusts ('REITs'), equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives based on REIT indices or other property-related indices which meet with the Central Bank's requirements.

Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts.

The Fund may invest without limit in instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. Please see the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. As outlined in the aforementioned section, PIMCO Europe Ltd. has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets. The Fund may invest up to 25% of net assets in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.

The Fund may invest in the Class Z Shares of other Funds of the Company, or other collective investment schemes which are domiciled and regulated in Member States, Channel Islands, Isle of Man, Switzerland or the United States (together the "Underlying Funds" or each an "Underlying Fund"). The Fund will only invest, subject to the limitation outlined below, in an alternative investment fund that satisfies the following conditions: (i) the Underlying Fund's sole object is the collective investment in transferable securities and/or other liquid financial assets of capital raised from the public and the Underlying Fund operates on the principal of risk-spreading; (ii) the Underlying Fund, at the request of a shareholder, repurchases the units of the shareholder; (iii) the Underlying Fund is authorised under laws which provide that it is subject to supervision considered by the Central Bank to be adequate; (iv) the level of protection for shareholders of the Underlying Fund is equivalent to that provided to unitholders in a UCITS; and (v) the Underlying Fund will report on a semi-annual and annual basis sufficient information to enable the Investment Advisor to make an assessment of its assets, liabilities, income and operations.

The Fund may invest up to 100% of its assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund's investment in a particular Underlying Fund will not exceed 20% of the Fund's total net assets. The Fund's combined investments in Underlying Funds that are alternative investment funds will not exceed 30% of the Fund's net assets. Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 of the Prospectus, the Fund will not invest in an Underlying Fund that itself invests more than 10% of its assets in other undertakings for collective investments. The Fund will not acquire more than 25% of the shares of any one Underlying Fund and will not acquire shares carrying voting rights in an Underlying Fund that would enable the Fund to exercise significant influence over the management of the Underlying Fund.

The Fund may invest in Class Z shares of other Funds of the Company. Investment is not permitted in Funds which invest in other Funds of the Company. The maximum aggregate management fees that may be charged by the Underlying Funds in which the Fund will invest is 5% of their aggregate Net Asset Value.

In order to maintain flexibility and to have the ability to invest in opportunities as they arise, the Fund is not required to invest any particular percentage of its Net Asset Value in geographic or industry sectors or any type of investment outlined above.

The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented according to prevailing economic conditions using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures contracts, options contracts, options on futures contracts, swap agreements (including but not limited to interest rate swaps, inflation swaps, long and short credit default swaps, forward swap spread locks and Total Return Swaps on fixed income, equity, commodity or real estate indices) and options on swap agreements. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilized. For example, the Fund may use derivatives to hedge a currency exposure.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further

information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 1400% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("**VaR**") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be Benchmark. The MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI) is a free float-adjusted market capitalization weighted index that is designed to measure the equity market performance of developed and emerging markets. The MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI) consists of 45 country indices comprising 24 developed and 21 emerging market country indices. The Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index provides a broad-based measure of the global investment-grade fixed income markets. The three major components of this index are the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate, the Bloomberg Pan-European Aggregate, and the Bloomberg Asian-Pacific Aggregate Indices. The Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index also includes Eurodollar and Euro-Yen corporate bonds, Canadian Government securities, and USD investment grade 144A securities. Further details on the indices are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Currency Hedging – Hedged Classes

In respect of the Fund's Hedged Classes the Company shall carry out currency hedging, in accordance with the provisions of the Prospectus, to reduce the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the designated currency of the Hedged Class and the other denominated currencies of the Fund's assets.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail (%)	Fee	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.95	-	-		0.95	
G Institutional	0.95	-	-		0.95	
H Institutional	1.12	-	-		1.12	
R Class	1.18	-	-		1.18	
Investor	0.95	0.35	-		1.30	
Administrative	0.95	-	0.50		1.45	
E Class	2.15	-	-		2.15	
M Retail	2.15	-	-		2.15	
G Retail	2.15	-	-		2.15	
Z Class	0.00	-	-		0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States and England (and, to the extent that the Fund uses PIMCO Europe GmbH to assist with its investment management, Munich) or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income, gains or capital in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in that Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard,

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified multi-asset fund and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global equity and fixed income markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Commodity Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Equity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "**SRRI**") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Global Real Return Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Global Real Return Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Global Real Return Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

_	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
U.S. and non-U.S.	+/- 2 years of	B to Aaa; max 10%	Quarterly
Inflation indexed	its index	below Baa	
Fixed Income			
Instruments			

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Global Real Return Fund is to seek to maximise real return, consistent with preservation of real capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of inflation-indexed Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities issued by governments, their agencies or instrumentalities and corporations. Inflation-indexed bonds are Fixed Income Instruments that are structured to provide protection against inflation. The value of the bond's principal or the interest income paid on the bond is adjusted to track changes in an official inflation measure. The U.S. Treasury uses the Consumer Price Index for Urban Consumers as the inflation measure. Inflation-indexed bonds issued by a non-U.S. government are generally adjusted to reflect a comparable inflation index calculated by that government. "Real return" equals total return less the estimated cost of inflation, which is typically measured by the change in an official inflation measure.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg World Government Inflation-Linked Bond Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund will utilize a global inflation-linked bond strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global inflation-linked markets and other fixed income sectors. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of overvalued or undervalued inflation-linked bond securities.

The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the duration of the Index. The Index is an unmanaged index that measures the performance of the major government inflation-linked bond markets. The Index includes inflation-linked debt issued by the following countries: Australia, Canada, France, Sweden, UK, and the United States. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality).

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using

spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index is an unmanaged index that measures the performance of the major government inflation-linked bond markets. The Index includes inflation-linked debt issued by the following countries for example (this list is non-exhaustive): Australia, Canada, France, Sweden, UK, and the United States. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Environmental Characteristics

This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Prospectus entitled "Promotion of Environmental Characteristics".

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
G Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49	
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	-	0.66	
R Class	0.76	-	-	-	0.76	
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	-	0.84	
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	-	0.99	
E Class	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
T Class	1.39	-	-	0.30	1.69	
M Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
G Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of each of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to

distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise real return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are seeking a protection against inflation rates and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and who are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Income Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

SUPPLEMENT

Income Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

An investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, G Institutional Income Class and G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Income Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 8 Years	Max 50% below Baa3 (except for MBS and ABS)	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.

The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income securities. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities. The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through a varied set of sources of value and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain a high level of dividend income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities which may or may not be leveraged; and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time. Exposure to such securities may be achieved through direct investment in the aforementioned security types or through the use of financial derivative instruments.

The Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements (including swaps on fixed income indices) or credit default swaps principally for investment and/or for hedging purposes subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank.

The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular investment sector (e.g. improved economic growth) or security (e.g. improved credit rating or stronger balance sheet fundamentals). As noted above, capital appreciation is a secondary objective of the Fund. Accordingly, the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("**junk bonds**"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities). The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.

Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

No more than 25% of the Fund's net assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities, (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange. The Fund may use convertibles or equity securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complimentary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets. Therefore movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented according to prevailing economic conditions using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The Fund may use various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) which are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments

may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

As outlined herein, the Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods, however the combination of long and short positions will never result in uncovered short positions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management

Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit. Any such assets shall be of investment grade, or if unrated, deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55	
G Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55	
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	-	0.72	
R Class	0.80	-	-	-	0.80	
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	-	0.90	
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	-	1.05	
E Class	1.45	-	-	-	1.45	
T Class	1.45	-	-	0.40	1.85	
M Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45	
G Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", and "Service Fee" are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II Shares (which seek to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis). Within the E Classes, the Fund may also issue Income Q Shares and Income II Q Shares (which distribute income on a quarterly basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, the G Retail, the Investor Income A, the E Class Income Q and the E Class Income II Q Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash monthly or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

It should be noted that Management Fees or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

In the case of the G Institutional, the G Retail and the Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

In the case of the E Class Income Q and E Class Income II Q Classes, dividends will be declared quarterly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a quarterly basis.

The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the month or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the month. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Dividend Policy" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Additional Information for Shareholders in the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes

Notwithstanding any section in the Prospectus, the settlement currency for subscriptions and redemptions relating to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes is the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

In accordance with the terms of Prospectus, the Net Asset Value of the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes shall be published in the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

With respect to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes, the Company intends to limit the Shareholder's currency risk by reducing the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the BRL and currency exposures of the Fund. Please see the section of the Prospectus entitled "Additional Information related to Share Class hedging" for further information.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk,

Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk. In addition, Shareholders in share classes denominated in Renminbi should also note the risk factor below.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

Renminbi share class risks

The Fund offers share classes designated in Chinese Renminbi (RMB), the lawful currency of the People's Republic of China (PRC). It should be noted that there may be additional risks involved in investing through RMB over and above those of investing through other currencies. Currency exchange rates can be affected unpredictably by intervention (or failure to intervene) by governments or central banks or by currency controls or political developments, particularly in the PRC. There is also a greater measure of legal uncertainty concerning currency transactions with respect to trades in RMB compared to currencies which have a more established history of being traded internationally.

RMB share classes for this Fund are denominated in offshore RMB (CNH). CNH convertibility to the onshore RMB (CNY) is a managed currency process subject to foreign exchange control policies of and repatriation restrictions imposed by the Chinese government in co-ordination with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The value of CNH could differ, perhaps significantly, from that of CNY due to a number of factors including without limitation those foreign exchange control policies and repatriation restrictions pursued by the Chinese government from time to time as well as other external market forces. In addition, currency markets in RMB may have lower trading volumes than the currencies of more developed countries and accordingly markets in RMB may be materially less liquid, subject to greater dealing spreads and experience materially greater volatility than those of other currencies. In particular, the trading of RMB during European market hours when trades for the hedged share class will be executed entails inherently lower liquidity and greater transaction costs. This is likely to cause performance divergance against the expected peformance of trading RMB during Asian market hours, where liquidity is generally higher and transaction costs are generally lower.

In an extreme event, the lack of liquidity could make it impossible to execute the currency hedge. The Company will seek to implement the hedge and minimize transaction costs on a best efforts basis. However, there can be no guarantee that it will be successful in doing so and cannot eliminate the above risks or transaction costs. The costs and gains/losses of hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Hedged Class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Share of that Class.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

1 44 41 1	
Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
E Class	Inc Q
E Class	Inc II Q
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II
-	

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Income Fund II (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

SUPPLEMENT

Income Fund II

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

An investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Class and the Income II Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Income Fund II - Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 8 Years	Max 50% below Baa3 (except for MBS and ABS)	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.

The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income securities. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities by examining the profiles of individual securities. The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through a varied set of sources of value and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain a high level of dividend income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities (typically including agency mortgage-backed securities and senior non-agency mortgage-backed securities); and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time. Exposure to such securities may be achieved through direct investment in the aforementioned security types or through the use of financial derivative instruments. The Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements (including swaps on fixed income indices) or credit default swaps principally for investment and/or for hedging purposes subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank.

The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular investment sector (e.g. improved economic growth) or security (e.g. improved credit rating or stronger balance sheet fundamentals). As noted above, capital appreciation is a secondary objective of the Fund. Accordingly, the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities and therefore the Fund can invest without limitation in such securities). The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.

Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock). The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange. The Fund may use equity securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in aggregate in collateralised loan obligations, collateralised debt obligations and convertible securities (including contingent convertible securities).

The Fund may, subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank, invest in structured notes (which shall not include bespoke structured notes), such as equity-linked notes and credit-linked notes. Structured notes are typically used as a substitute for direct investment in corporate debt or an index (debt or equity) and their value is linked to the underlying corporate debt or index. The issuer of such instruments will generally be global financial institutions. It should be noted that the Fund's credit exposure in relation to these instruments will be to the issuer of these instruments. Under the terms of structured notes that the Fund enters into, the potential exposure of the Fund is limited to the purchase price and there is no ability for the issuer to call for additional funds. Therefore, the potential loss is limited to the amount paid for them. However, it will also have an economic exposure to the underlying securities themselves. Such structured notes involve special types of risk, including credit risk, interest rate risk, counterparty risk and liquidity risk. The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" for further information in relation to these risks. Only structured notes which are liquid and deemed to be "transferable securities" in accordance with the Regulations will be permitted investments. To the extent that the structured notes contain an embedded derivative element, any leverage arising from investment in such instruments will be accurately monitored, measured and managed in accordance with the risk management process in place for the Fund.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complimentary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in aggregate in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in

further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "**Transferable Illiquid Securities**" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets. When investing, the Investment Advisor separates decisions related to interest rate, credit, and currency exposures based on prevailing economic conditions. Therefore currency exposures form part of the investment process and movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging and currency investment positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps.

The Fund may use various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase (which shall only be used for efficient portfolio management) and securities lending transactions (which shall only be used for efficient portfolio management)) which are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under the heading "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process as prepared and submitted to the Central Bank in accordance with the Central Bank requirements may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

As outlined herein, the Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may

use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods, however the combination of long and short positions will never result in uncovered short positions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions. The Manager will attempt to minimize such risks by conducting regular back testing and stress testing of the VaR model in accordance with Central Bank requirements.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 business days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit. Any such assets shall be of investment grade, or if unrated, deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from Appendix 1 of the Prospectus.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Management Fee Waiver (%)	Unified Fee Inclusive of Fee Waiver (%) ¹	Unified Fee Not Inclusive of Fee Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.59	-	-	-	0.04	0.55	0.59
H Institutional	0.76	-	-	-	0.04	0.72	0.76
R Class	0.84	-	-	-	0.04	0.80	0.84
Investor	0.59	0.35	-	-	0.04	0.90	0.94
Administrative	0.59	-	0.50	-	0.04	1.05	1.09
E Class	1.49	-	-	-	0.04	1.45	1.49
F Class	1.51	-	-	-	0.04	1.47	1.51
T Class	1.49	-	-	0.40	0.04	1.85	1.89
M Retail	1.49	-	-	-	0.04	1.45	1.49
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This figure takes account a fee waiver by the Manager in the amount of 0.04% from the date of the Supplement to 31 December, 2022. The fee waiver will expire from 1 January, 2023 and the Supplement will be updated at the next available opportunity following expiry of the fee waiver. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 January, 2023 and the Supplement shall be updated accordingly.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", and "Service Fee" are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first three years of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, F Class, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the Investor Income A Class, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash monthly or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration. In the case of the Investor Income A Class, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

It should be noted that Management Fees or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

The GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the GBP Income Share Classes is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "**UK Tax Considerations**" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the month or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the month. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Dividend Policy" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the

relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk. In addition, Shareholders in share classes denominated in Renminbi should also note the risk factor below.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

Renminbi share class risks

The Fund offers share classes designated in Chinese Renminbi (RMB), the lawful currency of the People's Republic of China (PRC). It should be noted that there may be additional risks involved in investing through RMB over and above those of investing through other currencies. Currency exchange rates can be affected unpredictably by intervention (or failure to intervene) by governments or central banks or by currency controls or political developments, particularly in the PRC. There is also a greater measure of legal uncertainty concerning currency transactions with respect to trades in RMB compared to currencies which have a more established history of being traded internationally.

RMB share classes for this Fund are denominated in offshore RMB (CNH). CNH convertibility to the onshore RMB (CNY) is a managed currency process subject to foreign exchange control policies of and repatriation restrictions imposed by the Chinese government in co-ordination with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA). The value of CNH could differ, perhaps significantly, from that of CNY due to a number of factors including without limitation those foreign exchange control policies and repatriation restrictions pursued by the Chinese government from time to time as well as other external market forces. In addition, currency markets in RMB may have lower trading volumes than the currencies of more developed countries and accordingly markets in RMB may be materially less liquid, subject to greater dealing spreads and experience

materially greater volatility than those of other currencies. In particular, the trading of RMB during European market hours when trades for the hedged share class will be executed entails inherently lower liquidity and greater transaction costs. This is likely to cause performance divergance against the expected performance of trading RMB during Asian market hours, where liquidity is generally higher and transaction costs are generally lower.

In an extreme event, the lack of liquidity could make it impossible to execute the currency hedge. The Company will seek to implement the hedge and minimize transaction costs on a best efforts basis. However, there can be no guarantee that it will be successful in doing so and cannot eliminate the above risks or transaction costs. The costs and gains/losses of hedging transactions will accrue solely to the relevant Hedged Class and will be reflected in the Net Asset Value per Share of that Class.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
F Class	Acc
F Class	Inc
F Class	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging markets securities and high yield securities, an investment in the Inflation Multi-Asset Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends are payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Inflation Multi-Asset Fund - Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Inflation-related assets: global inflation-related Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturity. Emerging market currencies, equities and equity related securities, commodity and property related instruments.		Minimum "B"	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The Fund's investment objective is to preserve the real value of capital through prudent investment management. The Fund will be managed actively and will predominantly invest in a diversified portfolio of inflation-related assets.

The Fund seeks to achieve its objective by investing in a combination of global inflation-related Fixed Income Instruments, emerging market bonds and currencies, equities and equity related securities, and commodity and property related instruments. Exposure to such assets may be achieved through direct investment or through the use of financial derivative instruments as detailed below. The Fund will pursue a multi-asset oriented investment strategy in accordance with its investment policies. The objective of the strategy is to achieve real capital preservation over time by allocating to a range of inflation related asset classes. As part of its investment strategy, the Investment Advisor will use a global secular forecast of interest and inflation rates across economies and an integrated investment process as set out herein.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against a blend of the Bloomberg Global Inflation Linked 1-30yrs Index (USD hedged), the JPMorgan Emerging Local Markets Index Plus (Unhedged), the Bloomberg Commodity Total Return Index, the FTSE NAREIT Global Real Estate Developed Total Return Index (USD unhedged), and the Bloomberg Gold Subindex Total Return Index weighted 45%/15%/20%/10%/10% respectively (together the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.

The Fund will invest in an actively managed, diversified portfolio of global inflation-related Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities issued by governments, their agents or instrumentalities and corporations. Inflation-related Fixed Income Securities are structured to provide protection against inflation. The value of the bond's principal or the interest income paid on the bond is adjusted to track changes in an official inflation measure. The assets in which the Fund will invest will be rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may invest without limit in securities of issuers that are economically tied to countries with emerging market economies. Such emerging markets exposure may include any of the types of securities outlined in this investment policy.

The Investment Advisor will select assets which it considers to be inflation-related. Commodity related instruments are considered inflation-related as commodities, such as food and energy costs, are included in the Consumer Price Index. Property related instruments can be inflation-related as the value of property tends to be positively correlated with inflation over a certain period of time. In addition, as changes in currency rates can

impact over time upon an inflation measurement (such as the Consumer Price Index), taking tactical views on emerging market currencies forms part of the Fund's investment policy as further outlined below. Equities of companies which produce assets which are included in the common inflation measurements will also be invested in as further set out below.

The Fund may also invest in commodity-related instruments, up to a maximum of 50% of total assets. Commodity-related instruments include, but are not limited to, derivative instruments, as further outlined below, based on commodity indices (including the Bloomberg family of commodity indices and other eligible financial indices which have been cleared by the Central Bank), commodity index-linked notes and eligible exchange-traded securities which may include shares in closed-ended exchanged traded funds, open-ended exchange traded funds and other commodity-related equities traded on a Regulated Market.

The Fund may gain exposure to property through property-related securities including listed real estate investment trusts ('REITs'), equity securities of companies whose principal business is the ownership, management and/or development of real estate or derivatives, as further outlined below, based on REIT indices or other property-related indices. The Fund will typically invest 0% to 20% of its total assets in equity or equity-related securities. These may include, but are not limited to, common stock, preferred stock, securities convertible into equity securities or equity exchange-traded funds. Any investment in exchange traded funds will be in accordance with the investment limits for investment in transferrable securities and collective investment schemes appropriate and as set out in **Appendix 4**.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to emerging market currencies may be actively managed on an opportunistic basis where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so. Any active currency positions and currency hedging activities will be implemented using instruments such as spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements.

The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time-and are more fully described in the Prospectus under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" including that repurchase, reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions will be used for efficient portfolio management purposes only. There can be no assurance that PIMCO will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use equity, equityrelated and fixed income related derivative instruments such as options, futures contracts, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps used by the Fund will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out above in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposures to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular financial index including commodity-related indices. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 400% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 600% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.

The Fund may invest in cash and cash equivalents such as commercial paper and certificates of deposit, without limitation, when PIMCO determines that opportunities for investing in other types of instruments are unattractive.

The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments but which are not traded on a Regulated Market.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail (%)	Fee	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-		0.79
G Institutional	0.79	-	-		0.79
H Institutional	0.96	-	-		0.96
R Class	0.93	-	-		0.93
Investor	0.79	0.35	-		1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50		1.29
E Class	1.69	-	-		1.69
M Retail	1.69	-	-		1.69
G Retail	1.69	-	-		1.69
Z Class	0.00	-	-		0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of each of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions. The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income or gains in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in the Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

It should be noted that Management Fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors looking for a higher long-term after inflation return from their investments, who are also willing to accept the increased risk of investing in inflation related assets as described above, who are seeking to mitigate the negative effects of higher inflation and those who want to diversify their portfolios away from nominal fixed income securities (non-inflation related) and stocks.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Commodity Risk, High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Equity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Partially Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Low Average Duration Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Low Average Duration Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Low Average Duration Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹)	Distribution Frequency
Short maturity Fixed Income Instruments	1-3 years	B to Aaa; max 10% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Low Average Duration Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with the preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally (as defined) vary within a one- to three-year time frame based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates. Fixed Income Instruments purchased by the Fund will have a maximum duration of twelve years. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated Fixed Income Securities of non-U.S. issuers.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value, with an emphasis on securities with a shorter maturity. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Securities and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers'

acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the Fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall

not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail (%)	Fee	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.46	-	-		0.46	
G Institutional	0.46	-	-		0.46	
H Institutional	0.63	-	-		0.63	
R Class	0.75	-	-		0.75	
Investor	0.46	0.35	-		0.81	
Administrative	0.46	-	0.50		0.96	
E Class	1.36	-	-		1.36	
M Retail	1.36	-	-		1.36	
G Retail	1.36	-	-		1.36	
Z Class	0.00	-	-		0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return and focus on capital preservation and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets, focusing on securities with a shorter duration, and who are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have a shorter investment horizon.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc Inc II
Institutional	
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging market securities, an investment in the Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Low Duration Global Investment Grade Credit Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
U.S. and non-U.S. corporate Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 4 years	B3 to Aaa (except MBS); Max 15% below Baa3	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund will utilize a global investment grade credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value with an emphasis on securities with a shorter maturity. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg Global Aggregate Credit 1-5 Years Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within 0 – 4 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa3 by Moody's or lower than BBB- by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B3 by Moody's or B- by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities (which may or may not be leveraged) for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 15% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries, of which some securities may be below investment grade subject to the limits described above.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio"

Management and Securities Financing Transactions" in the Prospectus. There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

While the Fund intends to invest primarily in bonds (as described above) and other Fixed Income Instruments, the Investment Advisor may invest in convertible securities or Equity Securities, equity-related securities (such as hybrid securities) and related financial derivative instruments when the Investment Advisor considers such securities and instruments to be attractive investments and which seek to achieve the Fund's investment objective. No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into Equity Securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in Equity Securities.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complementary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" in the Prospectus, the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps used by the Fund (including credit default swaps, interest rate swaps and Total Return Swaps) will be consistent with the investment policy of the Fund. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure. (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index, such as an index based on Fixed Income Securities, (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under "Financial Indices". Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of that instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives) (whether for hedging purposes and/or for investment purposes), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. However, the Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely

short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. The Index provides a broad measure of the short-term global-investment grade fixed income markets. Further details on the Index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail (%)	Fee	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.49	-	-		0.49	
G Institutional	0.49	-	-		0.49	
H Institutional	0.66	-	-		0.66	
R Class	0.76	-	-		0.76	
Investor	0.49	0.35	-		0.84	
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50		0.99	
E Class	1.39	-	-		1.39	
M Retail	1.39	-	-		1.39	
G Retail	1.39	-	-		1.39	
Z Class	0.00	-	-		0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks

to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions. The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should

note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income or gains in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in the Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

It should be noted that Management Fees and other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors looking for a basic fixed income investment who are interested in the diversification offered by this approach to bond investing and who want to balance stock market holdings with a more stable investment option and who have an investment horizon over the short to medium term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Low Duration Income Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

SUPPLEMENT

Low Duration Income Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

An investment in the Low Duration Income Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, G Institutional Income Class and G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Low Duration Income Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 3 Years	Max 30% below Baa3 (except for MBS and ABS)	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek attractive income, consistent with prudent investment management. Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.

The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income securities. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities. The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through a varied set of sources of value and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg US Aggregate 1-3 Years Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain an attractive level of income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries subject to the limitation outlined further below; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities which may or may not be leveraged; and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time. Exposure to such securities may be achieved through direct investment in the aforementioned security types or through the use of financial derivative instruments. The Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements (including swaps

on fixed income indices) or credit default swaps principally for investment and/or for hedging purposes subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank.

The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular investment sector (e.g. improved economic growth) or security (e.g. improved credit rating or stronger balance sheet fundamentals). As noted above, capital appreciation is a secondary objective of the Fund. Accordingly, the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 3 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("**junk bonds**"), subject to a maximum of 30% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities).

The Fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limitation does not apply to investment grade sovereign debt (securities or instruments) denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity. This means the Fund may be fully exposed to emerging market countries subject to any applicable legal or regulatory limitation. Please see the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. As outlined in the aforementioned section, the Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets.

Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

No more than 25% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities, (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the i. The Fund may use convertibles or equity securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complimentary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 10% of total assets. Therefore movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented according to prevailing economic conditions using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The Fund may use various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued,

delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) which are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

As outlined herein, the Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods, however the combination of long and short positions will never result in uncovered short positions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph

in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit. Any such assets shall be of investment grade, or if unrated, deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from Appendix 1 of the Prospectus.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distributi on Fee (%)	Management Fee Waiver (%)	Unified Fee Inclusive of Fee Waiver ¹ (%)	Unified Fee Not Inclusive of Fee Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.60	-	_	-	0.05	0.55	0.60
G Institutional	0.60	_	-	-	0.05	0.55	0.60
H Institutional	0.77	-	-	-	0.05	0.72	0.77
R Class	0.83	-	-	_	0.05	0.78	0.83
Investor	0.60	0.35	-	_	0.05	0.90	0.95
Administrativ e	0.60	-	0.50	-	0.05	1.05	1.10
E Class	1.50	-	-	-	0.05	1.45	1.50
T Class	1.50	-	-	0.40	0.05	1.85	1.90
G Retail	1.50	-	-	-	0.05	1.45	1.50
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	0.00	0.00

¹ This figure takes account a fee waiver by the Manager until 31 December 2022. The fee waiver will expire from 1 January, 2023 and the Supplement will be updated at the next available opportunity following expiry from 1 January, 2023. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 January, 2023 and the Supplement shall be updated accordingly.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", and "Service Fee" are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis. After closing of the Initial Offer Period Shares in the Fund will be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, the G Retail and the Investor Income A Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash monthly or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

It should be noted that Management Fees or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

In the case of the G Institutional, the G Retail and the Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the month or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the month. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Dividend Policy" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non-investment grade securities, and who have a medium-term investment horizon.

Additional Information for Shareholders in the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes

Notwithstanding any section in the Prospectus, the settlement currency for subscriptions and redemptions relating to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes is the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

In accordance with the terms of Prospectus, the Net Asset Value of the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes shall be published in the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

With respect to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes, the Company intends to limit the Shareholder's currency risk by reducing the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the BRL and currency exposures of the Fund. Please see the section of the Prospectus entitled "Additional Information related to Share Class hedging" for further information.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk. In addition, Shareholders in share classes denominated in Renminbi should also note the risk factor entitled "Renminbi share class risks" set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors".

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

An investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes and the Income II Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

PIMCO Asia High Yield Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Asian higher yielding Fixed Income Instruments	+/-2 years of its Index	Minimum C	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek maximum total return consistent with prudent investment management.

The Fund invests in a combination of Fixed Income Instruments of issuers that are economically tied to Asia ex-Japan countries and related derivatives (of the type detailed below) on such securities. Fixed Income Securities purchased by the Fund will be rated at least C by Moody's or equivalently by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. The Fund will not necessarily sell a security when its rating is reduced below its rating at the time of purchase and the Fund may retain such securities if the Investment Advisor deems it in the best interests of Shareholders.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the J.P. Morgan JACI Non-Investment Grade Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the duration of the Index. The Index comprises fixed rate US Dollar-denominated high yield bonds issued by Asia sovereigns, quasi-sovereigns, banks and corporates. The existing Index contains both fixed and floating rate bonds issued by Asia-domiciled entities having a nominal outstanding of at least US\$150 million and more than one year to maturity. Further details on the Index, including an up-to-date description of its duration, are available from the Investment Advisor on request.

The Fund will concentrate its investments in the developing countries of Asia (emerging Asia) but may invest up to 20% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments from any other countries. The Investment Advisor may invest up to 5% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund in securities traded on domestic Russian markets and any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange.

The Fund may invest without limit in instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. Please see the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. As outlined in the aforementioned section, the Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets.

The Fund will utilise a credit (i.e. fixed income) strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment approach. This total return investment approach includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets (such as interest rates and the rate of inflation) and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process by analysing individual securities and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select what the Investment Advisor considers to be undervalued securities in the fixed income market.

No more than 20% of the Fund's assets may be invested in Fixed Income Securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to currencies may be actively managed where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so. Any active currency positions and currency hedging will be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and currency transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank UCITS Regulations from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures (including volatility futures), options (including barrier options), options on futures, contracts for difference and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts and participatory notes (which may or may not embed leverage). Participatory notes are instruments issued by banks or broker-dealers and are designed to offer a return linked to a particular underlying equity security, currency or market. Participatory notes are primarily used to gain exposure to equity securities which are otherwise difficult for foreign investors (such as the Fund) to access or too costly and time-sensitive for direct access to the underlying securities due to market registration issues (for example to gain exposure to Indian equity securities). Swaps used by the Fund (including Total Return Swaps, interest rate swaps, credit default swaps and variance/volatility swaps) will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out above in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under the heading "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of that instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the

investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Details on the Index are outlined above and further details are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities, which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "**Transferable Illiquid Securities**" and in loan participations and loan assignments (which may be securitised or unsecuritised) . The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from **Appendix 1** of the Prospectus.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency of the Fund is USD.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.65	-	-	-	0.65
H Institutional	0.82	-	-	-	0.82
R Class	0.85	-	-	-	0.85
Investor	0.65	0.35	-	-	1.00
Administrative	0.65	-	0.50	-	1.15
E Class	1.55	-	-	-	1.55
T Class	1.55	-	_	0.30	1.85
M Retail	1.55	-	-	-	1.55
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee", "Trail Fee", "Distribution Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in Hong Kong or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Dealing Deadline

Notwithstanding the definition of Dealing Deadline set out in the Prospectus, the Dealing Deadline for all Classes in the Fund is 9.00a.m. Irish time on the relevant Dealing Day for applications which are made directly to the Administrator. When subscriptions for shares are made through sub-agents of the Distributor or other intermediaries, the sub-agents or intermediaries may impose earlier deadlines for the receipt of applications.

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares" for additional detail relating to these policies.

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis. After closing of the Initial Offer Period Shares in the Fund will be issued at the Net Asset Value per Share.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the Investor Income A Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income.

The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income, gains or capital in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in the Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of

capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

The GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income).

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to emerging Asia fixed income markets, including non investment grade securities, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Credit Risk, High Yield Risk, Market Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the PIMCO Capital Securities Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested. Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

The Fund has the ability to invest principally in financial derivative instruments. An investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

PIMCO Capital Securities Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality(1)	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	3 – 7 Years	Not Applicable	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide focused exposure to attractively priced Capital Securities (defined below) together with maximum total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing in an actively managed portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments and other securities of which at least 80% will be invested in Capital Securities in accordance with the policies set out below. Capital Securities are Fixed Income Securities, contingent convertible bonds and/or equities issued by financial institutions such as banks and insurance companies. The Fund uses a combination of bottom-up and top-down processes to identify appropriate Capital Securities with each Capital Security being passed through three screens. The first screen is the Investment Advisor's top down view of the economy and global financial markets. Such matters are critical to the banking system and can have an impact on, for example, regulations and capital requirements. Due to the correlated nature of banking risk and sovereign risk, this screen also incorporates an assessment of sovereign risk in making an investment in a certain country's banking system. The second screen is the Investment Advisor's bottom-up research which incorporates an evaluation of the relative strength of balance sheets and company earnings power together with maintaining strong access to senior management teams of financial institutions and on-going dialogue with them about the sources of future credit strength or weakness. The third screen is valuation. The strength of how well a Capital Security passes each screen will assist the Investment Advisor in any investment decision.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target.

The Fund's assets will not be allocated according to a pre-determined blend or weighting across a geographical area. There are no restrictions on the minimum credit rating of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund and the Fund may invest without limit in securities that are rated lower than investment grade by Moody's, by S&P or by Fitch (or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4, the Fund may invest no more than 7.5% of its Net Asset Value in Fixed Income Instruments, Capital Securities or other securities issued by the same body (excluding bonds issued by governments, their agencies or instrumentalities). The average portfolio duration of the Fund varies based on the strategy currently being used by the Investment Advisor in managing the assets of the Fund but will normally vary between three and seven years.

The Fund may hold active positions in currencies up to a maximum of 10% of its Net Asset Value. The Fund may hold both USD and Non-USD denominated currency positions. Active currency positions and currency hedging may be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures,

options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.

The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets and in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank any such investment will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange. The Fund may use convertibles or equity securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of net assets in common stock. In the event a convertible security converts into common stock causing the Fund to exceed the limit of 10% of net assets in common stock, the Investment Advisor will use its best efforts to reduce the Fund's investment in common stock to below 10% of net assets within a reasonable timeframe and taking into account the best interests of the Fund.

The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in unsecuritised loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may use various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions and repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions) which are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

As outlined herein, the Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. For example, the synthetic short positions may be used by the Investment Advisor to protect the Fund against adverse movements in other investments. Synthetic short

positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods, however the combination of long and short positions will never result in uncovered short positions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure or, conversely, short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit.

Environmental Characteristics

This Fund promotes environmental characteristics but does not have sustainable investment as its objective. For further information, please refer to the Supplement to the Prospectus entitled "**Promotion of Environmental Characteristics**".

Investment Advisor

PIMCO Europe Ltd.

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management (%)	I Service (%)	l Trail (%)	I Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	I
Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79	
G Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79	
R Class	0.93	-	-	-	0.93	
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	-	0.96	
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	-	1.14	
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	-	1.29	
E Class	1.69	-	-	-	1.69	
T Class	1.69	-	-	0.40	2.09	
M Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69	
G Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", and "Service Fee" are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States and England (and, to the extent that the Fund uses PIMCO Europe GmbH to assist with its investment management, Munich) or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, R Class, T Class and Z Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00,

HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash quarterly or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration. In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

It should be noted that Management Fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the quarter or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the quarter. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Dividend Policy**" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise

the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors looking for focused exposure to Capital Securities who are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global fixed income markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Additional Information for Shareholders in the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes

Notwithstanding any section in the Prospectus, the settlement currency for subscriptions and redemptions relating to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes is the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

In accordance with the terms of Prospectus, the Net Asset Value of the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes shall be published in the Base Currency for the Fund (USD).

With respect to the BRL (Hedged) Share Classes, the Company intends to limit the Shareholder's currency risk by reducing the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the BRL and currency exposures of the Fund. Please see the section of the Prospectus entitled "Additional Information related to Share Class hedging" for further information.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Contingent Convertible Instruments, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

The Fund may invest in contingent convertible securities ("CoCos"), as outlined in the Fund's Investment Objective and Policies. The attention of investors is drawn to the section entitled "Contingent Convertible Instruments" within the section of the Prospectus headed "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques".

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "**SRRI**") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the PIMCO Climate Bond Fund (the "**Fund**"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "**Company**"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging market securities, an investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Income II Class and GBP Income Share Classes. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

PIMCO Climate Bond Fund - Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Climate focused Fixed Income Instruments	2-8 years	Max 25% below Baa (except MBS/ABS)	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek optimal risk adjusted returns, consistent with prudent investment management, while giving consideration to long term climate related risks and opportunities.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing under normal circumstances at least 80% of its total assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments, of varying maturities.

The Fund will reference its performance against the Bloomberg MSCI Green Bond Index USD Hedged (the "Index"). The Index offers investors a measure of the global market for fixed income securities issued to fund projects with direct environmental benefits. The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 25% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities and therefore the Fund can invest without limitation in such securities). The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary between 2 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest up to 25% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limitation does not apply to investment grade sovereign debt (securities or instruments) denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity. This means the Fund may be fully exposed to emerging market countries subject to any applicable legal or regulatory limitation. Please see the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. As outlined in the aforementioned section, the Investment Advisor has broad discretion to identify countries that it considers to qualify as emerging markets.

The Fund will invest opportunistically in a broad spectrum of climate focused Fixed Income Instruments and debt. In making investment decisions the Investment Advisor considers various quantitative and qualitative data relating to (i) global economies, (ii) projected growth of various industrial sectors and asset classes and (iii) issuers demonstrating leadership with respect to addressing climate related factors as further outlined below. Given the long term nature of the risks and opportunities presented by climate change and resource depletion, the Investment Advisor may emphasize a more strategic, or long-term in nature investment

strategy, with less emphasis on a short-term, tactical trading strategy. The Investment Advisor uses a three-factor approach to evaluating asset classes and their risks in seeking to achieve the Fund's investment objective which consists of 1) fundamental analysis relating to global economics, projected growth of various industrial sectors and climate related factors, 2) valuation analysis, and 3) assessment of market demand of and supply for asset classes. The Investment Advisor evaluates these factors on an ongoing basis and uses a combination of direct investment and derivative exposure to implement a resulting mix of assets within the Fund that reflects the Fund's investment objective.

The Fund will ordinarily be comprised of labeled and unlabeled green Fixed Income Securities as well as the debt of issuers demonstrating leadership in addressing risk and opportunities around climate related change. The Fund may also invest in any of the other types of ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section of the Prospectus entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities"). Labeled green Fixed Income Securities are those issues with proceeds specifically earmarked to be used for climate and environmental projects. Green labeled bonds are often verified by a third party (such as an audit firm), which certifies that the bond will fund projects that include environmental benefits. Unlabeled green Fixed Income Securities are securities with proceeds used for climate-aligned projects and initiatives (such as renewable energy and municipal owned water systems) but are issued without formal certifications. When considering whether an issuer has demonstrated leadership in addressing risk and opportunities around climate related change, the Investment Advisor will consider numerous factors, such as whether an issuer provides low carbon solutions, has implemented or prepared a transition plan to a low carbon economy or such other factors that the Investment Advisor may determine are relevant.

When considering an investment, the Investment Advisor may utilize the following resources to evaluate climate related factors; the Investment Advisor's internal research and scoring process relating to climate factors, third party research and data providers, an issuer's alignment with international commitments deemed relevant by the Investment Advisor (such as the 2016 Paris Agreement on climate change), and/or information made available by the issuer, such as carbon emissions and intensity. In determining the efficacy of an issuer's environmental practices, the Investment Advisor will use its own proprietary assessments of material environmental and climate-oriented issues and may also reference standards as set forth by recognized global organizations, such as entities sponsored by the United Nations.

The Fund may avoid investment in the securities of issuers whose business practices with respect to climate specific factors do not meet criteria established by the Investment Advisor. Additionally, the Investment Advisor may engage proactively with issuers to encourage them to improve their environmental practices or preparations for a low carbon economy. The Investment Advisor's activities in this respect may include, but are not limited to, direct dialogue with company management, such as through in-person meetings, phone calls, electronic communications and letters. Through these engagement activities, the Investment Advisor will seek to identify opportunities for a company to improve its climate focused practices and will endeavor to work collaboratively with company management to establish concrete objectives and to develop a plan for meetings these objectives. The Fund may invest in securities of issuers whose climate-related practices are currently suboptimal, with the expectations that these practices may improve overtime either as a result of the Investment Advisor's engagement efforts or through the company's own initiatives. The Fund may exclude those issuers that are not receptive to the Investment Advisor's engagement efforts, as determined in the Investment Advisor's sole discretion.

The Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the fossil fuel industry, including distribution / retail, equipment and services, extraction and production, petrochemicals, pipelines and transportation and refining, and the production, distribution of coal and coal fired generation, but excluding biofuel production, natural gas generation and sales and trading activities. Moreover, the Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the manufacture of alcoholic beverages, tobacco products or military equipment, the operation of gambling casinos, or in the production or trade of pornographic materials. However, ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section of the Prospectus entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities") from issuers involved in fossil fuel related sectors as described above, may be permitted.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to currencies may be actively managed on an opportunistic basis where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so. Any active currency positions and currency hedging will be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. Currency hedging activities and currency investment positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank UCITS Regulations from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques. Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements shall only be used for efficient portfolio management.

No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock). The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in convertible securities (including contingent convertible securities). The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in aggregate in illiquid securities which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments (which may be securitised or unsecuritised) which constitute money market instruments. Investments by the Fund in Fixed Income Instruments shall not include collateralised mortgage obligations.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures (including volatility futures), options (including barrier options), options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps used by the Fund (including Total Return Swaps, interest rate swaps, credit default swaps and variance/volatility swaps) will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out above in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure. (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under the heading "Financial Indices". Any such indices will meet the Central Bank's requirements. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of that instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than permitted index based derivatives in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank

and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 business days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from **Appendix 1** of the Prospectus.

Taxonomy Regulation Alignment

The EU Taxonomy Regulation (the "**Taxonomy Regulation**") seeks to create a common framework in order to classify certain activities as environmentally sustainable. The detailed conditions to be satisfied under the Taxonomy Regulation for such classification called the Technical Screening Criteria ("**TSC**") require the availability of multiple, specific data points for each investment.

As at the date hereof, there is insufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data available to be able to assess investments using the TSC and while there may be investments in the Fund that are in economic activities that contribute to an environmental objective and be eligible to be assessed against the TSC, the Manager is not currently in a position to provide this information. Therefore, the minimum share of investments in environmentally sustainable economic activities aligned with the EU Taxonomy including in transitional and enabling activities shall be 0%.

The Fund's actual share of investments in such activities may differ at any time. Any difference between expected and actual percentages will not require the Fund to dispose of an investment or otherwise alter

the portfolio composition. In order to qualify as "environmentally sustainable", such investments shall (a) contribute substantially to climate change adaptation and climate change mitigation, (b) not significantly harm any of the environmental objectives set out in the Taxonomy Regulation, (c) be carried out in accordance with the minimum safeguards laid down in the Taxonomy Regulation and (d) comply with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

The Manager intends for this Supplement to be updated at a time when sufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data on the Fund's investments is available.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency of the Fund is USD.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)		Unified Fee Inclusive of Waiver (%)*	Unified Fee not Inclusive of Waiver (%)
Institutional	0.52	-	-	-	-	0.52	0.52
H Institutional	0.69	-	-	-	-	0.69	0.69
R Class	0.78	-	-	-	-	0.78	0.78
Investor	0.52	0.35	-	-	0.05	0.82	0.87
Administrative	0.52	-	0.50	-	-	1.02	1.02
E Class	1.42	-	-	-	-	1.42	1.42
M Retail	1.42	-	-	-	-	1.42	1.42
T Class	1.42	-	-	0.40	-	1.82	1.82
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	-	0.00	0.00

^{*}This figure takes account a fee waiver by the Manager in the amount specified above from 31 May, 2021 to 31 May, 2023. The fee waiver will expire from 1 June, 2023 and the Supplement will be updated at the next available opportunity following expiry of the fee waiver. However, the Directors in their discretion may determine to continue or reduce the fee waiver beyond 1 June, 2023 and the Supplement shall be updated accordingly.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee", "Trail Fee", "Distribution Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first three years of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine. Shareholders will be notified of any change to the amortisation period by way of disclosure in the Company's annual accounts.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the M Retail Classes and Investor Income A Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the quarter, month or year or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the quarter, month or year. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Dividend Policy**" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The

yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

The GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which may be considered reportable income in the Fund) as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations". Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to investment grade global fixed income markets, subject to the climate related risks and opportunities outlined above, and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). EUR, GBP and USD denominated Share Classes are available in Currency Exposure versions. Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

1 64 6 1	
Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the PIMCO ESG Income Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

SUPPLEMENT

PIMCO ESG Income Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the Fund. As a result capital will be eroded and distribution is achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

An investment in the Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Class and the Income II Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

PIMCO ESG Income Fund-Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹	Distribution Frequency
Fixed Income Instruments	0 – 8 Years	Max 50% below Baa3 (except for MBS and ABS)	Monthly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek high current income, consistent with prudent investment management and sustainable investing (by explicitly integrating environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors into the investment process as further outlined herein). Long-term capital appreciation is a secondary objective.

The Fund will utilise a global multi-sector strategy. Top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent income. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities by examining the profiles of individual securities. The Fund is diversified broadly across regions, industries, issuers, and asset classes, as well as through multiple sources of value (as described above) and employs independent research and prudent diversification with respect to industries and issuers in order to seek to achieve its investment objective. The Fund utilizes a multi-sector approach to produce a consistent and attractive income while incorporating ESG factors. The Fund will seek to allocate to high quality ESG issuers and will seek to optimize sector exposures within an ESG framework.

The Fund's approach to sustainable investing is through the promotion of environmental and social characteristics as further outlined herein (while the Fund does not have sustainable investment as its objective, it seeks to invest a portion of its assets in sustainable investments).

The Fund seeks to promote environmental and social characteristics under normal market conditions in various ways as set out herein.

Firstly, the Fund will make meaningful allocations to ESG Fixed Income Securities (as further described in the section of the Prospectus entitled "ESG Fixed Income Securities") and unlabeled Fixed Income Securities. All securities will be selected according to the Investment Advisor's internal responsibility screening process designed to incorporate Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) factors. In addition, the Fund will seek to reduce the carbon footprint, including intensity and emissions of the portfolio's corporate holdings.

Secondly, the Fund will promote environmental and social characteristics through the use of an exclusion screening process. The Investment Advisor will seek to invest in companies or issuers that it believes have strong ESG practices and the screen applied by the Investment Advisor may exclude companies or issuers on the basis of the industry in which they participate. For example, the Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the oil industry, including extraction, production, refining, transportation, or the production, sale of coal and coal-fired generation. However, ESG Fixed Income Securities from issuers involved in oil and coal related sectors, as described above, may be permitted. In addition, the Investment Advisor may invest in securities of issuers determined by the Investment Advisor to be primarily focused on biofuel production as well as natural gas generation,

transportation, distribution and sales and trading activities. Moreover, additional exclusions may include but are not limited to the following: the Fund will not invest in the securities of any issuer determined by the Investment Advisor to be engaged principally in the manufacture of alcoholic beverages, tobacco products or military weapons, the operation of gambling casinos, or in the production or trade of pornographic materials. The Investment Advisor may also exclude an issuer based on other criteria such as involvement in environmental damage, corruption, human rights issues, or labour practices.

Thirdly, the Fund will promote environmental and social characteristics through active engagement. The Investment Advisor may actively engage with companies and issuers in order to seek to improve their ESG practices and the Fund may retain securities from such companies and issuers if the Investment Advisor deems this engagement is in the best interests of the Fund and its Shareholders.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index (the "Index"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that it uses the Index for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index. Further details relating to the Index are available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will seek to maintain a high level of dividend income by investing in a broad array of fixed income sectors which in the Investment Advisor's view typically generate elevated levels of income. The Fund will generally allocate its assets among several investment sectors, which may include (i) high yield and investment grade corporate bonds of issuers located in the EU and in non-EU countries, including emerging market countries; (ii) global bonds and Fixed Income Securities issued by EU and non-EU governments, their agencies and instrumentalities; (iii) mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities which may or may not be leveraged (typically including agency mortgage-backed securities and senior legacy non-agency mortgage-backed securities); and (iv) foreign currency positions, including currencies of emerging market countries. However, the Fund is not required to gain exposure to any one investment sector, and the Fund's exposure to any one investment sector will vary over time. Exposure to such securities may be achieved through direct investment in the aforementioned security types or through the use of financial derivative instruments. The Fund may engage in transactions in financial derivative instruments which include options, futures, options on futures and swap agreements (including swaps on fixed income indices) or credit default swaps principally for investment and/or for hedging purposes subject to the limits laid down by the Central Bank.

The capital appreciation sought by the Fund generally arises from an increase in value of Fixed Income Instruments held by the Fund caused by decreases in interest rates or improving credit fundamentals for a particular investment sector (e.g. improved economic growth) or security (e.g. improved credit rating or stronger balance sheet fundamentals). As noted above, capital appreciation is a secondary objective of the Fund. Accordingly, the focus on income and the charging of Management Fees to capital may erode capital and diminish the Fund's ability to sustain future capital growth.

The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-related and other asset-backed securities and therefore the Fund can invest without limitation in such securities). The Fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries.

Where the Investment Advisor deems it appropriate to do so for temporary or defensive purposes, the Fund may invest 100% of its net assets in Fixed Income Securities (as described above) issued by, or guaranteed

as to principal and interest by, the U.S. government (including its agencies or instrumentalities) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations provided that the Fund holds at least six different issues, with securities from any one issue not exceeding 30% of net assets.

No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in Equity Securities and equity related securities (such as warrants and preferred stock). The Fund may use Equity Securities in order to seek exposure to companies whose debt securities may not be readily available or have been identified as good investment opportunities through detailed analysis. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in aggregate in collateralised loan obligations, collateralised debt obligations and convertible securities (including contingent convertible securities).

The Fund may, subject to the conditions and limits laid down by the Central Bank, invest in structured notes (which shall not include bespoke structured notes), such as equity-linked notes and credit-linked notes. Structured notes are typically used as a substitute for direct investment in corporate debt or an index (debt or equity) and their value is linked to the underlying corporate debt or index. The issuer of such instruments will generally be global financial institutions. It should be noted that the Fund's credit exposure in relation to these instruments will be to the issuer of these instruments. Under the terms of structured notes that the Fund enters into, the potential exposure of the Fund is limited to the purchase price and there is no ability for the issuer to call for additional funds. Therefore, the potential loss is limited to the amount paid for them. However, it will also have an economic exposure to the underlying securities themselves. Such structured notes involve special types of risk, including credit risk, interest rate risk, counterparty risk and liquidity risk. The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" for further information in relation to these risks. Only structured notes which are liquid and deemed to be "transferable securities" in accordance with the Regulations will be permitted investments. To the extent that the structured notes contain an embedded derivative element, any leverage arising from investment in such instruments will be accurately monitored, measured and managed in accordance with the risk management process in place for the Fund.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes and the investment objective of such schemes will be complementary to or consistent with that of the Fund. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in aggregate in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "**Transferable Illiquid Securities**" and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated investment positions and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 30% of total assets. When investing, the Investment Advisor separates decisions related to interest rate, credit, and currency exposures based on prevailing economic conditions. Therefore currency exposures form part of the investment process and movements in both non-USD denominated investments and non-USD currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging and currency investment positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps.

The Fund may use various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase (which shall only be used for efficient portfolio management) and securities lending transactions (which shall only be used for efficient portfolio management)) which are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments which include futures, options, options on futures and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative

instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a fixed income related index (details of which will be available from the Investment Advisor and provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure). Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under the heading "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process as prepared and submitted to the Central Bank in accordance with the Central Bank requirements may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

As outlined herein, the Fund may use financial derivative instruments for investment purposes. Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods, however the combination of long and short positions will never result in uncovered short positions in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 business days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit. Any such assets shall be of investment grade, or if unrated, deemed to be of investment grade by the Investment Advisor.

Securities, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from Appendix 1 of the Prospectus.

Taxonomy Regulation Alignment

The EU Taxonomy Regulation (the "**Taxonomy Regulation**") seeks to create a common framework in order to classify certain activities as environmentally sustainable. The detailed conditions to be satisfied under the Taxonomy Regulation for such classification called the Technical Screening Criteria ("**TSC**") require the availability of multiple, specific data points for each investment.

As at the date hereof, there is insufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data available to be able to assess investments using the TSC and while there may be investments in the Fund that are in economic activities that contribute to an environmental objective and be eligible to be assessed against the TSC, the Manager is not currently in a position to provide this information. Therefore, the minimum share of investments in environmentally sustainable economic activities aligned with the EU Taxonomy including in transitional and enabling activities shall be 0%.

The Fund's actual share of investments in such activities may differ at any time. Any difference between expected and actual percentages will not require the Fund to dispose of an investment or otherwise alter the portfolio composition. In order to qualify as "environmentally sustainable", such investments shall (a) contribute substantially to climate change adaptation and climate change mitigation, (b) not significantly harm any of the environmental objectives set out in the Taxonomy Regulation, (c) be carried out in accordance with the minimum safeguards laid down in the Taxonomy Regulation and (d) comply with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

The Manager intends for this Supplement to be updated at a time when sufficient reliable, timely and verifiable data on the Fund's investments is available.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.59	-	-	-	0.59
H Institutional	0.76	-	-	-	0.76
R Class	0.82	-	-	-	0.82
Investor	0.59	0.35	-	-	0.94
Administrative	0.59	-	0.50	-	1.09
E Class	1.49	-	-	-	1.49
M Class	1.49	-	-	-	1.49
T Retail	1.49	-	-	0.40	1.89
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", and "Service Fee" are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first three years of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the Investor Income A Class, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared monthly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash monthly or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration. In the case of the Investor Income A Class, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis.

It should be noted that Management Fees or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

The GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the GBP Income Share Classes is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "**UK Tax Considerations**" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the month or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the month. Further detail on the Dividend policy of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Dividend Policy" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are conscious of incorporating ESG factors within their investing decisions, while also seeking an income-oriented, globally diversified fixed income offering, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the StocksPLUS[™] Fund (the "**Fund**"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "**Company**"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

StocksPLUS™ Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income Il Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

StocksPLUS[™] Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
S&P 500 stock index derivatives backed by a portfolio of short term fixed Income Instruments	0 – 1 year	B to Aaa (except MBS); max 10% below Baa	

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek to achieve a total return which exceeds the total return performance of the Standard & Poor's 500 Composite Stock Price Index ("S&P 500"). "StocksPLUSTM" is the name of a proprietary portfolio management strategy which combines an actively managed portfolio of Fixed Income Securities with an exposure to the S&P 500. The Fund may invest without limit in equity securities and securities that are convertible into equity securities.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the S&P 500 is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and by virtue of the fact that it seeks to outperform the S&P 500. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the S&P 500. However, the Investment Advisor will use its discretion to invest in securities not included in the S&P 500 in order to take advantage of investment opportunities. The investment strategy does not restrict the extent to which the Fund's holdings may deviate from the S&P 500.

The Fund will utilise equity derivative instruments for efficient portfolio management purposes (to include S&P 500 futures contracts as well as options and swaps on the S&P 500), which instruments seek to replicate the performance of the S&P 500. The Fund seeks to exceed the total return of the S&P 500 by investing in S&P 500 derivatives, backed by a portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments. The Fund may invest in common stocks and, subject to the Regulations, and as more particularly described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" the Fund may use derivative instruments such as options, futures, options on futures and swaps (which may be listed or over-the-counter). The Fund uses S&P 500 derivatives in addition to or in place of S&P 500 stocks to attempt to equal or exceed the performance of the S&P 500. The value of S&P 500 derivatives closely track changes in the value of the Index. However, S&P 500 derivatives may be purchased with a fraction of the assets that would be needed to purchase the equity securities directly, so that the remainder of the assets may be invested in Fixed Income Instruments.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the S&P 500 Index. The S&P 500 Index is composed of 500 selected common stocks, most of which are listed in the New York Stock Exchange. Further details on the index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Though the Fund does not normally invest directly in S&P 500 securities, when S&P 500 derivatives appear to be overvalued relative to the S&P 500, the Fund may invest up to 100% of its assets in a "basket" of S&P 500 stocks. The composition of this "basket" will be determined by standard statistical techniques that analyse the historical correlation between the return of every stock currently in the S&P 500 and the return on the S&P 500 itself. The Investment Advisor may employ fundamental stock analysis only to choose among stocks that have already satisfied the statistical correlation tests. Stocks chosen for the Fund are not limited to those with any particular weighting in the S&P 500. To the extent that the Fund invests directly in basket of S&P 500 stocks, it will do so pursuant to the investment restrictions set forth in **Appendix 4**.

Assets not invested in equity securities or derivatives may be invested primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers. The Investment Advisor will actively manage the fixed income component of the portfolio with a view toward enhancing the Fund's total return investment performance, subject to an overall portfolio duration which is normally expected not to exceed one year. To enhance the

Fund's liquidity, at least 50% of the Fund's fixed income component will be composed of Fixed Income Securities which settle on a "same day" basis.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments positions are limited to 30% of total portfolio exposure and non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Securities and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques. However, the Fund may also invest in such derivative instruments subject to the Regulations and the interpretations promulgated by the Central Bank from time to time.

The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

The S&P 500 is composed of 500 selected common stocks, most of which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. The weightings of stocks on the S&P 500 are based on each stock's relative total market value, that is, its market price per share times the number of shares outstanding. The Fund is neither sponsored by nor affiliated with S&P. The Fund will seek to retain its positions invested in securities listed in the S&P 500 even when the S&P 500 is declining.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
G Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	-	0.72
R Class	0.80	-	-	-	0.80
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.75	-	1.30
E Class	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
T Class	1.45	-	-	0.40	1.85
M Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
G Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
BE Retail	1.45	-	-	1.00	2.45
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge

Contingent deferred sales charges will be payable in respect of BE Retail Shares at the rates specified below, depending on the period that has elapsed between the initial subscription of the Shares and the date they are redeemed.

Redemption Period	Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (% of Net Asset Value of the Shares on the date of redemption)
Within first 3 months	3.00
After 3 months and before 6 months	2.75
After 6 months and before 9 months	2.50
After 9 months and before 12 months	2.25
After 12 months and before 15 months	2.00
After 15 months and before 18 months	1.75
After 18 months and before 21 months	1.50
After 21 months and before 24 months	1.25
After 24 months and before 27 months	1.00
After 27 months and before 30 months	0.75
After 30 months and before 33 months	0.50
After 33 months and before 36 months	0.25
After 36 months	0.00

Any such contingent deferred sales charges will be paid to the Distributor or the Manager. No Preliminary Charge or Redemption Charge shall be payable in respect of the BE Retail Shares.

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee", "Distribution Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Additional Redemption Information

In addition to the information outlined in the section of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Redeem Shares**", the redemption request for the BE Retail Shares must specify the amount of the relevant Shares to be redeemed.

Compulsory Exchange

It is intended that 36 months after the date of the initial subscription for Shares by each Shareholder in BE Retail, such Shares will be compulsorily exchanged for corresponding E Class Shares in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Prospectus entitled "**How To Exchange Shares**".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class, BE Retail and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A, and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

To the extent that the Fund invests in index derivatives backed by a portfolio of Fixed Income Securities, under certain conditions, generally in a market where the value of both index derivatives and Fixed Income Securities are declining or in periods of heightened market volatility, the Fund may experience greater loses or lesser gains than would be the case if it were to invest directly in a portfolio of index stocks.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Investors who are looking for capital appreciation and who are willing to accept the risk of stock market volatility. Investors who have a long term investment horizon.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Equity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS

requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
BE Retail	Acc
BE Retail	Inc
BE Retail	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Strategic Income Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Strategic Income Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the potentially higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Strategic Income Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging markets securities and high yield securities, an investment in the Strategic Income Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that all or part of the Management Fees payable by the Fund may be charged to the capital of the Fund. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be paid out of the capital of the Fund. As a result, capital will be eroded and distributions will be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Investment Objective and Policies

The primary investment objective of the Fund is to seek to provide an attractive level of current income, consistent with prudent investment management. The Fund also seeks to provide long-term capital appreciation as a secondary objective.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to a blend of the following two indices: the Bloomberg U.S Aggregate Bond Index and the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index weighted 75%/25% respectively (together the "Benchmark") by virtue of the fact that the Benchmark is used for calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Benchmark. However, the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Benchmark.

The Fund will utilize a global multi-sector strategy that seeks to combine the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy with income maximization. Portfolio construction is founded on the principle of diversification across a broad range of global fixed income and equity securities.

In relation to the global fixed income selection process, top-down and bottom-up strategies are used to identify multiple sources of value to generate consistent returns. Top-down strategies are deployed taking into account a macro view of the forces likely to influence the global economy and financial markets over the medium term. Bottom-up strategies drive the security selection process and facilitate the identification and analysis of undervalued securities.

Equity Securities and equity-related securities will be selected using the PIMCO Equity Income Strategy (the "Equity Strategy"). The Equity Strategy is a proprietary global equity strategy that seeks to deliver high income coupled with capital appreciation potential. The investment process for the Equity Strategy has two components; a systematic component and the Investment Advisor discretionary component. The systematic component computes a series of quality, value, growth, and momentum scores for stocks within the MSCI ACWI universe to construct a proprietary composite signal, which helps facilitate a balanced approach to stock selection. Based on this proprietary composite signal and input from the Investment Advisor, an optimized portfolio is generated that further incorporates limits on regional, sector, and company concentration relative to the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index, issues with low trailing trading volume and overall portfolio turnover, in seeking to achieve a higher average income level and greater capital appreciation potential than the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index. Subject to the discretion of the Investment Advisor, including any adjustments, the proposed portfolio is implemented. The Investment Advisor may also adjust the components of the investment process over time in seeking to optimally achieve the income and capital appreciation goals of the Equity Strategy.

As part of the global multi-sector strategy described above, the Investment Advisor may tactically allocate up to 10% of its assets in other income-producing investments, such as Fixed Income Instruments, Equity Securities and equity-related securities, collective investment schemes, REITs and publicly traded partnerships, which are also known as master limited partnerships ("MLPs"), subject to the Regulations and requirements of the Central Bank.

The Fund typically invests at least 50% of its total assets in Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities including bonds (fixed or floating) and debt securities issued by various U.S. and non-U.S. public- or private-sector entities, issued by agencies and instrumentalities, corporate debt securities, corporate commercial paper, mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities (which may or may not embed leverage). The Fund invests globally and generally will invest in securities that are economically tied to multiple countries.

The Fund may invest in both investment grade securities and high yield securities ("junk bonds"), subject to a maximum of 50% of its total assets in securities rated below Baa3 by Moody's, or equivalently rated by S&P or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality (except such limitation shall not apply to the Fund's investments in mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities). The average portfolio duration of the Fund will normally vary from 0 to 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund may also invest in Equity Securities and equity-related securities, and related financial derivative instruments on such securities. The Equity Securities and equity-related securities in which the Fund may invest include common stock, preferred stock and securities which are convertible into common or preferred stock. Convertible securities may include bonds, notes and debentures which may be converted or exchanged at a stated or determinable exchange ratio. The Fund may also invest in securities issued by listed real estate investment trusts ('REITs'), depository receipts (both American and Global), rights issues and structured notes such as equity-linked notes, equity-linked securities and participatory notes. The Fund's investments in Equity Securities and equity-related securities will be issued by companies with large, medium and small market capitisation. The Investment Advisor deems medium and large market capitalisation to be greater than \$1.5 billion. The equity securities in which the Fund invests may include securities traded on domestic Russian markets up to a maximum of 10% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank any such investment in Russian securities will only be made in securities that are listed/traded on the Moscow Exchange. The Fund will not employ a particular sectoral or geographical focus. The Fund may invest up to 40% of its total assets in securities and instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. The aforementioned limit does not apply to investment grade sovereign Fixed Income Instruments denominated in the local currency with less than 1 year remaining to maturity.

The Fund may also invest in derivative instruments such as options (including low exercise price options), futures, options on futures, swaps (including Total Return Swaps) and contracts for difference, as more particularly described below including derivatives based on eligible financial indices which have been cleared by the Central Bank or which meet its requirements. These indices may reference equity and fixed income securities, interest rates and commodities. The Investment Advisor may use commodities exposure in an effort to express a targeted investment view or in an effort to enhance and protect the capital of the Fund.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure will be unlimited. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. The Fund's exposure to currencies may be actively managed on an opportunistic basis where the Investment Advisor believes it would be beneficial to do so. Any active currency positions and currency hedging will be implemented using instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements.

Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time-and are more fully described in the Prospectus under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" including that repurchase, reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions will be used for efficient portfolio management purposes only. There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

Where considered by the Investment Advisor to be consistent with the investment objective and policy of the Fund, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities (including bonds and other Fixed Income Instruments as set out in this investment policy, which are illiquid) which are described in further detail in the Prospectus under the heading "Transferable Illiquid Securities" and in loan participations and loan assignments (securitised or unsecuritised) which constitute money market instruments but which are not traded on a Regulated Market.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use equity, equity-related and Fixed Income derivative instruments such as futures, options, swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter), contracts for difference and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps used by the Fund will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out above in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example,

the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposures to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular financial index including commodity-related indices. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under "Financial Indices". Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of that instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives) (whether for hedging purposes and/or for investment purposes), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 500% of Net Asset Value. However, the Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 700% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Benchmark. The Bloomberg U.S Aggregate Bond Index provides a broad-based measure of the investment grade, U.S. dollar-denominated, fixed-rate taxable bond market. The MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index is based on MSCI ACWI, its parent index, and includes large and mid-cap stocks across developed markets and emerging markets. The MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index is designed to reflect the performance of equities in the parent index (excluding REITs) with higher dividend income and quality characteristics than average dividend yields that are both sustainable and persistent. Further details on both indices are available on

www.msci.com or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Currency Hedging - Hedged Classes

In respect of the Fund's Hedged Classes the Company shall carry out currency hedging, in accordance with the provisions of the Prospectus, to reduce the effect of exchange rate fluctuations between the designated currency of the Hedged Class and the other denominated currencies of the Fund's assets.

Benchmark Regulation

The Fund uses the MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index in accordance with Article 3 (1)(7)(e) of the Benchmark Regulation. The MSCI ACWI High Dividend Yield Index is provided by an administrator, namely MSCI Limited, who is included in the register referred to in Article 36 of the Benchmark Regulation.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79
G Institutional	0.79	-	-	-	0.79
Investor	0.79	0.35	-	-	1.14
Administrative	0.79	-	0.50	-	1.29
H Institutional	0.96	-	-	-	0.96
R Class	0.93	-	-	-	0.93
E Class	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
T Class	1.69	-	-	0.40	2.09
M Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
G Retail	1.69	-	-	-	1.69
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of each of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1,000, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

Dividends declared, if any, will typically be paid on the last Business Day of the quarter, month or year or reinvested on the penultimate Business Day of the quarter, month or year. Further detail on the Dividend policy

of the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Dividend Policy**" and a detailed dividend calendar, which includes up to date distribution dates, is available from the Investment Advisor upon request.

The Fund may pay dividends out of net investment income and realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses (including fees and expenses). In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions. The Investment Advisor is not obliged to communicate an expected dividend rate per share to Shareholders and prospective investors, and although it may choose to do so from time to time, investors should note that any such rate may vary with market conditions. There can be no guarantee that any rate will be achieved, and in the event that there is insufficient distributable income or gains in the Fund to meet a specific level, investors in the Fund may receive no distribution or a lower level distribution. Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

It should be noted that Management Fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking for a competitive and consistent level of income without compromising long term capital appreciation and are looking for a diversified exposure to global fixed income and equity markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Equity Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Total Return Bond Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Total Return Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Total Return Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Funds and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality'	Distribution Frequency
Intermediate maturity Fixed Income Instruments	1	B to Aaa (except MBS); max 10% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Total Return Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg US Aggregate Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the Index. The Index represents securities that are SEC-registered, taxable, and dollar denominated. The index covers the U.S. investment grade fixed rate bond market, with index components for government and corporate securities, mortgage pass-through securities, and asset-backed securities. These major sectors are subdivided into more specific indices that are calculated and reported on a regular basis. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 10% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 10% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest without limit in USD-denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers.

The investment strategy seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and are utilised as part of regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual instruments and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities in the fixed income market.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 15% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in **Appendix 4** and as more fully described under the headings "**Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions**" and "**Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques**", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20

days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.50	-	-	-	0.50
G Institutional	0.50	-	-	-	0.50
H Institutional	0.67	-	-	-	0.67
R Class	0.77	-	-	-	0.77
Investor	0.50	0.35	-	-	0.85
Administrative	0.50	-	0.50	-	1.00
E Class	1.40	-	-	-	1.40
T Class	1.40	-	-	0.30	1.70
M Retail	1.40	-	-	-	1.40
G Retail	1.40	-	-	-	1.40
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "**Fees and Expenses**".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Institutional USD Accumulation and Investor USD Accumulation Share Classes of the Fund are currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily U.S. investment grade fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the Dynamic Bond Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

Dynamic Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the Dynamic Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in financial derivative instruments for investment purposes and its ability to invest in high yield securities and emerging markets securities, an investment in the Dynamic Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

Dynamic Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments		Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Fixed	income	- 3 years to +	Max 40% below Baa	Quarterly
Instruments		8 years		

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the Dynamic Bond Fund is to seek maximum long-term return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities. The Fund will not be constrained by fixed income market index related investment restrictions or tracking error targets. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary from negative 3 years to positive 8 years based on the Investment Advisor's forecast for interest rates.

The Fund intends to measure its performance against the ICE BofA SOFR Overnight Rate Index (the "Benchmark"). The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Benchmark by virtue of the fact that it uses the Benchmark for performance comparison purposes. However the Benchmark is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target.

The Fund may invest in both investment-grade and high yield Fixed Income Securities, subject to a maximum of 40% of assets in securities rated lower than Baa by Moody's or BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). In addition, the Fund may invest up to 50% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are economically tied to emerging market countries. Please refer to the section entitled "Emerging Markets Securities" under the heading, "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for a description of when an instrument is economically tied to an emerging market country. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its assets in preferred stock. Subject to the Regulations, the Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes.

The Fund will pursue a fixed income orientated investment strategy in accordance with its investment policies. The Fund's investment strategy will not be constrained by fixed income market index or benchmark-related investment restrictions or tracking error targets and will not be tethered to significant sector constraints. In addition, the Fund does not track or replicate the constituents of a particular index or use a traditional benchmark as a representative investment universe. As part of its investment strategy, the Investment Advisor will use a global secular forecast and an integrated investment process across multiple asset sectors as set out herein when selecting and allocating assets.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 35% of assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will primarily be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing

Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure) and that exposure to an index will be in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 1200% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 1400% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, the Fund could suffer significant financial losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Absolute VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed 20% of the NAV of the Fund and the holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limit is the current VaR limit required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified (%)	Fee
Institutional	0.90	-	-	-	0.90	
G Institutional	0.90	-	-	-	0.90	
R Class	0.99	-	-	-	0.99	
H Institutional	1.07	-	-	-	1.07	
Investor	0.90	0.35	-	-	1.25	
Administrative	0.90	-	0.50	-	1.40	
E Class	1.80	-	-	-	1.80	
T Class	1.80	-	-	0.30	2.10	
M Retail	1.80	-	-	-	1.80	
G Retail	1.80	-	-	-	1.80	
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00	

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Purchase Shares", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise long term return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a flexible, benchmark agnostic approach and diversified exposure to global fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in global fixed income markets, including emerging markets and non investment grade securities, and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the US High Yield Bond Fund (the **"Fund"**), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the **"Company"**), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

US High Yield Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the US High Yield Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in high yield securities, an investment in the US High Yield Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income Il Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

US High Yield Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
Higher yielding fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index	Max 30% Caa or below	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the US High Yield Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management. The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its total net assets in a diversified portfolio of high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch. In normal market conditions the Fund may invest up to 30% of its total net assets in high yield Fixed Income Instruments that are rated Caa or lower by Moody's or CCC or lower by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality). The portion of the Fund's assets that are not invested in Fixed Income Instruments rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch may be invested in higher quality Fixed Income Instruments. The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of the ICE BofAML US High Yield Constrained Index (the "Index"). The Index tracks the performance of US dollar denominated below investment grade rated corporate debt publically issued in the US domestic market. Issuer exposure is capped at 2%. Details of the duration of the Index will be available from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund may invest without limit in USD denominated securities of non-U.S. issuers. The Fund may also engage in hedging strategies involving equity options subject to the conditions and limits set down by the Central Bank from time to time.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Index by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The Fund will utilise a high yield credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments positions are limited to 20% of total portfolio exposure and non-USD denominated currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions will be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund is subject to an aggregate limit of one-third of its total assets on combined investments in (i) securities that are convertible into equity securities, (ii) equity securities (including warrants), (iii) certificates of deposit, and (iv) bankers' acceptances. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in emerging markets securities.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use derivative instruments such as futures, options and swap agreements (which may be listed or over-the-counter) and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or sectors which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's interest rate exposure to the Investment Advisor's outlook for interest rates, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular index (provided always that the Fund may not have an indirect exposure through an index to an instrument, issuer or currency to which it cannot have a direct exposure).

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when PIMCO deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the Fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across various asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be Index. The Index tracks the performance of US dollar denominated below investment grade rated corporate debt publically issued in the US domestic market. Issuer exposure is capped at 2%. Further details on the index are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency is USD for the Fund.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
G Institutional	0.55	-	-	-	0.55
H Institutional	0.72	-	-	-	0.72
R Class	0.80	-	-	-	0.80
Investor	0.55	0.35	-	-	0.90
Administrative	0.55	-	0.50	-	1.05
E Class	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
T Class	1.45	-	-	0.40	1.85
G Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
M Retail	1.45	-	-	-	1.45
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

The Investor USD Income Share Class, Institutional USD Accumulation Share Class and Institutional USD Income Share Class of the Fund are currently listed on Euronext Dublin. Please contact the Administrator or the Company's listing broker for the most current information on listed classes.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits

on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to high yield fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional	Acc
Institutional	Inc
Institutional	Inc II
G Institutional	Inc
G Institutional	Inc II
H Institutional	Acc
H Institutional	Inc
H Institutional	Inc II
Investor	Acc
Investor	Inc
Investor	Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II

PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc

An umbrella type open-ended investment company with variable capital and segregated liability between sub-funds and incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Ireland with registered number 276928, authorised by the Central Bank on 28 January 1998 as a UCITS, pursuant to the UCITS Regulations.

This Supplement contains information relating specifically to the US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund (the "Fund"), a Fund of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc (the "Company"), an open-ended umbrella fund with segregated liability between sub-funds.

This Supplement forms part of and should be read in the context of and in conjunction with the Prospectus for the Company dated 8 August, 2022 (the "Prospectus") which immediately precedes this Supplement and is incorporated herein.

US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund

8 August, 2022

Capitalised terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Prospectus.

The Directors of the Company whose names appear in the Prospectus under the heading "Management and Administration" accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement and the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in this Supplement and in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. The Directors accept responsibility accordingly.

Due to the higher than average degree of risk attached to investment in the US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund because of its ability to invest in emerging market securities, an investment in the US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund should not constitute a substantial proportion of an investment portfolio and may not be appropriate for all investors.

Shareholders should note that dividends may be payable out of the capital of the GBP Income Share Classes, the Income II Class, the G Institutional Income Class and the G Retail Income Class. The payment of dividends out of capital may result in the erosion of capital notwithstanding the performance of the Fund. As a result, distributions may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth and this cycle may continue until all capital is depleted.

Shareholders should note that the Management Fees and other fees payable by the Income II Class may be charged to the capital of the Income II Class. Thus, on redemptions of holdings Shareholders may not receive back the full amount invested due to capital reduction.

US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund – Summary Information

The following chart provides summary information about the Fund. It is qualified in its entirety by the more complete descriptions of the Fund and associated risks appearing in this Supplement and the Prospectus.

Primary Investments	Average Portfolio Duration	Credit Quality ⁽¹⁾	Distribution Frequency
USD denominated corporate Fixed Income Instruments	+/- 2 years of its index	B to Aaa (except MBS); Max 15% below Baa	Quarterly

⁽¹⁾ As rated by Moody's Investors Service, Inc., or equivalently by Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Fitch, or if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality.

Investment Objective and Policies

The investment objective of the US Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund is to seek to maximise total return, consistent with preservation of capital and prudent investment management.

The Fund invests at least two-thirds of its assets in a diversified portfolio of USD-denominated investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments of varying maturities, which may be represented by holdings in credit-related Fixed Income Securities or derivative instruments such as options, futures contracts or credit default swaps as further outlined herein.

The Fund is considered to be actively managed in reference to the Bloomberg US Credit Index (the "Index") by virtue of the fact that the Index is used for duration measurement, calculating the global exposure of the Fund using the relative VaR methodology and for performance comparison purposes. Certain of the Fund's securities may be components of and may have similar weightings to the Index. However, the Index is not used to define the portfolio composition of the Fund or as a performance target and the Fund may be wholly invested in securities which are not constituents of the Index.

The average portfolio duration of this Fund will normally vary within two years (plus or minus) of Index. The Index is an index comprised of dollar-denominated, publicly issued U.S. corporate and specified non-U.S.debentures and secured notes that meet the specified maturity, liquidity, and quality requirements. To qualify for inclusion in the Index, fixed income instruments must be SEC registered. Further details on the Index are publicly available online or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The Fund invests primarily in investment grade corporate Fixed Income Instruments, but may invest up to 15% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments that are rated lower than Baa by Moody's or lower than BBB by S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch, but rated at least B by Moody's or S&P or equivalently rated by Fitch (or, if unrated, determined by the Investment Advisor to be of comparable quality) with the exception of mortgage-backed securities (which may or may not embed leverage) for which there is no minimum credit rating requirement. Although there is no minimum credit rating requirement for mortgage-backed securities, below investment grade mortgage-backed securities will be taken into account when calculating the aforementioned 15% limit in below investment grade securities. The Fund may invest up to 25% of its assets in Fixed Income Instruments which are economically tied to emerging market countries, of which some securities may be below investment grade subject to the limits described above.

The Fund will utilise an investment grade credit strategy that seeks to deploy the Investment Advisor's total return investment process and philosophy. This process includes both top-down and bottom-up decision-making inputs to help the Investment Advisor to identify multiple sources of value. Top-down strategies focus on both short-term and longer-term global macroeconomic considerations and provide context for regional and sector selection. Bottom-up strategies examine the profiles of individual credits and are key to the Investment Advisor's ability to select undervalued securities.

The Fund may hold both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currency positions. Non-USD currency exposure is limited to 20% of total assets. Therefore, movements in both non-USD denominated Fixed Income Instruments and non-USD denominated currencies can influence the Fund's return. Currency hedging activities and currency positions may be implemented using spot and forward foreign exchange contracts and currency futures, options and swaps. The various efficient portfolio management techniques (including without limitation when issued, delayed delivery, forward commitment, currency transactions, repurchase and reverse repurchase and securities lending transactions) are subject to the limits and conditions set down by the Central Bank from time to time and are more fully described under the heading "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions". There can be no assurance that the Investment Advisor will be successful in employing these techniques.

No more than 25% of the Fund's assets may be invested in securities that are convertible into equity securities such as convertible bonds (including contingent convertible bonds) which may or may not embed leverage. No more than 10% of the Fund's total assets may be invested in equity securities. The Fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in units or shares of other collective investment schemes. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its net assets in illiquid securities and in loan participations and loan assignments which constitute money market instruments. The Fund may also hold and maintain ancillary liquid assets and money market instruments, including but not limited to asset-backed securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit.

Subject to the Regulations as set forth in Appendix 4 and as more fully described under the headings "Efficient Portfolio Management and Securities Financing Transactions" and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques", the Fund may use equity, equity-related and fixed income-related derivative instruments, including futures (including volatility futures), swaps, options (including call and put options and barrier options), options on futures, swaptions and may also enter into currency forward contracts. Swaps (including Total Return Swaps, interest rate swaps, inflation swaps, long and short credit default swaps, Total Return Swaps, variance and volatility swaps) used by the Fund will be based on asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein in addition to permissible indices, currencies and interest rates. Such derivative instruments may be used (i) for hedging purposes and/or (ii) for investment purposes and/or (iii) efficient portfolio management. For example, the Fund may use derivatives (which will be based only on underlying assets or indices based on equity, equity-related and Fixed Income Securities which are permitted under the investment policy of the Fund) (i) to hedge a currency exposure, (ii) as a substitute for taking a position in the underlying asset where the Investment Advisor feels that a derivative exposure to the underlying asset represents better value than a direct exposure, (iii) to tailor the Fund's exposures to the Investment Advisor's outlook for various markets, and/or (iv) to gain an exposure to the composition and performance of a particular financial index. Details of any financial indices used by the Fund will be provided to Shareholders by the Investment Advisor on request and will be set out in the Company's semi-annual and annual accounts. Further information is set out in the Prospectus under "Financial Indices". Any such indices will be used in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Only derivative instruments listed in the Company's risk management process and cleared by the Central Bank may be utilised. In respect of any instrument which contains an embedded derivative, the derivative component of such instrument shall be of a type which the Fund could otherwise invest in directly.

The use of derivative instruments may expose the Fund to the risks disclosed under the headings "General Risk Factors" and detailed under "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques". Position exposure to underlying assets of derivative instruments (other than index based derivatives), when combined with positions resulting from direct investments, will not exceed the investment limits set out in Appendix 4. The use of derivatives will give rise to an additional leveraged exposure. The level of leverage for the Fund is expected to range from 0% to 600% of Net Asset Value. The Fund's leverage may increase to higher levels, for example, at times when the Investment Advisor deems it most appropriate to use derivative instruments to alter the Fund's equity, interest rate, currency or credit exposure. The leverage figure is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used as is required by the Central Bank and as such does not take into account any netting and hedging arrangements that the Fund has in place at any time.

Where the Investment Advisor believes it appropriate to do so as a result of detailed investment analysis, the Fund may use derivatives to create synthetic short positions. Synthetic short positions are positions which are in economic terms equivalent to short positions and will be implemented through the use of financial derivative instruments in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. The Fund will take long and synthetic short positions over a variety of time periods in accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank. Further information on the Fund's use of derivatives is set out below. The proportion of long to short exposure in the Fund will depend on the market conditions at any given time. It is possible that the Fund may have long only exposure, or conversely short only exposure at any point in time. Although under normal market conditions it is not anticipated that the fund would be directionally short, on a net basis. Such positions may be taken across the asset classes contemplated under the investment policy of the Fund as set out herein. When calculated using the gross notional value of any derivatives in the Fund and the market value of any direct investments, the combination of total gross long positions and total gross short positions are not expected to exceed 800% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund. For further information, please refer to the paragraph in this section of the Supplement outlining the level of leverage expected for the Fund which is calculated using the sum of the notionals of the derivatives used.

The market risk associated with the use of derivatives will be covered and will be risk managed using the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology in accordance with the Central Bank's requirements. VaR is a statistical methodology that predicts, using historical data, the likely maximum daily loss that the fund could lose calculated to a one-tailed 99% confidence level. However there is a 1% statistical chance that the daily VaR number may be exceeded. The VaR approach uses a historical observation period and thus the VaR result may be biased if abnormal market conditions are not prevalent or are omitted from the historical observation period. Accordingly, investors could suffer significant losses in abnormal market conditions.

The Fund intends to use the Relative VaR model. Accordingly, the VaR of the Fund's portfolio will not exceed twice the VaR on a comparable benchmark portfolio or reference portfolio (i.e. a similar portfolio with no derivatives) which will reflect the Fund's intended investment style. The benchmark portfolio will be the Index. Further details on the Index are outlined above and are publicly available or from the Investment Advisor upon request. The holding period shall be 20 days. The historical observation period shall not be less than one year. It should be noted that the above limits are the current VaR limits required by the Central Bank. However, should the VaR model for the Fund or the Central Bank limits change, the Fund will have the ability to avail of such new model or limits by updating this Supplement and the Risk Management Process of the Company accordingly. The measurement and monitoring of all exposures relating to the use of derivative instruments will be performed on at least a daily basis.

Securities and instruments, as detailed above, in which the Fund may invest will be listed or traded on the list of recognised exchanges and markets from Appendix 1 of the Prospectus.

Investment Advisor

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Base Currency

The Base Currency for the Fund is USD.

Fees and Expenses

The fees payable to the Manager shall not exceed 2.50% per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

Class	Management Fee (%)	Service Fee (%)	Trail Fee (%)	Distribution Fee (%)	Unified Fee (%)
Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49
G Institutional	0.49	-	-	-	0.49
H Institutional	0.66	-	-	-	0.66
R Class	0.76	-	-	-	0.76
Investor	0.49	0.35	-	-	0.84
Administrative	0.49	-	0.50	-	0.99
E Class	1.39	-	-	-	1.39
T Class	1.39	-	-	0.40	1.79
M Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39
G Retail	1.39	-	-	-	1.39
Z Class	0.00	-	-	-	0.00

Further detail in respect of the fees payable to the Manager including the "Management Fee", "Service Fee" and Z Class Fee are set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

A detailed summary of the fees and expenses of the Fund and the Company is set out in the section of the Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses".

Establishment Costs

The cost of establishing the Fund and the preparation and printing of the relevant Supplement is expected not to exceed USD 50,000 and will be charged to the Fund and amortised over the first year of the Fund's operation or such other period as the Directors may determine.

Dealing Day

Any day on which banks are open for business in the United States or such other days as may be specified by the Directors with the approval of the Depositary provided there shall be one Dealing Day per fortnight and all Shareholders will be notified in advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it will not be a Dealing Day for the Fund where either as a result of public holidays or market/stock exchange closures in any jurisdiction, it makes it difficult (i) to administer the Fund or (ii) value a portion of the Fund's assets.

For further details on proposed Fund closures throughout the year, Shareholders and prospective investors should contact the Administrator or consult the Funds Holiday Calendar (a copy of which is also available from the Administrator).

For further details on the purchase sale or exchange of Shares in the Fund please refer to the sections of the Prospectus headed "How to Purchase Shares", "Key Information Regarding Share Transactions", "How to Redeem Shares" and "How to Exchange Shares".

Initial Offer Period and Issue Price

As set out in greater detail in Schedule A to this Supplement, the Fund issues Institutional, Investor, Administrative, Class H Institutional, E Class, G Institutional, G Retail, M Retail, T Class, Z Class and R Class Share Classes. Within each Class, the Fund may issue either or all Income Shares (Shares which distribute income), Income II (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield) and Accumulation Shares (Shares which accumulate income). Within the Investor Classes, the Fund may also issue Income A Shares (which distribute income on an annual basis).

The Initial Issue Price for any new Class of Shares in the Fund shall be, depending on the denomination of the Share Class, AUD 10.00, BRL 10.00, CAD 10.00, CHF 10.00, CLP 100.00, CZK 10.00, EUR 10.00, GBP 10.00, HKD 10.00, HUF 10.00, ILS 10.00, JPY 1000.00, MXN 100.00, NOK 100.00, NZD 10.00, PLN 10.00, RMB 100.00, SEK 100.00, SGD 10.00, USD 10.00, (exclusive of any Preliminary Charge or Exchange Charge payable).

The Initial Offer Period for any Class of Shares in the Fund which is available but not yet launched, as set out in Schedule A, will close on 8 February, 2023. The Initial Offer Period in respect of any new class of Shares may be shortened or extended by the Directors. The Central Bank will be notified in advance of any extension if subscriptions for Shares have been received and otherwise on an annual basis.

Dividends and Distributions

Save for the G Institutional, G Retail, Investor Income A and M Retail Classes, dividends paid in respect of any income class Shares in the Fund will be declared quarterly and, depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares after declaration.

In the case of the G Institutional, G Retail and Investor Income A Classes, dividends will be declared annually and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on an annual basis. The G Institutional Income, G Retail Income Classes and GBP Income Share Classes may pay distributions out of capital. The rationale for providing for payment of dividends out of capital for the G Institutional Income and G Retail Income Share Classes is to allow for the ability to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors seeking income oriented investment solutions, while for the GBP Income Share Classes it is to provide a stable and consistent level of distribution to investors and to allow for the ability to distribute capital (which as further described in the Taxation section of the Prospectus entitled "UK Tax Considerations" in certain instances will be considered reportable income). Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

In the case of the M Retail Classes, dividends will be declared monthly and depending upon the Shareholder's election, paid in cash or reinvested in additional Shares on a monthly basis.

In the case of the Income II Class (which seeks to provide an enhanced yield to Shareholders) the Directors may, at their discretion, pay fees out of capital as well as take into account the yield differential between the relevant hedged Share Class and the base Share Class (which constitutes a distribution from capital). The yield differential can be positive or negative and is calculated taking into account the contribution of the Share Class hedging arising from the respective type of hedged classes. In addition, in the event that realised profits on the disposal of investments less realised and unrealised losses is negative the Fund may still pay dividends to the Income II Class out of net investment income and/or capital. The rationale for providing for the payment of dividends out of capital is to allow the Fund the ability to maximise the amount distributable to investors who are seeking a higher dividend paying Share Class.

As highlighted above, it should be noted that Management Fees and any other fees, or a portion thereof, may be charged to capital of the Income II Class and that as a result capital may be eroded and income may be achieved by foregoing the potential for future capital growth. The rationale for charging to capital is to maximise the amount distributable to investors.

Distributions out of capital may have different tax implications to distributions of income and investors should seek advice in this regard.

Profile of a Typical Investor

Typical investors in the Fund will be investors who are looking to maximise total return through a combination of both income and capital growth and are looking for a diversified exposure to primarily USD denominated investment grade fixed income markets and are willing to accept the risks and volatility associated with investing in such markets and who have an investment horizon over the medium to long term.

Risk Factors

The attention of investors is drawn to the sections of the Prospectus headed "General Risk Factors" which may all be applicable to the Fund and "Characteristics and Risks of Securities, Derivatives, Other Investments and Investment Techniques" for information on risks relating to those securities, instruments and markets which form part of the Fund's investment policy as outlined in the "Investment Objective and Policies" section above. Specifically, we draw the attention of investors to certain risks associated with this Fund, as outlined in the sections above, which include, but are not limited to High Yield Risk, Currency Risk, Derivatives Risk, Emerging Markets Risk, Interest Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk.

Please refer to the synthetic risk and reward indicator (the "SRRI") as disclosed in the "Risk and reward profile" section of the Key Investor Information Document for the relevant share class in which you are invested in or proposed to invest in. The SRRI is based on the volatility of the Fund calculated in accordance with UCITS requirements. The higher the risk grading in the SRRI may mean that the net asset value of the Fund is likely to experience higher levels of volatility.

The Directors of PIMCO Funds: Global Investors Series plc whose names appear in the Prospectus accept responsibility for the information contained in this Supplement. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure such is the case) the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

SCHEDULE A

Details of the Share Classes available for subscription in the Fund are set out below. For each of the types of Share Classes, the Fund offers Share Classes in its base currency. Share Classes are also available in each of the other currency denominations set in the section "Initial Offer Period and Issue Price" (and which are available in Hedged and unhedged versions). Confirmation of whether the Share Class has launched and its date of launch and its current status are available from the Administrator upon request.

Institutional Institutional Institutional G Institutional G Institutional H Institutional H Institutional H Institutional H Institutional Investor Investor	Acc Inc Inc II Acc Inc II Acc Inc II Acc Inc Inc II Inc II
Investor	Inc A
Administrative	Acc
Administrative	Inc
Administrative	Inc II
E Class	Acc
E Class	Inc
E Class	Inc II
G Retail	Inc
G Retail	Inc II
M Retail	Inc
M Retail	Inc II
R Class	Acc
R Class	Inc
R Class	Inc II
T Class	Acc
T Class	Inc
T Class	Inc II
Z Class	Acc
Z Class	Inc
Z Class	Inc II